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Pearson at a glance

Funncal highlights

@ Fo read about our KPls poto pi4

Sales

£49bn

IMAGE REMOVED

+2% IMAGE REMOVED

Adjusted operating profit

(excluding Mergermarket)

£./20

IMAGE REMOVED

—I— 8 % IMAGE REMOVED

Average annual growth mn
headhline terms 20092014

Adjusted earmngs per share

+04%

Operating cash flow

-6.67%
Dwidend

+/.5%

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Throughout tlus report growth rates ar e stated on a constant exchange rate {CER) basis unless otherwise stited Where quoted underiying growt rates exchide
borth currency movements und porrfolio changes Unless otherwise stated, sales exdude Penguin and Mergermarket while adjusted operating profits srclude

Penguin Penguin Random House and Mergermarket. Conunwing operitions exdude both Penguin and Mergermariet
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Chairman’s introduction

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno
Chairman

“The most difficult phase of our

transformation has now been
completed... one which has laid
the foundations to strengthen
our position as the world’s
largest education company.”

Share price performance

+32.09%

FTSE 100 +2 0%
FTSE All Share +2 3%

Performance over 12 months to annauncernent of
prelinunary re sults (dose of 27 February 2015}

Sourte Datasuream

Read our full Governance section p57-112 (> ]
LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 Q)
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 &)
ENGAGEMENT p78-81
REMUNERATION p82-106 @
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES plO7-112©

Dear shar eholders,

We continue to make this report as helpful as possible

ta our shareholders and everyane interested in our
company We are guided by the IRC and FRC's principles,
and wherever possible, we will conunue to move towards
those over the next few years Ourambiton this year s
to tefl a more transparent, concise, and joined-up story

of the journey we are on to create value

In 2013 we made a series of comimitments designed to
meastire and increase the company’s impact on learning
outcomes around the world In 2014, John Fallon and his
leadership team have embedded efficacy — the idea that
each product or service we invest in ts Judged by the
outcomes ithelps learners achieve —as the defining
principle around which Pearson s orgamsed We also,
as an organisation, reaffirmed the values that we stand
for, which John talks about in more depth on page 4
This reportis the story of how these commutments will
result n a more sustamable and profitable company

Read more about thisin our Chief executive’s strategic
overview on p4-9, and our Efficacy secuon on p38-43

Transforming for long-term success

The most difficult phase of our transformation has now
been completed This has been one of the most significant
restructures i our long and varied hustory, one which has
{atd the foundations to strengthen our position as the
world’s largest education company The benefits of dus
restructure are already being felt, as Pearson becomes
more digital, more service-driven, and more capable

of improving educaten in the world's great economies
They are aso visible in the way we are organised, the
strategies behind which we are marshalled, and our
emerging culture This is explained and exermplified
throughout this report

Transformations of this scale cannot succeed without

the commutment of afl our stakeholders, and lam very
grateful to our shareholders and employees for the
confidence and patience they have placed i our long-term
vision Although in 2014 our share price saw some
volatility at the time ['write this {having just announced
our prelimmary results) it has recovered significantly,
nising 32% over the last 12 months Over the ten years to
December 2014 it had almost doubled (82 3%), during
which ume the total shareholder return has increased

by 182 6% Moreover, I'm delighted that, for the 23rd
consecutive year we've been able to increase ow dividend
per share We have confidence that these trends will
continue, thanks to the steps we have takenin the last
TWO years
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Share price perfor mance

IMAGES REMOVED

Source Datastieam 1o 3{ December 2014

Total shareholder recurn {TSR)

IMAGES REMOVED

Source Datastream 1o 3 December 214

TSR 1s one of our KPls

More onpl4 @

Building a balanced and strong team

Though our immediate ransformaton has been
completed, we will, of course, continue te adapt and
improve 10 ensure Our Ongomg success Yve continueg to
build a balanced, expenenced team, welcorming Elizabeth
Corley and Tim Score to the board, and a number of
highly regarded ndustry specialists Lo the executve
management team

This year we have also held ourtiienmal external board
review, and alangside that we have estabhished a process
for long-term succession planming, which we'll undertake
annually | would like to take this opportunity to thank our
chief financial officer, Robin Freestone, for his enormous
contribution to Pearson over the last ten years We look
forward to Coram Willams joming us in that role on

{ August 2015 Read more about our board on page 60,
and the executive team on page 9

Loolking forward

These are exciing times for everyone involved at Pearson,
as we begin to see the opportunites created by two

years of very substanual ransformation Ichas beena
challenging journey attimes, butworth it We now move
into our next chapter, better prepared than ever to help
people all over the world progress m their lives through
fearming and in so doing, create a growing sustamable
company for the benefit of our sharehelders

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno, Chawrman
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Chief executive's strategic overview

IMAGE REMOVED

John Fallon
Chiof executive

“For education to really work it needs
to not only provide access, but
ensure progress... by standing at the
intersection of new technology and
good teaching practices, we can help
to make learning more accessible
and more relevant for more people
around the world.”

Short stones of impact

Dear shareholdes s,

Pearson’s purpase Is to empower people to progress mn
their ves through learning, and that means we put the
fearner at the heart of everything we do Through this
review, you'll see five stortes from students that dlustrate
how we've been doing over the fast year

Each story demonstrates the commitment and abihity
of the young woman involved, each a great source of
nspiration to all of us Each showcases one of Pearson's
most commercially successful products (MG, BTEC,
Connections, Wall Street English, Mylabs) of recent
years And they all illustrate that the bigger Pearson's
soaal tmpact - in improving access o good quality
educatton and ensuring that translates into meanmgful
tearning outcomes for far more people — the more we
can create a faster growing and more profitable company,
and do so in a sustainable manner

{.ast October Malala Yousafzai accepted her Nobel Peace
Prze on behall of the 66 million gifls around the world
who don't go to school In this same spint ['ve chosen five
stories that are about the achievements of young wornen
around the world You'll find more stones reflecung the
full diversity of what we do at www pearson com

Positioned to make a greater impact,

The transformation programme we taunched in February
of 2013 i1s now complete Over the course of two years,
we carried out as much restructuring, in terms of acuvity
and costs incurred, as we'd carried outin the previous six

Rozanna's story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Rozanna has beaten overwhelming odds Borninto a
famuly i1 Zumbabwe in which netther parent had taken
A-levels, let alone attended university, she was not a
typical candidate for hegher education Insecunty, lack
of access to technology. and fear about personal safety
were some of the barrers shefaced Buther thirst

for educanonied her to enrol i Pearson’s Midrand
Graduate Instirute (MGl in South Afnica Rozannais
now a third-year psychology major with a drive for
ackueverent that has inspired us all at Pearson She
praises her lecturers, and credits much of her success with
the personalsed learning technology she uses at MGl
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That programme has been afl about setung Pearson up
to be able to demonstrate the impact of what we do in
educanon around the wortd {tis about enablingus to

do nght act oss Pearson the thing that we have done
increasingly well in many parts of the company, and which
our stories of peaple fearning all help to demonstrate
That 15, we stand at the intersection of new technology
{with its ability to engage, perscnalise and diagnose) and
new, more effective, ways of teaching This position allows
us to develop products and services that enable the
benefits of richer, deeper learning to be more widely felt

We've had to canduct this accelerated programme of
change whilst dealing with cychical and pohcy related forces
in our biggest markets, which | described i last year's
report, and which continued to hurtusin 2014 Inspire

of these challenges, I'm pleased to report that we did
meet the financial expectatons that we set publicly for
the company at the start of the year Overall, ataume

of much internal disruption and upheaval weputina
generally good competitive performance There were

a couple of areas of under-performance, too, and we're
worlang hard to do better in these actuvittes in 2015

[t wasn't just Pearson’s education refated businesses that
performed well through this period of change Penguin
Random House, the company we own with Bertelsmann,
turned 1n a best-selling performance whilst integratng the
two companses And the Financral Tinres, now partof our
professional educauon business, continued to deliver the
world's best news and informauon to s audiences whilst
acceleraung its own digital transition

Short stories of impact

In 2015 we expect Pearson’s profits to start to grow
agarn, as the forces that have been worlung agamst us
over the last two years start to ease, and as we benefit
from the cost savings achieved by our restructuring and
the revenues generated by our new investments

A growmng global derand

We'll be working hard with our customiers to tackie what
we think s one of the mostimportant challenges i the
world today For globalisaton and the disruptive powers
of technology mean we live n a ‘Second Machine Age’
inwhich, as my colleague, Lionel Barber {editor of the
Financial Times) puts it, “leverage in the workplace 15 best
achieved through knowledge " This means that equipping
every global auzen with what are someumes described as
2)st century skills’ 1s more important than ever In other
words, for education to really work, 1t needs to not only
provide access, but ensure progress

To prosper in career and college, all young people need to
leave school literate and numerate, with good knowledge
of science, technology and the fiberal arts, and being able
to apply that knowledge to solve real world problems
They also need to be proficentin the kinds of less tangible
slalls that will help them succeed mn the workplace — criuical
thinkang, adaprability, team-working, and digital fluency

They need the grit, 1 esthence and determination to
persevere and succeed —and, most of all, they need
the capacity to carry onlearning throughout therr lives
These are all things that can be taught

Bethany's story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Bethany 1s a UK student who did not take A-levels, but
instead went after a BTEC qualificauon She, like so
many recent BTEC applicants, applied to university with
a different skillsat, but not with any fess determination
orability Her hard worl and credentials were
recognised when she was accepted o study Psychology
and Linguisuics at Oxford University Bethany's story
highlights that a skills-based quahfication ke a BTEC s
nota ‘lesser” credential but one that can set a student
up for success in higher education and a career
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Chef executive’s strategic overview continued

2015 prionities

Meeung the need

Forthe two billlon people learning Enghsh as a foreign
language, orthe 300-400 milhon more people enrolling in
higher educauon over the next 30 years, and alf the other
students of all ages around the world the need for effecuve
and relevant teaching and learning will continue to grow

Of course, there are challenges to meetng this need
Fragmented and siloed approaches to education, changes
in government policy and regulanions, and widely diverse
economic and social conditions, make our work, and that
of educators worldwide, much more complex But we

are confident that by standing at the intersection of new
technology and good teaching praciuces, we can help to
make learring more accessible and more relevant for more
people around the world

in 2015, five priorites, outlined here, are guiding our work

IMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of impact

A business model focused on helping more
people achieve bette: learning autcomes

Our efficacy inwatve, first outhined in last year's report, s
no longer justaframewoei k Efficacy 1s now at the cenue
of our business model and a major part of how we create
value This year, we'll embed it even more deeply into the
fabric of everything we do so that treaches more products,
influences more people and transforms more processes
As our customers become ever more focused on achieving
better returns on education related spending, Pearsonis at
the forefront of a great global growth opportunity And it
enables us to put our social impact at the very heart of our
busmess This apples to our Project Literacy campaign
(page 54) and the renewed investment in our Pearson
Affordable Learming Fund (page 56) just as it does to the
research and development of new praducts and services
and the way we engage with our custorners each day

[t1s the means by which we ensure thateducation s

more accesstble, impactful and affordable, and delivers
those outcomes to people regardless of location

Our business madel

Qur efficacy pr ogr amme
assessing and improving
the mpact of our
products 1s crucd to our
vol i@ creation maclet

IMAGE REMOVED

Zuriel's story

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Zuriel1s an ambitious 12-year old dacumentary
filmmalker, onginally from Nigera, who now lives in
Calforma She s enrolled in Pearson’s entirely online
Connecnons Academy, which she says allows her to
"do extracurricidar acuvities even when traveling
overseas, creating documentanes, and interviewing
African leaders,” vwithout missing mportant
schoolwork Zuriel recenty faunched the "Speak Up,
Stand Up” project to inspire girls on the African
continant te “stay i school, get a good education,
and also to accomplish their dreams ” We can safely
say she s leading by example
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2 New digital products

To further this work, we'll be launching new global
products to meet the need for much better learming
outcomes They connect content with assessment and
feadback They use analyucs and big data to personakse
learning — malang it a far more collaborative and effective
expenience for students and teachers They all draw on
world-class research into the science of teaching and
iearming In the end they Il all be mobile first and device
neutral And they are all designed to take full account of
justhow 'messy’ educauon can be, how importantitis
to deliver large and complex projects, and how to deal
with ‘lastmile’ issues Qur customers alf know that the
real problem in education 1s not finding a great teacher
ora really good school, but being able to rephcate that
excelience at scale All our new digital products are
focused on meeung that need

Qur priontles

3 A more facused company

We're building these products in a inodutar and scalable
way and deploying them on a smatler number of global
platforms Thisimproves the customer experience
makes it much easter to share assets and resources across
the whole company, and 1s afso much more cost effecuve
It1s one example of how we are simplifying our company
We've already reduced the number of applications and
systems used across the company by 0%, and we will
conunue that work this year We have already sold a
number of businesses where either we lacked scate or
we saw lirited scope for us to have a more direct tmpact
onlearning outcomes This work will continue, as we
forus our resources and energy on the biggest education
challenges we see around the world ltis where we can
make the biggestimpact, and whet e, by running Pearson
as one company we see the biggest opportunity

Our operaung strusture

Blended and v rwat scoe s Blended and virmur
(e, Connectiors Educancy, ngher educipon feamng

Suremas (og COC)

Large scale assestrwnt
cervees (o, TestNw)

World class qualifications

{e g Edexcel BTEC)

Digra' chirucal portiolio
(e £ Q Interictve)
Next generaron
COUSEWare (8.8
enVisonttATH Pearson
Systern of Courses
Reakize)

{en CTI)

Bi¢ adad and wirwuat
Eng 1shfanguace 'ctrvng
(e & Wal Strect Englisn)

Q' ne progran me
~anzgement {e.g our
partpershp with Arzona
State Urrversty —
ASUOn me)

Mext generLon

rourseware (e g REVEL)

Short stones of impact

Fearson VUE

G'onzl Seala of Engl 51

and Progress

Next penerntion

toursi wire (ep
yEnghsn Lab ELT World
Top Notch)

\We optrate a global
madel ibousea en
learner need a afferent
ages and stages, focally
adapted and deliverad
and xways vy the
laarmer 2t the cert e

iMAGE REMOVED

Julia’s story

IMAGE REMOVED

{MAGE
REMOVED

Juhas learning English at one of Pearson’s Wall Street
English centres in Shanghas | metwith her during my visit
there and was inspired by her drive She now hives far
from her parents’ farm in south China, and farfrom

the norms of rural ife Juha’s deasion to leave home to
conanue mn higher education rmught have come as a shodc
to her family, but she is determuned to improve her
English language capabriites in order to further her career
prospects and, one day, find work wath 2 global company
She hkes to engage on social media with friends she's met
wirtually around the world — and she wants to use her
English language skills to spread the word that, as she
puts it, “there's more to my country than ar polluton ™
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Chief executive's strategic overview continued

20 5 privt ket wontinued

A mare consistently ngh
performing culture

At ies best, Pearson has always championed high
performance, we're now taking a whole senes of

actions (including how we recruit appraise and reward
everyone who works for Pearson} to make this a feature
of everything we do We've reaffirmed, and amplified,
ourlong held values of ‘brave, imagmnative and decent’,
which are particularly important at a ume of great change
{Of the top 100 executives in the company, 70 are i the
last two years, new to their roles or to the company )
VWe've also added ‘accountable’ as a fourth core value
Thus 1s important to ensure that, In our new more ‘matnx’
style orgarssation, we all acuvely help each other to
achieve our collective goals [t also recognises how
important it s to be accountable to the public trust

for all we do in education around the wortd

iIMAGE REMOVED

Short stories of impact

5 A stranger brand

This accountabifity extends to our willingness to engage
in the public debate Education 1s one of the most
important areas of public life and evokes strong
emotons and opinions in a field where data and
evtdence as to ‘what works' can be difficult to come

by Qur focus on educanonal impact and learning
outcomes ~ and our openness and transparency n
holding ourselves to account in achieving these goals —
15 vital 1o address these concerns Today, public
awareness of Pearson as the world's leading learning
company, s sull relatvely imuted [fwe are going to
achieve our full potental, we need to build Pearson,

as a global educanon brand that 1s known for our work
in empowering more people to progress in their hves
through learning This means, for example, that we
need to be much less muted in cur engagement in the
circa 78 million-vorce strong ‘global conversation’ that
our research tells us 1s currently taking place around the
topics of ‘educavon’ and learming” And we also need
to orgamse our product marlketing so that we position
Pearson, especally online and through social media,

in 2 much more coherent way

Taylor's story

IMAGE REMOVED

MAGE
REMOVED

Taylor is a student at the University of North Texas
who was not thrifted that Statistics was a required
course for her major She lacked confidence n math
and nearly let that fear cause her to change course
and quit her degree programme altogether ‘I thought
| didi't have the ability to do maths,’ she told us
Taylor was then introduced to Pearson’s MyStatstab
and deaded to push through her{ear Instead of fallure,
she found success through using the tool to remforce
learning and practice mn difficult areas She completed
her Stausucs class with the highest possible grade
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Looking ahead

In accepung her Nobel Peace Prize, Malala Yousafza sad
‘Jammany | am not rasing my voice, itis the voice of
those 66 milion girls At the same event her feflow
reciptent, Kailash Satyarthi set us all the task of
‘universalising knowledge’

All 40,000 Pearson colteagues are tackling these priorities
in that spirie of * am many,’ working with each other and
with the miffions of students, teachers and schools we
serve We'll grow by helping more of our feflow citizens
to grow by universalising the knowledge (and the skills)
they'l need to succeed in this increasingly human capital
driven world Worlang with the communities in which
we operate, we'll combine new technology and new
teaching to enable the world to earn a far greater return
on the $5 tniflion and more that is spent on education
eachyear Aswe succeed, we'll grow our market
opportunity and help many more people make progress
in their hves through learning As a result, we'll start to
grow again in 2015, and more importantly itwill setus
up to be a faster-growing, leaner, more profitable and
cash-generative company for years o come Welibea
company deploying less capital and capable of eatring
higher returns

My executive team

| thank all my colleagues for ther hard work and
commitment And | thanl our shareholders for their
support and patience We are atready better placed to
help more learners around the world to achieve thewr
own personal aspratons

IMAGE REMOVED

john Fallon Chief executive

Lines of Business

Doug Kubach, President, School

Tim Boail, President, Higher Education
lohnRidding President, Professional

Enabling functions

Robin Freestone, Cheel financal officer

Coram Wifkerns, Chueffinancial officer from [stAugrist 2015
Michael Barber Chief educaticn adviser

Kate james Chiel corporate affairs officer

Geographies
Don Kilburn, President, North Amenca

Rod Brstow President, Core
Tamara Minick-Scolalo President, Growth

Luyen Chou, Chief product officer

Albert Hicheodk, Chief information officer

Melinda Wolfe Chief human resources officer

Phil Hoffrman, Chief corporate finance & strategic development officer
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Financial overview

IMAGE REMOVED

Rotun Freestone Chief finangal officer

Sales {at CER)
+27%
O
Adjusied earmings per share
Y/
-J/0
Operating cash flow
+10%
O

Dividend per share

+67%

“In 2014, revenues were up 2% at
constant exchange rates to £4.9bn,
and level in underlying terms, but
declined 4% in headline terms due to
the negative impact of exchange rates.”

2014 2013 HEADLINE CER  UNDERLYING
Business performance £m im GROWTH GROWTH GROWTH
Sales 4874 5069 {4)% 2% 0%
Adjusted operaung profit
(exciudmg Mergermarket} 720 710 1% 8% 5%
Adjusted operaung profit mn 736 (2)% 5% 5%
Adjusted earnings
per share 67 701p (5%
Operating cash flow €49 588 10%
Free cash flow 413 269 54%

Free cash flow per share 509 333 53%

Return on invested capital 56% 54% 02%pts

Net debt 1,639 1,379 (19%

Statutory results

Sales 4874 5,069 (4%
Operating profit 398 458 (13)%
Profit befar e tax 305 382 (20)%

Basic earnings per share S8lp 666p {13)%

Cash generated in

operations 704 684 3%
Dividend per share 5{0p 4B0p 6%
Notwe

1) Growth rate s are stated on a const 1nL exchange rute (CER} bass upiess otherwise stated Where
quated underlng growthrates exclude both cuivency inoverments and pes tfolio changes Unless
otherwise staied sales exclude Ponguin and ergermarket wh la ad usted opcoratng profits nclude
Pengum Penguin Rindom tHouse and Merpermarke: Conuntimg eperations exctude both Pengun
and Mergs renarket

b) The busness perforn.ance measures are non GAAP measures and recnncfiatons 1o the uquivdlent
statutory headmg under IFRS are ncluded (v nates to the contiofidated fimangral statements 2 6 7 8
art 34 and the corporate wd opertung measuras

) For comparabihity pueposes we have induded an addit onat adjusied operaung profit measure that
exeludes the resuts of Mergarmarket but mcludes thase of Pengu'n in 2014 Mergermarket contrbuted
only one month of profic (£2m) whil<t it contrbured a full year In 2043 (£26m) Although Perguinisa
disroniinuad business the results are no v effecovely ncuded within our ussonate sthire of PRH
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Profit & loss stacement.

Restructuring

in 2014 Pearson sales dechned £195m, 4% i headine
ter s, o £4 9bn Toral adjusted operating profit fell
£14m, 2% n headline terms, to £722m after £44m of
net restructuning charges (2013 £135m)

Currency movements, primartly from the strength of
Sterling relative to the US Dollar duning the year, reduced
sales by £272m and operating profits by £49m At
constant exchange rates (ie stripping out the impact of
those currency movements), our sales and adjusted
operaung profit grew 2% and 5%, respecuvely

Acguisions and disposals contributed £79m to sales and
anet zero to operating profits at constant exchange rates
This includes integration costs and mvestments related

1o our newly-acquired companies, which we expense
Penguin Random House was reported post tax for the

full year in 2014, compared to only the second half n 2013
following the combination of Penguin with Random House
on | july 2013, and resulted in a2 £7m reduction inthe
contribution to operating ncome with an equal benefit

10 our tax charge

Stripping out the impact of portfolio changes, Penguin
Random House and the impact of currency movements,
revenues were level n underlying terms while adjusted
operating profit {excluding Mergermarket) grew by 5%

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, compared to
£72min 2013 This decrease 1s manly due to the impact
of foreign exchange translauon and addmional interest
recewable on cash balances held overseas which offset
the effect of tugher average net debt levels in the period

Cur tax rate in 2014 was [79% compared 1o 14 6% m
2013 reflecting tax settlements in 2013

Adjusted earnings per share were 66 7p (2013 70 Ip)

Net rest ucturing charges were £449m {2013 £135m)

and mcluded portfolio, utle, marketing and technology
ratnonabsation in North Amerca, the consohdauon and
ntegration of aur operatons in certain Growth markets
and a move to a distnibutor model in South Korea, the
exit of non-strategic business tines in certain Core and
Growth markets, and, across all of our businesses,
technology platform and operavons simplification and the
ongaing transformation of our supply chain and customer
contact operations Gross restructuring costs were £84m
in 2014 (2013 £176m) offset by esumated net benefits
in-year of £40m (20i3 £41m)

Cash generation

Headiine operaung cash flow increased by £61m to
£649m benefiung from improved working capital from
deferred revenue growth and an increased dividend

from Penguin Random House, partly offset by increased
investment levels and ongomg restructuning charges

Free cash flow increased by £144m to £413m, additionally
reflecing lower tax payments Qur average worlang
capital to sales rauo improved by a further | | percentage
potnts to 12 3% helped by lower inventory levels and the
absence of Penguin

Return on invested capital

Qur returmn on average invested capital was 5.6% (2013
5 4%) Despue lower reported profit, ROIC benefited
from lower cash tax pmd We expect ROIC to start wo
improve againin 2015
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Financial overview continued

Statutory results

In 2014, our statutory operaung profit was £398m aftera
£77m wirite down of the batance sheetvalue of ntangtbles
i our Indran business, a £38m loss on disposal of our
stake s Nook Media and a £40m gasn on the disposal

of our stake in Safar1 Books Onhine and CourseSmart
Qur statutory earnings were £470m, including a £198m
gain from the disposal of Mergermarket and a £29m
adjustment to the Penguin disposal, primardy in relation
10 penstons

In 2013, our statutory operating profit was £458m
Our statutory earnings were £539m. including a £217m
gan from the disposal of Penguin

Balance sheet

Our net debtincreased to £1,639m (£1,37%9min 2013)
primaniy reflecting the strengthening of the US dollar
relative to Sterfing and the acquisition of Grupo Mults
partly offset by the disposat of Mergermarket, fewer
restructuring charges, improved worlang capital, the
growth in deferred revenue and an increased dvidend
from Penguin Random House Pearson's net debt/
EBITDA rauo increased from | 6xin 2013 to | 9xin 2014
and our mterest coverincreased from 10 2x to {1 3x

Dividend

The board 1s proposing a dividend increase of 6% to 5t Op,
subject to shareholder approval 20{4 wili be Pearson's
23rd straight year of ncreasing our dividend above the
rate of inflation Over the past ten years we have
increased our dividend at a compound annual rate of

7%, returning more than £2 9bn to shareholders We
have a progressive dividend policy we intend to build

our dmidend cover to around 2 Ox over the tong term,
increasng our dividend more i hine with earnings growth
from then

2015 outlook

in 2014, we completed the major restructuning and
product investment programme, intiated in 2043,
designed to accelerate Pearson's shift towards significant
growth opportunitres in digital services and fast-growing
economies We believe this will provide Pearson with a
signuficantly larger market opportunity, a sharper focus
on the fastest-growing markets and stronger financial
returns in 2015, we are returning to more normal levels
of restructuring expendiure

Based on 2! January 2015 exchange rates, we expect to
report adjusted earnings per share of between 75p and
80p in 2015 The major factors behind this guidance are
as follows

Trading conditons

We continue to expect that cychcal and policy related
factors stabiisein 2045

inNorth America, ou largest market, we expect growth
i onfine higher educavon services and VUE and, with
more stable coliege enrclments and a slower new edition
year, learning services to be broadly level In school,
while the possibility of further policy related disruption
remains, we expect greater stability in learning services
and assessments with growth in virtual schools

tn our Core markets (which include the UK, ltaly and
Australia), we expect trading conditions to stabilise in the
UK, growth innside services to broadly offset declines n
learning services In Australia, and sustained share in {taly
following share gams in 2014 ‘We expect the Financial
Times wo continue to benefit from, and mvestin, its

digial transiuon
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In ou Growth markets (which mclude Brazil, China, India
and South Africa), we expect good growth in Chinam
our English Language Lear ning adult and test preparation
businesses and contnued stabihity in learning services, n
Brazil, we expect a better year in our Ststemas business
and good growth n our English Language Learning
franchises, and in South Africa we expect a more stable
year in learning services with modest growth in higher
educatron direct delivery

Portfolio changes

We benefited for many years from the synergies

created by integrating Penguin into our shar ed services
operations Following the transiion of Penguin from
Pearson services duning 2014, some shared services

costs remain with Pearson without assocrated revenues
We estmate these shared services costs at approxsmately
£30m We can reduce this somewhat over time which
will be captured m our normal levels of restructuring

Pearson has initiated a process to explore a possible sale
of PowerScheoo! and our other Student Information
Systems businesses including PowerSchool SMS
Gradespeed, and e5IS Forms Thus process s at an early
stage and there s no cer tamnty that t will lead to a
transacuon in 2014, PowerSchaol contnibuted $97m of

r evenues and $20m of operating income Our guidance
assumes ownership of PowerSchool {or al of 2015
Pearson has appointed Evercore to advise on the process

Currency movements

Pearson generates approximately 60% of its sales in the
S Afive cent move m the average £ $ exchange rate for
the full year (which in 2014 was £1 $I 65} has an impact of
approximately | 3p on adjusted earnmngs per share

The benefit from the wealkening of Sterling agamst the
US dollar on our reported operatng income wili be
partly offset by the strength of Sterling against a range of
non-US dollar currencies, including the euro, Australian
dollar and certamn ermerging markets currencies, and a
hugher interest charge as Sterling weakness against the
tJS dollar increases the Sterling value of cur US dollar
denominated debt and interest payments

Restructuring

We will benefit from the absence of £44m of exceptional
net restructuring charges expensed in 2044 and we sull
expect to generate £45m of incremental cost savings

tn 20t5

These benefits will be partly offset by normal levels of net
restructuring of approximately £30m in 2015

Interest and tax

We expect our mterest charge to be higher than 2014,
reflectng higher average net debt tevels, primardy as a
result of the strength of the US dollar against Sterling

We expect a tax rate of approximately 17% on aur total
profit before tax (which includes the post-tax contribution
frormn Pengun Random House)
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Key performance indicators
Five-year performance

Financial objecnves KPt Per{ormance
H H Sales 3 70/
M aintan Sales rose 2% at CER 1 2014 and have grown over the last + . O
|Ong—te rm five years at anaverage annual 1 ate of over 3%, reflecung
good long term growth in digitaf and services businesses and Leainmare about link to
grOWth acqursiuons in the global educauon markbet parually offset by a remunei aton on p86

siuft Lo subscription revenues, recent cyclical and policy factors
and adverse exchange rate movements

Total adjusted oper atng profit 3 40/
Total adjusted operating profit rose 5% 1 2014 a1 CER and has T O
fallen at a compound annual rate of 3 4% smce 2009 reflecung

good long-term growth in digital & serwices offset by the sale of

businesses exceptional restructunng costs in 2014, recent eyclical

and policy factors and adverse exchange) ate movements

Total adjusted eanings | O Cy
Del iver Total adjusted earmngs per share \s down 5% year-on-yearin -4 ()
b 2014 lﬂ {g! ; , )
1 reflecting portfolic changes exchange rate movements
sustaina |e and a higher tax rate Over five years EPS has grownatan Learnmore about hink to

remuneration on pB6

returns average annual rate of 0 4% reflecung good long-term growth
in our digizal and services businesses offset by declines in print,
portfolio changes recent excepoonal restructuring costs, cydical
and polcy factors and adverse exchange rate movements

Return oninvested capital 3 3

ROIC grew § 2% o 5 6% in 2014 and was affected by lower -

reported profit and a higher tax charge ROIC has fallen from percentage points

8 9% in 2009 We expect ROIC to start toimprove again in 2015 Learn more about ink to

remuneration on pBé

Total shareholder rewrn (@)
TSR in 2014 was -7% which compares to a 1% returnon the +6 l -9 /O

FTSE 100 index of large UK listed compartes Over five years,
Pearson has 1 etumed approximately 62%, wel! ahead of the
return on the FTSE {00 index of 45% over the same period

Learn more about fink 10
remuneration on p86

Dividends per share +7 5(y

We increased dwidends in respect of 2014 by 6% to 51p our ' o

23rd straight year of increasing our dividend above the rate

of inflation

Operating cash flow (y
Mana’ge our Qperating cash flow rose 1o £649min 2014 up more than 10%, = 6 . 6 O
Cash posjtfo N benefiung from lower restructuring charges, impraved working

. capnal, deferred revenue growth and an increased dwidend from Learn more about hnk to

EffeCtIVEIY Pengun Random House pardy offset by ncreased investment remuneraton on p86

levels Over five years operating cash flow has dedned at an
average annual rate of over 6% per annum reflecung good long
term growth in our digital and services businesses offset by dechines
in pring, poi tioko changes, recent excepuonal restructurng costs,
cychcal and policy factors and adverse exchange rale movements
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Seruon 2 Our peric atue

Strategic objectives

Da1a/Progress

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMCVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Transform Revenue share
to digital and ZSTES% £3 O b N
services 10N .

2044 -6210%
G row Revenue shaie

2010 -109%
presence In £496 £794

m

eergne LU m

Non financial measures

: Review prograrmime on track
DEIlver » Plans to report first plot impact
measu rab'e results in 2016 on target
m pact Efficacy reviews
completed
{Efficacy) 200
De| iver Gender diversity
d MEN WOMEN
gen er Board 7 0% 3 30%
balance Senior managers
{excl executive
board directors) 64 65% 35 3%
All employees 17064 42% 13470 58%
Reduce our R SIErze
carbon 2014
footprint 129,742 -1%
2013
145718
Maintain
community
mnvestment IMAGE REMOVED
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Developing for access, delivering for outcomes

Our strategy centres on a significant and exciting
long-term opportunity the sustained and growing
global demand for greater affordabifity, access, and
achievement in education. We can meet this demand
by accelerating our shift to digital, to services and to
fast-growing economies; and committing to deliver
measurably improved learning outcomes through
our efficacy framework.

Our primary segmenits for management reporting
are Geographies (North America, Core and
Growth) as this s how we drive business
performance This is how we reach learners, through
content and digital services in iIndividual dlassrooms:
through broad partnerships with public and private
education institutions and, In certain markets, by
directly expanding capacity through our own schools
and colleges

This geographical structure i1s wholly dependent upon
a parallel product development strategy, in which we
organise by learning ages and stages — School, Higher
Education and Professional.

By focusing our product development around the
needs of the learner, we are able to centre evidence
and expertise where it can be best applied to
improving outcomes for people.
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Oporating performanr e conbrued

Geography

North
America

S5IMISNE ¥NO

Sales Adjusted operatng profit

£3.0bn £464m

Revenues declined 3% in headline terms, due
to the strengthening of sterling against the
US doflar, but mcreased by 2% at both CER
and in underlying terms Revenue growthn
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Coannections Educaton, VUE, Clinical and
MAGEREMOVED Higher Education was parually offset by

dechines in School learning services and State )
c
Assessments Adjusted operating profits =
declined 2% in headline terms due to currency A
movements, but grew 5% at both CER and =
=z
underlying, reflectng revenue mix, lower 3
returns provision, reduced US pension costs -
and lower restructuring charges
In our statutory results, we recognised a £38m
loss on disposal of our 5% stake in Nook Media P
and a £40m gain on the disposal of our stakes 2
in Safar Books Online and CourseSmart. z
z
0
{MAGE REMOVED o
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Our new operaung and reporting stiucture =
Z
-f

North America. Qur largest mir«ut atcoun®ing
far 6i% of ) evenuesin 2014

Learn more about Our operating structure on p?o
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Operating performance continued

North America
continued

School

in School, good growth in Connecnons Education, our
virtual schools bustness, was offset by dechnes inour
State Assessments business due to the impact of legislative
changes in Texas and Calfornia, and in learning services,
due to seme loss of market share (as reported at the half
year), revenue deferral on blended programmes and
softness m the Open Territories

Connections Education served over 62,000 Full Time
Equivalent students during 2014 through full-ume virtual
and blended programmes, up more than 15% from 2013
Three new full-ume virtual public schools were launched in
2014 and an additional one will launch n 2015 Atfull-time
virtual schools supported by Connecuons Educaton,
students consistently outperform thesr virtual school
peers on state standardised tests Students at College
Park Academy, a blended school in Maryland using the
Connecuons Education curnculum, scored significantly
higher than thewr in-state peers n reading and math in

the Maryland School Assessment (MSA) for 6th and

7th Grades

In State and Nauonal Assessments, high stakes online test
volumes grew strongly, up 40% on 2013 to | milion, as
customers transimoned to computer-based tesung Paper-
based high stakes test volumes declined 17% to 32 million,
n part due to the growth of computer-based tesung, but

IMAGE REMOVED

Connecuons Education served over 62,000 (+15%) full dme
equivalent students dui ing 2014 through full-ume virtual and
blended progiammes At full ume virwual schools suppor ted
by Connections Lducation students conststently outperform
ther vir tual school peers on state standardised tesis

Learm more at connectonseduralion com

also the impact of legislative changes i Texas and Calformia
We were awarded contracts ta admunister Partnershp for
Assessment of Readiness for College and Careers (PARCC)
assessments in {1 states and extended our contracts *

to administer Virgirna Standards of Learning (SOL)
Assessments and the Maryland High School Assessment
We will conunue to administer the Flonda Comprehensive
Assessment Test (FCAT) unuf summer 2016

Chnical Assessment grew strongly, benefiing from the
launch of the fifth ediuon of the Wechsler Intethigence Scale
for Children (WISC-V) and strong growth in Q-Interacuve,
where early studies are showing good improvements in
mental health professional productivity and student
engagement levels

PowerSchool supported almost 13 million students (n
more than 70 countries}, broadly level with 2013, while
licensed Schoolnet student counts rose more than 0% to
over {Omilion In New Jersay we launched Schoolnetin 27
school districts, with 14 more implementatons in progress,
and have defivered over 400,000 assessments since launch

Learning services revenues declined due to the impact of
revenue defei rals from blended digitaf programmes and
a loss of market share, with a weaker performance in
Grades 6-8 Science and Math in Texas, and Grades 6-12
{terature and Grades 6-8 Math in Florida only partly
offset by a stronger performance in K-6 Math in Texas,
Grades 6-12 Social Studies in Tennessee and Grades
-6 Math in Calfornta We won an esumated 25% of
the total new adoptions market (of $310m ri 2014)
enVisionMATH, which now has the fargest installed base
of elementary students in the US, continues to drve
significant improvements m student computaton and
problem solving

IMAGE REMOVED
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Higher Education

fn Higher Educanan, total college enolments fefl, as
expected, by | 3% Career enrolments in two-year pubiic
{community) and four-year for-profit colleges dedined
3%, with rising employment rates and regulatory change
affecung the for-profit and developmental learruing sectors

Learning services grew modestly, pnmanly due to market
share gains, conunued growth in digital courseware
registrations, a stronger new ediuon cyde and less
pronounced seasonality MylLab registrations it North
America grew 3% to almast | miflon Lecturer generated
case studies indicate that the use of MylLab progtammes,
as part of a broader course redesign, can support
unprovermnents in student test scores {(http //pearsn/
{ZxLE) We launched REVEL, which combines trusted
content with iInteractive videos, quizzes, a mobile user
interface study tools assgnment calendar and
performance dashboard for 17 humanities and social
sciences subjects The launch of REVEL is the first of
numerous product kines taking advantage of our new
cloud-based, mobile-ready and data analytcs capabilives
New edinons launched m 2014 meluded Tro The Structures
and Propertes of Chemistry; Acemoglu Labson and List,
Econorics and Pearson Witer an apphcation built for
mobile devices that helps students in developing wriung
skills We published arange of digital udes for The Boy
Scouts of America and implemented a new digital
curmnculum mcorporating enhanced Merit Badge
programmes in subjects mcluding Robougcs, Digrtal
Technology and First Aud for the organisation’s 2 7 million
youth members

{MAGE REMOVED

In 2014, we launched REVEL combining trusted content
with rich mteractivity and content across 17 humantes
and social saiences subjects REVEL s the firsz of our
produci lines takung full advaniage of our new cloud based
mobtle-ready and darz analyucs capabilines

Learn more at pearsenhighered com/revel

Pearson On Line Services where we run fully online
undergraduate and graduate learning pr ogrammes and
earn certain revenues based on the success of the students
and the msutution, grew course enrolments by 22% during
the year waith conunued strong growth i programmes

at Arizona State University Online and University of
Horida Online We signed new programmes with

Bradley Urniversity, to create five onfine graduate degree
programmes in nursing and counselling, and University of
Texas at Austn, Dana Center where we are parmenng for
the web delivery of math courses for its New Mathways
Project (NMP), which will become part of a state-wide
reform inwative In a collaboration between Dana Center
and the Texas Association of Community Colleges

We expanded our collaborauon with the American
Health Informanion Management Associauan (AHIMA)

to administer its online educanon business, which serves
AHIMA's 71,000 members including 10.000 higher
educauon students each year We now provide our
Jearning management systermn hosung {00 courses based
on AHIMA content, technical support, a next generation
Virtual Lab Product, and are launching a Coding Basics
course combining AHIMA and Pearsen content

Professionat

AtVUE, global test volumes grew 9% year-on-year to
almost 13 mithon boosted by continued growthin IT,
State Regulatory and Professional ceruficabons

New contracts include a deal to administer the Microsoft
Cerufied Professional (MCP) Program globally, whuch
significantly expands our existng partnership with
Microsoft through Ceruport’s Microsoft Office Specalst
(MOS) and Microsoft Technology Associate (MTA) exams

IMAGE REMOVED

M L b registrations in North America
y a grew 3% to almost 1 midhion
Lecurrer generated case studies nckeate that

the use of Mylab programmes can support
IMProveInents In 1est scores

Learn moi ¢ at pearsonrmyfabandmastermng com

$5INISNY 4NO

¢}
[
-
o
m
d
"
(o]
=
X
b
pd
0
tr

LI¥dHWH TVID0S Yno

FOINYNYIAOD l

SLMIWILYLS IVIDONVNIL |



22

Pearsen ple Annual report and accounds 2014

IMAGE REMOVED




IMAGE REMOVED

Sectron 2 O pro formance 21

Operatng performance continued

Geagraphy

Core

Sales Adpsied operaung profit

£1.2bn £152m

Revenues deciined by 8% in headiine terms and
by 5% at both CER and i underlying terms
Modest growth in ltaly and good growth at
VUE was offset by declines in UK assessment
revenues, due to the impact of policy changes
on our UK school qualifications business, and
reduction in partner market revenues, due to
divestments and a move to distributor models
implemented in 2013 FT revenues were
broadly level at CER, with digital content
growth offset by declines in print content and
advertising Adjusted operating profit (excluding
Mergermarket) increased by £32m to £152m,
drven by the benefits of restructuring actions
taken over the last two years in all markets and
by profit growth at the FT

IMAGE REMOVED

Our new operating and reporting structure

Core Ou lrgaest Core tarkets arethe UL Austrabia, Germany
France Benefux and fely Addtinnally ae have around 100 parine:
maricets, wher e we do not have suale ot selves, s0 we collaberate
wrih otners.

Learn mare about Qur operanng structure on p?o
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Operating performance continued

Core continued

IMAGE REMOVED

We continue to mvest to build Pearson Coliege in the
UK, and graduated cu first 32 students during the year
Pearson College was one of only four private colleges 1o
pass Quality Assurance Agency (QAA) review first time

Learn more at pearsoncoffege com

School

In the LK, qualificatons have been impacted by
government policy, where changes to accountabihiy
measures and a shift to end of course assessmentsin
GCSE have led to a 21% decline n BTECs and 11% decline
in General Qualificauions in the year We marked almost
four mithon Navonal Curnculum Tests, up 24% on 2013
Qur contract to admnister the Nauonal Curricuium Test
(NCT) was extended ta 2017 More than 4.600 schools,
with almost 850,000 children, now subscribe to at least
one of the Bug Club services, our primary school blended
reading programme

In Austraha, we benefited from a stronger adoption year
and the launch of the tocally standardised version of the
Wechsler Pre and Primary Scales of inteligence (fourth
edion) In ltaly, we gatned sharein both primary and
secondary with new titles combined with professional
development and online cross-curricula support

In primary, we developed Top Secret and adapted

Qur Discovery Istand English Language Learming
programmes Insecondary, we extended our market
feadership in the Humanities

Revenues decined significantly n our partner markets due
to challenging market conditions in Africa and Scandinavia
and the move 1o a distributor model in certain markets
We disposed of our local schools ists in the Caribbean

as we continue to focus on our largest global geographic
opportumnes

Higher Education

In the UK, curlearming services revenues dechned,
primarily due to enrolment contracuon following policy
changes i the vocational markets We continue to
wwest to build Pearson College and graduated our first

IMAGE REMOVED

More than 4,600 schools in the UK, with
almost 850,000 chidren now subscribe
1o at least ane of the Bug Club services
our pnmary schoot reading programme

Learn more at bugclub co uk
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32 students during the year Pearson College was one
of only four private colleges to pass Quality Assurance
Agency (QAA}1eview first ume

In Austraba, learning services revenues grew modestly
benefiung from gr owth in core subjects, such as Biology,
and direct-to-institution sales of digikat learming products
offset by our exit from vocational publishing Monash
Online, our collaboranon with Monash University,
conunues to show good growth and will faunch additional
courses in the second half of 2015 {n addiuon we
coltaborated with another leading university in Australia
to provide course development, recruitment, enrolment,
and student support services for post-graduate caurses

Professional

At VUE, test volumes grew strongly following the
successful flaunch of 2 new contract with CPA Australia

to deliver Professional level exams and continued good
growth in UK Driving Theory test volumes We will
continue to deliver our UK contract to administer the
Drving Theory test for the DVSA until September 2016
VUE entered into ten year parmerships with the
Chartered institute of Management Accountants (CIMA)
and the Association of Chartered Cerufied Accountants
{ACCA) in the UK to transform a selection of their exams
from pen and paper to computer-based testing

The contnbunon from The Economist Group was lower
due to a decline in advertising revenue, a weaker US dollar
and lower profits at CQ Relf Call The arculavon of The
Economist remarns robust at [ 6 eilhion, with an increase
of 23% in digital subscriptions The Economust’s new daily
app. Espresso, was downloaded aimost 400,000 umes
The Group's content marketing services continue to
grow with revenue increasing by 20% at CER

Financial Times Group

At the Financial Times Group, the FT grew its total
creulauon by 109 year-on-yearto arecord tugh of
nearly 720,000 across print and onkine Digital
subscriptions ncreased 21% year-on-year to almost
504,000 and now represent 70% of the FT's tota
paying audience The strong digtal arculauon growth
offset conunued structural declines in print content
and adverusing, where the FT continues to take
market share

Productinnovation and launches, includingan FT
Weekend app, dally FiestF T briefing with editors’
selection of essential news and comment from across
the web, ‘follow the author” alerts and a new FT
Android App contnue to resultin steady growth in
mabile usage and ume spent onFT com Mobile s
the fastest growing channel We launched the FT [IE
Corporate Learning Alhance, a joint venture with [E
Business School, which provides premuum custom
learning to business leaders around the globe The
partnership connects the academic excellence of
prominent business schools withthe FT's award-
winning journalism and msightinto real world and
real-time business challenges

IMAGE REMOVED

Finanaiof Times product Innovations
mclude the FT Weckend web app,
and FirstFT, a daily ema briefing
af must-reads from s website and
other sources

Learn imore az ft com

FT dgital subscripuons
increased

+21%

504,000
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Operatng performante contmued

Geography
(o]
c
=~

Growth w
b
z
g

Sales Adjusted operating profit

£746m  £35m

Revenues grew 1% in headiine terms, despite the strength of
stering against key emerging market currencees, grew by 11% at
CER, benefiting from the acquistion of Grupo Mult, and were
down 1% in underlying terms, primanty due to the phasing of
purchasing and a stronger School textbook adoption in South
Africain 2013 Growing English Language Learning enrolments in
China and college enrolments in Saudi Arabta and South Africa
were offset by a smaller School textbook market in South Africa,
and lower revenues in Braz! from Sistemas, and ELT and Higher
Education textbooks Excluding the textbook impact in South
Africa, revenues grew 4% in underlying terms Adjusted operatng
profit declined by £3m to £35m reflecting a benefit from the
acqusiuon of Grupo Mulu offset by a siower adoption year in
South Africa, launch costs assoaated with our new vocational
colleges and a contract prowision in Saudi Arabia, and weaker
revenues and restructunng costs in Brazil.

In our statutory results, we wrote down the balance sheet value of
our Indian business by £77m largely reflecting the reduced value of
online tutoring which was primarily focused on the US market.

IMAGE REMOVED

Our new operating and reporting structure

Growth Our gr owth markets are made up of Brazd South Afrna China india and other
fastgrowmg ecanomves Around onethird of ow employees now workon these countres

Learn more about Our aperating structure on p? o
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Onperating performance continued

Growth continued

School

Professional

in South Africa, we performed well, competitively
maintaning our marlet share of the School textbook
market, but volumes dechined significantly to more normal
tevels following a large adopuon year, and significant share
gams, in 2013

In Brazl, enrolments in our Sistemas were down 3% to
481,000 with growth in our public Sistemas (NAME)
offset by declines in our private Sistemas as we combined
our three sales forces into one 72% of the munmicipahties
that adopted NAME for iower secondary education
showed improvement in their IDEB score, Brazil's
federally established measure of educational quality

In India, DigiClass, our multimedta teaching solution is
now installed in more than 26,000 classrooms, up more
than 10% on 2013 We parinered with IBM to further
accelerate our deployment across the country

Higher Education

In South Alnca, student enrolments n CTI/MGH, our
private network of higher educauon insututions, grew
by (5% to 13,400 across 13 campuses

In Mexico, our fully accredited online uruversity
partnership, UTEL, ncreased the number of students
enroiled from under 5,000 last year to more than 9,000
in 2014 as a result of improved consumer marketng
efforts and better student retention

In India, Higher Educauon revenues declined due to
high levels of returns

IMAGE REMOVED

DugiClass, cur multimedia teaching solution 1s
now istafled i more than 26,000 dassiooms
inlndea up more shan 10% on 2013

Learn maore at digiclass in

In Pearson English, good growthin direct delivery in
China and inside services n Brazl due to the acquisition
of Grupo Mulu was partly offset by dechnes in learring
services in Brazl and Mexico

Global student regrstranons for MyEnghshLab grew
[5% to more than 460,000 with strong growth in
Laun America

We faunched the Global Scale of English (GSE}), a new
global standard for scoring Enghsh language proficiency
on a precise, numertic, universal scale for businesses,
governments and acadernic insttutions The scale is being
embedded into all Pearson English products and services

In China, English direct delivery enrolments grew at
both Wall Street Enghsh (WSE), up 2% to 66,000, and
Global Education, up 7% to 117,000 To support long-
term growth, we consolidated our ERP systems in China
and deployed a Salesforce com CRM system n WSE
We divested our online vocational training operations

{n Brazil, we completed the acquisiton of Grupe Mul,
the largest provider of private language schools in
Brazil We successfully integrated the business despite
challenging market condiuons and disruption caused
by the World Cup and Presidenual elections

IMAGE REMOVED

Student enrolments th CTUMGI, our
private network of ugher educaon
msktugons across South Afrca grew
by 15%to 13,400 across 13 campuses

Learn more atcu ac za and mgl ac za
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Penguin Random House

Pearson owns 47% of Penguin Random House, the first
truly global consumer book publishing company Penguin
Random House was teported post-tax for the full year in
2014, compared to cnly the second halfin 2013 fallowing
the combinauon of Penguin with Random House on

| July 2013, which resulted in a £7m reducton in the
contrbution to operating income with an equal benefit
to our tax charge

Pengun Random House performed well in 2014,
benefiung parucularly from a strong publishing
performance in Chitldren’s around the world and
mulu-million-copy film and television tie-ins

The US business published 760 New York Times print and
ebook bestsellers in 2014 (2013 full year pro forma 730},
enjoying exceptional success in children’s publishing with
John Green's The Fault m our Stars (29 weeks at number
one on the New York Times bestsellers st and nearly eight
rmulhon copies sold) and four milion coples of his backlist
titles, we-in utdes from Disney's frozen film (more than

{7 mihon copies sold), Dashner’s The Moze Runner,
Forman’s If Stay and continued strong sales of LEGO®
mowvie be-in tiles Notable Adult ntles mcluded Grisham’s
Gray Mourstam, Child’s Personal, Monk Kidd's The Invention
of Wings, Follett's Edge of Etermty, Bush's 4 A Portrait of
My Father, along with suong film and television ve-ins,
such as Flynn's Gone Girl, Hillenbrand's Unbroken, and
Maruns's Song of Fire and Ice novels The UK business

published 206 Sunday Times bestsellers (2013 pro forma
207). also enjoying outstanding sales of john Green
along with the continued strength of Kinney's Wimpy
Ksd franchuse Key Adultutles included Brown's Inferno,
Olver's jane’s Cornfort Food and Girf Online by YouTube
sensaticn Zoella, which became the fastest-selling debut
UK novel ever

Penguin Random House has a strong publishing
programme for 2015, including new titles from john
Grisham, Jarmue Chiver, Torw Morrison, James Pattersan,
Sylvia Day, Lee Child, Nick Hornby, Harlan Coben,
Danvelle Steel, John Sandford, Janet Evanovich Gayle
Forman, Emily Giffin and Nora Roberts, as well as film
tie-ins far 50 Shades of Grey, John Green's Paper Towns,
the sequel to fames Dasher’s The Maze Runrer, and

Star Wars

The integration of the two businesses 15 progressing

well and Is on track to deliver net benefits in 2015 and
beyond Organisational structures have been aligned,
systems integration ts well underway and consolidauon
of North American warehousing will be completed in
the first half of 2015 InMarch 2014, Penguin Random
House acquired Santiliana Ediciones Generales, a leading
trade book publisher in Spain, Portugal and across

Latn Amenica, consolidatng its leadership in Sparush
language publishing

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

We launched Global Scale of Enghsh, a new
globat standard for scorung English language
proficency 1o be embedded into all Pearson
English products and services

L.earn more at english com/gse

Student enrolments at Wall Street Enghsh
in China grew to 66,000 (+2%)

Learn more at wallstreetenglish com

We cornpleted the acquisition of
Grupo Muln, the laigest provider of
private language schools n Brazl
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Other financial information

Net finance costs
All figures in £ mithons 014 W13
Netinterest payable (64) (72}

Finance income/{costs)
n respect of employee

benefit plans | (3)
Other net finance costs (30) (1)
Total net finance costs (93) (76)

Net interest payable in 2014 was £64m, compared to
£72min 2013

Although our fixed rate policy reduces the impact of
changes in market interest rates, we were sull able to
benefit from low average US dollar and sterfing interest
rates during the year Year-on-year, average three-month
LIBOR (weighted for the Group's net borrowings in US
dollars and sterling at each year end) fell by 0 1% to0 0 2%
This decrease in floating market interest rates, along with
the impact of foreign exchange transiation and addisonal
mterest recervable on cash balances held overseas, more
than offset the effect of higher levels of average net debt
in the period These factors contrbuted to the overall
decrease in the Group's average netinterest payable
from 4 8% to 3 6% The Groups average net debtrose
by £260m, largely as a result of net acquisition acuvity
and the translation of our predorminantly US dollar debt

Finance income and costs relating to reurement benefits
have been excluded from our adjusted earmngs as we
believe the Income statement presentauen does not
reflect the economic substance of the underlying assets
and habiles Also included in the statutory definimon of
net finance costs (but notm our adjusted measure) are
finance costs on put opons and deferred consideration
associated with acquisizons, foreign exchange and
other gains and losses Finance costs for put opuons
and deferred consideration are excluded from adjusted
earmngs as they relate to the future potenual acquisiion

of non-controling interests and don't reflect cash
expended Foreign exchange and other gains and losses
are excduded from adjusted earmings as they represent
short-term fluctuations in market value and are subject
to sigrificant volatihty Other gans and losses may not
be realised in due course as it is normally the intention
to hold the refated mstruments 1o maturity

In 2014, the total of these items excluded from adjusted
earnimgs was a loss of £29m compared to aloss of £4m

n 2013 Both the lossesn 2014 and 2013 mainty relate to
foreign exchange differences on un-hedged cash and cash
aquivalents and other financal instruments

Funding positon and hquid resources

The Group finances its operauons by a mixture of cash
flows from operauons, short-term borrowngs from
banks and commercal paper markets, and longer-term
foans from barks and capital markets Our cbjective s

10 secure contnuity of funding at a reasonable cost from
diverse sources and with varying maturites The Group
does not use off-balance sheet specal purpose entities as
a source of kquidity or for any other financing purposes
The net debt posiion of the Group 1s set out below

Al figures in £ md ions 2014 013
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729
Markatable securtties té 6
Net derwauve assets 40 76
Bonds (2,173) (2,168)
Bank loans and overdrafts (42} {47)
Finance leases (t10) (i
Net debt {1.639) {1,415)
Net cash classified as

held for sale - 36
Total net debt (1.639) {1.379)




Section 2 Our porformane k1]

Net acquisiton activity and foreign exchange rate
movements are the largest contributors to the ncrease
inthe Group’s net debt Reflecung the geographical and
currency sphit of our business, a large proporton of our
debt s denominaied m US dollars {see note {9 for our
policy) The strengthering of the US dolfar aganst sterling
during 2014 (from $1 66 to $1 56 £1) increases the sterling
equivalent value of our reparted net debt

The Group's credit ratings remained unchanged durning
the year The fong-term raungs are Baal from Moody's
and BBB+ from Standard & Poor's, and the short-term
ratings are P2 and A2 respectvely In January 2014,
Moody's changed the outiook on ts short-term and
jong-term ratings from "Stable’ to ‘Negative’ In May 2014,
the Group accessed the capital marlets, raisng €500m
through the sale of notes maturing in May 2021 and
bearing nterest at | 875% The notes were swapped

to floaung rate in LS dollars to conform with the

policy described in note 19 The Group has a $1.750m
committed revolving credit facility which was

refinanced in August 2014 and matures in August 2019
At 31 December 2014 this faclity was undrawn The
facility 1s used for short-term drawings and providing
refinancing capabbivies, including acting as a back-up for
our US commercal paper programme This programme
1s primarily used to finance our US warking capital
requirements, i parucular our US educational businesses
which have a peak borrowing requirementin june

At 31 December 2014, no commercial paperwas
outstanding The Group also mantains other commutted
and uncommutted factiies to finance short-termworking
capttal requirements in the ordmary course of business
Further detats of the Group's approach to the
management of financeal risks are set out it note 19

to the financial statements

Taxauon

The effective tax rate on adjusted earnings in 20(4 was
{79% as compared to an effecuve rate of 14 62102013
Our overseas profits which arise mainly in the US, are
fargely subject to tax athigher rates than thatu the UK
{which had an effective statutory rate of 21 5%1n 2014
and 23 25% 0 2013) These tugher tax rates were largely
offset by amorusauon-related tax deductions and by
adjustmenits arising from settlements with tax authoriues
Both these items were less significant in 2014 than they
had beenin 2013

The reported tax charge on a statutary basis in 2014 was
£63m (20 7%) compared to a charge of £87m (22 8%) in
2013 The decrease n the statutory rate is mainly due to
tax benefits arising on the increase in ntangible charges
only partly offset by the factors affecting the adjusted rate
as described above

Tax paid in 2014 was £163m compared to £246m 11 2013
Tax paid in 2013 was unusually high as a result of the
permitted deferral of US tax payments in 2012 following
Hurricane Sandy These payments were subsequently
rmade in 2013 and were accompanted by addiuonal
payments arismg from settlements with tax authoriues,
including £55m relating to prior year disposals

Discontinued operations

In Qctober 2012, Pearson and Bertelsmann announced
an agreement to create a new consumer publishing
business by combirung Penguinand Random House
The transaction completed on [ July 2013 and from that
potnt, Pearson no longer controlled the Penguin Group
of compares and has equity accounted for its 47%
associate Interest in the new Penguin Random House
{PRH) venture

SSANISNE 4NO

o]
C
-
nl
m
b
2
o
=
=4
>
Z
8]
m

1IVAIWITYIDO0S YN0

IINYNYIACD |

SLNIAWILYLS TVIDNYNIY I




32 Peas son plc Annual repal * and accourts 2014

Other financial information continued

The loss of conu ol resulted in the Penguin business being
classified as held for sale on the Pearson bafance sheet at
30 June 2013 and a subsequent gan on sale of £202m was
reported in the second half of 2013 Included inthe gain
reported in 2013 was a proviston for amounts payable 1o
Bertelsmann upon setdement of the transfer of pension
habtlies to PRH Durmng 2014, it was deaded that this
transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have
been credited back n the £29m gan reported aganst the
disposal in 2014

The results for Penguin in the first half of 2013 and the
gains reported in both 2013 and 2014 have beenincluded
in discontinued operations The share of results from the
associate interest in the PRH venture ansing in the second
half of 2013 and in 2014 has been ncluded in operating
profitin conunuing operations

Additionally, on 29 November 2013 we announced

the sale of the Mergermarket Group to BC Partners
The sale was completed on 4 February 2014 and resulted
in a gan of £[98m after tax The Mergermarket business
was classified as held for sale on the balance sheet at

31 December 2013 and the gamn and the results for both
2013 and 2014 to the date of sale have beenincluded in
disconunued operaucns

Non-controlling interest

There are non-controfing interests in the Group's
businesses in South Africa, China and India although none
of these are material to Group numbers During 2013
some of the minonues i South Afinca and India were
bought out, further reducing the impact of these interests
m 2014

Other comprehensive ncome

induded in other comprehensive Income are the net
exchange differences on translation of foresgn operations
The gam on wansfation of £175m in 2014 compares to a
loss in 2013 of £217m and s principatly due to movements
i the US dellar A significant proportion of the Group's
operations are based i the US and the US dollar
strengthened in 2014 from an opening rate of £1 $1 66

to a closing rate at the end of 2014 of £1 §1 56 Atthe end
of 2013 the US doflar had weakened in comparison to the
opening rate moving from €1 §1 63 to £1 $1 66

Also mcluded in other comprehensive ncome in 201415
an actuanal gain of £8m (after offsetting a £15mloss in
respect of assocrates) n relauon to post-retirement plans
Thus gamn anses from changes in the assumptions used to
value the habiliies and from returns on plan assets that are
in excess of the discountrate The gain compares to an
actuarial ganin 2013 of £79m

Dividends

The dividend accounted for in our 2614 financial
statements totaffing £397m represents the final dvidend
in respect of 2013 (32 Op) and the intenim dividend for
2014 (i70p) We are proposing a final dvidend for 2014
of 34 Op, bringing the total paid and payable in respect
of 2014 to 51 Op. a 6% increase on 2013 This final 2014
dividend which was approved by the board in February
2015, 15 subject to approval at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting and will be charged against 2015 profits
For 2014, the dwvidend is covered | 3 imes by adjusted
earmings

We seel to mantain a balance between the requirements
of our shareholders for a nsing stream of dividend imcorne
and the reinvestment opportunities which we identify
around the Group and through acquisiuons The board
expects to raise the dvidend above inflation, more inline
with earnings growth, thereby mantaining dividend cover
at around two tmes earnings n the long term

Post-retirement benefits

Pearson operates a variety of pension and post-
reurement plans Qur UK Group pension plan has by
far the largest defined benefit section We have some
srmaller defined benefit sections in the US and Canada but,
outside the UK, most of our companies operate defined
contribunon plans in addwon to pensien plans we also
operate post-retrement medical benefit plans (PRMBs),
the most significant of which s inthe US In 2014 we
amended the eligibility criteria for the US PRMB plan
This amendment resulted n a curtalment gam and a
reduction in the ongoing service cost of the plan
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The charge to profitin respect of worldwide pensions and
rearement benefits for conunuing operations amounted
1o £83min 2014 (2043 £96m) of which a charge of £84m
(2013 £93m}) was reported in adjusted operaung profit
and anincorne of £1m (2013 charge £3m) was repoi ted
against other net finance costs The reduced charge in
20141510 part due to the US PRMB curtallment gain

and also to a reduction in costs relating to our defined
contnbuuon plans

The overall surplus on the UK Group pension plan of
£86m atthe end of 2013 has increased to a surplus of
£190m at the end of 2014 The movement has arisen
principally due to conunuing asset returns and defiat
funding which was only partally offset by an unfavourable
movement in the discount rate used to value the habilwes
Intotal our worldwide deficitin respect of pensions and
other post-retirement benefits decreased from anet
deficit of £56m at the end of 2013 to a net asset of £27m
atthe end of 2014

Acquisiuons and disposals

The acquisition of Grupo Mulu, Brazil's leading adult
English language traiming company, for £437m {plus £4%m
in net debt assumed) was announced in December 2013
and completed on || February 2014 There were no
other significant acquisitions in the year We recorded
£240m of goodwilt on the Grupo Mult transaction
together with £254m of intangibles relating to trade
names, content, franchises and technology Intotal
acquisitons completed in the year contributed an
addonal £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted
operatng profit

The sale of the Mergermarket group of comparnes to

BC Partners for £375m was completed on 4 February
2014 and reahsed a profit before 1ax of £244m Inaddition
our North America business disposed of its jont venture
interests in Safan Books Online and CourseSmart,
reahsing a pr ofitbefore tax of £40m, and its nvestment

in Nook Media, realising a loss before tax of £38m

Return on mvested capital (RCIC)

Our ROIC s calculated as total adjusted operating profit
less cash tax, expressed as a percentage of average gross
invested capital ROIC increased from 5 4% 10 2013 10
56%in 2014 Increased profit and reduced tax payments
are the mamn reasons for the movement

Related party transacuons

Transactions with related parues are shown in note 37
of the financiat statermnents

Post balance sheet events

There were no significant post balance sheet events
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Principal risks and uncertainties

denufying and assessing risk

Our principal nsks and uncertamnties are outhned below
These are the most significant nsks that may adversely
affect our business strategy, finanaial position or future
performance The risk assessment process evaluates the
probability of the nsk matenalising and the financial or
strategic impact of the rsk Those nisks which have a
higher probability and significant impact on strategy.
reputation or operauons, or a financial impact greater
than £40m are idenufied as principal risks

The risk assessment and reporung criteria are designed

to provide the board with a consistent, Group-wide
perspective of the key risks The reports to the board,
which are submitted twice per year, include an assessment
of the probability and impact of risks materialising, as well
as nsk rutigation iniiatives and their effectiveness

The dentfication of the principal Group risks is informed
by discussions with each Line of Business, Geography and
key enabling functions, identfying key nsks and assessing
the adequacy of mitigaung controls

The Pearson executive members have aversight of risks
relevant to each of thewr areas of responsibility This s now
included in their goals and objecuves

The audit committee provides oversight and reassurance
to the board with rega: d to the procedures for the
identificauon, assessment and reporting of nsk See page
71 for the committee’s nsk-refated actvities during 2014,
including deep dives into selected principal risks

Management is responstble for considering and execuung
the appropriate action to mtigate these nsks whenever
possible itis not possible to idenufy every nsk that could
affect our businesses, and the acuons taken to miugate the
nisks described below cannot provide absolute assurance
that a risk will not materialise and//or adversely affect our
business or financal performance

Rislc appetite Ther e are certain areas where we do not
have any appetite to take risks, such as complying with
laws on ant-bribery and corruption or the safety and
security of learners Inother areas such as strategy and
change, we recogruse the importance of managed risk-
taking i order to achieve business objecuves and goals
Duning 2015, further work is being done to define risk
appetite and tolerance and to embed this more formally
into deaisron-making and day-to-day business acuvities

OUR PRINCIPAL GROUP RISKS

Qutlined here are the most significant
risks that may affect our future. We
assess the probability of the risk
materialising and the financial or
strategic impact of the risk. The risks
with greatest potential impact are
identified as principal risks.

Learn more about Principal risks
and uncertainties on p36-37 Q)

@) Government regulation and decisions

€©) Digi! and services evoluton and market forces

€ Acquisiuons, divestments and joint ventures

e Business transformauon and change

© Talent

STRATEGY AND
CHANGE

@) Customer fauing systems

RISKS

€ Tesung farlure

@ Safety, safeguarding and protection

o Tax

RISKS

@ ineliectual property

g () Data privacy and cyber security
“ (B Anu-bribery and corruption

LEGALAND FINANCIAL OPERATIONAL

COMPLIANCE




Our prinapal risks

Rusk categories To aid in the identification of nsks and
development of assocated mitigating actions, risks are
categorised into four main areas strategy and change,
operatonal, financial, and legal and compliance

Key changes to Group risks in 2014 As set out in the 'our
performance’ secton, 2014 was a year of considerable
change across the Group These changes provide the
foundauon for significant ritigaton of strategic and
market risks, including the shift to digital and services
Butwith change there can be an increase n risk in the
short-term Additional governance and oversight was
putin place to miugate these change-related risks As the
new organisation structure stabilised, there was resulung
clarity in roles and responsibihues  This, together with the
appomntment of management and staff to key positions,
assisted m rmitigating risk in a number of key areas

RISK ASSESSMENT _

IMPACT
{financal, reputational strateg ¢ operatonai)

PROBABILITY

Secuon 2 Ou putformance 15

With the increased focus on growing our direct delivery
busmess acuvities, there has been a need to imprave

the effective managemeni of related operational 11sks

Thus ncludes the safety and secunity of our learners, which
is reflected as a new prinapal risk Specific roles have been
created and filled to ensure there 1s expertise to deal

with these areas and this will contnue 1o be a focus area

in 2015

With the acceleraung shift to digital products, we

continue to Jook at ways that we can improve our
customers’ experience of our products and services

Thus 1s parvcularly the case for products where there are
periads of peak demand on oursystems, such as ‘back to
school” urnes A dedicated cross-business task force has
been put in place to ensure thatroot causes are addressed
and improvements implermented

Learn more about Risk Governance on p76 @

N\
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Principal risks and uncertainties continued

STRATEGIC & CHANGERISKS ] .

Risk Mutigation

Government regulation and decisions In the US we actively monitor changes through parucipation in advisory
Changes mfundmg policy and/or regulanons boar ds and 1 epresentation on standard setung committees Our customet
impact business moded and/or content 1 elationship teams have detaled knowledge of each state market We work
deasions across all markets through our awn corpot ate affars team and our industry trade associantons

including the Assoaation of Amencan Publishers We are also monttoring
muniapal funding and the impact on our educaton recewvables

1n the UK we maintan relationships with those government departments and
agencies that are responsible for policy and funding We work proactively
with tyem 1o ensure our programmes meet existing and new government
ohjectives at the right quahty level

Across all of our other markats local management monitor and respond
to potentat and actual changes nregulations supported by our global
corporate affairs team This includes Growih markets of China Indsa,
Brazi and South Africa

Digital and services evolugon and market Our global education strategy will drive a faster move 10 digital and services
forces Failure to successfully nvestin and recognising that this is a significant opportunity for Pearson aswellasa
deliver the nght products and services patential sk We are transforming our products and services for the

digital emvironment along with managing our print inventories

Our content s being adapted to new technologies across our businesses
and 15 priced to drve demand We develop new distribution channels by
adapting our product offenng and investng In new formats

As set out on page 38-43, our focus on efficacy 1s driving our deaisions on
how and where we invest In products and services

Acquisimons, divestments and joint ventures Ve perform pre-transaction due diligence and closely monitor actual

Failure to generate anticipated 1 gvenue performance to ensure we are meeung operational and financial targets

growth, synergies and/or cost savings from Any dwvergence from these plans will resuftin management acuon to umprove

acquisitions, mergers and other business pe! formance and miminise the risk of any impairments Exacutve management

combinations could lead to goodwlt and and the board recewve regularreports on the status of acquasiions and

intangible asset impairments mergers wath a formal review once per year

Busness wansformauon and change As noted i the Charman s mroducton the most difficult phase of our

o The pace and scope of our business transformation has now been completed There remamn a number of

transformation nitiatives increase the important change imuativesm progress such as the Enabling Programme,

executron risk that benefits may not be fully which will deliver sustainable improvements in finance, human resources and

realised, costs of these changes may increase, operations Inaddmon 1o usual good practices in place for project and change ‘

or that our business as usual actviues do not management there ts enhanced governance monitoringand reporung in place ‘

perform tn line with expeclavons for these mastsignificant change iniatives ‘
\

Talent. Fatlure to attract, retain and develop Through the changes dumng 20(3 and 2014 we have been success{ul in |

staff, mcluding adapung to new skill sets promoting our best nternal talent and recruiung mdividuals who are global

required to run the business leaders in thewr speafic field

As part of our transformation, we have made and contnue to make
improvernents in a number of areas that are key to mitigaung talentrisk
Theseincdlude clear employee objectives and development plans an afl-
employee engagernent survey with action plans as appropriate, successton
planning and tatent managerment. and compettive remuneration plans
See page 65 for details of theboard's talent review

OPERATIONAL RISKS _ . "
Risk Mingatuon

Custamer facang systems Fallure 1o mantain Effective project managetnent disciphnes are i place to ensure that
and support customer facng services, enhancermnents 1nd new products meet the required standards Real-ume
systerns, and platforms including quabty monitoring and reporting of operational performance is used to dentify
and umely execuuon of new products any 1ssues and direct appropniate responises
and enhancements

A Qualny Task Force (QTF}isin place to oversee improvements to ensure

our customers experence s one thatss expected from a digtal business
This thiative has already delvered significant tacucal mproverments and
15 driving longer-term, strategic Improvements
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Tesung falure A control breal-down or
service fmiure in our school assessment
and gualificatsons busimesses could resuft
m financial loss and reputational damage

Our professtonal services and school
assessment businesses nvolve complex
contractual relatonsihps with both
government agencies and commerciat
customers for the provision of various
testing ser vices Oul financal results
growth prospects and/or reputaucn may
be adves sely affected f these contracts
and refationships are peorly managed

We seek to mintrmse the sk of a brealdown tn ow student mariang wath the use
of robust quality assurence procedures and controls and oversight of contrace
performance combimed with oul Investiment in technology projectmanagement
and slalls developrment of our people

in addinon to the mternal business procedures and controls implemented o
ensure we successfully deliver on our contractual commitments we aiso seek

1o develop and mantain good refatonships wath OUF CUSEOMETS L0 MIFINISE
assoctated risks

We also look o diversify our por tfolio to mnirmise reliance on any single
cont act

Safety safeguarding and protecton
Failure to adequately protect children
and learners paruculariy in our direct
dehivery businesses

Risk

Recognising the importance of managing evolving risks assotiated with our du ect
delivery business models, we created and filled therole of ahead of safeguarding
and protecuon See page 49 for further detatls

Mitigation

Tax Rusk that changes intax law or
perceptions on tax planning strategies
lead o tugher effective 1ax rate or
negative reputational impact

Raske

Owr tax strategy reflects our business strategy and the jocations and financing
needs of our operatons In common with many comparues we seek to Mmanage
our tax affairs to protect value for our sharehoiders inline with our broader
fiduciary duties We are committed to complying with aff stawiary obligauons
to undertake full disclosure to tax authoriues and to follow agreed polces and
procedures with regard to tax planming and strategy

Oversight of tax stragegy Is within the remit of the audit committee, which
receives a report on this topic atleast once a year Allof the audit commuttee
members are ndependent non-executive directors The chief financial officer 1s
responsible for tax strategy, the conduct of our tax affars and the management
of tax nisk a1 & delegated to a global team of tax professionals

Mitigetion

Inteflectual property fwe do not
adequately protect our intellectusl
property and propretary rights our
competiuve positon and results may be
adversely affected and kit our abulity
o] gI'OW

We seek to mitigate this type of risk thi ough general vigilance co-operation
with other publishers and trade assogations advances in technology, as well
as recourse to law as necessary Drgital rights management standards and
montonng programimes have been developed Ve have a psracy task force

to idenufy weaknesses and remediate breaches VWe monitor activities and
regulauons in each market for developments i copyright/inteflectual proper ty
law and enforcement and take legat action where necessary

Dataprivacy and cyber security Falureto
comply with data pi vacy regulatons and
standards or weakness in information
secerrity, including a faldure to prevent or
detecta malicrous attack on our systems
could resuitn a major data privacy breach
causing ) eputatonal damage o our brands
and financiad loss

Through our global enterprise informaton security and comphiance p1 ogramime,
we have established a governance model secunity and privacy frameworicand
policies, a global secunty and privacy organisatonal model, and standard-based
information securty and privacy controls and practices

We constantly test and re evaluate our data security procedures and controls
across all our businesses with the awn of ensurmg personal data s secw ed and
we comply with relevant legislation and contractual requirements We pursue
appropnate prvacy accreditanons e g TRUSTe Prvacy and Safe Harbor Seal
We regularty moritor regulaton changes to assess the impact onexising
processes and programimes We have established a glabat secunity operauons
centre that prowvdes angomg menitoring of potential malicious attacks on our
infrastructure and systerns

Anu-bribery and corruption Failure to
effectively manage 11sks assoaated wath

comphance to global and tocal ABC legislanon

Our ABC compliance programime was rofled outin 7011 to support compliance
with UK Bribery Act nkine with "adequate procedures gudance Qur zero
tolerance’ appr oach s also designed to comply wath all other global and local
ABC faws and regulations We have a risk-based programme of training (onlne
and face-to-face} Our ABC policy is communicated to third-pai ties and forms
partof our contractuat terms for higher risk third-parties
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Efficacy

|. Introduction

“A deceptively simple but incredibly
powerful idea. that every product
we sell can be measured and judged
by the outcomes it helps the learner
to achieve.” john Falion, Chief executive

Measuring outcomes

At the tme of witting last year's Annual report, we had
justannounced a new commitment to what the comparny
calls efficacy The goal was simple, but also ncredibly
challenging we would move to define measurable learmer
outcomes for Pearson products and services, and to
report publicly on the learner outcomes dehivered by

our products in early 2018

We were also extremely aware that efficacy in education is
not a challenge we can tackle alone ‘We will need to share
what we are finding out, and be prepared to listen to all
the feedback And we will need to be willing ta learn from
others as they pursue their own methods We emamn
absolutely committed to this cornmunity approach

Review process and result

When we began, efficacy was merely a concept and a

lofty goal We had developed a framework which could
evaluate the likelihood that a product or service will deliver
its ntended outcomes, and had designed a process to
apply the frameworlk within the Lines of Business via
efficacy reviews Since 20(2, we have completed 200
reviews |his process has provided snapshots of the state
of efficacy in different parts of Pearson, as well as what
mvestments we need to make n order to move towards
greater efficacy, at a product and service level

Reporung on efficacy progress

2. Making the change

Developing our strategy

The commitment to efficacy has emerged as the central
theme to Pearson’s strategy and culture Our employees
are driven by the mussion of helping learners make progress
n therr ives, it provides meaning to curwark There s also
a dear business and commeraal case for the learner-centric
approach we are now talung to run our company Pearson’s
scale means we are in the strongest position n the global
market to cvaluate the effectiveness of different educatonal
products across many populauons, and to develop and
implement new evidence-based models We are the first

i the markette commut to reporting on product efficacy,
and the first to engage outside partners who will
independently vahdate the ngourand objectivity of our
efficacy measurement This feedback loop will male our
products better and strengthen our relationships with
customers and end tearners, and will yield meaningful
results for the business in the conung years We also hope
that through this approach we will nfluence the education
sector more broadly

Embedding efficacy

Culture We also know that our commutiment ta efficacy is
much rmore than a strategy —to be truly effective ik needs to
become a way of warking for every one of our employees
To make this happen we have put in place a globa efficacy
network of Pearson experts who are dedicated, most of
them full-time, to embedding efficacy mto the way we do
business as acompany Theirefforts willensure all our
employees are driven by the mission of helping learners
to make progress m therrfives The team s matched to
Pearson's new organisational structure, we have efficacy
jeaders in each global Line of Business as well as the -

Making the change m 2014

Wa are committed to reporung on learmer outcomes by 2018
Pubiished m 2013 The incamplete guide to drlivering leamer outcornes
explamed the programme and us transformauve potenual The response
was overwhetmingly positive fi om internal and external stakeholders
and aver the pastyear we've made further stindes Alongside this Annual
repot t we are publihing On the rooad to defivening
learner outcomes which reports
this progress

Read the reporgs onhne at
cfficacy pearson com

200

Efficacy reviews

20,150

Emyployees have engaged in efficacy waining

83 .

Efficacy leaders aLross Pearsen
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Geographies, working cross-funcuanally to impact global
and locat product development and the way we market,
sell and measure our products and services

Traming Efficacy depends on the commitment of every
employee —not only those occupying these new positions
So we have also rolled out broadscale efficacy training on
the toprc throughout the company We have created an
online course on efficacy, which was added to the new
hure orientanon package and is avaiiable to everyone n
the company wia our internal learning portal Over 26,000
employees have taken the course Inaddition efficacy
leaders are running worksheps and trainings in person

all over the world to build awar eness and understanding

External engagement We know that going this alone 1s
notan option The solutons to the efficacy challenge will
emerge from many corners, from different professions,
and also from different sectors That's why we have
continued our public engagements, to help play our part

in this global community of changemakers We partnered
with the RSAn the UK on a series about learner
outcomes, and contributed to the Shared Value Inibiative’s
conference on the Role of Business in Education We have
emphasised efficacy in our presence atinnovation events
such as New School Venture Fund's annual conference
and $XSWedu Efficacy1s also a central part of our
commitment to the Global Partnership for Education,

of which Pearson is the only corporate member; we will
be offerting in-lund workshops and efficacy reviews to
member countries, and gving GPE members access to
our growing body of research on learner outcomes

LEADERSHIP: EFFICAGY EXPERTS |

“Efficacy 1s the reason why [ work in education —long
before I'd ever even heard of that word As a South
Afnican, | ive in one of the most wonderful butalso
one of the mast unequal countnes in the world
Everyday | am confronted with examples of how
people have either benefited from a strong education
or been severely disadvantaged by the lack of one
Through offering good quality educauon,

with measurable improvement of

learner outcomes we can helpbring

about change ™

IMAGE REMOVED

Marion Smallbones
L ficacy director, Schoo!

“Tome efficacy means that we care enough about the
customer experience and the trust they place i us,
that we're willing to reorganise our company to make
sure we deliver the outcomes we're promusing It
means being personally accountable for my actions,
and asking myself each day, “How canl

make a difference to students and

teachers today?”

{MAGE REMOVED

Karen Mullane
Ve presiders, Eficacy resut's
Pearson North America

Learn about our operating structure on p7 €

“Before hearing about efficacy,
{ thought my job was just to drive,
f thought, isn't it the same to
be a truck driver who delivers
books and a truck driver

*. Now | realise my job has to do with
education. | am a part of the educational
process in my country My children,
and even my grandchildren, will be
benefited by the job [do.”

who delivers alcoholic

drinks or tobacco? ." IMAGE REMOVED

Juan Hernandez, a Pearseon truck driver who parncipated
in a workshop calied ‘Eficaca para todos fachtared by
Veranica Valdes Efficacy manager Laun Aperica Hub
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Efficacy continued

3. Efficacy in action

Efficacy 1s changing the way we
operate and develop our business,
alongside our employees, customers,
and the broader education market.
We have early evidence of the
impact of the products and services
we deliver to customers.

Efficacy approach and activities

Efficacy reviews, studies and implementatton

Qurefficacy review process provides a ngorous way 1o
evaluate whether a given product or sei vice 1s positioned
to dehiver learner outcomes and to identify how it should
be mproved It 1s being used i every Line of Business

(sea framework below) Efficacy studies evaluate the
efficacy of a product or service in the market, conducted
in partnership with customers, learners, and increasingly
third-party acadermic nsututions We are starung to work
with customers to ensure that Pearson products and
services are used and implermented in ways that maximise
their efficacy based onthis research

Efficacy w1 the product hfecycle

Define intended learner outcomes

Review products to ensure they are positioned to
deliver on those outcomes, and put in place efficacy
improvement programmes

Conduct research to measure the efficacy of products
and feed insights badk mto product development

Support customers to effectively implement the
products to get the best outcomes possible

Starting from outcomes

in 2014 we further defined the standards for these
assessments of our products, creating a more detailed
descrpuon of the outcomes Pearson products and services
deliver as well as the relative strengths of different types
of evidence used i our studies The table oppaosite shows
our proposed framework for the types of outcomes that
customers destre

Efficacy review framewark

Qur efficacy framework examines different
aspects of our product performance

| QOutcomes

2 Evidence

3 Planning and

4 Capaaty to deliver
implermentatton

Qur efficary fi amework s ako being used by others (with our supporT)
and theirfeedback has helped to refine . View our online tool at
efficacy pearson com/four-path-io-efficacy/how-to 1eview

Pearson products at all stages of maturity will be
incorporaung eficacy into therr development via a formal
global product Ifecyde which s being rolled out across
the business New products or features will need to be
justified by educational research supporting their design,
products i growth mode will be gathering increasingly
robust evidence that the productis improving learner
outcomes and evolve accordingly Mature products

will continue to sustain and monitor efficacy evidence
alongside financial metrics Further, efficacy requirements
are now mncorperated nto our acquisitions and
investrnents processes, from the Pearson Affordable
Learning Fund to traditional M&A

Shaping Pearson products

in addion to the huge strides on culture and processes
descnbed above, we have a plann place to quickly impact
arange of Pearson products and to prepare the company
to report publicly on efficacy in 2018

Malang the change in 2014

“We are enthusiastic supporters
of the efficacy approach.
in 2014 tbecame the
way we work and plan.
It's not areview
process, It is a way

of doing business.” IMAGE
REMOVED

Caspar de Bono
Managng on ecior Finanaal Timee B2B
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Level of aspiration
Category and value Definiwon Example outcomes
A Uttty The degree to which learners can Alllearners can access digital
CCGSS access aproduct {e g access to learring materials froma
The learmer accass technology and socio-econamic personal computer, tablet
access) orsmart phone at anytime
and experience Q
The level of fearner sausfacuon Learners have a posttive 5
The level of motivaton and learning experience 2
confidence thatthe learner gams o
3
C om ' e—t‘ on Usage rhythm The progress that the learner Learners complete course of Z
p as designed makes thy ough the course work within one semester m
The umeliness The time taken to achieve the
of completion standard or competence
Ach I evem en—t Cormpetences Quatificauion ganed { earner earns a bachelor’s °
=
and sialls The level of performance on a degree 2
The standard of achieverent achieved standardised test The learnerwill be able to A
orlevel of competence demonstrate masiery of >
Course-specific competencies =
the English course material 3
demonstrated F
The acquisttion of speafic skills g
P ' ‘Door Ability of tearner to progress to Learner gets gainful
rogreSS iON unlocked' next course of study, trainng employment in field of study
Learner progression or employment -
r o
o
s
=
z
>
z
n
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Malung the change in 2014
“A key chent was delighted to hear about our interest “What really struck me
helping hum f n achieving the outcomes he had set
ping hum focus on achieving th 1s how a conversation
Although he wasn't used to having such a conversaton =
with a publisher [his admission] he was very open about on efficacy and outcomes z
what they need to do with the various schoels and created an almost &
. b
programmes they manage Through the course of our [<1d-|n—a—candy—store z
conversaton, he made it dear thathe wanted to buld a response.” S
new ‘premier” partnership with us What really struck P ' §
me is how a conversation on efficacy and outcomes MAGE i
created an almost kad-in-a-candy-store response from Bruce Bergwall REMOVED o

Busress developrent drector
+zher [ducation

sucha seasoned executive
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Efficacy continued

4. Early impact in 2014

The first wave

In 2014 we idenufied a first wave’ of products with

which to untiate our work in efficacy The st was chosen
based on a set of business and efficacy criteria, including
market position, product and data maturity, strategic
importance, and the scale of customer base and revenue
The products and services represent a mix of geographies
and target learner populanons They will be the focus of
the first externally-audited efficacy reportin 2018

Key achievements so far

EFFICACY: PRODUCT PROGRESS IN 2014

We've achieved the following milestones in our umeline for
impacting the full range of Pearson products and services

All of the ‘first wave’ products have defined the learner
outcomes they are positioned to deliver, as well as the
metrics they will use to measure those outcomes

Pearson preducts i afl categories are steadily progressing
through efficacy reviews, we are developing mechanisms
for classifying and tracking products’ progress on efficacy
throughout the company next year

A majority of the products which have undergone efficacy
reviews are on the path to efficacy, meaning they are
conunually working to complete the acuons idenufied
during efficacy reviews to increase the efficacy of the
product, are demonstratng progress on gathering
efficacy enidence, and are refining therr efficacy plans
through follow-on reviews and dialogue with customers

Each Line of Business has atleast one ‘first wave’ product
that s in a posttion to report on efficacy impact with a
view towards external reporungin 2018 We are sharing
these publicly alongside this Annual report

Learn about our Lines of Business in
our operaung structure on p7 &

As evidence of the progress we have made, we are
publicly sharing detals of efficacy progress for five of
our products on an onlfine site This data s preliminary,
we do nat yet have fully validated evidence of outcomes
with customers, because of the lead tme that rigorous
studies require VWe are eager, however, to test early
results with our customers and other stakeholders to
inform the development of our research and reporung
processes ¥Ve mvite you to read the full reports at
efficacy pearson com/progress

enVisionmath 2 015 a comprehensive next-generauon elementary
mathemnatics curnculum that has research-based mstructional
practices and s based on the lighly successful enVisionMATH that
reaches over sikmiltion learners enVisionMATH users achieve
significantly greater growth mmath proficiency compared to other
programmes as evidenced by an independent randormised contr ol tral

Wall Street Enghish provides premium Enghsh language programmes
foryoung professionals In-depth efficacy reviews of oper ations were
carried outin four countries and have lad te a vanety of improvements,
from helping learners to beiter define thew goals to measuring their
progress agatnst thase

MyEnghshlab provides fearners in secondary schaol and higher
educsuan with mteractive online practice, homework and
z2s5essments, and teachers with a range of diagnosuc tools for English
tanguage blended-lex ming programmes Mare than 450,000 new
tearners in 25 countries used MyEnghshLabs in 2014 The efficacy
review has led to 1 variety of improvements from UX to curriculom
design Efficacy studies were also completed with more than

25 instieutions around the world

MasteringChenstry for Genes al Chenustry is an online homewar k
turor:al and assessment programme serving up o 250 000 fearners
annually i the United States with 30 000 learners annually across

40 other courries For sevenyears, our product team and the efficacy
results teamn North America have worked with educators to collect
evidence about the impact of MastenngChemistry on learning and
have generated |7 sets of user-generated results In addition several
independent peer reviewed academic articles have documented the
efficacy of MasteringChenwstry bothinand outside the US Weare
mabilising a wider sev of efficacy acuvities in 2015 10 suppoi L further
ptaduct improvenents and documentumpact onlea ner gutcomes
across & broader set of geographies

CTland MG provide pathways for the emergent riddle class to gain
access ta higher education in South Afca and the econonuc and
personal advancement opportunities that this provides Currenty
they serve 14 000 swelents across 12 CTland {3 MGleampuses Our
efficacy efforts provide abjectve evidence of these oppon tunines to
date and ow engoing efficacy programme is focused on constantly
wnproving opporunities for our students and graduates
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5. Momentum

Maintaiming progress through 2015

A global research programme

We take the view that 201515 2 crivcal year for making
progress on operationahsing efficacy Our priority will
be on delvering efficacy i our strategic products, from
end to end

Key aimis for 2015

The first wave’ of products will continue to make
demonstrable progress on the path to efficacy

We are continually worling to complete the acnons
identfied during efficacy reviews to increase the
efficacy of the product, demonstrating progress

on gathering efficacy evidence, and refining thewr
efficacy plans through follow-on reviews and
dialogue with customers

Read the first reports onfine at
efficacy pearson com/progress

We will idenufy the next set of products to
be the focus for efficacy efforts

This will be the ‘second wave’, and the relevant teams
wiil have identified clear outcomes to be delivered

by their products, as well as having gone through
efficacy reviews

We will have evidence of increased awareness
and adoption of efficacy internally

This will cover all functions and geographies, and we
will have reworked major mternal processes to ahgn
with the efficacy agenda (including, for example,
partnerships acquisitions, and product strategy)

We will continue to incr ease the extet nal
awareness of efficacy

through our ongeing work with stakeholders, and o
pi omote the adoption of outcomes-based approaches
to education in the rnarket

A successful future for Pearson hinges on nsightinto —and
response to —fundamental questons in education For
that reason, we are building global research capabites
This will enable us to participate deeply in the worldwide
conversatian about learner outcomes, and to inform
business leades s of effective educational practices

In additron to efficacy studies and market research, which
are based in business units, our new research capabilites
will look into broad and globat educauon themes, that
could in turn drive speaific product innovations

The global research team wall airn to uncover clear and

replicable findings to eight lkey unanswered quest:ions in
education, rangmg from the micro (how chiidren learn)
to the macro (how education systems worlk effectively)

Learn more atresearch pearson com

IMAGE REMOVED
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The single most important contribution that Pearson can
make to socety s to equip people with the access and
skills they need to progress Our commitment to efficacy,
(p38) 1s the means through which we will achieve this

Learning empowers people, and 1t defines our company
purpose. Acting responstbly is central to achieving this
purpose and to our business strategy, and how we deliver
Is as important as what we achieve.

It shapes the deasions we make, the culture and values
we promote and sustain, the relationships we foster,
and the ways we treat our planet Ultimately, operating
responsibly helps us to better deliver outcomes for
people, and to better meet the expectations of all

of socety.

IMAGE REMOVED

Robin Freestone Chef financial officer
{znd board member responsible for cor porate responsibiiity)

Qur social impact strategy

In 2014 we reviewed and redefined our social impact strategy
We have identfied three organising ideas that structure our reporung

Standards Impact Innovation

Our standards work sees We plan to make a significant Through innovauosn we will
uUs continue to nvest in our contnbution through partnerto help find soluuons
people and to work hard 1o campaigning and prograrme 1o some of the biggest unmet
reguce aur epvironmental acuvity witha partcidar focus educanonal needs

foognnt on fiteracy
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Overview

Standards

Our commercial success is
dependent on us operatingin a
responsible way. Ve report our
approach and the progress we
are making across five areas:

Standards

I Our responsibility See pd7 ©
2 QOur values and behavicur See p48 Q)
3 Our relationships Sea p49 @
4 Our planet See p52 O
5 Our performance See pS3 @

Also in this section

Impact Project Literacy See pS4 @
Social innovauan See p56 @

We will report on our progress in all these areas
tn our 2014 Social Impact report avatlable on
pearsen com/social-impact

|. Our responsibility

Defimuons

Pearson has adopted a broad definiuon of responsible
business and has established a set of commutmennts
across a range of social, community and human rights
prinaples wo

Ensure that our products and services ar e inclusive,
appropriate in content to the age, locaton and ability
of the learner, and are easy and safe to use and access

Respect and protect how we use and share data
entrusted to us by learners and our customers

Inform, support and equip colleagues to work
collaborauvely

Encourage and reward high performance, nurturing talent
and creatng a culture where all are able to realise ther
indvidual potential

Prowide a safe and healthy workplace for our employees
and the learners of ali ages we directly serve

Extend our commutments on labour standards, human
nghts and environmental responsibiiity to include our
supphers and business partners

Provide opporturities for Pearson people 1o be good
citzens and to get involved in therr local communities

Defiver against our targets on our response to chmate
change and to make more efficent use of resources

Responsibility at Pearson

Environment and supply chain

Climate change

Responsible resource use

Responsible procurenient

Orange = part of our risk and comphance agenda
Seep?! ©




Secuon 3 Our suaalimpact 47

Based on these commitments the broad ‘respensible
business’ 1ssue map for Pearsonis set out below ltreflects
a sertes of prionities that are common across many sectors
and individual companies These are the 1ssues that we
focus on when thinking about responsible business

Some of these 1ssues are central to our business success,
others may be small based on our commercial operations
but have the potential to significantly affect our impact
and reputaton The prioriues in orange already form
part of our nsk and compliance agenda described en p71
The relatve significance of 1ssues varies based on country
operational, poltical and regulatory environments as well
as learner expectanions The premise of our social impact
strategy Is that, in moving towards a single operating
company model, this 1s underpinned by clear, consistent,
global policies and standards across the entire responsible
business agenda

Governance

Corporate respensibiity cannot be separated from
our business and reputation Qur board of directors
has uftimate responsibility for considering issues of
responsibility as part of setung business strategy

The reputation & responsibility committee, a formal
committee of the board provides ongoing oversight,
scrutiny and challenge acrass the enttre responsible
business agenda Inaddmon, the board considered a
detatled review of the corporate responstbility strategy
at the June 2014 meeung Learn more on p78 @)

The Pearson executive drives implementation of business
strategy. ncluding our response to the key issues and
opportuniues we face

Thes year, we established a single responsible business
leadershup business counal to oversee the development
and mplementation of our overarching responsible
busness strategy on behalf of the board ltis chared by
our chief corporate affairs officer and comprises seror
executives from across the global business

Stakeholders

Public and private sector customers regularly seek
information from us about how we go about our business,
while many learners and employees want to understand
our approach to sustanability Socially responstble
nvestors, and non-governmental orgamsations look
atissues such as supply chain standards and ethics

Our approach to responsible business 1s informed by

the priorities and views of our many stakeholders

Learners Communities Values and
. governande
Colporatecuitureandvalues | Affordabiity and pricing Active ctizenship [ Tax
Diversity and incluston Editoralindependence Campaigns and partnerships Ethical conduct

and integrity

{Code of Conduct)

Appropriateness and
accessibiity of content

People recruitment and
development

Combatting corruption
(Anu-bribery and corruption)

Political engagentent

Remuneration and Safeguarding and protection

compensation

Health & safety Dara povacy and securry
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Standards continued

2. Our values and behaviour

Peat son employee survey

Pearson employee survey Our people told us

In 2014, Pearson put in place a new organisanonal structure
for the company that reflects our aimto shift froma
portiolio of businesses towards a sngle operating mode!
with standard systems, clear accountability, a flatter,

more mertocratc culture and quicker decision-making

Change can be both exhilaraung and inspiring, but

also brings operauonal sl Ve recognised this and
throughout the year we conunually tracked reaction to
change to understand how best to support our pecple

Most notably, we asked colfeagues to tell us how they
felt about working at Pearson, and over 24,000 people
completed the engagement survey We then shared
the findings The key messages are outhned in the
next cofumn

Code of Conduct

Quir values are remforced by our Code of Conduct that
covers among other things, indmvdual conduct, learners,
employees, community, the environment and our social
obligauons We make sure everyone 1s aware of the Code
and this forms part of the inducuon process This year, we
started a process to review the Code 1o make sure thatt
provides the level of guidance and case study support that
our employees need to hve by the standards we set for
ourselves The updated Code will be crrcutated early in
2015 to everyone working at Pearson and they will be
asked to confirm they have read it, understand it and
provide a check that the company complies wath it

Issues and concerns

We operate  free, confidenual telephone helphne and
website for anyone who wants to raise a concern and we
have a clear non-retaliation policy in place to encourage
people to share the issues they have in 2014, we had (12
concerns raised through the ethics reporung process
These were mvestugated and where possible the outcome
shared with the whistleblower This year, asin most years,
the majonty of the concerns related to HR practices
Matenal concerns raised are reported to the Pearson
audit committee

That our purpose to empower human progi ess

through learning was clear and compeling, and
that our focus on efficacy is improving our products
and services Over 90% of our employees agreed that
the work of Pearson to improve the lives of others was
mmportant to them But, we could do more to be
clearer about haw we achieve that purpose and how it
translates into every day planning and mvestment

That values and behaviour are critcal to our

success We rasponded to feedback from the
survey through a global programme of focus groups
and consultanon with the executive team to look at
our current values to be brave, imagmative and decent
n hght of our orgarusational structure Our aim was to
understand how we could help our pecple to apply,
bring alive and extend the values as the touchstone
on how we behave, act and work together

That in this ime of change, our leaders and

managers could do more to communicate more
often and more clearly their expectauons of working
together in amore joined-up way Wewill seta
performance goal for each Pearson executive member
to improve on the results of the 2014 survey and will
contnue to support teams and support leaders to be
role modets for our values and behaviours as they
ermbed new ways of working Qur performance
assessment process has been identfied as a means 1o
embed our valuas and behaviours and help people
create clear career paths

More work 1s needed to express how the new
structure works and to challenge that it
is helping delver for learners Consequently, we are
doing more work on the Pearson brand to clanfy
who we are and how our products are effective
atimproving learning in ways that promote
human progress
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3. Our relationships

Helping learners to learn and
progress is both the focus of our
business strategy and the single
most important contribution
we can make to society.

Learners and customers

Our secuon on efficacy describes the commutments and
progress we are making on our responsibilites towards
the learner A global challenge is to extend access to
affordable qualty education

Animportant new way of working introduced this year 1s
the Pearson product lifecycle framework for managing all
Pearson products, services and platforms This introduces
a common fanguage and vocabulary to help us take a view
oninvestng in our products This is part of a wider focus
on product and customer experience that will allow us

to better histen and respond to what ourlearners and
customers need As part of this approach, we introduced
the Net Promoter Score system mto Pearson, one of the
maost recogrised methods for measuring customer loyalty
We used this to assess how customers viewed some of
our most impartant products, along with a global brand
survey through which we will measure ourselves annually

As we increasingly own and operate learning msututions,
so we are active in serving fearners of all ages includmg
children, young people and vulnerable adults. This
introduces new respansibilities to safeguard and protect

Arizona State University - Starbucks — Pearson

the best mterests of our learners — providing a safe,
supportive and age-appropriate [earning environment
whetherin a classroom or online This year, we adopied
a global policy on safeguarding and protecuon and
apponted a new head of safeguarding to lead this
important new area of work

Our people

We continued our focus on our broader responsibiites
as an employer During the year

We introduced for the first ime a single global

approach to performance assessment Thisis
designed to help our employees know what s expected
of them and to incentivise people to act consistently with
our values and business strategy We cascaded goals from
the top down with the executive team sharmg therr 2014
objectives with alt employees

We consohdated the use of Milo as our single platform
to deliver traming, to provide access to learning and
development, and to support performance assessment
Thus is the first trne that Pearson has used a single
platform for these actviies

Employees completed approximately 116,000 courses,
with the new ‘one Pearson - Explonng how we work’
being the most popular Through Milo, we delivered a
new global employee induction called “Weicome to
Pearson’, popular programmes on 'Efficacy for Everyone’,
and a suite of management modules on performance
conversations Employees and managers also used Mila
ta record ther individual goals, momtor their progress,
and assess their performance

in june, ASU and Starbucks
announced a unique partnership to
offer opportunities for the more than
100,000 Starbucks employees to
access affordable higher education.

[MAGE REMOVED

ASU onhne offers Starbucks emgloyces who wotle more than
20 hours a week affordable access to over 40 undergraduate
degrec programracs in a service powered by Pear son

IMAGE REMOVED

100,000 40

Undergraduate
degree prograrnmes

Star bucks employees
o access affordable
higher education
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Standards continued

3. Our relationships continued

As part of our commutment to helping our employees

be safe, resilent and productive, we introduced a
common global incident reporting system for health
& safety Our overall goal is to achieve zero harm to
employees, worlking hard through trarung and
commurkcation to preventincidents before they occur
Qur performance 1s reviewed by the audit commuttee

We made sure that our people understand how we

are dong as a company, including how world and
sector trends mught affect them and the business We
provide comprehensive, relevant informaton including
presentations, messages and webmars with semor
executves and consult where appropriate so that we
can learn and take into a<count the perspectives of our
people In developing our brand strategy, we opened a
survey to all our employees with 13,000 sharing their
views on the direction we should take

Diversity and iclusion

We are commutted to attracung, retaining, engaging and
developing the best people We know that creating and
sustaining an mclusive work environment is criucally
important, offering equal opportunity from the
boardroom down regardless of race, gender, gender
idenuty or reassignment, age, disability, religonor
sexual orientation

On gender diversity, we continue to seek to support
women to advance in management and semor reles
We remain an enthustastic supporter of the 30% Club
which brings together chairs and CEOs who work to

Dwversity performance (as at 31 December 2014)

encourage a better gender balance across thewr
companies During 2014, we acuvely supported the
Mentoring Programme set up by the 30% Club which
prowides talented mid-career women access 1o Cross-
company, cross-sector mentoning At board level, Pearson
appointed Elizabeth Corley as a non-executive director
and has exceeded the target to have at least 25% ferale
directors ahead of the 2015 umeframe set by Lord Davies

We also supplemented the drversity toolkit launch fast
year by launching VWomen in Learning and Leadership
{WILL). a global employee network in Pearson To date,
over 2,000 employers have joined as members of
WILL chapters around the world The ambition of the
12 chapters estabhshed in 2014 1s to proacuvely drive
change in support of wamen at Pearson

At the end of 2014, 58% of our global workforce was
female Women represent 35% of our senior leadership
team The gender balance based on our argarusational
structure canbe seen in the table below

We continued to progress on supporting the Lesbian,
Gay, Bisexual and Transgender (LGBT) community at
Pearson Dunng 2014, Spectrum was launched asa
global employee resource network dedicated to support
the advancement of LGBT colieagues across Pearson
Pearson agan received a perfect score of 100% inthe
2014 Corporate Equahty Index recognising excellence

in corporate policies and pracuce in supporting LGBT
employees n the US, admirustered by the Human Rights
Campaign Inthe UK, we are members of the Stonewall
Diversity Champions programme

Communlty mvestment

Womerntin Pearson (%) 2013 2014
Board of Directors 2% 30%
Senior leadership team

(zwo reper bng bines i om the CEO) 3% 35%
Altemployees 57% 58%
Employees by gender (number) Men VYWomen
Board of Directors 7 3

Senior feadership team (wo reporting lines
from CEQ exduding Executive Board Duectors) 64 a5

Allemployees 7064 23470

i

{MAGE REMOVED
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Disability forms part of our wider cornnutment to edual
opporturity We work to ensure that appropriate
policies procedures, trairng and support are avadable
for people with disabilities to ensure farr access to career
opportunities to realise their talent

Supply chain and partners

Pearson purchases goods and services valued at over
£2bn each year This totalincludes our snvestment in
research and development of new digital products and
services as well as advances to authors Pearson wasa
founder signatory to the UN Global Compact in 2000

We were clear from the outset that we would use our
influence with our suppliers to improve standards for thewr
employees and the communities in which they operate
Ever since, we have monitored our performance against
both the Global Compact principles and a set of
commitiments we made to them, reporting annually on
our progress The scope of the UN Global Compact
coversiabour standards and human nghts, combatting
corruption as well as environmental responsibibity Specfic
clauses relating to these standards are an integral part of
our contracts for key supphers These standards include
the rejecuon of forced and compulsory labour, arespect
for diversity, 2a mimimum age to work on Pearson projocts
and compliznce with employment laws and regulations

Communities

Not for profit partners help us 1o extend our reach and
impact helping further learring — especially for the most
disadvantaged or hard to reach - in ways that are
complementary to our business objectives We therefore
partnerwith a number of charitable organisations, and far
a decade, the Pearson Charitable Foundation has been
the fargest of these

During 2014, we reviewed our community investment
activity and concluded that we could greatly increase our
mmpact by adopung a more integrated approach that
places social impact at the heart of the business model
The Pearson board approved in June 2014 a new strategy
which estabhished increasing iteracy rates worldwide as
our anchor soaal impact campaign issue for the next five
years Qur section on Project Literacy explains more
about our new strategy In 2014, our community
investment was £14 4m, or 2% of pre-tax profits

As part of this review, we assessed our exisiing charicy
partners and their fit with our new approach and strategy
A number of these, most notably, the Pearson Chartable
Foundaton, no longer align with our approach Therefore,
as of 2015, Pearson advised it would no longer fund the
Foundation as the primary vehicle for its phifanthropic and
community actviies Having been informed of this change
i its funding, in November the Foundauon board of
directors passed a resolution to wind down its operations
and to dose at the end of 2014 Pearson wot ked with the
chanty to ensure that new partners were found wherever
possible for the Foundation programmes
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Standards continued

4. Our planet

We believe that better education

is crucial to building a better world.
To be passionate about a better
world goes further and we recognise
a shared responsibility to protect
the natural resources needed to
deliver learrung today.

Chrmate change

Pearson conunues to be dimate neutral for our directly
controlled operations, a commitrment we first achieved
in 2009 and have maintained ever since We have set
ambtuous targets to reduce our operatonal emissions
by the end of 2020 and we work with employees and
supphiers to measure and reduce carbon emissions in
our value cham - from sourcing of raw materials to the
transport and distnbuton of our products

Ve continue to rmaintain our commitment to chmate
neutrality through carbon reduction, purchase of
renewable energy, renewable energy generation at our
sites and the purchase of carbon offsets We have also
started working on 2 carbon footprint analysis of our
boolk publishing in the US and UK to help us target the
most effective reductions

Environment highlights

Highlights of our activines include

Pearson retained global certfication agamnst the Carbon
Ti-ust Standard We were the second ever organisation
1o secure the standard which recognises leadership

in measuring, managing and reducing year-on-year
carbon emissions

We maintained our record of purchasing 100% of the
electricity we use from green power That represented
over 186,000 MWh of electnicity i 2014

We opened a new solar mstaliaton at our distnbution
centre in South Africa We now have mvested in
renewable energy generaton at five sites and have

2 6 Megawatts of wind and solar assets installed

Pearson is certified agamst 1ISO4001 inthe UK and
Australia Our Hudson Street offices in New York
became the latest to secure LEED ceruficanon, an
internationally recognised mark of environmental
excellence in fachties management Pearson cccuples
740,000 square feetin LEED certfied buldings

Pearson invests in forest-based carbon offsets forany
part of our chimate footprmt we cannot reduce o avord
through othermeans Since 2009, this programme has
seen over 1,000 hectares of forest protected in Canada,
Colombua, Costa Rica, the US and the UK

Our approach to managing other materially impoertant
emissions —such as embedded carbon dioxide In
purchased raw materials as well as business travel by ar -
are detailed in our 2014 Environment report

Green power

22%

Our target was to roduce our oper ational Bnussions
by 20% the end of 2045 based on a 2009 base year
We achieved a 22% reducuon n 2004 inpart due to
the ¢ catien of Penguin Random House

1SO14001

Pearsor is certfied sganst [SOI400(
s the UK and Australia

100%

We mamtaned our record of
purthasing 100% of the electrivity
we use from green power

iIMAGE REMOVED
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Material use forests

5. Our performance

Our socal impact 1 anking

As a purchaser of paper and newsprint for our books,
magazines and newspapers, security and sustainability

of supply are very important to us Paper use remains

a pnority environmental issue and we continue to focus
on sustainability sourcing and being more effiaent in how
we use paper Ve

First adopted and publicly disciosed our paper
environmental sourctng policy in 2003

Collect and map data on the forest of origin, certfication
systems applicable and recycled content for the papers
we purchase

Talk about our gurdelines with our key paper suppliers
when we meet and as part of our contract discussions

Discuss our approach to paper purchasing with
customers, envirenmental groups, ivestor analysts and
other nterested parties

Hold Forest Stewardship Counal (FSC) chain of custody
ceruficauan, allowing bools to carry the FSC label for our
businesses in MNorth Amertica

Are members of ndustry bodies dedicated to responsible
forest management We have been members of the
WWEF forest and trade network for over a decade and

are afounder member of PREPS — the publishers database

for responsible environmental paper sourcing — which we
use across our global business

Visit pearson com/environment to learm more @

One way we assess how we are doing as a responsible
business is to maintain our postion in key indices and
benchmarks of social responsibiliry

Indexfyear 201 pisly 2003 2014
Deow jones Globat Gold Stiver Bronze
Sustanabiliy Sector Ciass Class Class
Indices {eader

BITC Corpor ite Plavaum  Plainum  Platnum  Plaunum
Responsibdity Index (retamed) {retained)
Inclusion in

FTSE4Good Yes Yes Yes Yes

Pearson continues to score hughly n the Dow Jones
Sustainability Indices rating For the last decade, we have
becn included in the DJSI World index which includes only
the top 10% of companies in each industry and cur bronze
dlass raung recogruses companies within [0% of the

sector leader

We welcome feedbacl on this aspect of the
company as we do on any other Please e-mail
peter hughes@pearson com with any questions
orwdeas you may have

Global Greenhouse Gas (GHG) emissions data (Metric tonnes of CO,e)

Calendar year  Calendar year

Cafendar year  Calendar year

Emissions from 013 2014 Intensity ratios 2013 2004
Combustionof fue! and operation of 30,170 25,027 Scopes | and 2 {tonnes CO e)/ 281 266
{facilimes (GHG Protacol scope ) 7% sales revenue £ millions) £
Electriaty heat steamand cooling 1% 548 104,715 Scopes | and 2 (fonmes COe)/FTE 3i9 37
purchased for own use (GHG Piotacol 9%, no change
scope 2)
Total 145718 129,742

-11%

Carbon emiss 005 The scope | and scope 2 carbon erissions are cakcutated
according to The Greenhouse Gas Protacol. Corporate Accownting and
Reportang Stindard (Revised Edwon) tegether win e letest ermess onfactors
fromm recopnsed sources mcuding butnas bmited 1o DEFRA me International
Energy Agency andthe US Emvironinerial Protection Agency No materal scope
t o1 stope 2 emss ons have been excluded from tne reported GHG erilss ong
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lmpact:

Introducing our flagship campaign

Project Literacy

Pearson is committed to maximising
our impact through community
investment. In 2014 we reviewed our
approach and believe that we can
make more of a difference by focusing
and campaigning on a single issue that
has the potential to transform lives.

A clear focus will allow us to inspire our people to get
involved, to harness our products and expertise and

to build partnerships and programmes that make a
measurable difference

In June 2014, the Pearson board approved increasing
Iiteracy rates worldwide as our anchor social impact
campagn issue for the next five years

Why literacy’

As we fight to end poverty, Iteracy ts critical With words
we can make sense of the world around us, pursue Ife-
changing opporturities and stand up for the nghts of
others to do the same

Despite rapid progress in the decade prior, dliteracy rates
for aduits and children worldwide have hovered at around
800 million since 2000, with 781 mullion people lliterate
today Ofthose, 123 mifhon are young people under the
age of 24

Global derand for literacy

We know too that basic literacy 1s only part of the story
The skills thatndividuals and econonues need to progress
and to pt osper grow increasingly complexn the face

of technology Funcuional ihizeracy costs the world

%1 [9 tnllion per year — equivalent to the GDP of South

Korea or Mexico

Campaign goals

Project Literacy sets out to help make this the last
generation to be held back by poor literacy The new
Sustamable Development Goals, due to be signed at the
United Nations General Assembly in September 2015,
will set ambitous goals for education for the next 15 years
We beheve that it1s within reach to ensure that. by 2030,
every child born can grow up to be a literate adult
Furthermore, achieving this will be core to the success

of the other development goals

Pearson’s contribution

Literacy is anarea of need where we see clear overlap
between the opporwuity for impact and Pearson's
products, expertise and networks We have significant
expertence in providing resources to communities around
the world that help improve reading and wnung skalls

Our longstanding heritage in publishing and the tustory

of our community investment makes ending global
dhteracy stand out for Pearson as an area m which we

can contnbute a mix of product, content, employee time,
energy and interest to drive impact

tMAGE REMOVED

60m  /8Im :
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We envisage Pearson’s contribution in three broad
categories

We have a role to play m energising the debate

around teracy We will actto idenufy, celebrate
and support good pracuce to scale, invest in research
to uncover new opportunities and to increase the
prominence of literacy n national and nternatonal
pohcy discourse

We have a responsibility te activate our own business
assets and influence towards the themauc and
geographic areas where we see opportunity to mprove
Iiteracy We will place an emphasis on supporung our
employees to parucipate and contnibute to literacy
intratives around the world, with the aim of launching
a number of these opportunities midway into 2015

We will invest in partnerships that pursue new

nnovauons in iiteracy Where relevant, our product
devefopment will also take account of and seek to address
barners presented by poor literacy

Progress in 2014

Our Project Literacy campaign kicked off inlate
September wath a global hsterung and awareness raising
exercise hosted on projectiiteracy com We invited
indviduals and orgarsations already working to
improve literacy to highlight publicly on the website

the programmes and projects which inspue them

Taking literacy to the next level

We also asked rhat they share ssues whet e increased

action s needed and contribute to our goals by 1ssuing
achallenge to us To date, we've recetved 181 inspiring
lteracy submussions via the website

These projects and challenges are fundamental to
informing the new acuvities, investments and partnerships
which we will be announcing in the course of 2015 and
beyond Overume, projecthiteracy comwill act as the
one-stop shop for the campaign as a whote -- sharing
research, partnerships and reporting onimpact

In{ate 2014 we kiclked off a first partnership with GOOD
s GOOD The partnership has begun by 1ssuing hiteracy
related stories and engaging non-profit organisations who
understand the challenges of hteracy Tt wili also bring
together Pearson employees and focal communiues
volunteer work

Literacy ts an issue onwhich many different nat for profit,
community and commercial organisattons are already
working hard to make a difference As partof tis
campaign we will bring the private and pubiic sectors
together with a single ambition to accelerate progress
and test new ideas

Visit projectliteracy com to ieam more €

Qur new social impact campaign —
Project Literacy — builds on exasting
community actuvity

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

furnpstar s Read for the Record saw more
than 2 3 milkan aduits and cluldren jon
rogetherto read Bunny Cakes by bestselling
author and fustrator, Rosemary Wells

IMAGE REMOVED

Read for my School doubled its partcpation
rates onthe previous year waih 22 000 pupils
across England together reading 876 000
books The compeation encourages puplls

to read as rany booksas possiblem a two
manth pertad drawingfrom an online free
brary of books offered by Pearsonand
Penguin Random House

For 2015 we will review how we reporean our community partnerstups nfight of our new approach

We helped Book Aud international support
the development of libranies i schools and
commurtes across sub Saharan Afnca
We were the largest donor gving a third of
the | millionbooles supplied by the chanty
this year
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Social innovation

Extending access to guality education to the poorest and
most mat ginalised families i1s a challenge, particulady in
the most depnved countres of the world Pearsonts
commutted to playing our part and 15 active in helping
shape and inform the global debate around education
and learmng policy We represent the private sector
and chantable foundations on the board of the
Global Partnership for Educauon {(GPE) Along with
representatives from developing countries and donor
governments, the GPE aims to surengthen education
systems In developing countries We also contnue to
champion the role of the private sector in education
as a founder member of the Global Business Coalition
for Educavon

Learn more about these activities at

© www globalpartership org

@ www gbc-education org

Key to our socil innovauon approach 1s our belief that
commeraial solutions can accelerate access to quality
educaton Uncovening, developing and scaling solutions,
especially in places where educauon standards fail

well behind the best in the world, canrequue usto
challenge the way we think about our business

Pearson Affordable Learning Fund (PALF)

Commercal solutions might involve new business models,
mvesting in new technology, or tesung nnovative
partnerships or distribution channels

Socsal innovation in pracuce — the Pearson Affordable
Learmng Fund

The Fund launched in 2012 with $15 miliion of capital

h supports education for students from the poorest

and most marginalised famikes, and sets smprovements

in learming outcomes and market-based returns as
conditions of continued mvestment The Fund has already
invested in innovative education start-ups in South Africa,
Ghana, India, and the Philippines Half of the Fund 1s
currently invested in companies with female CEQOs

[n fanuary 2015 we announced a new $50 mithon
mvestment, through which we expect to reach mifions
of additional students and young people by 2020

in addition — by providing financial backing, good
governance, and operatonal support to education
entrepreneurs — the Fund aims to foster and scale
mnovation throughout Africa, Asia and Latin Amenica
It1s also enabling innovation from which governments
can learn, the cost per student in the schools in the Fund
portioho is generally lower than in government schools

In December 2013 the Pearson Affordable
Learnmg Fund made o $300 000 mvesiment
in Avann founded i 2010, Avanu helps

1o prepale studenis fiom low-income
backgreunds inindia (those with an anpuat
family income of $5 000 or below) for college
entrance exams focusing on the highly
competmive career paths of engimeering and
medicme Avantr's approach enphasises peer
fearning which takes the form of small g owp
work and conceprt tests Alongside our financin
tnvestment we have supported Avann by
reviewing thewr curniculum and content teacher

Learn rore at avantifellows orgo

wrainng and helping w appoint a new board
and implement a new governance structure
The results thus far have been extremely
impressive - over 40% of Avant s students
placed n the top 13 on the T [EE examunation
in 2013 and 2014 with 10025 placing in the wop
20% The HT entrance exam s considered the
world s most competinve with aver 500 000
students tabing the exam each year fora
university systam with only [0 Q00 annual
scats Avanti couts are less than 25% of those
tradinonal classes with students charged only
%30 per month

IMAGE REMOVED
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Governance overview

from Glen Morene, Chairman

IMAGE REMOVED

Clear board roles and governance
processes offer balance and
experience to our strong, focused
executive team, helping to drive
strategic and performance progress.

In this Governance section

LEADERSHIP & EFFECTIVENESS p60-69 ©
ACCOUNTABILITY p70-77 @
ENGAGEMENT p78-81 @
REMUNERATION p82-106 ©
ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES pl07-12©

Dear shareholders,

As you may have already secn elsewhere in this report,
2014 was a year in which we completed the restructure of
Pearson, laying the foundations 1o strengthen our posiion
as the world's largest educanion company and embedding
efficacy nto aff we do twould like to take this opportumty
to share with you some insights as 1o how our board

and governance framework has operated and evolved
throughout the year to complement our transformation
Learn more about our Transformation on p4-9 @

Governance principles

QOur role and activities As a board we organise our work
around four magor themes where we believe we can add
value governance, strategy, business performance and
people Qurboard calendar and agenda provide ample
time to focus on these themes and we have set out some
examples of the business considered by the board, as well
as the governance pracuces to which we adhere, on the
pages that follow Learn more about Board meetings and
acuvies on p63 @

UK Corparate Governance Code This year, as s required,
we are reportng agamnst the 2012 edition of the UK
Corporate Governance Code {the Code) The board
beheves that during 2014 the company was 1n full
comphance with the Code See page 73 for our positton
on audit tendening and rotauon A detailed account of the
provisions of the Code can be fourd on the FRC's website
at www frc org uk and we encourage readers to view

our comphance schedule on the company website at
WWwW pearson com/governance

Board and management

The Pearson board consists of senior executive
managenient alongside a strong team of non-executive
directors drawn from successful internattonal busmesses
and education insotutions with experience of corporate
strategy, education, emerging markets, technology and
consumer markeung

Board changes As 1s best practice, we continually

assess and refresh the board to ensure we mamntam an
appropriate balance and diversity of skills and experence
We will soon bid farewell to two trusted adwisers,

Dawid Arculus and Ken Hydon, who have signalled




their mtentions to stand down from the board at the
upcorming Annual Gereral Meeung (AGM), having each
served the company for nine years We wall muss their
wise counsel and rigour as charmen of the remuneration
and audit commuttees respectively, and we thank them
for thewr service to Pearson

During the past year we have also welcomed two new
non-executive directors to our board Ehzabeth Cortey
jouned us in May 2014 and in January 2015 we welcomed
Tim Score | am delighted to say that Elizabeth and Tim
are 1o be appointed as our new remuneration and audit
committee charmen respectively, following the AGM in
April 2015 Between them, Elizabeth and Timbringa
wealth of business, finance and technology experence
to Pearson’s board, and will no doubt contribute fresh
perspectives to the board’s deliberations Learn more
about our Board of directors on p60-6| €

Board and executive structure and batance Our board
cons'sts primanly of non-executive directars, who

bring a strong mdependent viewpoint, complementing
the executive perspectves of john Fallon and Rebin
Freestone In addinon, we mvite the Pearson executive to
attend a number of the board’s sessions to bring insights
and thoughts from across the business Learn more about
the Pearson executve on p9 @@

Board evaluation During 2014 we undertook an
externally-faciitated board evaluation process As always,
this assists us in identifying opportunities to refine our
processes, but the overalf findings reflected a board which
funcuons well, is fit for purpose and which has a strong
sense of collegiality and support —something which has
served us well through our two-year transforrnation
Learn more about the Board evaluation on p67 @

Accountability See full section on p70-77 @

Throughout our transformauon, our audit committee
has played awital role in overseeing bath risk and
reporting matters Our refocused business has seen the
intreducuon of a new financiatreporting structure along
the fines of our primary geographic markets, and our
shift towards digieal, services and emerging markets

has brought new opportunities and nsks - strategic,
operational and financial Learnmore about our Principal
nisks and uncertamties on p34 ®

Secuon 4 Gor rmangs 59

Engagement See full sect:on on p78-8t &P

Engagement with sharehalder s and society as a whole s
key to Pearson’s mission to help people make progress n
thetr kves th1ough learming During the year, recognising
this, we formalised our reputatton & responsibihity
committee, headed by Vivienne Cox, whose focus
mcludes our reputation with stakeholders (including
investors and the educaton community) and oversight
of Pearson’s public commitments to society Wealso
welcomed a number of shareholders to our Annual
General Meeting which, as abways, was a valuable
oppartunity for our board and semor management to
respond to shareholders’ views and questions

Remuneration See full secuon on p82-106 €

Qur remuneration policy was reviewed last year to align
with the company's strategy and organisation and was
approved by shareholders at the 2014 AGM We contnue
to operate executive remuneration in line with the
approved policy and atpresent de not anucipate seeling
shareholder approval for our policy agam until required to
do so at the 2017 AGM

This year's report on directors’ remuneraton refers to
the changes we made in ine with policy in 2014 to better
align executive director compensation with the interests
of our shareholders and, to put our reportinto context,
contains a summary of the approved directors’
remuneration policy report from 2013 which s not
subjectto a vote The reportalso deals with the significant
minonty vote aganst the 2013 annual remuneration
reportwhich the company recewed at the 2014 AGM

Conclusion

t hope this report dlearly sets out how your company is
run, and how we align governance and our board agenda
with the strategic direction of Pearson We atways
welcome questions or comments from shareholders,
either via our website {www pearson com) or in persen
at our Annual General Meeting

IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Mareno Chanman
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| eadership & effectiveness

Board of directors
Chairman Executive Directors
{MAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED IMAGE REMOVED

Glen Moreno Chairman
aged 7| apponted { October 2005

Chan man of the nomimation cormmitcee and
member of the remunarition commitiee

Glen has more than four decades of
expenence in business and finance, and

15 currently non-executive director and
chairman desgnate of Virgin Money Holdings
(UK} plc and non executive director of
Fidelity Internanional Limited Hessalsoa
seniar acdwiser to HSBC and chairman of

the Global Leadership and Technology
Exchangeleaderstip boawrd Previously

Glen was deputy chairman of The Financiad
Reporting Councl Lirmeted 1n the UK

deputy chairman and senior independent
director at Lioyds Banking Group plc senior
wdependent drector of fMan Group plc and
acung charrman of UK Finanoal investments
Limited the company set up by HM Treasu y
to manage the government s shareholdings
in UK banks

John Fzllon Chief executve
aged52 appointed 3 October 2012

john became Pearson's chief execuuve on

I January 2013 Since 2008 he had been
respanstble for the company’s educauon
businesses outside North America and
amember of the Pearson management
commuttee He joined Fearsonin 1997

as director of communicauons and was
appomted president of PearsonInc arole
he combined with his commumications
responsibilises i 2000 102003 he was
appointed CEQ of Pearsons educanonal
publishing businesses for Europe M:ddie
East & Afirica (EMA) and gradually took an

a bt oader internanicnal education brief
Prior to jemnuing Pearson Johnwas director of
corporate affalrs at Powergen plc where he
was also a member of the company s executive
committee Cariermn bus career john beld
senor public policy and communications roles
in UK local government. He is an adwvisory
board member of the Global Business
Coaltion for Educanon

Non-executive Directors

Robin Freestone Chief financtal officer
aged 56, appomnied (2 june 2006

Robin s experience iIn management and
accountng inciudes a previousrole as group
financial controller of Amersham plc (now
part of General Electric) and semor financal
postiions with IC1 ple Zeneca and Henkel

UK He was also a non-execuuve director and
founder shareholder of eChem Lomited untit
May 2014 when the company was sold Robin
joined Pearsonin 2004 as deputy chief financal
officer and became chucf finanoal officer
nJune 2006 He qualified as a chartered
accountans with Touche Ross {now Deloste),
and currently sits on the Adwisory Group of
the ICAEW's Frnanaial Reporung Faculty and
was unul Decemnber20i4 charman of The
Hundred Group of Finance Directors He also
sits on the CBl s Economic Growth board

Pearson board members
bring a wide range of
experience, skills

and backgrounds which

IMAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

Josh Lewss Non-executive director

Ken Hydon Non-execuuve director
Complement our Strategy' aged 70 appointed 28 February 2006 aged 52 appomnted | March 2011
Digical experience Chairman of the audit committee and Member of the norninauon and remuneraton
5 O% IMAGE member of the nominauion and remuneration committees
m
REMOVED cormtes Josh s expericnce spans finance, education
Kens expenence in finance and business and the development of digital enterprises
includes workingin the electromcs retailt He 15 the founder of Salmon River Cagital LLC ‘
Emergmng market consumer products and healthcare sectors a New York-based private equity/venture
experience IMAGE He s non executive director of Reclutt capialfirm fowsed on technology enabled
259/ REMOVED Benduser Group ph. ane ofthe world s businesses meducanoh finanoal services
0 leading b anded consumer goods companies and other sectors Overa 25 year eareerin
n health, hygiene and home Reisalsoanon actwe principalinvesung he has been mvolved
executve director of Merin Entertainments n abroad range of successful companies
Education/learning ple, the world s second largest wgHor including several ploneering enterprises
secrLor experienge IMAGE atiracnon operator From 2004102003 he m the educaton sector bn addion, he has
SO% REMOVED was anon executive director of Tesco ple {ong been active m the non-profit education
Previously Kenwas chieffimancial officer sector with assecanons nciuding New

MNate Graphic dlustrates experence
of non exccurive directors

of Vedafone Group plc the multinattonal
refecommunications company and financial
director of subsidianies of Racal Electronics

Leaders New Classrooms and the Bilt &
Melinda Gates Foundauen Hpis also anon
executive directot of éVestment and Axtoria
both finanaal datastechnology companmies
and Parchment an educauion credentals
management company




Nan-execunve Directors

Secuion 4 G esnance
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IMAGE REMOVED

David Arculus Non-executive director
aged 68, appanted 28 February 2006

Chairman of the remuneraton cotmmitiee
and member of the audit and norminauon
comtnittees

Dawid has expenence in banking
telecommunicauons and publishung in along
career inbusiness Currenty heis charman of
Energy UK and Hassium Asset Management
and s 3member of councf of Cranfreld
Unwveraty David s previous roles inchude the
chairmansinp of Aldermore Bank plc Numis
Corporanonple O2 ple Severn Trentplc
IPC Group and the advisery board of the
Briush Library, 2s well as chief operanng
officer of United Business Medta plc group
managing director of EMAP plcand a non-
execunve director of Tefeforca S A David
served from 2002 to 2006 as churmanof the
UK gavernment s Better Regulation Tasic
Force which worked on reduang burdens
on busmess

MAGE REMOVED

Elizabeth Corley, CBE Non-executive directos
aged 58 appanted | May 2014

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Senior independent director
aged 55 apponted { january 2002

Mernber of the nonunation and remuneranon
committees

Elizzbethis chief excouuve officer of Alllanz
Global Invesiors one of the warld s ieading
nvestment Organisations She was previously
at Mernll Lynch Investment Managers and
Coopers & Lybrand Elzabethisamember

of the board of the invesiment Assoaiation
amember of the European Securines and
Markets Authority s stakeholder group an
adwvisory counail member of TheCity UK and

s non executive director of the Financial
Reporting Councilin the UK Shesalsoa
member of the management committee of the
Forum of European Assct Managers a member
of the CFA Future of finance Counatanda
memba of the Committee of 200 Elizabeth
was apponted Commander of the Order of
the Brtuh Empire (CBE) in the 2015 New Year
Hanours for services 1o the financal sector
She s ako a fellow of the Royal Sociery of Arts
and an accomplished crime ficuon author

Chairman of the reputauon & tesponsibilicy
commutiee and member of the avdst
nommation and remuneraiton comnitiees

Vivienne has wide experience inencrgy
natural resources and business nnovauon
She worl.ed for BP plc for 28 years m Brirain
and Continensal Europe in posts incuding
evecutive vice president and chief executive
of BP s gas power and'1 enewables business
and Its alternanive energy unit Sheis non-
executive director of Stena lnternational

and of energy company BG Group plc

and chairman of the supervisory board of
Valtow ec which supplies whtdar systems
for the energyindusiry Sheis also lead
ndependem director atthe UK Department
for International Development Viviennes a
commussioner of the Awrporis Commussion
which was setup by the UK government 1o
exanvine any requirements for addinonal UK
arport capacity

IMAGE REMOVED

Linda Lorimer Nan-executive director
aged 62 appownted | July 2043

IMAGE REMOVED

Harish Manwan: Non-executive director
aged 61 appointed | October 2013

IMAGE REMOVED

Tim $core Non-executive director
aged 54 appownted | January 2015

Member of the audit, noriraton and
reputation & responsibility commiuiees

Member of the nomination and 1 eputaton &
respensiplity camimittees

Member of the audit and nominanon
commitieas

Lindahas a deep background i education
strategy agrmin stranon and pubhc affars She s
vice president for Global & Strategic Inriatives
at Yale Unwersity where her dunes include
aversigh: of Yale s Office of International
Aftars and Office of Digital Dissermmauon
Over a 30 year career intugher educavon

she has been responsible for many of Yale's
admunistrative services ncluding the university s
public communicatons, alumne refattons and
Cifice of Sustamability Previously Linda served
as president of Randolph Macon Woman's
College wn Virgnia and had earker worked at
Yale inseveral senfor roles including associate
provost. She 1s a non execuuve directorof Save
the Children (US} and was char of the board

of the Assocation of Amenican Colleges and
Universiges

Hansh has an evienswe background nemerging
markets and senior experence in a successiul
global erganisaton He was pi eiously chief
operaung officer of consumer produrts
compary Unilever having jomed the company
n 1976 2s amarkeung management trainec
wnindia and held sepror management roles
around the world inchuding North Amenca
Lamm Amerita Europe Africaand Ase Hex
non execuive charman of Hindustan Unilever
Limitedin India, and serves on the boards of
Whirlpoal Corporason Qualcommine and
MNietsen NV Heisalso on the board of the
Indizn School of Business and the Econoruic
Development Board (EDB) of Singapore

Tim has been chief finanaiat officer of

ARM Holdings plc the world s leading
senuconducior IP company, for 3 years
with extensive expenence of the technology
sector and i both developed and emnerging
markets partcularly Chwina Hewsan
expenenced non execunve direcior and
currenty suts on the board of The British
Land Company pic He served on the board
af National Express Grotyp phe from 2005 10
1014, mchuding ume asmterun chawrman and
six years as the seniorindependent dirggtor
Eartier in bus career Tim held semor finance
roles with Rebus Group, Willlam Baird

BTR plc and others
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L eadership & effectiveness

Board governance

Board of directors

Composition of the boat d The board currently consists
of the chairman, Glen Moreno, two executive directors
including the chief executive, John Fallon, and eight
independent non-executive directors Following the
2015 AGM, the board will consist of six mdependent
non-executive directors, following the retirement of
Dawvid Arculus and Ken Hydon

Chairman and chief executive There s a defined split

of responsibihties between the charman and the chief
executive The roles and responsibilives of the chairman
and chief executive are clearly defined, set outin writing
and reviewed and agreed by the board annually

Chairman’s significant commitments During the course

of 2614, the chairman stepped down from tus positon as
deputy chatrman of the Financial Reporting Counal, and
with effect from | January 2015 has been apponted as a

non-executive director and chairman designate of Virgin

Money Holdings (LK) plc

Independence of directors All of the non-executive
directors whe served dui ing 2014 were considered by the
board to be independent for the purposes of the Code

The board reviews the independence of each of the non-
executive directors annually This includes reviewing their
external appontments and any potential conflicts of
interest as well as assessing their mdividual crcumstances
n order to ensure that there are no relationships or
arcumstances likely to affect thew character or judgement
In addition to this review, each of the non-executive
directors is asked annually to complete an independence
questionnaire to satisfy requirements arising from
Pearson's US isung

The board hasin particutar considered the independence
of Dawvid Arculus and Ken Hydon who have each now
served for nine years Itis the intention of both David

and Ken to retire as directors at the 2015 AGM, but
nevertheless the board believes that both directors
contmue to provide sufficient challenge to the
deliberauons of the board as a whole, and that they are
sufficiendy independent in character and judgement to
continue to serve as independent non-executive directors
for the remamnder of their terms

The chainmanis primartly responsible for the leadership of the board and
ensunng its effecuveness

The chief executive ts responsible for the operational management of the
business and for the development and implementauon of the company's
strategy as agreed by the board and the Pearson executve

The senior independent director’s role includes meeting regularly with
the chairman and chief executive to discuss speafic issues, as well as being

Key roles

ROLE NAME RESPONSIBILITY
Chamrman Glen Moreno

Chief John Faflon

executive

Semior Vwvienne Cox

independent

director

avaitable to shareholders generalty if they should have concerns that have
not been addressed through the normal channels

The serior independent director has responsibility for appraising the
performance of the chaitman, including in relauon to the effectiveness

of the niommason commitzee, as part of the annual board evaluation
process The semor independent director would be expected to chair
the nomination commuittee 1 the event that it was considering succession
to the role of chairman of the board

Gender splic of the board

W Men 7 B Under 3 years 3
B Womaen 3 RE":]g?/ED B 3106 years 2 Rg:g(fli 5
Frgurses as 3t X December 2044 M 7years or more 2

Following 20{5 AGM sphtwilbe 6 3

Length of temut e
of non-executive directors

Figures as a2 3 December 2004
Following 2015 AGH ratiowill be 4.3 0




Conflicts of interest Under the Companes Act 2006
(the Act), dwrectors have a statutory duty to averd conflicts
of interest with the campany The company’s artcies of
assocaton (Artcles) allow the directors to authorise
conflicts of mterest The company has established a
procedure toidentfy actal and potental conflicts of
interest, including all directorsheps or other appointments
to, or relauonships with, companies which are not par t
of the Pearson Group and which could give nse to actual
or potenual conflicts of nterest Once notified to the
chairman or company secretary, such potental conflicts
are considered for authorisation by the board atits next

Board meeungs duning the year 2014

Section 4 G erpande

63

scheduled meeung The relevant director cannot vote on
an authorisation resoluuon, or be counted in the quorum,
in relation to the resoluton relaung to tus/her conflict or
potental conflict The board reviews any authonsatons
granted on an annual basis

Board meetings

The board held six full scheduled meetings in 2014, with
discussions and debates focused on the key strategic
1ssues facing the company Major items covered by the
board in 2014 ar e shown in the table below

Feb 2014 Apr2014 Jun2014

London

tondan Washington DC

GOVERNANCE

Jul 2014

London

Oct 2014

tondon

Dec 2014

MNew York

) Focus on Y Brand reputation

> Annual review

of authorsed forthcorung AGM and LIS
conficts of nd review of government policy
Interese shar eholder nsves Read more cnp/8

» Raview of division
of responsibilities
between charman

I0¢ HYdY 5T~ DNILIAW TVHINID IVANNY

yUpdate on
Pearson
Foundauon

>Approvalof
LommiTtee terms
of reference

Y Enterprise risk
matagement
TeVIEN

>Approvalof
schedule of

and chief executive
authongy imets
STRATEGY
5 2014 operating ) Update on new » Overview of »Strategic Swrategic ofisite ) Pengwin Random
plan orgamisationl and US business plan update meetng focuung House review
» Review of preduct strategy 3 Systems supply on » Business pordohio
transformation approach chanand » Geographiesand and transacton
to date and plans » Pearson procurement Lines of Busine ss update
for 2014 Technelogy - view strategic reviews
fromnew chief including post-
nformetion officer acguisinon
reviews
»Focus sessions —
Financtal Times
and UK education
» Technology
deep dve
PERFORMANCE
> 2013 report ) Rewview of investor »ntenmresults and » Tradng updaie > Trading update
and accounts relauans strategy dmdend approval and preliminary
and dwidend and share price view of 2013
1ecommeandaton performance
» Trading update
PECPLE
) Review > Rising Stars »Organrsztional > Risting Stars » Talent review
remunerstion brealdast design and brealdast
committes Read more struciure Read more
recommendations onpb5 onp&s

tn uddiuon to s s far malmeenngs the board held ancfurther meetng in February 2014 1o approve the 2003 prelimimary resu'ts and ta make us determnaton that
the 2013 Anpual reportwas fair balanced and understandzble Theboard also undertook dutussions tnroughoutthe year, as required, to conmder the progress and
terms of corporate transactions
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{ eadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

The rale and business of the board

The board s deeply engaged in developing and measuring
the compary’s long-term strategy, performance and
value We beheve thatitadds a valuable and diverse set
of external perspectives and that robust, open debate
about significant business 1ssues brings a valuable
addiuonal disciphne to major decisions

A schedule of formal matters reserved for the board's
deaston and approval 1 available on our website at
Www pearson com/governance

The board receives timely, regular and necessary financial,
management and other information to fulfil its duties
Comprehensive board papers are crculated to the board
and commuittee members at least one week in advance
of each meeting and the board recerves regular reports
from the chief executive In addinon to meeung papers,

a kbrary of current and historic corporate snformation s
made available 1o directors electronically to support the
board's deaision-malung process Directors can obtan
independent professional advice at the company’s
expense, n the performance of their duties as directors
All directors have access to the advice and services of the
comparny secretary

Non-executive directors meet with local senior
management every ume board and committee meetings
are held at the locations of operating companies, such

as during the board's 2014 trp to Washington, DC

Thus afiows the non-executive directors to share their
experience and expertse with semor managers as well
as alfowing them to better understand the abiliues and
motivations of seruor management, which in turn will
help them assess the company's prospects and plans

for succession

Standing committee

A standing commuttee of the board has been established
to approve certan ordinary course of business iterms such
as bankmg matters, guarantees, intra-Group transactions
and routine matters relaung to employee share plans

The committee has written terms of reference reviewed
and approved each year, which clearly set out.ts authenty
and duties These can be found on the company website
at www pearson com/governance

Culture and values of the board

As part of its annual evaluation, the board considered its
own culture and dynamics, and how these have evolved
alongside the wider transformation

The board agreed thatit has a real sense of collegiality,
with an open and transparent approach where dversity
of opinion and chalienge are encouraged and welcomed
As a whole and at an individuat level, the board feels
wholly commutted to Pearson's values and mussion, and
throughout 2014 has received regular updates onthe
wransformation as it has progressed Learn more about
our Board evaluation on p67 @

Board attendance

The following table sets out the attendance of the company's
directors at scheduled board meeungs during 2014

Board
mestings
atcended

Chairman

Glen Morenc 6/6

Executive directors

John Fallon 6/6

Robin Freestone 6/6
MNon-executive directors

Dawvid Arculus 6/6

Elizabeth Corley* 4/4

Vivienne Cox 6/6

Ken Hydon 6/6

Josh Lewis 6/6

Linda Lorimer 6/6

Harish Manwarn 6/6

* Appornted on | May 2014




Succession planning

The board considers oversight of succession planning
not anly at boa d and executive management level but
for all key posiuons throughout the business —as one of
its prime responsibilites At board level, the primary
focus in the latter part of the year has been to identify
suttable candidates for the role of chief financial officer

The company has formal conungency plans in place for
temporary absence of the chnef executive for health or
ather reasons The matter of chief executive succession
is a standing item for discussion and review by the
charman and chief executive annually Succession
planning for the board and chair are also undertaken
annually

Talent review

The board dedicated part of its December 2014

meeung to reviewing chief executive succession and the
leadershup talent pipeline at Pearson [n preparation for
that, the Pearson executive team undertook a ngorous
talent review programme, assessing pet formance and
potental of its top 100 executives (their direct reports)
as well as the strength of the succession pipeime for their
own rales and their team's roles

All members of the execuuve team also took partina
mulu-rater feedback process (360 feedback process),
recewving feedback from direct reports, colleagues
and the chiel executive on key leadership traits and
behaviours

At the board meeting, the board discussed chief
executive succession and together they reviewed
the 360 summary reports for the executives, as
well as overall themes from the 2014 employee
engagement survey

This discussion was followed by a session on the

broader talent process, looking into succession for each
execunve role, anafysing diversity statistics and discussing
key capabilities that will be crucal for the effective
deliver y of our strategy (pedagogy. technology and
product management)

As a result of this process, we are desigring structured
development plans for the top 100 executives n the
organisaion and starung a deeper assessment of our
capabilizes i the areas of pedagogy. technology and
product management

Section 4 Greer nance 65

hn 2

In addition to the board’s
established succession planning and
talent review process for sentor
roles throughout the business,

it was deaded in 2014 to intiate

a series of Rising Stars sessions

The first of these sessions took place overinformal
breakfasts during each of the board's offsite meetings
1in Washington, DC and London The purpose of the
sessions 1s to provide the board with the opportunity
to meet a cross-secton of junior or mid-level
colleagues from the host country who have been
identified by senior executives as showing

real promse The board’s feedback on these
sessions in 2014 was overwhelmingly positve -

they valued the opporwnity to meet and

hear from colleagues from: all levels,

finding the sessions nch and

interesting, and taking away a

clearer sense of Pearson’s

worlung culture
IMAGE REMOVED Rising Scars
gender spht
1 Male 475
M Female 52%

as at 3 December 2014

“The Rising Stars offered the directors
incredible insights into the workings of the
company’s enterprises These menand
women are a key part of the future of the
company, and we were impressed by their
sagacity and by thew passion for the mission
of Pearson - and by ther good ideas for our
collective future ™

Linda Lonmer Non-execuuve director
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

Directors' training and induction

Board committees

Dhirectors receive a significant bespoke induction
programme and a range of informauon about Pearson
when they join the board This includes background
information on Pea son and details of board procedures,
directors’ responsibiliies and vanous governance refated
1ssues, ncfuding procedures for dealing in Pearson shares
and their legal oblgauons as directors The inducnon
also includes a series of meeungs with members of the
board, the Pearson executive and senior management,
presentatons regarding the business from seror
executives and a briefing on Pearson's investor relations
programme The induction programmes for Elzabeth
Corley and Tim Score are ongong, tailored to thew
specific interests, and relevant to the board committees
they have joined

Alldirectors receive training in the form of presentations
about the company’s operations, through board meetings
held at operauonal {ocations and by encouraging the
directors to wisitlocal operanons and management as and
when their schedule allows, including if they are travelling
to a country or region on non-Pearson business The
company sed etary and general counsel, In conjunction
with the Group's adwisers, monitor legal and governance
developments and update the board on such matters as
agreed with the chairman Dwrectors can also make use of
external courses

Durectors’ mdemnities

In accordance with section 232 of the Act, the company
grants an indemnity to all of its directors The mdemnity
refates to costs incurred by them i defending any cvil or
crirminal proceedings and in connection with an apphication
for rehef under sections 661(3) and (4) or sections 1 157(1)-
(3) of the Act soiong as mories are repaid not later than
when the outcome becomes final if

{1} they are convicted in the proceedings
(it} Judgment s given against them or
fu) the court refuses to grant the relief sought

As permutted by Pearson’s artidles of associaton, the
directors have the benefit of an indemnity whichis a
quahfying third party indemnity provision as defined
by section 234 of the Act The indemmity was in force
throughout the last financial period and 1s currently
i force

The company has purchased and mantains directors and
officers’ nsurance cover aganst certan legal fiabilines and
costs for daims in connecuon with any act or ormission by
such directors and officers in the execuncn of their duues

The board has established four formal committees

the audit commitiee, the normmnaton comnutiee,

the remuneration committee, and the reputation &
responstbility commuttee, which was formally constituted
in 2014 having operated on an mformal basis during 2013
The chairmen and members of these committees are
appointed by the board on the recommendauon

(where appropriate) of the nomination committee and
i consultation with each relevant commuttee charman
In addition to these formal board commuttees, the
standing committee also operates with board level mput

More committee information

AUDIT COMMITTEE p70 QO
NOMINATION COMMITTEE p68 Q)
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE p82©
REPUTATION & RESPONSIBILITY

COMMITTEE p78 ©Q
STANDING COMMITTEE p6dQ

‘The approach adopted by the board 15 for commuttees to
focus on their own areas of expertise, enabling the board
meetngs to focus on governance, strategy. performance
and people, thereby making the bestuse of the board's
ume togetheras a whole The committee charmen
report to the full board at each meeung immediately
following their sessions, ensuring 2 good communication
flow whilst retaining the ability to escalate items to the full
board's agenda if appropriate

Board committee attendance

The following table shows attendance by directors at
committee meetings throughout 2014

Reputation &
Audit Remuncrauon Nomnaton  respensibilicy

Glen Mecreno - 4/4 6/6 -
John Fallon - - 6/6 -
David Arculus 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
Elizabeth Corley® - 11 4/4 -
Vivienne Cox 5/% 4/4 6/6 3/3
Ken Hydon 5/5 4/4 6/6 -
Josh Lews - 4/4 &/6 -
Linda Lonmer 5/5% - 6/6 3/3
Harish Manwan - - 6/6 3/3

* Joined nommation eommittee on | May 2014 and remuneranon comm tree
on | August 2084




A formal evaluation of the board, its committees and
indvidual directors’ performance was completed at
the end of 2014

It 1s recommended by the Code that this process 1s
facilitated by a third party every three years This
effecuveness review was conducted by external
evaluator, JCA Group ln additon to faaltating this
review, |CA Group pr ovided benchmarking and due
diligence services in connection with the appointment
of Elizabeth Corley as a non-executive director

JCA Group has no other connection to Pear son
apart from in relanion to board evaluavon and search
consultancy services

EVALUATION PROCESS .

On|CA Group's recommendation, the process for
the evaluation was as follows

imitial briefing A iniual briefing on the
company to provide context and msights
nto the strategic priormes for the business
as well as any 1ssues or concerns to address
more specfically

N
Discusston gudehne Devetopment of a
‘discussion guideline’ which was shared with
the partapants ahead of one-to-one meeungs,
to address key topics but not imit the
discusston to only these, such topics induded
the organtsation of the board, board and char
succession, judgement of the strategy and
business performance, the dynanwucs and
compositon of the board and feedback on
the commuttees and ndividual directors

N
One-to-one meeungs One-to-one meetings
with each board member, both executive
and non-executive, these conversations
were conducted on a confidental,
un-attribuiable basis

N
Effectveness report Afull report was
presented to the board, containing the
key findings recommendations for acuons
and suggested next steps

Secuon 4 Go erpance &7

Conclusion and recommendations

The revtew concluded that overali the board and

its commuttees remarn effectiven fulfiling ther
responsibilittes appropriately Actions agieed as a
result of the evaluaunon included ongoing review and
assessment of the strategy and its success, given the
significant transformanon being undertaken by the
company The frequency of board meeungs was judged
to be appropriate However, bulding on the success of
the recommendation of the chief executive's monthly
letter from last year's internal board review, there was
also a suggesuon to introduce addiuonal board calls in
between board meetings to keep the board current on
1ssues and progress In addition, itwas highlighted that
itis essential the board pays continuing attention to
ensure all directors are well informed and have 2 deep
understanding of the issues for the business and the
broader global education environment in order to
provide appropriate strategic drection and challenge
going forward This might include creating ongoing
opportunittes for board members to wisit Pearson’s
operatons w1 different global venues

Personal objectives

In addivon to the evaluaton of the board as awhole,
executves are also evaluated each year on their
performance against personal objectives under the
company’s annual incenave plan Learn more about our
Annual incennve plancon pl04 @

The non-executive directors, led by the senor
independent director, also conduct a review of the
chairman's performance

Committee evaluaton

In addizon to the review of the board and individual
directars, the audit and remuneration commrttees each
undergo an annual evaluation process to review their
performance and effectiveness

The process nvolves distribution of questionnatres to
audit and remuneraten commitiee members, as well as
key stakeholders in each committee, seeking views on
matter s including committee roles and responsibilives,
quality and timeliness of meenng matenals, opportunity
for discussion and debate, dialogue with management
and access to Independent advice Responses are then
evaluated and presented to the respecuve committee at
a scheduled meeting, with key themes being drawn out
for discussion
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Leadership & effectiveness
Board governance continued

" NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Chairman
Glen Moieno

IMAGE REMOVED

Membars Dawd Arculus, Ehzabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox,
Ken Hydon, Josh Lewss, Linda Lorimer, Harish Manwani,
Glen Moreno and Tim Score

Key acuviuies in 2014

Objectives Actions

identify and appoint additianal Appomnument of
non-executive directors, at Ehzabeth Corley and
least ane of whom to be female  Tim Score
Appointment of Trm
Score and Elizabeth
Corley as respective
committee chairmen

Appointment of Coram
Wilhiams announced —
to join board on

I August 2015

Awudit committee and
remuneration commiceee
chair succession

Commence search for new
chief finanoial officer

For nomination commuttee attendance
see overview table on p66 @

COMMITTEE RESPONSIRILITIES INCLUDE:

| Appointments [denufymng and nominating
candidates for board vacancies

2 Balance Ensuring that the board and its committees
have the appropriate balance of skills, experence,
independence, diversity and knowledge to

operate effectively

3 Succession planming Reviewing the company's
leadership needs with a view to ensuring the continued
ability of the orgarusation to compete effectvely in

the marketplace

Nominauon committee role and cormposttion

The commuttee primartly monttors the composition and
balance of the board and its commuttees, and identfies
and recommends to the board the appointment of new
directors and/or committee members

John Falton stepped down from the nominaton
committee in December 2014, although he will contnue
to be available to attend committee meetings by
invitation Elizabeth Corley and Tim Score joned the
nominauon commuttee following their appomtments

to the board

Committee meetings and appontments

The nomination committee rmeets at teast once a year and
at other umes as and when required During 2014, the
committee met six tmes with its pnmary focus being to
consider suttable candidates for the role of chief financial
officer and for non-executive positions, including for the
roles of audit and rermunerauon commuttee chairmen in
preparaton for the reurement from the board of Ken
Hydon and David Arculus during 2015

The non-executive search culrmnated in the successful
appointment of Tim Score and Elizabeth Corley to the
board, who also joined the audit and remuneraucn
committees respactvely and will assume the
chairmanships of those committees following the
AGMin Apri2015

Having considered a range of external and internal
candidates, we announced on 27 February 2015 that
Coram Williams would succeed Robin Freestone as chief
financial officer Coram will join Pearson as CFQ designate
an | July 2015 and will replace Robin on the board on

1 August 2015

In additrion, the committee continued to focus on the
search for a non-executive director with insights mto
mobile and dignal technology to further complement
our strategy




Pearson uses a number of feading firms in 1ts board

and executive search activittes An external search
consultancy, Odgers Berndtson, was used dunng the
recruitment process for Tim Score Odgers Berndtson
does not have any other connecuion to Pearson apart
from as a search consultancy

The committee identified Etizabeth Corley as a potential
non-executive candidate and an external search agency,
JCA Group, provided benchmarking and due diigence
services in connection with Eiizabeth's appointment

tn addition to these services, JCA Group faciitated
Pearson's board evaluation m 2014

Learn more about the Board of directors on p60 €

Chairman role

Although the chairman of the board chairs the
nomination committee, he 1s not permitted to chaw
meetings when the appentment of his successoris
bemng considered or duning a discussion regarding hus
performance Atsuch umes, the serior independent
director will chair the meetings

Terms of reference

The comnuttee has written terms of reference which
clearly set outits authonity and duties These are reviewed
annually and can be found on the company website at
WWW pearson com/governance

Dwersity

The board embraces the Code's underlying principles
with regard to board balance and diversity, induding
gender diversity The nomination committee, led by
the chairman, ensures that the directors of Pearson
demonstrate a broad balance of skills, experience and
nationality, to support Pearson's sirategic development
and reflect the global nature of the Group's business

The commuttee and the board always take account of
diversity mits broadest sense when considerng board
appointments whilst ensuring that appointments are
made based on merit and relevant experience

Sectuen 4 Governenee 69

Lord Davies has called for companies to target 25%

fernale representauon on boards of FTSE 100 companies
by 2015 Pearson 1s committed to having at least 30%
fernate directors within Locd Daves' 2015 smefirame

and currently has three ferale directors on its board

of eleven, representing 27% With the forthcoming
retrrernent of David Arculus and Ken Hydon in the coming
months, this figure s expected wo increase (o 33%

Immediately below board level, the Pearson executive,
notincluding the chief executive and chief financial officer
who are mam board directors, has three female members
out of a total of 12 (represenung 25%) Our semior
leadership tearn, up to and induding two reporting levels
from the chief executive, shows a strong pipeline of
female talent with women representing 35% of our

senior leaders

Pearson considers diversity as animportant issue across
the Group, not just at board level One of the key ams
of Pearson's diversity policy is to increase the number
of teaders coming from a diverse background including
advanang more women into leadership posions such
as through our Women in Learning and Leadership
programme for employees

Learn more about Dwersity throughout Pearson
on pb0 o

IMAGE REMGVED

Gien Moreno Chairman of nommation committee

§S3ANISNA dNO l
1

ISNYWYO4HId ¥NO {

Lovdidl TYID0S 4o I

o
O
< .
2.
-
z
>
z
N
m

SLNIWALYLS TVIONVNIS Rl



70 Pearson plc Annual report and accounts 2014

Accountability

Chatrman

Ken Hydon
(stands downat
2015 AGM}

IMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Vivienne Cox, Ken Hydon,
Linda Lormer Tim Score

In my nine years as audit committee
chairman | have learned a lot about
Pearson, its operations, its practices
and its senior management and
have enjoyed the stimulation
generated by so much change

and world class colleagues.

Ken Hydon Charman of audit computtes

For Audit comnuttee meeting attendance
see overview table on p66 €

COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITIES INCLUDE
OVERSIGHT OF:

I. Reporung The quality and mtegnity of financial
reporting and statements and related disclosure

2 Policy Group polices mcuding accounting policies,
and practices

3. External audit External audi, including the
appomtment, quakfication, independence and the
performance of the external auditor

Audit committee role

The commuttee has been established by the board
primartly for the purpose of overseeing the accounting,
financral repor tng, internal control and nsk management
processes of the company and the audit of the financial
statements of the company As acommitiee, we are
responsible for assisting the board's oversight of the
quality and integnty of the company’s external financeal
reportung and statements and the company’s accountng
policres and practices

The Group's internal auditor has a dual reporting hine to
the chief financial officer and me, and external auditors
have direct access to the comimittea to ralise any matter

of concern and to report on the results of work directed
by the commuttee | report to the full board at every board
meeting immedately following a committee meeting

As a committee, we also review the independence of the
external auditors, including the provision of non-audit
services {further detals of which can be found on page 107
and note 4 to the financial statements), ensure that there
is an appropnate audit relationship and that auditor
objectivity and independence are upheld

Audit committee changes

Linda Lonmer joined the audit committee in fanuary 2014
and we have also recently welcomed Tim Score who
joined the committee upon his appontment to the board
on | January 2015 Following nine years with Pearson, and
as chairman of the audit committee, | will step down from
the board at the 2015 Annual General Meeting Tim Score
will take over the chairmanship of the committee
foliowing my retirement and | am sure Tim will bring his
own challenge and rigour to the commuttee’s deliberanons
as an experienced audit committee chairman

Farr, balanced and understandable reporting

4 Risk and internal control Risk management systems
and internal controt environment icluding the
petrformance of the nternal audit function

5 Compliance Compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements in relaton to financial reporung and
accounting matters

Terms of reference

The committee has written terms of reference which
clearly set out its authority and dutes These are reviewed
annually and ¢can be found on the company website at
www pearson com/governance @

We are mindiul of the Code’s revised principle C 1 |
refatng to fair, balanced and understandable reporting
and accordingly we buift in addimanal steps to our Annual
report trmetable to ensure that the full board was given
sufficient oppartunity to review, consider and comment
onthe reportas it progressed Learn more about Farr,
bafanced and understandable reporung on pl08 @



Rusk assessment, assurance and integrity

A key part of the role of the commttee 1s in providing
aversight and reassu ance to the board with regard to the
integrity of the company's financial reporting, nternal
controf policies, and procedures for the idenufication,
assessment and reporting of tisk During 2014 we aligned
our risk and control processes with the new organisational
structure, and conducted a number of deep dives into
sefected principal risks

Data security

We view data privacy and cyber security breach as one of
our principal operational risks, and this 1s a regular item on
the audit commuttee’s agenda During 2014, a new chief
mformanon officer and a chef information security officer
were appointed, and the committee met with both
shortly following their appomntments to receive thew witial
assessments on Pearson’s data secunity programme, and
subsequently for progress updates throughout the year
The committee learned that the key areas of focus are o
ensure consistently secure applicatrons and infrastructure
across all parts of the Group, with the aim of adopting
best-in-class pracuces for our customers and employees

Anu-bribery and corrupuon

Given our geographic focus and profile, and a number

of recent acquesitions in growth markets, anu-bribery
and corruption {ABC) is a specific risk for Pearson The
committee conducted a deep dive nto ABC risk in 2014,
jomned by legal advisers, the SVP general counsel and SVP
internal auds and compliance The focus of the deep dive
included the increasingly co-ordinated approach taken
by authoriues in higher-nisk jurisidictions in which we
operate, as well as a review of recent enforcement actions
elsewhere in the education sector The commuttee noted
that Pearson’s ABC paolicy i1s updated on an ongoing basis
to reflect legislative changes, and learned more about
how the internal ABC training programme coninues to
evolve ta reflect our new business models and market
specriic risks

Health & safety

One year on from the mtroduction of our globat heaith
& safety policy, the commuittee conducted a deep dive
reviewing implementatron and findings to date As weill
as reviewing findings of audits at Pear son sites around
the wo Id, the commuttee discussed the Group's health
and safety priorities A primary focus is the safeguarding
and protection of our students and, to this end, a new
global safeguarding officer has been appomnted and a
safeguarding and protection policy introduced Our mival

Section 4 Gover nance 71

focus has been on our direct delivery businesses — the

areas of greatest nsk —and a tranvng course s being
developed for those staff who have contact with students
We have also engaged throughout the Group to ensure
that our safeguarding is robust whenever we come into
contact with children, young people and vulnerable
adults Corporate security 1s another key area of focus,
partcularly in relation to the safety and security of our
staffworlang m, or travelling to, hugh-risk destinations
Sigruficant progress has been made in implementation
of the new policies across our businesses, although
there remamns work to be done and the commuttee
will maintain oversight as we move forward with our
health & safety and safeguarding strategies

Audit committee meetings and activities

The comimittee met five tmes duning the year with

the following in attendance the chief financial officer,
SVP internal audit and compliance, members of the
senior management team, and the external auditors
Addmionally, the chief executive and chairman penodically
attended committee meetings Since the rermit of the
SVP internal audit and comphance expanded 1o include
compliance, the mternal audit director and the VP
cormphance and risk assurance have also attended
meetngs, so the committee has direct contact with
those areas The committee also met regularly n
private with the external auditors and the SVPinternal
auditand comphance

At every meeting, the comimittee considered reports

on the activiiies of the Group internal audit funcuon,
nciuding the results of internat audits, nsk reviews, project
assurance reviews and fraud and whistleblowing reports
The committee also monitored the company’s financal
reporting, nternal controls and risk management
procedures, reviewed the non-audit services provided

by PwC and considered any significant legal clasms and
regulatory issues in the context of thewr impact on

financial reporting

Finally, | would lilke to thank my fellow committee
members, the chief financal officor and the SVP internal
auditand compliance for thew enthusiasm and support

Learn more about the Key acovities of the audit
committee on p72 €

IMAGE REMOVED

Ken Hydon Chairman of audit committee
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Accountabiity continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE-~
Audit committee meetings durmz the year
Feb 2014 .

‘meeting .

Apr20i4°-

REPORTING
y Actounting 3> The 2013 Annual » Interim > Review of the y Querview of
and technical report and accounts  Management mnterim results 2014 Annual
updates prelmnary statement and trading 1 eport process
announcement announcement
financial staternents
> mpact of legal and tncome statement
darms and »Form 20-F and refated
reguiatory disclosures including
1ssUes on the annual Sarbanes-
financal Oxley Act secyon 404
1 eporung attestauon of financial
repar ung internal
conti ols
POLICY
» Accounung » Tax reporting » Annual review and » Annual review of
matters and process approval of external treasury palicy
Group auditor policy and strategy
sccounung »infermaton secut ity
polices and policy update
EXTERNAL AUDIT
s Provision of » Receipt of the externat 32014 external »\Update on audic
non-audie auditol s reporton auvditplan tenderng requrements
services the Form 20-Fand on sRemunelrationand > Review ofthe
by PwC the year end audit engagement fetter effectrveness of the
» Reappointment of the of the external external auditol s
external auditors auditors
» Confirmarion of » Review opirwon on
audior ndependence nterim results
RISK AND INTERNAL CONTROL
»internal audit » Assessment of the > Risk deep dive » Annual nternal > Rusk deep dive 32015 internal
activity reports effecuveness ofthe testng risk audit plan antt briber y and auditplan
and review of Group s internal > Risk deep dive corruption > Crisis management
key findings control environment business continuity »Rislcdeep dve tax and ebola
» Enterprise risk and risk management planning preparedness
management systems yRisk deep dive > Health & safety
» Datasecurty » Review of Group health & safety
internat audi terms
of reference

COMPLIANCE AND GOVERNANCE

» Fraud, » Complance
whistleblowing with the Code
reports and » Comphance with
Codeof SEC and NYSE
Conduct requsrements including
matters Sarbanes-Oxley Act

»Review of the committee s

terms of reference
» Review of the
cffectivenass of the

committea and the group

mternal audit function




Members

All of the audnt committee members are independent
non-executve dit ectors and have financal and/or refated
business experence due to the senior positrons they hold
or have held in otherlisted or publicly traded companies
and/or similar public organisations Ken Hydon, current
chairman of the committee, 1s the company's designated
financial expert He s a Fellow of the Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Assocation of
Corporate Treasurers He also serves as audit committee
chawrman for Reckitt Benckiser Group plc and Merhn
Entertainments plc, and unul 2012 for Tesco plc and Royal
Berkshire NHS Foundation Trust Tim Score, who waill
assume the charrmanship of the committee duning 2015,
Is an Assocate Chartered Accountant He also serves as
audit commuttee chairman for The Briush Land Company
plc and unul 2014 for Natonal Express Group plc

The qualficauons and relevant experience of the other
committee members are detaled on p60-61 +)

Audit committee meetings during the year 2014

During the year, the matters considered by the
committee included those shown on the table opposite

In February 2015, the committee also considered the 2014
Annual report and accounts, including the prelimirary
announcement, financal statements, strategic report,
directors reportand corperate governance complance
statement

External audit

Based on management's recommendations, the
committee reviews the proposal on the appontment

of the external audrors The committee reviewed the
effectiveness and independence of the external auditors
during 2014 and remains sausfied that the auditors provide
effective Independent challenge to management

The review was conducted by distnbuting a questionnai e
to key audit stakeholders mduding members of the audit
committee, the chief executive, chief financial officer, SVP
company secretarial, SVP internaf audit and complance,
SVP finance for each Geography and Line of Business and
heads of corporate funcuons Feedback overall was very
positive, indicaung an effecuve external audit process

The lead audit parther explained to the committee how
PwC were monitoring and reviewtng each highlighted area
and confinmed that they would consider how to adapt
their approach in ight of specific conwments recesved

Secuon 4 Gowernance 73

In addition, n accordance veith our external auditor policy,
Group nternal audit performs an antnual assessment of
audit fees, services and independence whuch forms the
basis for a recornmendauon by the commuittee to the
beard in respect of the appomntment and compensation

of our external auditor Learn more about Auditors’
independence on pl07@Q)

The comwmuttee will continue to review the performance
of the external auditors on an annuat basis and will
consider their ndependence and objectivity, talang
account of all appropriate guidelnes Thereareno
contractual obligations restricting the committee’s chowce
of external auditors In any event, the external auditors
are required to rotate the audtt partner responsible for
the Group audit every five years The cuirent lead audit
partner rotated onto the Groupsauditin 2013

Pearson’s last audit tender was in respect of the 1996 year
end resultng n the appointment of Price Waterhouse as
auditors We reported last year that a tender process
would commence no later than 2017 to ensure auditors
have been appointedn ume for the 2018 year end aud,
foliowing the end of the currentlead partner’s term, in ine
with the FRC's suggested transinonal arrangements on
audittendering Developments atan EU level regarding
mandatory audit rotanon forlisted companies have
changed the UK fandscape on audit tendering and rotauon
and, as aresult, Pearson would be required to change
auditors no later than the next audit appointment after

{7 june 2023 The audz committee will continue to monitor
developments in this area and to consider the tumung of the
next tender so as to achieve the most efficient and effective
outcome and expects to have concluded on s planned
approach within the next year Once the next audit tender
occurs, the Group will adopt a policy of putting the audit
contract out to tender at least every ten years

Audit committee trainng

The commuttee receives regular technical updates as
well as specfic or personal traning as appropriate in
September 2014, as part of a deep dive into anti-brbery
and corrupuon (ABC) nisk, the committee held a
session with legal adwisers to betzer understand global
ABC developments

Committee members also meet with focal management
on an ongoing basis n order to gain a better
understanding of how Group policies are embedded

in Operations
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Accountability continued

AUDIT COMMITTEE -

Significant issues

AREA OF FOCUS {SSUE

ACTION TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

OUTCOME

MNew Following the introducuion of the
Orgamsaton  new management structure and
structure operating model, the Group has

and IFRS 8 changed ns externally reported
segments 1n 204 1n accordance
with the guidancen IFRS 8
‘Operaung Segments’ As part
of the exercise 10 denufy new
segments and restate financal
reports, underlying cash
generating units (CGUs) were
also defined

I he commitiee reviewed restated financials and
discussed the concdiusion that the Group's primary
segrents were now made up of the businesses within
the three regions — North Amenca Core and Growth
The commuttee confirmed that reportng for the new
segrnents was consistent with board reporting for
internal purposes The commuttee also discussed the
defimtion of CGUs and the allocation of goodwill 1o
these CGUs for the purpose of impairment testing

Segments and
CGUs redefined

Imparment  The Group carries significant

reviews goodwill intangible asset balances
There is judgement exercised in
the denuficaton of CGUs and the
process of allocating goodwill to
CGUs and aggregate CGUs andin
the assumptions underlying the
imparrment review

The committee considered the results of the Group s
annual goodwill impairment review in the hght of new
and aggregate CGUs The key assumptions are
constdered (o be the cash flows derved from strategic
and operating plans, long term growth rates and the
weighted average cost of capital The committee
consider ed the sensitivities to changes N assurmpuons
and the related disclosures required by tAS 36
‘tmpairment of Assets’ In particufar the commitiee
reviewaed the analysis and disclosure relating to the
Growth CGUs where valuations ndicated animpaiment
in the India business and sensitivity to assumptions was
also reviewed i refation 1o other businesses

Annuzl
impairment
review

finahsed with
confirmatton of
an impairment
ntndiz and
sufficient
headraon in ail
other CGUs

Revenue Pearson has a number of revenue

recognition  streams where revenue
recognition ptactices are complex
and management assumptions
and esumates are necessary

The commitree regularly reviews revenue recogmtion
practice and the underlying assumptions and esumates
inadditon the commattee has vistbility ofinternal audit
findings relaung to revenue recogniion cantrals and
processes and routinely monitors the views of external
auditors on revenue recogritonissues Dunng the year
the commiitee reviewed revenue recogmuon i respect
of services provided to unversities and tigher educauon
institutions to facilitate online courses and looked at
significant new schoot testing and teacher ceruficanon
contracts The committee also discussed the impact of
the new revenue recognition standard, IFRS 15 ‘Revenue
from Contracts with Customers' and noted that although
the standard would not be adopted by Pearson untl
2017 the commuttee would need tounderstand the
impkecations of the change well before that date

Assumptions
underlying
revenue
recogniion were
reviewed and
challenged

Tax There are a number of 1ssues
in different cauntres where
management judgements and
assumptions are made as to the
correct tax treatment

The comymitiee considered the Group s approach totax
provisioning The Group operates 1n alarge number of
countries and accordingly, (s earnings are subject to
taxn many jurisdictions The judgementin relation to
tax provisionmg 1s a combination of the committee’s
assessment of the speafic opentaxissuesand also a
review of the tme penods in which the Gioup's 1ax
affars are open 1o enquiry by local tax inspectors in
Junsdictions where the Grouphasa lar gei taxable
presence The committee addressed thismatier
through the presentation of a management report

on the Group's tax affairs by the head of group tax

and through a presentauon of the external auditor's
assessment of the Group's tax provisioning

The committes
was satisfied
with the Gi oup’s
approach to tax
provisioning
taking account
althe views of
management and
the assessment
of the external
auditors




Sigrificant ssues continued

Section 4 Grr ¢y nanee 75

AREA OFFOCUS 1SSUE ACTICN TAKEN BY AUDIT COMMITTEE OUTCOME
Grupo Mule  Peat son acqun ed G upo Mufu The committee monitored progmss on the acquisiion Acquisition
acquIsition in Februa y 2014 {or £437m accounting and fair value adjusiments proposed with accountng
Management assumptions and particular emphasis on tax and legat provsions and on reviewed and
estimates wet e Necessary in the external valuation of intangible assets significant
establishing farr values for the judgements
assets and habilmies acquired expluned
Ensposal Pear son disposed of s 100% The committee reviewed the disposal accounting and Accounting
Accounting interest in Mergermarket, tsjont  disclosure and considered the main judgements relating  treatments
venture interest in Safar Books to tax treatments, pension accounting in refation 1o and valuations
Online 1ts 5% mvestment n Nook  Penguin and contingent consideration relating to Safan confirmed

Media and made adjustments to The commuttee also discussed the valuation of the Nook
the disposal of Penguin recorded  Media tnvestment at various meetings during the year
in 2013 prior to its eventual disposal in December 2014

Significant issues

Dhuring the year, the committee discussed the planning,
conduct and conclusions of the external auditas it
praceeded

At the july 2014 audit commutiee meeting, the commuttee
discussed and approved the auditors’ Group audit plan
and reviewed the key risks of misstatement of the
Group's financiaf statements, which were updated at

the December 2014 committes meeting

The table opposite sets out the significant 1ssues
considered by the audit committee together with details
of how these items have been addressed The committee
discussed these tssues with the auditors at the tme of
their review of the half year interim financeal staternents in
july 2014 and agan at the conclusion of thew audit of the
fimancial statements for the full year in February 2045

All the significant issues were areas of focus for the
auditors Learn more n the Independent auditors’ report
onpli4-t2 ®

in December 2014, the committee discussed with the
auditors the status of thewr work, focusing in particutar
oninternal controls and Sarbanes-Oxley testing and
covering the significant issues outlined above

As the auditors concluded their audit, they explaned to
the committee

» The work they had conducted over revenue, working
alongside rmanagement to assess several complex
revenue contracts

» The work they had done to understand the Group's tax
strategy and identify business and legislative nisks, to
evaluate key underlying assumptions and assess the
recoverabiity of deferred tax assets

» Their evaluation of the recoverability of digital platforms
and pre-publication assets

» Thewrfocus on segments, CGUs and goodwill impatrment
and the impact of the Group s transformauon on those

» The results of then controls testng to date for Sarbanes-
Oxley Act section 404 reporting purposes and in support
of therr financal statements audit

» The review of the company’s ‘going concern’ reports
The auditors also reported to the committee the
misstatements that they had found in the course of therr
worle, which were insignificant, and the commuttee
confirmed that there were no material items remaining
unadjusted in these financial staternents
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Accountability continued

C GOVERNANCE AND CONTROL.

Internal control and risk management

Control environment

The directors confirm they have conducted a review

of the effecuveness of the Group's systems of risk
management and internal controls, meluding strategie,
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management systerns, in accordance with the Code and
Turnbull guidance These systems have been operating
throughout the year and to the date of this report

In September 2014, the Financial Reportng Council
pubhshed updated Guidance on Risk Management,
Internal Control and Related Finanaal and Business
Reporung, which takes effect for our 2015 yearend
reportung The changes were discussed by executive
management and the audit committee and a plan has been
developed to set a clear path to comphance with the new
requirements, including ongoing robust assessment of risk
and preparauon of 2 viability statement

An enterprise risk management (ERM) framework s n
place to identfy, evaluate and manage risks, mcluding key
financial reporting risks Business areas undertake semi-
annual nsk reviews to wdentfy new or potentally under-
managed nsks Throughout the year, nisk discussions are
faciitated by the risk assurance tearn with Group and
business area management ta identify the key risks the
company faces In achieving its objectives, to assess the
probability and impact of those risks and to document the
acuons being taken to manage those nsks The Pearson
Executive reviews the output of these sessions, focusing
on the key risks facing the business Management has the
responsibiity to consider and execute appropriate action
to mitigate these risks whenever possible The results of
these reviews are reported to the audit committee and
the board in detail

Duning 2014, the serni-annual reporting of top risks

was reviewed by executive management as well as the
board and audit committee During the year, the audit
committee considered the oversight of specific selected
principal risks, through a series of risi 'deep dives” Thisis
covered in more detall in the separate report on the audit
committee The key elements and procedures that have
been established to provide effective risk management
and internal control systems are described below
During 2014, we abgned these procedures to the new
organisaten structure

Learn more about our Principal risks and mitigatng
factors on p34 e

The board of directars has overall responstbility for
Pearson’s system of internal control, which 1s designed
to manage, and where possible mitigate, the risks facing
the Group, safeguard assets and provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance aganst material financral
misstatement or loss

Responsibility for montoring financial management and
reportng and risk management and internal control
systems has been delegated to the audit commutiee

by the board At each meeting, the audit committee
constders reports from management, Group internal
audit and the external auditors, with the aim of reviewing
the effectiveness of the mternal financtal and operatng
control environment of the Group

The identrficaton and mitigation of significant business
risks 15 the responsibility of Group sersor management
and the management team for each business area -
being the heads of the Lines of Business, Geographies
and enabling functions Each business area, including
the corporate centre, mamtains internal controls and
procedures appropriate to Its structure, business
environment and risk assessment, whulst complying
with Group polictes, standards and guidelines

Financial management and reporting

There is a comprehensive strategic planning, budgeting
and forecastng systemwith an annual operaung plan
approved by the board of directors Monthiy financial
information, including trading results, balance sheets, cash
flow staternents, capital expendiures and indebtedness,
ts reported against the corresponding figures for the plan
and prior years, wath corrective action outlined by the
appropriate senior executive Group senior management
meet penodically with business area management to
review their business and financial performance against
plan and forecast Major risks relevant to each business
area as well as performance against the stated financial
and strategic objecuves are reviewed in these meeangs

We have an ongoing process te monitor the risks and
effectiveness of controls in relation to the financal
reportung and consoldation process induding the related
information systems. This includes up-to-date Group
financial polices, formal requirements for finance




functions, Group consolidauon reviews and analysis of
material vanances, Group finance techmical reviews,
including the use of technical specialists, and review and
sign-off by sentor finance managers These processes are
subject o reviews based on Group internal audit’s risk-
based audit programme The Group finance functionalso
monitors and assesses these processes, through a finance
comphance funcuon

These controls include those over external financial
reporung which are documented and tested in
accordance with the requirements of section 404 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act, which is refevant to our US lisuing
One key control in this area 1s the disclosure commuttee,
which submits reports to the audit commuttee This
committee 1s chaired by the SYP internal audit and
compliance, and members include the chief financial
officer, general counsel, SYP investor relations, SVP
company secretarial as well as semor members of
finanoial management The primary responsibihity of
this commuittee 15 to review Pearson's public reporung
and disclosures to ensure that information provided to
shareholders 1s complete, accurate and compliant with
all applicable legislation and lisung regutanons

The effectiveness of key financial controls 1s subject
to managemenx review and self-cerufication and
independent evaluauon by Group imternal audit

Group internal audit

The Group tmernat audit funcuonis responsible for
providing independent assurance to management and
the audit commuttee on the design and effectiveness

of internal controls to mitigate strategic, financial,
operationat and comphance risks The nsk-based annual
mternal audit plan is approved by the audit commuttee
Management action plans to improve internal controls
and to mitigate risks, or both, are agreed with each
business area after each audit Formal follow-up
procedures allow Group nternal audit to monitor
business areas’ progress in implementing its
recommendations and to resolve any contro! deficiencies
Group internal audit has a formal collaboranon process
in place with the external auditors to ensure efflaent
coverage of internal controls Regular reports on the
worlk of Group internal audit are provided to executive
management and, via the audit commuttee, to the board

Section 4 Gover nancs. 77

The SVPinternal audit and compliance oversees
comptance with our Code of Conduct and works with
senior legal and human resources perscnnel to Investigate
any reported inadents including ethical, corruptton and
fraud ailegauons The audit committee s provided with
an update of all sigrificant matters receved through
ourwhistle-blowing reporting system, together with

an annual review of the effecaveness of this system

The Pearson anu-bribery and corruption programme
provides the framewor k to support our complance with
vartous anti-bribery and corrupton regulations such as
the UK Bribery Act 2010 and the US Foreign Corrupt
Pracuices Act

Treasury management

The treasury department operates within policies
approved by the board and its procedures are reviewed
regularly by the auditcommittee Major transactions

are authonised cutside the department at the requisite
level, and there 1s an appropriate segregation of dutes
Frequent reports are made to the chref financial officer
and regutar reports are prepared for the audit committee
and the board

insurance

Pearson purchases comprehensive insurance coverage
where this s available on a cost-effective basts Pearson’s
insurance subsidiary, Spear Insurance Company Lirmited,
15 used to teverage the rigk retenuon capability of the
Group and to achieve a balance between retaining
insurance risk and transferring itto external nsurers
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Engagement

" REPUTATION &RESPONSIBILITY COMMITTEE

Chawrman
Vivienne Cox

IMAGE REMOVED

Members Vivienne Cox, Linda Lortmer, Harsh Manwan

As Pearson takes a more active role
in education worldwide, we have a
responsibility to our learners and
to our shareholders to grasp new
opportunities which have a positive
impact on society. We are working
to build our brand and to sharpen
our awareness and management
of anything that risks damaging it.

Vivienne Cox Chairman of reputation &
responsibility committee

COMMITTEE RESPOMNSIBILITIES:

I Reputation Pearson’s reputation among major
stakeholders, including povernments, nvestors.
employees, customers, learners and the
education community

2 Strategy Commuricauons strategies, poliaes and
plans related to reputational issues

3 Socal Soaal impact intuatives

4 Brand Brand and culture development

S Ecthies Ethical business standards

& Rusk Oversight of reputational risk

Reputation & responsibility commucttee role

The reputation & responsibility commirtee became a
formal committee of the board in 2014 This reflects the
board and Pearson executive's growing awareness and
ambttsion around Pearson's corporate reputaton, and our
behef i the importance of fulfiling our obhgatons to the
communities in which we work, and maxirmising Pearson’s
POSIUVE IMPACT ON SOCIetyY

Terms of reference

The commuttee has written terms of reference
which clearly set out its authority and duties
These can be found on the company website at
Www pearson com/governance o

The committee’s responsibilities are shownin more
detail below

For reputation & responstbility committee meeting
attendance see overview table on p66

BOARD VISIT TO WASHINGTON., DC

In June 2014, the board visited
Washington, DC for a three-day
meeting to understand the forces
behind changes in the education
landscape across the US and the
implications for Pearson’s brand
and reputation In our largest, most
successful market. Specifically, the
presentations and discussions
focused on four key areas, outlined
opposite...




Key actvities in 2014

Section 4 i € dance 79

Committee aims for 2015

{n the second year of Pearson'’s transformation, the
committee acted to scrutnise and challenge the long-term
strategy and approach thr oughout 2014, meeting three
umes and receiving presentations from business leaders
across a number of key areas

in parucular, the commuttee reviewed and provided
inputon

» Our long-term vision for corporate transparency and
reporting, m particular adopting oversight of our potinical
contnbutions policy and spending

» The wind-down of the Pearson Charttable Foundauon
and our revised approach te social impact activity

» The ranonale and future sti ategy for the Pearson
Affordable Learrung Fund

» The review of the Pearson master brand and employee
values and our approach to tracking the equity of the
Pearson brand globally

| How to ncrease productvity and demonstrate return
on investment in our schools and colleges, and how to
prepare more students to compete and succeed na
2lstcentury global economy

2 Increasing polansauon and poliucisation of education
1ssues and how the explosion of social media has altered
the public policy landscape and the rules of the game

3 Learning to engage with new players and new issues
that come from increasing private sector investmentin
educaton, parucularly from venture capital and
philanthropy, and the shift into new digal and services-led
businesses

4 Growing publc scrutiny of Pearson's role in educauon,
mn particular how our size and our success makes Pearson
a target for criucs and competitors and how the public
dermand for transparency and proof of positive social
impactis posing new challenges ~ and opportunities —
for companes

In 2015 the commuttee wifl contriue to focus onhow our
strategy for managing owr reputation and maxirising our
contribution to soaety s changing with the organisation
The committee will adopt oversight of health & safety
management, policy and issues, reflecting its mcreasmgly
significant role in safeguarding our reputation as we
become more active in the direct delivery of education
to students In parocdar, the commiitee will review
progi ess on the integration of social impact into Pearson's
busmess fallowing the closure of the Pearson Charitable
Foundation, the development of our reputation
management approach i our newer markets, and our
progress towards our 201 8 efficacy commitment

IMAGE REMOVED

Vivienne Cox Chairman of reputation &
responsibility commutiee

The board had a deep dive session exarinng how
Pearson was building and executing a more robust,
proacuve government relattons and reputation
management capability

The board spent time getting afirst-hand look at
blended learning in actuon meeung educators, parents
and learners during a visit to College Park Academy, an
innovative charter school run by our Connections team
in partnership with the University of Maryland's School
of Education

There was an opportunity for the board to engage with
key nauonal opinion leaders, policymakers, reformers
and mnovators i educaton, induding Melody Barnes,
former domesuc policy adviser to President Obama,
and Ted Mirchefl, US Under Secretary of Educaton

Finally, the board heard from the Pearson executive
ream about how our new operaung model was helping
to accelerate our shift 1o digital and services business
across K-12 and higher educanon, foliowed by an update
on the efftcacy rative
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Engagement continued

SHAREHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with shareholders

Pear son has an extensive programme of communication
with all ofits shareholders — targe and small, nsututional
and private

Shareholder outreach In 2014, we continued with our
shareholder outreach programme, seeing approximately
690 institutional and private nvestors at more than 420
differentinstitutions n Australa, Brazl, Brunel, Canada,
Greater China. Conunentat Europe, Japan, Singapore
South Korea, the UK and the US

Trading updates There are five trading updates each year
and the chief executive and chief financial officer present
our preliminary and mterim results updates They also
attend regular meetings throughout the year with
investors in the UK and around the world, talored to
investor requirements, to discuss the performance of
the company, the company’s strategy, our restructunng
programme, structural changes in our markets and nsls
and opportunites for the future

Chatrman meetings The chairman meets regularty with
significant shareholders to understand any issues and
concerns they may have This 1s in accordance with hoth
the Code and the UK Stewardship Code The non-
executive directors meet informally with shareholders
both before and after the AGM and respond to
sharehaclder quenes and requests as necessary The
chairman ensures that the board is kept nformed of
principal mvestors' and adwisers’ views on strategy,

and corporate governance

Consultations Dunng the year we also consulted with our
major sharcholder s and with shareholder representative
bodies on our directors’ 1emuneration policy Read about
Remuneraton on p82 )

Seminars We have an established programme of
educational seminars for our insututional shareholders
focusing on indvidual parts of Pearson These sermunars
are avalable to all shareholders via webcast on

www pearson com €

Private investors represent over B0% of the shareholders
on our register and we make a concerted effort 1o engage
with thern regularly Shareholders who cannot attend the
AGM are invited to email questions to the chairman in
advance at glenmoreno-agm@pearson com ©

We encourage our private shareholders to become
more informed investors and have prowded a wealth of
information on our website about managing Pearson
shareholdings, see www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-informavon html {or further mformation,
or turn to page 212 of this report Ve also encourage all
shareholders, who have not already done so, to register
their email addresses through our website and with our
registrar This enables them to receive email alerts when
trading updates and other important announcements are
added to our website

See addrtional Shareholder informauon on p2(2 @)

AGM

24 Apnil 2015

8 Northumberland Avenue
London England WC2N S5BY

690

insututional and private
investor meetngs i 2014

Qur programme of educauonal
seminars is avalable for
nstitunional nvesiors via
webcast on pearsen com @

IMAGE REMOVED




Share dealing
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{WIDER ENGAGEMENT " -

Engaging with all stakeholders

Due to its continued popularity we again provided
sharehaolders with smaller holdings the opporturity to use
our registrar’s low-cost share dealing service, giving them
the chance to add 1o or1 educe therr stake 1n Pearson at
significantly reduced dealing rates, or to donate shares to
charity with ease This service proved very popular with
shareholders, and consequently we mtend to offer this
service agan at a future date

We beliave it1s important that our employees have a
shared interest.n the direction and achievernents of
Pearson and are pleased to say that alarge number of
our employees are sharehclders in the company

Annual General Meeting

OurAGM, on 24 April 2015 s an opportunity for all
shareholders to meet the board and to hear presentations
about Pearson’s businesses and results

We post all company anncuncements on our website,
Www pEarson cotm, as soon as they are released, and
major shareholder presentations are made accessible
via webcast or conference call Ourwebsie contains a
dedicated wwvestor refations section with an extenssve
archive of past announcements and presentations,
tustorical financial performance share price dataand a
catendar of events It also includes informaton abour all
of aur businesses, links to their websttes and details of
our cot porate responsibility policies and activities

Learn more about our approach to corparate
responsibility i the Social impact section on pd5-56 8

Vistt pearson com for

kwestor eltions infor matiun Shaie prcedata

Campary annoyncements and Calendar of events
shat efiolder prasentatiomns

webGists aw' oonferer ce calle

Informi-ton aoout ow busineswes
anwy their webs tes

Past announcemants

Con parate responsiilbit
and presentabons Con parate responsiill

pelices wrd actraties

Histaneat finanoat performance

IMAGE REMOVED
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Report on directors remuneration

PART, | ~LETTER FROM THE CHARFAN OF THE REMUNERATIO

Chairman

David Arculus
iMAGE REMOVED

Members David Arculus, Elizabeth Corley, Vivienne Cox,
Ken Hyden Josh Lewss and Glen Moreno

The committee believes that
Pearson’s remuneration policy
supports the company’s strategy
to deliver sustained performance
and create long-term value in the
interests of all stakeholders.

Dawvid Arculus Chairman of remuneration commitiee

In this remuneration section

PART | LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN p82

PART 2. REMUNERATION POLICY p85

PART 3 REMUNERATION REPORT p8%

Terms of reference

The commuttee’s full charter and terms of reference
are avatfable on the Governance page of the

company's website at www.pearson com/governance

NCOMMITTEE » 1, 1 0

Introduction

| am pleased to present our report on directors’
remuneration for 2014

The 2014 annual remuneration report will be put forward
for your consideration and approval by adwisory vote at
the Annual General Meeting on 24 April 2015

In accordance with the UK remunerauon reporting
requirements, this report contains

» A summary of the directors’ remuneration policy on p85
The full policy was approved by shareholders at the
Annual General Meetng on 25 April 2014 and can be
found on the Governance page of the company's website
at www pearson com/governance

s The annual remuneration report, on p89-106, describing
all aspects of remuneration practce in 20§14

We believe this report dearly demonstrates the Imke
between our remuneration policy and practice, and the
company’s strategy and performance, as well as our
commitment to shareholder engagement

Principles of remuneration policy

The purpose of the remuneration policy 1s to
support the company’s strategy to deliver sustained
performance and create long-term value in the
mterests of all stakeholders This 1s summarised i
the panel overleaf

We contnue to keep our remunerauon policy under
review in hght of the prevailing socal and economic
condrions and the tmpact of these on the company’s
objectives and strategy




« REMUNERATION POLICY PRINCIPLES -~

i Sustammabihity and affordabidity We seek a careful and
sustainable balance between market competiiveness,
affordability and the long-term interests of the
company and its shareholders, whilst also being
mindfut of pay condiuons elsewhere in the Group and
the wider social and econormic context The process
for setung levels of executive remuneratton 1s robust
and transparent

2 Pay for performance A high proporuon of total
remuneration s delivered as varable pay that s
directly kinked to both short and long-term
performance of the company, through annual
Incentives that reward the achievement of annual
strategic goals and long-term incentives that drive
long-term earnings and share price growth
Performance conditions are sufficently stretching
and recognise indmdual contribution as well as the
company’s financial results

3 Alignment We encourage executives to acqLire

and hold Pearson shares in line with shareholders’ -
interests Long-term mcentives reward the
achievement of sustainable, long-term value creaton
that will be benefical to shareholders We actvely

seek feedback from shareholders on all aspects of
executive remuneration

Remuneratton supporung strategy

Pearson's executive remuneraucn arrangements
were reviewad last year 1o align with and support the
company’s new strategy Executive remuneration
decistons have been made after consultatron with
shareholders, careful consideration of the needs of the
business, the transformation and reorganisation of the
company, changes in roles and responsibilities the pay
markets s which Pearson operates and pay elsewhere
i the organisauon

Pearson's strategy informs our remuneraton phitosophy
and pokicy and complements our more tradiwonal financal
goals, which are to achieve sustainable growth onthree
key measures (earnings, cash, and return oninvested
capital) and to deliver reliable cash returns to our
investors through hedlthy and growing divdends

Secuon 4 CGover pange 83

Ve believe those are, n concert, good ndicators that
we are bulding the long-term value of Pearson These
measures (or others that contribute to them) therefore
form the bass of our annual budgets and strategic plans
and the basis for annual and long-term incentives

What we did in 2014

We consulted with our majar shareholders and with
shareholder representatives on the directors’
remuneration policy prior to its publicauon However,
following publication a number of shareholders expressed
concern that the policy allowed the committee to
exercise discretion to approve remuneraton elements
outstde of the normalinuts m exceptional and unforeseen
arcumstances In response to this, prior to the Annual
General Meeting, on 9 April 2014, and following further
consultation, we issued a RINS statement to clarify the
basts on which certan elerments of the policy would

apply and, in parucular, to define and imit when and how
remuneration arrangements outside the normal terms

of the policy might be applied The policy was approved
at the Annual General Meeting on 25 Apri 2014

Performance in 2014 at a glance

In 2014, despite continuing challenging market
condiions, we had a good compeutive performance
Qverall, we saw.

» Growth n sales of 2% and in adjusted operating profit
of 5% at constant exchange rates

» An increase in our dvdend of 6% which was Pearson's
23rd straight year of increassng our dvidend above the
rate of inflanon

Over the past ten years we have increased our dividend
at acompound annual rate of 7%, returning £2 9on
to shareholders

Remuneration n 2014 at a glance

Base salary +2%
Allowances and benefits Mo change in arrangements
from 2013

Retirement benefits
Annual incenuves
Long-term incentives

Pay-out below target

Nil vesung

Note This reflects changes toremuneranon for the chue{ executive and the
cheffinancial officer notfor the rest of the Pearsan execunve
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Looking back to some speafic aspects of policy
and pracucen 2014

> We established maximum opportunites for each
element of remuneration

» We changed the weghung of the performance metrics
under the Pearson long-term incentive plan from one-
third on each measure to half on earnings per share
growth, one-third (no change) on return on invested
capital and one-sixth on relauve total shareholder return

» We introduced a mandatory restriction on participants’
ability to dispose of the 75% of vested long-term incenuve
shares that are released after three years (other than to
meet personal tax liability) for a further two years and
for the remaining 25% of vested shares to be subject to
continuing employment over the same period

> We increased the mandatory shareholding guidelines to
300% of salary for the CEC and 200% of salary for other
executive directors

» These shareholding guidelines wes e also extended to
other members of the Pearson executive at 100%
of salary

» We clarified the arrangements for malus and
strengthened the clawback provisions

» The annual bonus share matching plan was ceased
The last award under this plan will vest or not, subject
to performance, during 2016

> Wa undertook a regular periodic review of base salaries
for 2014 taking into account general economic and
market condiuons, the level of ncreases made across
the company as a whote, the remuneratuon of executives
n similar positions in comparable companies, and
individual performance

» Annual mcentives paid to executives for 2014 were
below target, as they were in 2013, reflecting below
target performance in a tough trading environment

» There was the second consecutive nil pay-out on long-
term incentrves, reflecung below threshold per formance
for 20{4 against the company's three-year targets for
earnings per share growth, return on invested capital
and relavve totaf shareholder return

» To Increase alignment with shareholder interests and
the fong-term growth of the company, we reviewed the
operation of the long-term incentive plan for the semor
leadershup population below the Pearson executive

PART I LETTER FROM THE CHAIRMAN OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

For 2014 and beyond, awards for this g oup of employees
will be subject 1o performance based on an earrungs
per share growth target

What we've planned for 2015
tooking forward, for 2015

» We will contmue to operate directors’ remuneration
in line with the approved remuneration polhicy and
anticipate putting the policy to shareholder vote next
at the 2017 Annual General Meeting

» As approved in the 2013 directors’ remuneration
report, for performance-related long-term incentive
awards for 2015 and onwards, the averaging penod for
the calculavon of relauve total shareholder return will
be moved to the period runming up to the year end and
the length of the averaging pertod will be increased to
three months

» On long-term incentives, we have reduced the
proparuon of the maximum award that vests for
threshold performance from 30% to 25% in line with
institutional investors' preferences

» Based an our guidance for 2015, we will face a challenge
in defivering a pay-out under the long-term mcentive
plan award for 2013

The committee welcomes the posiuve engagement with
shareholders on our approach to this year's report on
directors’ remuneration and, spectfically, on the issue of
the vote against our annual remuneration report at the
2013 Annuai General Meeting

The commuttee 1s cormmitted to an ongoing dizlogue
with shareholders regarding executive remuneration
and would therefore welcome any observauons or
questons that individual shareholders may wish to raise

| would like to thank my feflow members of the
commuttee and the people who have assisted us for
thewr contnbution over the past year

Finally, as ! step down from the board and from channg
the commuttee, t look forward to handing over the reins
to my successor, Ehzabeth Corley

Yours sincerely,

IMAGE REMOVED

David Arculus Chanrman of the remuneration committee




tntroduction to summary of remuneration policy

The company's policy on di ectors’ remuneration was
approved by shareholders at the Annuaf General Meeting
on 25 Aprd 2014 We issued an RNS statement of further
information on the remunerauon policy on 9 Aprit 2014,
to clarify the use of the committee's discretion over
certain elements of remuneraton in exceptional
circumstances

To help shareholders understand the context of
remuneraunon practce reported m the annual
remuneration report that follows, and specificaily the
lrnues applied to directors’ remuneration, we have
inciuded below some key pomnts and a summary of
perunent sectrons of the remuneraton pohcy for
informaton only For further detall, please refer to the
full remuneration policy and the clarification statement
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWW pearson com/governance

Scaope of policy
The pohicy apphes to executve directors, the chairman
and non-executive directors

Reference is also made to the remunerabon pohcy for
other members of the Pearson executive (currently

12 1n number) who are not dwectors but who fal within
the committee’s remit

Duration of policy

The policy took effect on 25 April 2014 and 1s expected to
last untd the next binding vote on our remuneration pohicy
which at pr esent 1s planned for the 2017 AGM

Use of discretton

The committee has avoided, where possible, mcluding
general discrevuons in the pohicy table However,
exceptional or genunely unforeseen arcumstances may
anse in the future and m those arcumstances it may be
w1 shareholders’ interests for Pear son to put in place
remuneraton arrangements that are outside the terms
of the policy If thus happens, the committee will be
permitted to implement remuneration arrangements that
it considers appropriate in the arcumstances Inthese
circurnstances, Pearson would consult n advance with
major shareholders before T does so and would explain
the exercise of this discretion o the following year's
directors’ remuneration report

As clarified in the RNS statement of further informaton
on the remuneration policy on 9 April 2014 this discretion
would only be used in the very narrow aircumstances

Secton 4 Go e mance 85

aruculated i the policy - that s, in exceptional or
genunely unforeseen arcurnstances The commuttee
ronsiders that these crcumstances woutd arise hughly
infrequendy, ifat all, in the hfetime of the policy The
committee would regard reltance on this discretion as a
rmatter of utmost seriousness and, inrelation to our stated
obligation to consult in advance with major shareholders,
would not proceed unless there was clear consensus in
favour among those consulted Further, the commuttee
would ensure that the value of the remuneration
arrangement puttn place In reltance on this discretion
would fall within the normal limut (as stated in the poticy)
for the element of remuneration to which the
arrangement relates

As part of the approved palicy, the committee also has
discreuon to award base salary increases allowances and
benefits, and long-term incentive plan awards in excess of
the normal maximum limits to current or newy directors
As clarified in the RNS statement, this discretion will
only be exeraised in excepuonal arcumstances other
than in the case of increases n the cost of benefits that
are outstde Pearson's control and changes in benefit
providers Again, Pearson would consule with major
shareholders before exeraising any such discretion and
such exercse would be brvuted by reference to the
safeguards described above, induding only proceeding
where there was dear consensus in favour among those
consulted Inthese arcumstances, the commuttee would
ensure that the masximum value of the remuneration
arrangement put in place in relance on this discretion did
not exceed a margin of 25% over the normal maximum
himit for the element in question (as stated in the policy)

Legacy arrangements

Given the long-term nature of some of Pearson's
remuneratian structures — including obhigations under
service contracts, incenuve plans and pension
arrangements — a number of pre-existing obligatons
remamned in place at the ume that the new policy became
effective, including obligations that are ‘grandfathered’ by
virtue of beng in force at 27 June 20{2 Pearson’s policy 1s
to honour all pre-existung obliganons, comnitments or
otherenttlements that were entered mto before the
effecuve date of this policy

Summary of remuneration policy table

For more nformanion on how remuneration is operated,
please refer to the full remuneranon policy on the
Governance page of the company’s website at

WWww pearson com/governance
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

2 - SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

Eiernent of
remuneration  Purpose and hnk to strategy

Perfarmance conditlans

MNormal fmne

Exceptienal i as clanfied n RINS
stacement of  Apnl 2014

Helps teateciut rewird and
retain

Reflects compeusve marker
fevel role skifls expenence
and indrvidual contnbotion

Base salary

Help o recruitand retam
Refiect the local compeuuve
mar ket

Allowznces
and benefits

Retirement Melpto recruinzand retamn
benefits Recognise long term
communent

Anpual Motvate achievernent of
MCentves annual strategic goals
Focus on key
finangal merrics
Reward indmadual
contribunion

Helste recruit 1 eward
and retdin

Drive long-term earnings
share price growthand
value creadon, ind akgn
nterests of execunves
and sharehalders
Encouragejong term
shareholding and
commitment to company
Link management s long
term reward and weakh
to corporzte performance
n a flexable way

Long-term
neenuves

Neone although performance of both
the company and the idividual are
taken into dccount when detes mining
anappropriate level of base salary
increase cach year

None

None

The commuttee has the discretionto
select the performance measures
targets and reflatve weightmgs from
year e yenr

Funded by Pearson global annuat
finanaal resylts and wesghred

60% on adjusted carnings per share
20% ensales

20% on operaung cashflow
Pay-outs tabe into account indimdual
performance aganst personal objectves

The committee will determine the
performance measures weightngs
and targets governing an award of
resonicted shares preor Lo gram to
ensure contimaing thgnment with
strategy and to ensure the targets
are sufficenty stretchng

Avvards vest subject to the following
perfarmance condicns one halfon
earnings per share growth one third
on return oninvested capital (ROIC)
one-sixth on relatrve total shareholder
return (TSR)

Performance tested over three years

Base salary were isesare
not ordinarly mere than
10% per annum

Total value notordinarly m excess
of 15% of base salary i any year

As set out inapproved
remunerauon policy

Overallimie 200% of base salary
2015 masximum opporiunity «§
180% for the chvel executve and
no more than [70% for other
execuntve directors and members
of the Pearsenexecuuve

Massmumface value of 400% of
base salary

Other than in excepuonal
circumstances On recrunment,

1t thee company s normal policy
not 1o award restricted shares 1o
executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive
without performance condaions

Up to 25% aver normal bt i
speaf ndmdud stuanens including
mterral promotions and matenal
duanges wo the busmess or the role

Up o 25% over normal imibm
speafic mdvidual s wanens including
changes n indaadual orcunmstances
such as health status and changes
inthe role such as refocation

In excess of 25% aver normal bpu
1+ the case of mereases in the cost
of benefus that are outsude of
Pearson s control and changes

n benefit prowders

MNone

NUI‘IG

Lp w 25% over normal limit in
exceptional arcumsiances for
example forretenuon purposes
or to reflect paruaudar business
swatons The discreton o
award resincted shares vathout
performance condons to exXeculve
dereriors wil notbe used other
than where L6 3pproprate 1o
COMPENSATE § newy director ona
“ike for hie bass for intennves
foregone ata previous employer

Toral sharehotder 1 eturn (TSR) s the roturn to shareholders from any grawth u, Pet san s share price wnd reinvested dividends over the performance peried
For long-term incentive awards TSR 1s meacured relatve to the constituents of the FT5E World Media Index over a three-year peniod Companies thar drop
out of the Index are normally excluded 1e anly comparies in the index for the enure penod are counted Share price is averaged over thiee maonths at the
startand end of the performnces petiod Dividends are treated as reinvested an the ex-dividend daie i ing with the Datastream methodology The vesting of
sha os based on relatve TSR 15 subject 10 the commuttee sausfying itself that the recorded T5R is a genune reflaction of the underfying finarcul performance

of the business

Return onnvested capital (ROIC) 15 adjusted operating profitiess cash tax expressed as a percentage of gross invesied capual {net operat ng assets plus

gross goodwil

Adjusted earnings per share (EPS) 1. calcutated by dviding the adjusted earnings atmbutable to equity sharcholders of the company by the weighted

average number of ordinary siares missue during the year excluding any ardinary shares purchased by the company and beld i oruse {see nore 8 of the financial
statements for a detalled descripuon of adjusted earmings per share) EPS growthis calculated using the pomt-to-pomt method This method compares

the adjusted FPS inthe company s accotnts for the financial year ended prior Lo the giant date with the adustad EPS for the financial year ending three years
later and caleulates the imptic compound antwal growth Late over the period




Non-executive directors and chairman

Seetion 4 Governaree a7

Pay and performance scenario analysis

Non-executive director remuneraton has been
designed to attract and retain tugh calibre individuals,
with appropnate experience or industry relevant skills,
by offering market compeutive fee levels

The structure of non-executive director s' fees with effect
from | May 20{41s as follows

Direcror Fee
Non-executive director £70,000
Charmanship of audit committee £27,500

Charmanship of remuneration commuttee £22,000

Chairmanship of reputation &

responsibility commuittee £10,000
Membership of audit committee £15,000
Membership of remuneration committee £10,000

Membership of reputation &
responsibiity committee £5,000

Sentor independent directar £22,0600

The total fees payable to the non-executve directors are
subject to the imit set out in the arucles of assocation

of the company (currently £750,000) and are increased
by ordinary resolution from time 1o time

The chairman's fees remam unchanged at £500,000
peryear

For more information on non-executive directors’
remuneration, please refer to the full remuneration policy
on the Governance page of the company’s website at
WWW pearson com/governance

The remuneration policy approved by shareholder s m
2014 required a scenario chart in the format set out
below for 2014 remuneration Although not required,
the company has updated the scenario char ts below so
as to apply to 2015 remuneration

Consistent with its policy, the commuttee places
considerable emphasis on the performance-linked
elements,1 e annual and long-term mcentives

The chart below shows what each director could expect
to recewve in 2015 under different performance scenarios,
based on the following defimtions of performance

Performance scenano Elements of remuneratien and 1ssumpnions

2015 base safary, allowances,
benefits, and reurement benefics at
the same percentage of base salary
as in 2014, maximum individual
annual incenuve as per policy,
maximum value of 2014 long-term
incentive award

Maximum

Target 2015 base salary, allowances,
benefits and retrement benefits at
the same percentage of base salary
as m 2014, target indmdual annual
incentive as per policy, target value
of 2014 long-term incentive award
(Towers Watson's ndependent
assessment of the expected value
of the award, 1 e the net present
value taking into account afl
the conditions)

Mirmum 2015 base salary, allowances
benefits, and rearement benefits
at the same percentage of base
salary asin 2014, no annual or

fong-term incentives

Norte The value of long-term mcentves does nottake snto account
devictend awards that are payable on the release of resuicied shares
nor any cR2nges io share price

Or this basis, the refative weighung of fixed and
performance refated remuneration and the absolute
size of the remuneration packages for the chief executive
and the chief financal officer (as represented by the
current incumbent) a e as follows on the next page
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

— SUMMARY OF REMUNERATION POLICY

{MAGE REMOVED

IMAGE REMOVED

We will continue to review the mix of fixed and
performance-lnked remuneration on an annual basis,
consistent with our overall policy

Recruitment

The commitiee expects any new executive directors
10 be engaged on the same terms and to be awarded
vartable remuneration within the same normal imits
and subject to the same conditions as for the cunrent
executve directors outhned in the policy As danfied
n the RNS statement of further information on the
remuneration policy on 9 Aprit 2014, this apphes other
than in the arcumstances set out below wherestis
appropnate to take account of the terms of the new
directors’ existing employment and/or therr personal
crcumstarces

The committee recognises that it cannot atways
predict accurately the circumstances in which any

new directors may be recruted The cammittee may
determine thatitis in the interests of the company

and shareholders to secure the services ofa

partcular indvidual which may require the committee
1o take account of the terms of that individual’s existing
employment and/or thewr personal arcumstances
Examples of arcumstances in which the committee
expects it might need to do this are outhned m full in the
remuneration pohicy on the Governance page of the
company’s website at www peat son com/governance

It hight of the various fegacy pension arrangements
enjoyed by the ncumbent executive directors, n
determming the penston arrangements for any new
recruit, the committee expects to offer a defined

conenbuuen arrangement with campany contributions
not exceeding those set n our approved policy on

the Governance page of the company's website at

wwhw pearson corm/governance but would have regard
for the recrutt s existing arrangements, the market norms
in the home country and the existng pension vehicles
available within the company

{n making any decision on any aspect of the remuneration
package fora new recruit, the commuttee would balance
shareholder expectations, current best practice and the
requirements of any new recruit and would strive not to
pay more than is necessary to achieve the recrurtment
The comnittee would gve full details of the terms of

the package of any new recruitin the next annual
remuneration report

Pearson expects any new chairman or nan-executive
director to be engaged on terms that are consistent

with the general remuneration principles outlined in the
relevant sections of this policy However, in the case of
the chairman the committee may cansider it appropriate
to offer a remuneraton package that differs from that of
the existing Incumbent if that s necessary to attract the
most capable candidate or to reflect the individual's
expected duties

Further informaton on remunerauon policy

For further information on the following aspects of the
remuneration policy, please refer to the full remuneraton
pohcy and the RNS statement of further information

on the remuneration policy on @ Aprd 2014 on the
Governance page of the comparny's website at

www pearson com/governance

» Selection of perfarmance measures and target setting

» Legacy arrangements under the annual bonus share
matching plan

»y Remuneration policy for other employees

» Service contracts ang terminanon provisions

» Employment condittons elsewhere in the company
» Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

» Shareholder views
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'PART 3— ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT - .

Annual remuneration report

Thus report comprises of a number of sections

The remunerauon committee presents the annual
remuneration report, which will be put 1o shareholders
as an advisory {non-binding) vote at the Annual General
Meetng to be held on 24 Apri 2015

Remuneraton compliance

This report was compiled in accordance with Schedule 8
of the Large and Medium-sized Companies and Groups
{Accounts and Reports) (Amendment) Regulauons
2013 and was approved by the board of directors on

9 March 2015

The committee believes that the company has complied
with the provisions regarding remuneration matters
comained within the UK Corporate Governance Code

Where required under current regulatons, the tables
marked *audit have been subject to audi

The remuneration commuttee and its
acuvities on page 90 to 93

Voting outcome at 2014 Annual General

Meeung on page 94

Single figure of total remuneration and

prior year comparison on page 95 *audit
Remuneration paid to the charman and

non-executive directors on page 96 *audit
Retirement benefits on page 96 Taudit
Annual incentive on page 97 “audit
Long-term incenuves on page %8 Yaudit
Movements in directors’ interests in share

awards on page 99 *audit
Movements in directors’ interests in share

options on page {00 *audit
Payments to former directors on page (00 *audit
Payments for loss of office on page 101 *audit

interests of directors and value of
shareholdings on page 102 “audit

Executive directors’ non-executive
directorships on page 102

Historical performance and remuneration
on page 103

Comparauve nformation on page 104

Information on changes to remuneration
for 2015 on page 104 and 105
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Report on directors’ remuneration conunued

PART 3 < ANNUAUREMUNERATION REPORT

The remuneration committee and its activities

Composition

Chawrman  Dawid Arculus

Independent non-executive
director

Members Elrzabeth Corley
Vivienne Cox
KenHydon
joshlews

Glen Moreno

Internat  john Falton

adwvisers Robsn Freestone
Meiinda Wolfe
Robert Head
Stephen Jones

External
adwisers Towers Watson

Independent non-executive
directot s

Chairman of the board
Chief executive
Chuef financial officer

Chief human resources
officer

VP, executive reward &
global share plans

SVP company secretarial

Glen Morena 15 a member of the commuttee as permitted
under the UK Corporate Governance Code

Internal advisers provided matertal assistance to the
commuttee dunng the year They attended meetings of
the committee, although none of them was mvolved in
any deasions relating to his or her own remuneration

To ensure that the committee recesves mdependent
advice, Towers Watson supplies survey data and advises
on market trends, long-term mcentives and other general
remuneration matters Towers YVatson was selected
and appomnted by the comimitree through a formal
tendering process Towers Watson also advised the
company on health and welfare benefits in the US and

provided consufung advice directly to certain Pearson
operating companies Towers Watson s a member of
the Remuneravon Consultants Group, the bady which
oversees the Code of Conductin relation to executive
1emunerauon consulung in the UK

During the year, Towers Watson was pad fees for advice
to the committee, which were charged on a ime spent
basts, of £95,100 As part of s annuat review of its
performance and effecuveness, the committee remains
satisfied that Towers Watson's advice was objective and
independent and that Towers Watson's provision of other
services In no way comprorruses its independence

Commuttee performance

Annually, the committee reviews its own performance,
consutution, and charter and terms of reference to
ensure It s operating ai maximum effecuveness and
recommends any changes it considai s necessary to

the board for approval

The committee participated In a survey to review its
performance and effectiveness in July 2014, looking at
areas such as the clarity of roles and responsibifities, the
cormpostuon of the committee, the use of tme, the quality
and umetiness of meeting materials, the opportunity for
discussion and debate, dialogue with management and
access to independent advice

The committee concluded that tis operating effectively
and noted the challenges for the year ahead

The commities and its members were subject toa
formal third-party external evaluation by JCA Group
of the board, its committees and individuat directors’
performance which was completed at the end of 2014




The comnuttee’s principal duties ase to

1 Deternune and review policy Drter mine and
regu arly review thae Femu e ation poicy for the
execuuve di ectors, the pr esdents of the prncipal
geographic mar ke ts and Lines of Business and odar
mermbers of the Peal son executive wio teport
directy to the CEO (execuve managemicnt)

This pohcy includes base selary annual and long-
LErIINCEnEVEs PENSon arrangerents any other
benefits and terminaton of emplayment

2 Review and approve implementauon Regutarly
teviews the unplementaton and operaton

of the remuneration policy for executve rranagzement
and approve the mdimagual t erineraton ard benefits
pckages of the exccutive du ocicr s

3 Approve performance related plans Approve the
dewzo of, and deter mine targets for any performance-
redar~d pay plars opei ated by the company and
approve the total payments to be made under

such plars

4 Review long-term plans Rewow the design i the
company s long term mcentive and other shar e plans
for approval by he board and shareholders

5 Set terrunation arrangements Advise and
decide an pereral and speafic arrangements

in connacton with the torminagon of employment
of expcutive dit 0CtorS

6 Review targets Review and approve co porate
goals and objecuves refevant to CEO remuneratien
and evaluate the CEQ's performance s hight of
those goals and objectives

7 Determine chairman's remuneration Have
delegated responsibuty for deter runing the
remunierauon and benefits package of the chairman
of the board

8 Appoint remunerauon consultants Appoin: and
set the terms of engagement. o any revimersyon
consuitants who advise the committee nd maom or
the cost of such adwice

Section 4 Ger wrrance 9|
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Report on directors' remuneration continued

" PART 3 — ANNUAL REMUNER ATIORN REPORT

Meetngs, activities and decisions in 2014
The remunet auon committee met four tnes during 2014, as described below

19 and 20 February

2014

MARKET

GOVERNAMNCE

23 April

2014

IMPLEMENTATION

Noted Towers Watson s overview of the
current remuneration environment and
2013/2014 marker daia

PERFORMANCE

Noted management s overview of 2013
and 2014 performance and plans

IMPLEMENTATION

Rewviewed and appr oved the 2013 anpual
incentive pay-out and 2014 remuneration
package for John Falion

Reviewed chairman's remuneration which
remained unchanged

Reviewed and approved 2013 annual
Incentive plan pay outs

Reviewed and approved provisional 2011
long-term incentve plan pay-outs (pending
confirmation of TSR performance)

Approved vesung of 2011 annual bonus
shara matching awards and release of shares

Noted the acuwity of the standing

commitiee of the board n refanon
to the operation of the company's
equity-based reward programmes

Noted company's use of equity for
cmployee share plans

POLICY

Reviewed and approved 2013 directors
remunerayon report

Reviewed and approved Increases
in base salares for 2014 for the
Pearson exccutive

Rewiewed and approved 2014 Pearson
annual incentive plan targets

Reviewed and approved 2014 ndividual
annual incentve opportuniues for the
Pearson executtve

Reviewed long termncentive awards
and associated performance coaditions
for the Pearson executive

Reviewed and noted total remuneration
for members of the Pearson execuuve
for 2013 and 2014

Confirmed nil pay-out under 201! long-
termncentve plan

Rewviewed and approved 2014 long-
term Incentive awards and associated
performance conditions for the
Pearson executive

GOVERNANCE

Reviewed and approved amendments
to plan rules for the worldwide save for
shares and long termincenuve plans

POLICY

Considered approach 1o 2014 long term
incentive awards for senior leaders and
managers below the Pearson executive

DISCLOSURE

Noted shareholder feedback on 2013
diractors’ remuneration report and
RNS statement of ful ther informauon
on the remuneration policy

REMUNERATION INACTION . o '

Shareholding
by executives
supporting
performance
and strategy

Following consultation on our
remuneraton policy approved

by shareholders mn 2014, we
introduced two arrangements
designed to encourage shareholding
by executives and support
performance and strategy

First, under the long-terrm ncentive
plan, we introduced a mandatory
restnction on participants abifity to
dispose of the 75% of shares that vest
based on performance after three

years (other than to meet personal
tax habiines) for a further two years
Furthermore, participants’ rights to
the release of the remaiing 25%

of the vested shares is subject to
conunued employment over the
same perod

Secondly, we increased our
mandatory shareholding guidelnes
to 300% of salary for the CEO and
2007 of salary for other executive
directors These shareholding




PERFORMAMNCE

Secuon 4 G erpanca

4 December
2014

MARKET

93

IMPLEMENTATION

Noted management s overview of
2014 performance

GOVERNANCL

Reviewed the committee s charter and
terms of reference

Reviewed the committee’s performance

POLICY

MNoted update on 2014 long termincentive
awards for semor leaders and managers
below the Pearson executve

STAKEHOLDERS
Reviewed 20[4 Annual Gener al

Meeung season, shareholder voting
and engagement strategy

guidehnes have also been extended
to other members of the Pearson
execuuve at 100% of satary

Together, these arrangements clearfy
demonstrate the commitment to
sustained performance and long-
term value creauon and ahgnment
with shareholders’ interests

MNoted update to remuneratuon aspects
ofthe UK Corporate Governance Code
and principles of remunerauon of the
Investment Management Associanon

PERFORMANCE

Noted management’s overview of
2014 performance

Noted and reviewed the status of the
outstanding long term incentive awards
based on the current view of likely Pearson
financial performance

DISCLOSURE

Mated template and oudine of 2014
report ondirectors’ remuneration and
considered shareholder engagement
strategy

Nated remuneration package fer new
appointment o the Pearson execunve,
effective | January 2015

Noted exit arrangememts for a member
of the Pearson executive

Reviewed operation of the 2014 anaual
incentive plan particularly with regard 1o
the Pearson executve

Noted 2014 long term ncentive awards
for senior teaders and managers below
Pearsot executive

Considered mattes of fosmer CEQ's
double taxation i the US and UK and
related 1ssues

“Shareholding by senior executives
demonstrates commitment to sustained
performance and long-term value creation
and alignment with shareholders’ interests.”

David Arculus Chait man of the remuneraton committee
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

s PART 3~ ANINUAL REMUNERATION RERORT .«

Voung outcome at 2014 Annual General Meeung

The following table summarises the details of votes cast in respect of the resolutions on the report on directors’
remuneration at the 2014 Annual General Meeung

Report Vaies for Votes agunst Total vores cast Votes withheld {abstentions)

Remuneration policy 517.308,446 22,905,879 540,214,325 6,004,233
95 76% of votes cast 4 24% of votes cast 65 96% of issued
share capital

Annual remuneraton 349,696,505 181,521,643 531,218,148 15,000.416
report 65 83% of votes cast 34 {7% of votescast 64 B6% of issued
share capital

The committee took this significant vote against the 2013 annual remuneration report very seriously and considered the
voting result and shareholder engagement strategy at their Aprd, july and December 2014 meeungs

The primary reason for the vote against was clear investors’ objection to the commuttee exercising its discretion to allow
a portion of Rona Fairhead's 2011 LTIP award to vest without reference to performance The commuttee acknowledges
that the approved remuneration policy provides a comprehensive remuneraton framework with clear imits and

as a result issues of a similar nature will not arise in the future

We consuited on this vating outcome and this disclosure in the 2014 annual remuneraton report with our major
shareholders and shareholder representative bodies, who wet e broadly sausfied with both the process for engagement

and the explanation given

As 1n previous years and as required by faw, details of the voung on alf resolutions at the 2015 Annuat General Meeting
waill be announced via the RNS and posted on the Pearson website following the Annual General Meeung
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Single total figure of remuneration and prior year comparison §

Total aggregate emoluments for executive and non-executive directors were £4,206min 2014 These emofuments are é

included with total employee benefit expense m note 5 to the finanaal statements {page {41) i

Executive directors

The remuneration 1 eceved by executive directors in respect of the financral years ending 31 December 2014 and

3i December 2013 15 set out below

Executive director remuneraton

Element of remunertion John Fallon Robin Freestone . Tortal o

£000s 204 2013 2014 2003 2014 2013 S

Base salary 764 750 553 545 1314 1,295 =

Allowances and benefits 83 43 i5 t4 98 57 §
Travel 50 {5 12 12 62 7
Healthcare 2 3 2 2 4 s A
Risk 31 25 I - 32 25

Annual incentives 692 463 365 34 1,057 BO4
Percentage of maximum (%) 5% 34% 39% 37% - -
Percentage of target (%) 1% 62% 78% 74% - - —_—
Percentage of salary (%) N% 62% 66% 63% - - 2

Long-term incentives 74 141 63 18 (37 m2 2
LTiP - - - ~ - - ;:’
ABSMP - - - - - - z
Dividend equivalents 74 {41 63 181 137 322 r:}:

Retirement benefits 285 330 166 163 451 493 -
Defined contribution cost - - 23 22 23 22
Defined benefitaccrual 87 135 - - 87 {35
Allowances in ieu of benefits 198 195 143 t4! 341 336

Total remuneration

Sigle total figure of remunerawon fnaccordance wath the regulations we show
a single total figure of tenuineranon which mcludes resrement benefits and
long termincentivesin addimon to the other alemerts ef remunerauen that
have been shown In previous reports

Base salary In accordance with policy the committee considered a report from
the cnief executive and chref human resources officer on general pay trends
inthe mirket and the lovel of pis o eases across the company asawhaole

Tor 2014 the company had reaerated ts starung principles that base
compensauon prowdes the approprate rate of1emuneravan for the job
aking inio account refevant recrustment inarkets busingss sectors and
geographic regions and thet toist remuncrauoen should rewar d both shorcand
tang 1em resufts deliver ing competitive rewards for target performance, but
tegher rewards for excepuional company performance Forthe USznd UK the
budget guide'me ssued atthe end of September 2013 for adjustments 1o base
Py for 2044 veas 3% alehough business urwes with an April review date aperated
o a 2% salary ncrease poot Localin‘latken rates and mrket condibons were
tabenmio accowne i parueular markets

Allowances and benefits Travel benefits comprise campany car caralfowance
and private use of a driver Health benefits comprise healthcare  helth
assessment.nd gymsubsidy Risk benefits comprise additional ife cover

and long-term disabilty msurance fn additon to the above benedis and
allowances execuuve v ector may also partcpate n company benefit

or policy arrangements that have na taxable value

The increase in wrave benefits for john Fallon s avinburable to the first full-year
of reporting of hus private use of a drwer based on the benefit in-land charge
forthe 201372014 vix year

| oos BRI i BERYEE o7 HEREN

Anaualmrentive For more detal see table on page 97 Annuakincenoves for
the directors are funded by Pearson global annual financaf results and pay-outs
take nto account indrvidual performance against personat objecoives

Long termincenuves The single figure of remunerauon for 2014 mcludes ail
iong termincenuve iwards that were subject to 2 performance condition
where the perlermance perigdended or was substantiaily foutnot fully)
completed at 31 December 2C14, and awards where the performince
condivon has been sausfied but where the refease of shares is subject iva
further holding perred The same methadology has been applied for the single
figure of remuneration for 2013

tn 2014 the performance condiions for the 2002 LTIP and 2012 ABSMP were
not met 5o there s pothing torepart in the single fgure of remuneration for
014 The e ecutvedirrctors both held vested shares under the 2009 (TP
shatwere released on 1 Aprd 2014 at the end of the two yearholding pennd
ng these shar es ~vere par L of the single hgure ofiemuneraton for 7082 as
reported wnthe 2012 report on direcors remuner ston However the
diwdend egquivalent shar es that were awarded and released on | Aprd 2014
have been mciuded in the single figure of remune avondor 2084 asbelow

Daze of
award Number Share price
Direcrot and release of shares Value on release
John Falion | Apr 14 7054 £73 644 { (44 Op
Robin Freesione [ Apr 14 6046 £63 120 1,644 0p

Reurement berefits For more detall seetableon page 26
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Chairman and non-execuuve director remuneration
The remuneration paid to the chairman and non-executive directors i respect of the financial years ending
31 December 2014 and 3| December 2013 1s as follows

2014 2013
Director Sahryl  Commwctee  Committee Taxable Saary/  Commiee  Committce Taxable
£000s basicfee chalrmanship memmbersblp  SID  benefits  Tawal  bascfee charmansthip merrbershp  SID benefis  Toul
Glen Moreno 500 - - - - 500 500 - - - ~ 500
Dawvid Arculus 68 24 4 - 2 05 65 20 o - 9%
Elizabeth Corley
(appointed
| May 2014) 47 - 4 - | 52 - - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 68 7 22 21 & {24 65 - 15 20 5 105
Ken Hydon &8 27 8 - 8 il 65 25 5 - 5 100
Josh Lew:s 68 - 8 - 9 85 65 - 3 - g 87
Linda Lonmer 68 - 17 - 8 93 33 - - - 3 36
Harish Manwant 68 - 4 - 7 79 16 - - - I 17
Total 955 55 77 2 41 1,149 809 45 43 20 24 941

Note Taxable benefirs refer to travel accommodanan and subsistence expenses mcurred while anending board meetings durng 2014 that were pud or reimbursed
by the company which are deemed by HMRC o betaxable inthe UK Theamountsin the table abave intude the grosted up cost of UK taxto be pard by the
company on behatl of the directors: Total remuneranon for 2043 1s re-stated wo melude these taxatie expenses The company has made a valuntry disclosure to
HMRC 1o setsle the tax lability for taxable expenses m prior tax years

Retrrement benefits

Details of the directors’ pension entifernents and pension related benefits during the year are as follows

Value of QOther punsfon

Accrued  defined benefic casts to the Qrher
Normal  pensionat pensronover  companyover  aflowancesin  Tatalannual
retirement 31 Dec 14 the period the perrod  hiu of pension  value in 2014
Diwector Plans age £000 £000% coog™ €000 £0005
John Pearson Group Pension Plan Accrual
Falton rate of 1/30th of penstonable salary
per annum Taxable and non-
penstonable cash supplement 62 807 B67 - 1977 2844
Robin Money Purchase 2003 section of the
Freestone Pearson Group Pension Plan Taxable
and non-pensionable cash supplement 62 - - 226 1434 1660

Mote | The accrued pension at 3t Decembar 2084 15 the deferred pensian to which the meimber would be enitled on ceasing penstonible service on 3 December
2014 Forjohn Fallonit relates to the penson pazable from the UX plan Rabin Freestene does nat aceruedefined benefitg

Note 2 This column compses the ncrease u the dweeton 8 acorued pension oves the penod {net of mflanon} moluphied by 20 andfrom which the drectors
comnbutions are deducted

Note 3 This colurmn enmpnses contnbutions to defimed contnbution arrangerents for UK benefics
Note 4 This column rap esents tha c1sh aftowances pard inliev of the previous FURBS arrangements for John Faflon and Robin {1 eestone
Mot $ Torl annuat vaiue 1s the sum of the previous threa cofumns.

Note 6 There ar¢ no addironal bunefits or special arvangements under the reuremant plans for directors who retire before thew normal retirement date
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Annual incentive pay-out in 2014

For 2014, annual mcentves were funded by Pearson global annual financial results based on the perfor mance measures
set out below individual pay-outs take into account performance aganst personal objectives Actual per forinance aganst
the financial targets for 2014 was as follows

Actuat Pay-out

Threshold Target Maximum  performance in 2014

Measuras Weighting for 2014 for 2014 for 2014 n20i4  (Xoftarged)
Group EPS (p) 60% 570 682 795 667 86%
Group sales (Em) 20% 4695 4995 5,295 4,883 63%
Operaung cash flow (£m) 20% 5655 6786 7917 6489 74%
Total 100% 79%

Ncte | Pearson s reported tinanaal resu'ts for the refevait period were used to measur e perfarmance

WNote 2 The annual ncentsve plan s desgned 1o incentvise 19d «ew rdunderfyng pecformance excld ng the effect of for eign exchinge and portfolic changes
[acquisiens end disposais) and niher factos s that the commitee considers relevant in the performance year Targets thresho'ds and maxima are espressed at
2014 actual exchange rates (£ $1 6488) The rargets, thresholds and mavima were orginally set at plan excharge raes (14 $1 60) and have been dpusted ro actoal
exchange rates far comparison aganst aciual performance 1o negite the effect of eschange rate movements

Mote 3 No discretion has been exercsed to adjust the retulung underfying pyy-outs
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

Long-ter m incentives

The status of outstanding awards under the long-termincenuve plan (LTIP) and the legacy annual bonus share matching
plan (ABSMP) and performance against the performance condiiens as at 3} December 2014 are descnbed in the
table below

For each executive director, details of awards under the LTIP and ABSMP that were awarded, vested, released, lapsed
or heid during 2014 are summansed in the adjacent table

Status of outstanding awards under the long-term incentive plan and annual bonus share matching in 2014

Shre
price % of
Dateof on date Vesting Perfornyance Petfarmance Pay-ourac Pay-out at Actual  award

Plan award of award dzte measures pertod threshold maximum  performance  vested Status
LTip | May 2044 1 102 Op{ May 2017 Relative TSR 2004 30% armedan  FO0% atupper - —  Quistanding
10 2017 quartife subject o
performance

RGHC 2006 30%for ROIC  100% for ROIC

of 6 5% of 7 5%

EPS growth 2016 compared 30% for EPS 100% for £PS

w20t3  growthof 6 0% growthof 12 0%
LTIP  {May20i3 1 {B30p! May20i6  Relauve TSR 2013 30%atmedan 0% atupper - - Ourstanding
to 2016 quarnfe subject to
ROIC 2005 0%for ROIC  100%for ROIC performance

of 8 5% of 10 5%

EPSgrowth 2015 compared 30% for EPS 100% for EPS

to 2012 growthof6 0% growthof [2 0%
LTIP 2May20(2 i 161 Op2May 20i5  Relauve TSR 2012 30%armedan  100% atupper {9th il Esumated
1o 2015 quartle  percenule to lapse
in 2015
RQOIC 2014 0% for ROIC  100% for ROIC 56% Mt Willlapse
of B 5% of 10 5% n 2015
EPS growth 2014 compared 30% for FPS 100% for FPS 83% Nl Wikl lapse
10201} growthof6 0% growthof 120% n 2015
ABSMP [5May 1,206 0p 15 May Real compound 2012 50% of matching 100% of matching - ~  Ouwstanding
2013 2016 annual EPS 10 2005 awardfor EPS  awardfor EPS subject o
growth growthof3 0% growthof 5 0% performance
ABSMP I5May 1,1520p  {5May Real compound 201t 50% of marching 100% of matctung -10 5% N Peiformance
2012 2015 annuat EPS 10 2014 awardforEPS  awardfor EPS condimon
growth growthof3 0%  growthof5 0% not met.
Wiltlapse

n 2015




Movements i directors’ interests in share awards during 20§4
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Drv dends

Number of awarded Mumbos of
shares as ac and thares as 1t

Plan Daceofaward  Vestngdate | [an2004  Awarded  Released released Lapsed 31 Dec 2014 Sgatus

John Fallan

LTIP | May 2014 § May 2017 G 274000 - - - 274000 Oustanding subject 1o pei formance

e { May 2013 !ay 2016 250000 - - - — 250000 Outstanding subyect to performance

Lre 2May 2012 2May 2015 100000 - - 100000 0 Expected to lapse m 2045

L7IP 3Mar 2010 3Mar 2013 13752 - - - - 3752 Vested and held untik 3 Mar 2015
{75%vested shares released in 2013}

LTIP 3Mar 2009 3 Mar 2042 19887 - 29887 7054 - 4] Released | Apr 2014
{75% vested shares 1 eleased in 2012)

ABSMP 15 May 2013 15 May 2016 6083 - - - - 6083 Oustanding subject to performance

ABSMP 15May 2012 15 May 2015 8917 - ~ - B9'7 0 Wil lapse in 2015

Totat 408 639 274000 29887 7054 108917 543815

Robwn Fieestone

LTiP tMay20i4 | May 2017 0 162000 - - ~ 162000 Oustanding subject to performance

LTiP | May 2013 | May20t6 150000 - - - ~ 150000 OQutstanding subject o performance

LTIP 2May 2012 2May 2015 100000 - - - 100000 0 Expucted todapse n 2015

LTIP 3Mar2G0 3 May 20i3 {1460 - - - - {1,460 Vested and heid unnl 3 Mar 20485
{75% vested shates rebeased mn 2043)

LTIP 3Mar2009 3 Mar 2012 25617 - 25617 6046 - ] Released { Apr20i4
{75% vested shares released m 2012)

ABSMP 15 May 2012 15 May 2015 17833 - - - 17833 0 Wil fapsemn 2015

Toral 304910 162000 25617 6046 117833 323450

Mate [ Foraflawards Pearsons reported financil results for the televant
penod were used to measure performance wd no discretion has
been exercised

Naote 2 Vested mezns where awards are no longer subject to performance
condivoss Released rmeans where shares bave been rransfer red to
parnapants Held preans where awards have v sted but shares are held
pendingrefease or the relevant anmversary of the award date Quistanding
means awards that have been grinted but are stil supject 1o the cchievement
of performance conditons Dandends refers to divdend equivalent sharea that
have been added wahout performance conditions to vested shares under the
LTIP znd relersed immediately on award

Note 3 No varatons to werins and condions of plan snterests were mide
during the yoar

tate 4 In relation 1o the LTIP award made on { May 2084 pay outs 50%
manmum for attanment of ROIC of 795

Mote § For the LTIP award made on 2 May 2082 and due wo vest on 2 May 2005
we have estmated the out-twnof the relaive TSR performance condivon
based on performance 1s a19 February 20521 mil factual refauve

TSR per formance s ditferent on the date of vesung we will setehes outin

the annual remuneration s epor Lo 2015

Nete & The single figure of remun ranon for 2014 ncludes all awards that were
aubject to a perform ince conditon where the performznce period ended or
wits substantally (but not fully) completcd ar 31 Deceinber 2014 and awards
where the performance condit on has been sausfied but where the refease of
shares is subject to a further halding period The same methodaology has been
applied for € wherperods and the single hgure for earler reporung perads b
beentestate g where necsssiry

Norte 7 The vslue of sha es mcluoed inthe single ligur e ofremuner auon s the
nurnber of shares mulapbed by the share price on release

piote 8 The value of dhe LTIP awards in 2014 for the executive directors s shown below based onashare pre onthedite of awardof t 102.0p

Vaiue for

threshold

face wvalue performance

Yesting MNuember Face value % of 2014 %5 of 2014

Director Drite of award date of shares {£} salury) salary)
lehn Fallon ! May 2014 I May 2017 174000 £3 W9 480 397% 119%
Robin Freestone t May 2014 | May 2017 162 000 L1 785 240 323% 97%
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

_PART 3= ANNUAL REMUNER ATION REPOR

Movements in directors’ interests in share options durmg 2014

John Fallon and Robin Freestone also hold options under the worldwide save for shares plan as follows -

Number of sha es

vnder option Earhiest Value i 2614

Dt of held as ag Opuon exercise Exprry shngle figure

Director grant 31 Dec20i4 price dite date £060
John Fallon 7 May 2010 1,930 805 ép | Aug 15 | Feb |6

30 Apr 2014 1,109 8if2p 1 Aug 17 | Feb 18 0

Robin Freestone 4 May 2012 990 90% Op I Aug 15 | Feb le 0

30 Apr 2004 1,109 8it2p | Aug 17 | Feb 18 G

Note § No share opton awards were vested or were excrosed in the year

MNote 2 No variations to terms and conditions of share opuons were made during the year

Note 3 Acgusinion of shares imder the worldwide save for shares planss not sulyjectio a performance condmion

Note 4 Al share opuons that become exercisable during a yoar sre mcluded in the single figure of toral remuneractonfor that year The value included i the single
figure of toral 1 emunes aton s the number of eptions muluplied by the difference between the value on grant and the market value on the earhest exercise date
No share optiops were exercisable during 2014 and so there 1s nothing to include m the smgle figure of wtaf remunerazion for 2014

Noie S The market price on 3t Decernber 2014 was 1 190 Op per share andthe range during the yewrwas 998 Opo ) 340 0p

Payments to former directors

[t is the committee’s intention to disclose any payments
1o past directors, including the release of share-based
awards post-departure

The number of shares retained from the number of
shares onginally awarded tales nto account lapses due
to performance, releases prior to ceasing to be a director
and pro-rating for service in the performance peniod
{where applied)

2012 long-term incentive awards

As set out in the annual remuneration report for 2013,
Marjorie Scardino, Rona Farrhead, John Makinson and
Will Ethridge retained long-term incentive plan awards
made on 2 May 2012, all subject to performance As
disclosed elsewhere in this report, these awards are
expected tolapse in 2015

Will Ethridge

As set out:in the annual remunerauon report for 2013,
Wil Ethridge stepped down from the board on

31 December 2013 He continued to be eligible for the
sarne base salary, annual incentrve and other benefits in
accordance with his service agreement with the company
unol he retired on 31 December 2014 No compensation
forloss of office or severance was paid on his stepping
down from the board, oron his i etwernent

As also reported in the annual remuneration report for
2013, Will Ethidge retamed 100,000 (two-thirds) of the
shares awarded on | May 2013 The commuttee also
approved anaward of 116,000 performance related
shares for Will Ethndge for 2014 on the same terms as
the 2014 awards for members of the Pearson executive
{r accordance with policy and after having carefully
considered all relevant factors, the committee further
determined inits absolute discrevon thaton his
rettrement from the company on 3| December 2014,
Will Ethndge would retain a pro-rata entitlemenit of
one-third of this award {1 e. 38,666 shares) which would
vest or not, subject to performance m 2017

Marjorie Scardino

Because of payrofl processing errors during the years
2007 to 2010, taxes deducted from Marjorie Scardino’s
compensation were incorrectly allocated by Pearson
among tax authorities in the UK and the US This resulted
in her being subject to temporary double taxation The
commuttee has concluded in prnciple that Pearson should
reimburse {on an after-tax basis) certamn costs incurred
by Marjore Scardino i funding a proporuon of the
double-tax obligavon Detads of any reimbursement will
be included i a subsequent annual remuneration report

Non-executive directors

The company’s valuntary disclosure to HMRC regarding
the taxable reimbursement of expenses for tax years
prior to 2014 ncludes non-executive directors who are
no longer employed by the company
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Payments for loss of office Z
(4]
As announced to the stock exchange on 24 October 2014 and 27 February 2015, Robin Freestone will be stepping down é
from the board on | August 2015 and leaving the company during 2015 There wiltbe no payment for tass of office v
At the time of writing, no further decisions have been made about whether and how the committee might exercise its
discretion under Pearson's discretionary share plans In accordance with policy, the commuttee will have regard 1o all
relevant arcumstances including distinguishing between different types of leaver, the crcumstances at the ume the award
was onginally made, hss performance, and the arcumstances in which he left employment In the event that discreuon is
50 exercised In Robin's favour, the detars will be included n a subsequent annual remuneration report _
o
Directors’ interests in shares and value of shareholdings |5
o
Directors’ interests g
The share interests of the continuing directors and their connected persons are as follows 2
MNumber of Numbes of  Toral aumber of ;
ordinary condtiohal ordinary and 2
shares shares condinonaf shares Value Guidehine Gudehine
Director at 31 Dec |4 at 3F Dec 14 1e 31 Dec [4 (% sabry} % salary} mex
Chatrman
Glen Moreno 200,000 - - - - -
Executve directors 2
John Fallon 282,147 {3,752 295 899 549% 300% v E
Robin Freestone 504,283 1,460 515,743 1.317% 200% v 2
z
Non-execuuve directors z
>
David Arculus 17,117 - - - - - a
Elizabeth Corley 468 - - - - -
Vivienne Cox 2,123 - - - - -
Ken Hydon {8,634 - - - - -
Josh Lewis 6 632 - - - - - o '
=<
Linda Lorimer 1.581 - - -~ - - m
Harish Manwans f.392 - - - - - ‘?‘;
8]
m

Mote | Conditional shares means shares which have vested but remain held subgect to continuing employment for a pr e-def nec holding period

Note 2 The current value of the executive directors holdings of crdinary and conditional shares 15 based on the ridd‘e market valve of Pearson shares of { 420p
on 27 February 2015 agamst base saforiesn 2014 All executive du ectors comfortably exceeded the shareholding puidelmes Tne shareholdmg guidelines donot
apply to the charman and nen executive directors

Nate 3 Ordwnary shares ncluge both ordina y share s hsted on the London Stock Exchange and American Depositary Recepts (ADRs} hated on the New York
Stock Uxchinge The figures include buth shai cs and ADRs acquircd by mdivduais nvrsting part of therr own after tx annuai bonus Pearsonshires under the
énnual bonus share matching plan

Noe 4 Tha register of direvions mierests {whichs apen to inspection during nonmal offire hours) contans full deeals of directers shaeholdings and opuons o
subscribe for shares The market price on 31 Derem%er 2014 was 1,190 Op per share and the range duning the year was 998 Gp1o 1 340 Op

Note5 Therewer € no movemencs i ordiey shates bevween | lanuary 2015 and 2 monmh prier 1o the sign-off of ts report

Noze 6 Ordinary shares do not include any shores votted but neld pending release under a1 estricred share plan
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART 3 - ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPCRT .

interests of directors and value of shareholdings

IMAGE REMOVED

Shareholding guidelines

Executive directors are expected to build up a substantial
shareholding in the company in line with the policy of
encouraging widespread employee ownership and to
ahgn further the interests of executives and shareholders
With effect from 2014, target holding s 300% of salary
for the chief executive and 200% of salary for the other
executive directors

Shares that count towards these guidelines include any
shares held unencumbered by the executive, their spouse
and/or dependent children plus any shares vested but
held pending release under a restncted share plan
Executive directors have five years from the date of
appontment to reach the guideline

With eflect from 2014, these gudelines have been
extended to include all members of the Pearson executive
at 100% of salary

The shareholding guidelines do not apply te the chairman
and non-executive directors However, 2 mimmum of
25% of the basic non-executive directors’ fee s paid in
Pearson shares that the non-executive directors have
comrmitted to retan for the pertod of their directorships

Diluwon and use of equity

We can use existing shares bought in the market, treasury
shares or newly-i1ssued shares to satisfy awards under the
company s various share plans

For restncted stoclk awards under the long-term incentive
pian and matching share awards under the annual bonus
share matching plan, we would normally expect to use
existng shares

There are imits on the amount of new-1ssue equity we
canuse Inany rolling ten-year period, no more than 10%
of Pearson equity wll be issued, or be capable of being
issued, under all Pearson’s share plans, and no more than
5% of Pearson equity will be issued, or be capable of being
issued, under executive or discretionary plans

At 34 Decernber 2014, stock awards to be sausfied by
new-issue equity granted in the fast ten years under alt
Pearson share plans amounted to | 7% of the company’s
tssued share capital No stock awards granted in the last
ten years under executve or discretionary share plans
will be sausfied by new-ssue equity

In addiwon, for existing shares, no more than 5% of
Pearson equity may beheld m trust az any ume Against
thus Irrt, shares held in trust at 3! December 2014
amcunited to 0 9% of the company's issued share capital

The headroom available for alt Pearson plans executive or
discretionary plans and shares held in trustis as foflows

Headroom 014 2003 012
B3% B4% 83%
Executive or discrevonary plans  50% 50% 50%
Shares held in trust 41% 38% 38%

All Pearson plans

Executive directors’ non-executive directorships

Executive directors served as non-executive diectors
elsewhere but either waived or did not recewve fees




Historical performance and remuneration

Total shareholde return performance

We set out below Pearson’s total shareholder return
{TSR) performance relative to the FTSE All-Share mdex
on an annual basis over the six-year pertod 2008 to 2014
This comparison has been chosen because the FTSE
All-Share represents the broad market index within
which Pearson Shares are traded TSR s the measure

of the returns that a company has provided for its
shareholders, reflecting share pnce movements and
assumeng remnvestment of dividends (source DataStream)

in accordance with the reporung regulattons, this section
also presents Pearson's TSR performance alongside the
single figure of total remuneration for the CEQ over the
last six years and a summary of the variable pay cutcomes
relative to the prevailing maximuim at the tme  The table
below summanises the total remuneraton for the CEO
over the last five years, and the outcomes of annual and
long-term incentive plans as a proporuon of maximum

Secuon 4 Gor e narga
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Einancal year ending 1009

010

04

2012

2013

2014

Total remuneration — john Fallon

(single figure, 000s) -
Toral remuneration - Marjore Scardine

{(single figure, 000s) 6,370

Annual incentive — incumbent
(% of maximurm) 91 3%

Long-term ncenuve — incumbent
(% of maxsmum) 800%

8466

92 1%

97 5%

8,340

757%

68 3%

5,330

1727

24 2% 34 3%

367%

MNil

1895

50 5%

N

Annualincentive 15 the actual annual incentsve received by the incumbent as 4 percentage of MaximuM Oppor tunLy

Long-term ncentve 1s the pay outof performance relsied restricred shares under the long term ncentive pfan where the year shuwn 1s the final yeargfthe

performance period for the purpeses of calculating the singfe total figure of remunerauon

Fotal remuner1iian - John Fallon john Fallon s total remune: at:en oppol tumity 15 lower thanthat of the previous ncumbent Varable pay outs under the unnuat

and long-term incenave plans eflect perfor mance for the relevant periocds
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Report on directors’ remuneration continued

PART3 ~ ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Comparative informaton

Information on changes to remuneration for 2015

The followng informauon 1s intended to prowide
addwional context regarding the total remuneration for
executive directors

Relauve percentage change in remuneration for CEQ
The following table sets out the change between 2013
and 2014 n three elements of remuneration for the CEO,
in comparison to the average for all employees

While the committee considers the increase in base pay
for the CEQ relatve to the broader employee population,
benefits are dnven by local pracuces and eligibiity 15
determmned by level and mdividual aircumstances which
do notlend themselves to comparison

Allowances
Base and Annual
satary benefies  incentives Toral
CEO 15%  93%  49%  22%
All employees 1% -9% 4% 0%

MNote | The figures for all employees reflect average satares and aserage
employee numbers each year Anmuahincentives include o plans including
salesincentives

Note 2 The icrease n allowances and annualineentbves for John Fallon is
artributabie respectively to (a) the first full year of reporung of his private use
of a driver based on the benefit-in-kind charge forthe 2013/2014 aax year
and (b) the year-on-year increase in his payout under the Pearson annual
ncentive plan

Relative importance of pay spend

The committee considers directors’ remuneration in the
context of the company’s allocation and disbursement
of resources to different stakeholders

In particular, we chose operaung profit because this
15 a measure of our ability to reinvest in the company
We incude dwvidends because these constitute an
important element of our return to shareholders

Yewr-an yeai change

im 2014 2013 tm %
Operaung profit 722 736 -4 2%
Dwndends 3%7 372 25 7%

Total wages and salaries 1,728 1836 -108  -6%

Note | Qparaung profitis as set cutin the financial statements

MNote 2 Wages and seiarres include rontinung operaucns onfy and mclude
directors 201315 restated on the same basis Average employee numbers for
continuing operations for 2014 were 40 876 (2013 42 115). Further detads arg
set vut innate 5t the financaf staternems on page §41

Executive directors’ base salaries

We have undertaken a regular periodic review of base
salaries for 2015, taking into account general economic
and rmarket condittons, the fevel of increases made across
the company as a whole, the remuneration of executives
n simifar positions i comparable companies and
indmviduat performance

As aresult of this review, the 2015 base satanies for the
CEQ and CFO are as follows

John Robmn
£000s Fallon Freestona
Base salary at
31 December2014 £765 £556

£153 {0
tncrease

2% 0%
Base salary at
[ April 2015 £7803 £556

Annual Incentive

The key design prinaples underlying the company's
approach to annual incentives for 2015 are the same as
for 2014, namely

> Fult alignment of annual incentives with the global
education strategy to rewforce a ‘'one Pearson’ focus

» A clear, transparent, coherent, consistent, organisation-
wide approach to incenuves and performance
management with a commen incentive framework for
Lines of Business, Geographtes and enabling functions

1 The size of the overall annual incentive pay-out wili be
linked to overall Pearson performance

For 2015, there will be no change to the overall Pearson
performance measures, namely adjusted earnings per
share (60% weighung), sales (20%) and cash flow (20%)

The Pear son financial targets will be set each year as part
of the normal operatng plan process The CEO and CFO
wall recommend the overall Pearson incentive funding
metrics {including performance measures, targets and
weightings) to the comumittee for approval in the

normal way




There will be no change in indmidual annual ncenuve
opportunities for the executive directors and the
Pearson executive

Annual incentive pay-outs are determined according to a
combination of Pearson-wide performance and ndwidual
goais The sum of the CEQ's and the Pearson executves’
‘on-target’ annual incentive constitutes the incentive pool
for this group which flexes up or down based on overall
Pearson performance Individual performance s assessed
aganst goals set at the start of the year Individual pay-outs
up to ndnduat maxsimum opportunites and within the
total paol are recommended by the CEO (or by the
chairman in the case of the CEQ himself) for review and,
in the case of the executive directors, forapproval by

the committee

The committee considers the performance targets for
2015 to be commercially sensitive Details of performance
measures weightings and targets will be disclosed inthe
annual remuneraton report for 2015 if and to the extent
that the commitiee deerns thern to be no longer
commeraally sensitive

Long-term incentives

The committee wil continue to operate the long-term
incenuve plan for the executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive in line with the
arrangements outlined in the 2013 report on directors’
remuneraton

» The weighung of the performance metnics will be half
on earnings per share growth, one-third on return
on nvested capital and one-sixth on relaive total
shareholder return

» Performance will be tested over three years and 75% of
the vested shares will be refeased at that point However,
there is amandatory restriction on parucipants’ ability
to dispose of the 75% of the vested shares (other than
to meet personal tax liabdiues) for a further two years
Furthermore, parucipants’ nghts to the release of the 25%
of the vested shares are subject to continued employment
over the same period

Saction 4 Governance 105

» For 2015 and onwards, the averaging period for the
calcutation of relative total shareholder return will be
moved to the penod running up to the year end and
the length of the averaging period wilf be ncreased to
three months

SSINISNA YNNG l

In addition, we wili reduce the proporton of the
maxtmum award that vests for threshold performance
on all measures from 30% to 25% n line with insttutional
investors’ preferences

At the time of wriung, the committee has yet to approve
the 2015 long-term incentsve awards and the assocrated
performance targets for the execuuve directors and other
members of the Pearson executive

ADNWYHYO4YId N0

We will set the level of ndividual awards consistent with
those seen 1n recent years and within the policy maximum
taking Into account

» The face value of ndividual awards at the tme of grant,
assuming that performance targets are metin full

» Market practice for comparable companies and
market assessments of total remuneraton from our
independent advisers

LO¥4HIIVIDOS YNO '

» Indwidual roles and responsibilines
» Company and mdividual performance

‘We will set targets for the 2015 awards that are consistent
with the company's strategic objectives over the period
10 2017

Full details of indmdual awards for the executive directors
and the performance targets for 2015 wall be set outin the
annual remuneration report for 2015
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Report on directors' remuneration continued

{ PART:3 — ANNUAL REMUNERATION REPORT

Appomtment of CFO

As announced to the stock exchange on 27 February
2015, Coram Williams will join Pearson as CFO designate
on { july, and succeed Robin Freestone as CFO on

| August, when he will also replace Robin on the Pearson
board as an execuuve director Full detaits of the terms
of Coram's remunerauon package will be included in the
annual remuneration report for 2015

The package will be in accordance with, and within the
limuts of, our approved remuneration policy and will
comprise inter ahia a base salary of £515,000 per year,
an annual incentive opportunity of 85% of salary at target
{(up to 170% of salary at maxamum) with any pay-out

for 2015 being calculated pro-rata for his service,
muscellaneous and family relocation allowances and
temporary accommodation assistance in accordance
with policy, membership of the Final Pay Section of the
Pearson Group Pension Plan with an accrual rate of
{/60th of pensionable salary, subject to the Plan earnings
cap (£145,800 per year for the 2014/2015 tax year), in
accardance with earlier commitrments given to frm
about the arrangements that would apply should he
rejoin Pearson in the UK having moved from Pearson to
Penguin US and subsequently Penguin Random House,

and ebgibility for long-term mcentive awards on the terms

normally applicable to executive directors and other
members of the Pearson executive Full details of his
award will be disclosed in the 2015 report on directors’
remuneration There will be no compensation for
incenuves foregone at his previous employer

In accordance with policy, the period of notice he
would be required to give to terminate his employment
would be 6 months and that which he would be enutted
to receive from the company would be [2 months

In arcumstances of termination of employment without
cause, he would be enutled to contractual pay-in-heu
of notice compnsing |2 months' base salary and annual
cost of providing pension and other benefits (but
excluding annual incenuve) Payment in lieu may be
pard in mstalments and subject to reduction taking nto
account alternative employment

Chairman and non-executive directors

The salary for the chairman and fees for the non-executive
directors reman unchanged for 2015 Full details will be
set outn the annual remuneranon report and incuded

i the single figure of total remuneration for 2015

IMAGE REMOVED

Dawid Arculus Director
9 March 2015
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REPORT OFTHE DIRECTORS ...

Pages 57 to 112 of this document comprise the directors’
report for the year ended 3| December 2014

Ortherinformation that1s required by the Comparues Act
2006 (the Act) to be included in the directors’ report,
and which s incorporated by reference, can be focated

as follows

Summary disclosures index See more

Dwwidend recommendation pl2

Financial instruments and financial risk management  Note 19

Important events since year end pi93
Future development of the business p06-09
Research and development activities p43
Employment of disabled persons pS0
Employee involverment p48
Greenhouse gas emissions P>

There 1s no information to be disclosed in accordance
with Lisung Rule 98 4

Golng concern

Having reviewed the Group's iquid resources and
borrowing factities and the Group's 2015 and 2016 cash
flow forecasts, the directors believe that the Group has
adequate resources to contnue as a going concern for at
teast the next |2 months For this reason, the financal
statements have, as usual, been prepared on that basis
information regarding the Group's borrowing liabiliues
and financral nsk management can be found in notes 18
and 19 on pages 164 1o {72

Share capital

Details of share 1ssues are given in note 27 to the
accounts on page 186 The company has a single class of
shares which s divided into ordinary shares of 25p each
The ordinary shares arein registered form As at

3i December 2014, 819,882,967 ordinary shares were in
1ssue Atthe AGM held on 25 Apnil 2014 the company
was authorised, subject to certain condiions, to acquire
up to 81,903,781 ordinary shares by market purchase
Shareholders will be asked to renew this authority at the
AGMon 24 Apni 2015

information provided to the company pursuant to

the Finanaiat Conduct Authority's Disclosure and
Transparency Ruies (DTR) 1s published on a Regulator y
tnformation Service and on the company's website

As at4 March 2015, being the latest pracucable date
before the publicauon of this report, the company had
been noufied under DTRS of the following significant
voung nghts in its shares

Percentage

Number of as at date of

voung nghts natficanon

BlackRock, Inc 41,458,030 505%

Annual General Meeting

The nouce convering the AGM, to be held at 12 noon
on Friday, 24 Apnl 2015 at 8 Northumberland Avenue,
London WC2N 5BY, 1s contained in a arcular to
shareholders to be dated 20 March 2015

Registered auditors

fn accordance with secuon 489 of the Act, a
resolution proposing the reappomtment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (Pw() as audtors to
the company will be proposed at the AGM at a level
of remuneration to be agreed by the directors

Auditors’ independence

In line with best practice, our relanonship with PwCis
governed by our external auditors policy, which is
reviewed and approved anrually by the audit commuittee
The policy estabhshes procedures to ensure the auditors'
independence s not compromised, as well as defining
those non-audit services that PwC may or may not
provide to Pearson

These allowable services are in accordance with relevant
UK and US legislauon The audit committee approves all
audit and non-audit services provided by PwC Certamn
categores of allowable non-audit services have been
pre-approved by the audit committee subject to the
authonties below

» Pre-approved non-audit services can be authorised by
the chief financial officer up to £100 000 per project,
subject to a cumulative brrut of £500,000 per annurm

i
i

$5INISNE YNO |

ITNVHYOIEId ¥NO ‘

12¥dKWI TVI20S HNC [

O
(&)
<
m
bl
b
b
z
i
m

SLNIWILVYLS TVIDNYNIZ



08 Pearson ple Annual report and accounts 201+

Additional disclosures coatinued

" RERORT OF THE DIRECTORS

» Acquisition or disposal transactions and due diigence
up to £100,000 per project may be performed by our
external auditors, m hight of the need for confidenuality
Any project/transaction generating fees in excess
of £100,000 must be specifically approved by the
audit committee

» Tax compliance and related actvities up to the greater of
£1.000 000 per annum or 50% of the external audit fee

» For forward-looking tax adwisory services we use the
most appropnate adviser, usually after a tender process
Where we decide to use our independent auditors,
authortty up to £100,000 per project subjectto a
cumulative imit of £500,000 per annum, has been
delegated by the audit committee to managemnent.

Services provided by PwC above these limits and all other
allowable non-audit services, irrespective of value, must

be approved by the audit committee VWhere appropriate,

services will be tendered prior to a decision bemng made
as to whether to award work to the auditors

The audit comnittee receives regular reports
summarising the amount of fees paid to the auditors
During 20i4, Pearson spent considerably less on non-
audit fees with PwC compared to 2013, when there was
sigrificant expenditure related to specific assurance and
tax advisory services associated with the creauon of the
venture between Pengumn and Random House For 2014,
non-audit fees represented 37% of external audit fees
(89%1n 2013)

For alt non-audit work in 2014, PwC were selected only
after consideratton that they were best able to provide
the services we required at a reasonable fee and within
the terms of our externat auditors policy To assistin
ensuring that independence and objectvity Is maintaned,
for forward-looking tax adwisory and due diligence work
PwC assign a different partner from the one leading the
external audit

Significant non-audit work performed by PwC during
2014 included

» Tax comphance set vices related o a routine auditby
the UJS Internal Revenue Service

» Tax advisory work on a number of UK, US and
nternational tax matters

s Audie-related work in refauon to potential and actual
corporate finance transactions

» Assurance services on a corporate bond issued in
May 2014

A full statement of the fees for audit and services is
provided ninote 4 to the accounts on page 140

Farr, balanced and understandable reporting

As required by the Code, we have established
arrangements to ensure that all information we

report to investors and regutators is far, balanced

and understandable A process and umetable for the
production and approval of this year's report was agreed
by the board and audit commuttee at thewr meetings n
December 2014 The {ll board then had opportunity to
review and comment on the report as it progressed

Representatives from financial reportng, corporate
affairs, company secretanial and internal audit and
compliance are tnvolved in the preparanon of the Annual
report to ensure a cohestve and balanced approach and,
as with all of our financial reporting, our disclosure
commuttee conducts a thorough verification of narrative
and financiaf statements

The audit committee 1s also avaltable to advise the board
on certan aspects of the report, to enable the directors
to fulfil their responsibifity in this regard

Directors in office

The following directors were n office during the year and
up until sigrung of the financal statements:

G R Moreno

{}Fallen

R A D Freestone

TD G Arculus

E P L Corley (apponted | May 2014)
V Cox

KiHydon

S)Lewis

L K Lormer

H Manwari

T Score (appointed | January 2045}




Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The directors are responsible for prepanng the annual
repoi t, the report on directors’ remuneration and the
financial staterments in accordance with apphcable law

and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
directors have prepared the Group and parent company
financial statements n accordance with Internattonal
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must
not approve the financial staterments uniess they are
satsfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company and the Group and of the profit or
loss of the Group for that period

in prepaning these financial statements, the directors
are required to

» Sefect suitable accounuing policies and then apply
them consistently

» Make judgements and accounting estmates that are
reasonable and prudent

» State whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the
European Umon have been followed, subject to any
rmatertal departures disclosed and explamed in the
financial statements

» Prepare the financial statements on a going concemn basts,
unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the company
and/or the Group will conunue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate
accounung records that are sufficent to show and explain
the company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable
accuracy at any time the finanaal position of the company
and the Group and enable them to ensure that the
financial statements and the report on directors’
remunerauan comply with the Actand, as regargs

the Group financial statements, Arude 4 of the IAS
Regufation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the company and the Group and hence for
taking r easonable steps for the prevention and detection
of fraud and other rreguiarities

Secuon 4 Gor e nance 109

The directors are responsible for the mantenance and
integrity of the company's website Legisiauon in the
UK governming the preparation and dissemmauon of
financial statements may differ from legislatron in

other junisdictions

Each of the directors hsted above confirms that to the
best of their knowledge

> The Group financial statements, which have been

prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the
European Unton, give a true and far view of the assets
liabiires, financial posiuon and profic of the Group
and company

» The directors’ report contamned in the Annual

report ncludes a fair review of the development and
performance of the business and the position of the

company and Group, together with a descripuon of
the principal nsks and uncertanues that they face

The drectors also confirm that, for alf directors i office
at the darte of this report

3 So far as the directors are aware, there 1s no refevant audit

informaton of which the company’s auditors are unaware

» They have taken all the steps that they ought to have taken

as directors in order to make themselves aware of any
relevant audit informaton and to establhish that the
company’s auditors are aware of that information

In addiien, the directors as at the date of this report
consider that the Annual report, taken as a whole,

1s fair, batanced and understandable and provides the
informaton necessary for shareholders to assess the
company’s performance, business model and strategy

Approved by the board on $ March 2015 and signed onits
behalf by

IMAGE REMOVED

Phulip Hoffrman Sggretary
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Addiional disclosures continued

ADDITIONAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION *

Addtional informasion for shareholders

Set out below 1s other statutory and regulatory
information that Pear son is required to disclosen
its directors’ report

Amendment to articles of association

Any amendments to the articles of assocation of the
company (the Arutcles) may be made in accordance with
the provisions of the Act by way of a speciali esoluuon

Rights attaching to shares

The nghts attaching to the ordinary shares are defined in
the Arucles A shareholder whose name appears on the
company's register of members can choose whether
hus/her shares are evidenced by share certificates (e 1n
certficated form) or held electronscally (1 @ unceruficated
form) in CREST {the electronic settlernent systemmn

the UK)

Subject to any restrictions below, shareholders may
attend any general meeung of the company and,

on a show of hands, every shareholder (or his/her
representauve) who 1s present at a general meeting has
one vote on each resaluuon for every ordinary share of
whuch they are the registered holder. A resolution put
to the vote at a general meeting is decided on a show of
hands unless before, or on the dedaration of the result of,
avote on a show of hands, a poll is demanded A poll can
be demanded by the chairman of the meeting, or by

at [east three shareholders {or their representatives)
presentin person and having the right to vote, or by

any shareholders (or therr representatives) present

in person having at least 10% of the total voting nghts

of all shareholders, or by any shareholders (or thewr
representatives) present in person holding ordinary
shares on which an aggregate sum has been paid up of at
least {0% of the total sum paid up on all ordnary shares
Ar this year's AGM voting will again be conducted on a
poll. consistent with best pracuce

Shareholders can declare a final dividend by passing an
ordinary resolution but the amount of the dividend
cannot exceed the amount recommended by the board
‘The board can pay intenm dividends on any dass of shares
of the amounts and on the dates and for the penods

they deade In all cases the distributable profics of the
company must be sufficient to justfy the payment of the
relevant dividend

The board may, f authorised by an ordinary resoluton of
the shareholders, offer any shareholder the right to elect
to receve new ordinary shares, which will be credited as
fully paid, instead of thenr cash dvidend

Any drvidend which has not been climned for 12 years
after it became due for payment will be forferted and
will then belong to the company, unless the directors
decide otherwise

if the company is wound up, the liquidator can, with
the sanction of a special resolution passed by the
shareholders, divide among the shareholders alf or any
part of the assets of the company and he/she can value
assets and determine how the division shall be carried
out as between the shareholders or different classes of
shareholders The hquidator canalso, with the same
sanction, transfer the whole or any part of the assets
to trustees upon such trusts for the benefit of

the shareholders

Voting at general meetings

Any form of proxy sent by the shareholders to the
company n relation to any general meeting must be
detivered to the company (via its registrars), whetherin
written or electronic form, not less than 48 hours before
the time appainted for holding the meetng or adjourned
meeting at which the person named in the appointment
proposes to vote,

Mo shareholder s, unless the board deades otherwsse,
entitled to attend or vote erther personally or by proxy at
a general meeung or 1o exerase any other nght conferred
by being a shareholder fhe/she or any person with an
interest in shares has been sent a notice under sectuon 793
of the Act {which confers upon public companies the
power to require information with respect to interests

in their voting shares) and he/she or any interested
person faled to supply the company with the informaucn
requested wittun |4 days after delivery of that nouce

The board may also decide, where the relevant
shareholding comprises at least 0 25% of the nomunal
value of the issued shares of that dass, that no dvdend

i5 payable in respect of those default shares and that

no transfer of any default shares shalf be registered




Pearson operates two employee benefit trusts to hold
shares, pending employees becoming entitled to them
under the company's employee share plans There were
7.192 412 shares held as at 31 December 2014 Each teust
hds an independent trustee which has full discretion in
refation to the votng of such shares A dividend waiver
operates on the shares held in these trusts

Pearson also operates a nominee shareholding
arrangement known as Sharestor e which holds shares

on behalf of employees There were 4,709,325 shares so
held as at 31 December 2014 The beneficial owners of
shares held through Sharestore are invited to submut
voung instructions onfine at www shareview co uk Ifno
nstructions are given by the beneficial owner, the trustees
holding these shares will not exercise the voung rights

Transfer of shares

The board may refuse to register a transfer of a
certficated sha: e which s not fully pard prowided that the
refusal does not prevent dealings in shares in the company
from takeng place on an open and proper basis Theboard
may also refuse to register a transfer of 3 ceruficated

shar e unless {1) the instrument of ransfer 1s lodged, duly
stamped (if stampable), at the registered office of the
company or any other place decided by the board and

1s accompanied by the ceruficate for the share to which

it relates and such other evidence as the board may
reasonably require to show the right of the transferor

to make the transfer, (i) i 1s in respect of only one

class of shares, and (i) 1tss i favour of not more than

four transferees

Transfers of unceruficated shares must be carried out
using CREST and the board can refuse to register a
transfer of an unceruficated share in accordance with
the regulations governing the operation of CREST

Varation of rights

if at any ume the capitat of the company 1s dvided Inwo
different classes of shares, the specal mghts attaching to
any class may be varred or revoked either

) with the written consent of the holders of atleast
75% in nominal value of the issued shares of the relevant
cassor

) with the sanction of a special resaluuon passed at a
separate general meeting of the halders of the shar es
of the relevant class

Seruon 4 Gor ernarke {it

Without prejudice to any spectal rights previously
conferred on the holders of any existng shares or class
of shares, any share may be 1ssued with such preferred,
deferred, or ather special nghts, or such restricuons,
whethern regard to didend, voting, return of capital
or otherwise as the company may from tme to time by
ordinary resolution deternune

Appointment and replacement of directors

The Arucles contan the following provisions in relation
to directors

Directors shall be no less than two in number Directors
may be appointed by the company by ordinary resolution
orby the board A director appointed by the board shall
hold office only until the next AGM and shall then be
eligible for reappotment. but shall not be taken into
account in determining the directors or the number of
directors who are to retire by rotation at that meeting
The board may from ume to time appoint one or more
directors to hold executive office with the company for
such penod (subject to the provistons of the Act) and
upon such terms as the board may deaide and may revoke
or terminate any appontment so made

The Arudles provide that, at every AGM of the company,
atleastone-third of the directors shall retire by rotation
{or.f their number is not a muluple of three, the number
nearest to one-third) The firstdirectors to renre by
rotauon shall be those who wash to retire and not offer
themselves for re-election Any further directors so to
retire shall be those of the other directors subject to
retirement by rotation who have been fongestin office
since they were last re-elected but, as between persons
who became or were last re-elected on the same day,
those to reure shall {unless they otherwise agree among
themselves) be determned by lot Inaddien, any
director who would not otherwise be required to retire
shall retire by rotanon at the third AGM after they were
fastre-elected

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Arudes the board
has resolved that all directors should offer themselves for
re-elecuon annually, in accordance with the Code

The company may by ordinary resolution remove any
director before the expiration of his/her term of office

In addion, the board may terminate an agreement or
arrangernent with any director for the provision of bus/her
services to the company
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Additional disclosures continued

. ADDITIONALSHAREHOUDER INFORMATION

Powers of the directors

Subject to the company's Arudes, the Actand any
directions given by special i esolution, the business of the
company will be managed by the board who may exercise
all the powers of the comparny, including powers relating
to the issue and/or buying back of shares by the company
(subject Lo any statutory restrictions or restrictions
imposed by shareholders in general meeting)

Significant agreements

The following significant agreements contain provisions
enttling the counterparues to exercse terminauon

or other rights in the event of a change of control of
the company

Under the $1,750,000.000 revolving credit facility
agreement dated August 2014 which matures in August
2019 between, amongst cthers, the company, Barclays
Bank plc (as facthty agent) and the banks and financial
msututions named theren as lenders (the Faciity), any
such bank may, upon a change of control of the company,
require its outstanding advances, together with accrued
interest and any cther amounts payable in respect of such
Facility, and #ts commuitments, to be cancelled, each within
60 days of noufication to the banks by the facility agent
Forthese purposes, a ‘change of controf’ occurs ifthe
company becomes a subsidiary of any other company

or one or more persons acting either individually or i
concert, obtams control (as defined in section 1124 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010) of the company

Shares acquired through the company’s employee share
plans rank pari passu with shares i issue and have no
speaial nghts Forlegal and pracucal reasons, the rules
of these plans set out the consequences of a change of
control of the company
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic

Report on the financial statements

Our opiron
{n our opirion

y Pearson pic's consolidated financial statements and
company financial statements (the ‘financal statements’)
give a true and far view of the state of the Group's and of
the company s affairs as at 31 December 2044 and of the
Group's profit and the Group's and the company's cash
fiows for the year then ended

» The consolidated financial statements have been

In our opireon, the consohidated financial statements
comply with IFRSs as issued by the |ASB

What we have audited
Pearson pic's financial statements comprise

+ The consolidated and company balance sheets as at
31 December 2014

» The consolidated income statement and consclidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended

+ The consolidated and company statements of changes in

properly prepared in accordance with International

equity and cash flow statements for the year then ended

Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by

the European Union

» The company financial statements have been properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Comparnies Act 2006

» The financial staternents have been prepared in
accordance wath the requirements of the Compantes

» The notes to the financial statements, which nclude a
summary of significant accounting polictes and other
explanatory information

Certain required disclosures have been presented
elsewhere in the Annual report and accounts {the
Annual report’) rather than in the notes to the financial
statements These are cross-referenced from the
financial statements and are idenufied as audited

Act 2006 and, as regards the consolidated financial

statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulaton

Separate opimon in refation to IFRSs as issued by

the 1ASB

As explained in note | to the financial statements, the
Group, In addition to applymng IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, has also applied IFRSs as issued by the

The financial reporting framewark thathas been
apphed in the preparation of the financial statements 1s
apphcable law and IFRSs as adopted by the European
Urion and, as regards the company finanaial statements,
as apphied in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act 2006

International Accounting Standards Board {|ASB)

Our audit approach
Overview

IMAGE REMOVED

» Overall Group materiality £26m, which represents 4% of adjusted profit
before tax as disdosed n note 8 Refer to page 119 for further detais

» We conducted work in five key terntones US, UK, Brazil, China and South
Alrca In additon we obtained an audit opinion on the financial informatuoen
reported by the associate Penguin Random House (PRH)

» The termtories where we conducted audit procedures, together with work
performed at corporate functions, shared service centres and consolidated
Group level, accounted for approximately 68% of the Group’s revenue, 74%
of the Group's statutary profit before tax, and 65% of the Group’s adjusted
prafit before tax

» We focused on

— Revenue recogmtion for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts
- Goodwill and intangible assets imparment reviews

- Prowsion for uncertain tax kabilities

— Retut ns prowistons

~ Recoverability of pre-publication assets and inventories

- Acquisitions and disposals




The scope of our audrt and our areas of focus

We conducted our audi in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing (UK and treland}
{(ISAs (Ui & Irefand})

We designed our audit by determining materiality
and assessing the rislkes of matenial misstatement in
the consolidated and company financial staterments
In parucular, we looked at where management made
subjective judgernents, for example inrespect of
significant accounting esumates that involved making
assumptions and considering future events that are
inherently uncertain Asin all of our audits, we also
addressed the risk of management override of internal
controls, including evaluating whether there was
evidence of bias that 1 epresented a risk of material
musstatement due to fraud

Section 5 Financal statements, ilg

The t1sks of material musstatement that had the greatest
effect on our audit, ncluding the allocauon of our
resources and effort, are wdenufied as areas of focus in
the table below We have also set out how we tadored
our audit 1o address these speafic areasin erderto
provide an opirwon on the consolidated and company
financal statements as a whole Any comments we
make on the results of our procedures should be read

in thas context For each area of focus below, to the
extent relevant, we evaluated the design and tested the
operating effecuveness of key iInternal controls over
financial reporung set in place by management, including
tesung the operauon of IT systems from which finanaal
information s generated Each ofthe areas of focus
below are alsa referred to in the audit committee
report on pages 74 to 75 and in the accounting pohcies
onpages 128to i35 This s nota complete list of all risks
wdentified by cur audit

Aren of forus

How oul audu addrossed the vrea of focus

Revenue recogmtion for multiple element and long-term revenue contracts

Refer to note | to the consolidated financial
statements There are two types of complex contracts
that require significant jJudgements and esumates,
which could be subject to either acaidental errors

or deliberate fraud

> Muluple element arrangements, such as the sale of
physical textbooks accompanied by digital content
or supplementary workbooks, where revenue s
recogmised for each element as if it were an indvmdual
contractual arrangement requiring the estimaton of
its fair value

» Certain long-terim contracts that span year end, where
revenue Is recogmsed using esumated percentage of
completion based on costs These include contracts to
design, develop and deliver testing and accreditation
and contracts to secure students and support the
online dehvery of their teaching

These complex contracts generate matenial deferred
revenue and accrued income balances and are areas
where misstatements i the underlying assumptions o
estimation calculatons could have a materal effect on
the financial staterments

Where books are sold together with workbooks
dehivered fater or companion digital materials available
online we assessed the basis for allocation of the
purchase price between each element and then tested
the detailed calculatons supporung these revenue
deferrals We used our knowledge of the Group and its
industry to assess the completeness of idenufication of
such arrangements We found the revenue deferrais
to be based on reasonable estimates of the relative

fatr value of each element and the methods used

to calculate the defer: als properly calculated and
consistently apphed

For a selection of the larger, more judgemental and
more recent long-term contacts, cover ing both testing
activities and online delivery of teaching, we read the
contracts and assessed the accounting policy and
methodologies being apphed to calcuiate the proportion
of revenue being recognised We also tested costs
incurred to date and management’s estimates of
forecast costs and revenues by reference to historical
expenence and current contract status, mcluding
exanmining correspondence where contracts are
experiencing disputes

Qurtesting showed that revenue recognition pt actices
are in accordance with Group policies with appropriate
methods for calculating the revenue recognised
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independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson pic contintted

Area of focus

How cur audit addressed the 1rea of focus

Goodwill and intangible assets impairment reviews

Refer to note {1 to the consolidated financial
statements At year end the Group has £5,030m of
goodwill and £1,280m of other intangible assets
ncluding software, acquired customer hists, contracts
and relationships, acquired trademarks and brands and
acquired publishing rights

The carrying values of goodwill and intangible assets are
contingent on future cash flows and there is nsk that. «f
these cash flows do not meet the Group's expectations,
the assets might be impaired The impairment reviews
perfor med by management contain a number of
significant judgements and estimates including cash
generating unit (CGU) identificauon, revenue growth,
profit margins and discount rate

As part of the Group restructuring during the year,
management identified a new set of aggregated CGUs
and reatlocated goodwill accordingly These changes
inciuded a new North America aggregated CGU and
the disaggregaton of the Grawth segment into its main
constituent countnes (refer to note (1 for details)

For the larger aggregated CGUs management's model
identfied significant headroom  In respect of the India
CGU management recorded an impairment charge
of £77m

We evaluated and challenged management's
identification and aggregation of CGUs in light of the new
Group structure and tested the allocation of goodwill
to these aggregated CGUs In our view management’s
decision to disaggregate the Growth segment.into s
main constituent countries appropriately reflects the
refauve independence of these operations For the
aggregated CGUs in North America and Core markets,
management demonstrated reasonable bases for the
aggregations, reflecting their refatively high levels of
mntegraton and synergies

We tested the mathematical integrity of the forecasts
and carrying values in management's impairment modet
We obtaned board approved cash flow forecasts to
agree them to management's impairment analysis and
challenged key judgements and estimates within them
We assessed the discount rates apphied to each
aggregated CGU by comparison to thid-party data
and to the Group's cost of capital and relevant nisk
factors We compared short and long-term growth
rates, tncluding cash conversion, to historical trends
and expectauons We also considered the accuracy
of prior penad forecasts

We performed sensiumty analyses around these

key assumptions to ascertain the extent of change
either individually or collectively that would indicate
impairment We considered the likelihood of such a
movement and the adeguacy of the disclosures made
regarding the assumptions and sensiuvities

Eor CGUs where headroom was imited we assessed
management’s sensitivity disclosures to check these
were appropriae

We checked for addinonal impairment triggers by
reading board minutes, holding regular discussions

with Group and local management, and exarmining the
performance of recently acquired businesses to identify
underperforming operations We did not idenufy any
further impairments




Section 3 hinaneal aaternents H7

Area of focus

How our audit xddresced the aren of focus

Provision for uncertain tax hablicies

Refer to notes 7 and |3 to the consolidated financal
staterments The Group 15 subject to several tax regimes
due to the geographical diversity of its businesses

The directors are required to exercise significant
judgementin determining the appropriate amount to
provide in respect of potential tax exposures and
uncertan tax provistons 1he most significant of these
relate to US tax

Changes m assumptions about the views that might be
taken by tax authorities can matenally impact the level of
provisions recorded in the financial statements and there
are significant judgements in estimanng the amount of
any provision required

We obtained an understanding of the Group's tax
strategy to idenufy tax 1isks relaung to business and
legistative developments To assess the adequacy of
the Group’s tax provisions we first recalculated the
valuation of tax provistons and deterrmined whether
the treatments adopted were in hne with the Group’s
tax policies and had been applied consistently

We then evaluated key underlying assurpuons about
tax authorty views on the Group's tax arrangements,
parucularly in the US and in termtories with new cross-
border tax structures In doing this we considered the
status of recent and current tax authority audits and
enquines the outturn of previous claims, judgemental
positions taken in tax returns and current year
estimates, and developments in the tax environment

We were satisfied that management’s provision
estimates for uncertain tax positions were consistent
with our own assessment of the related risks and
correspondence with the relevant tax authonties

Returns piovisions

There are materal, judgemental provisions for
anucipated book returns on the balance sheet as at

3! December 2014, parucularly in US Higher Education

As the Group transitions from pnint to digital the returns
profile might change to either decrease (as less books
are shipped) or increase (if boolstores underestimate
the speed of digita! change and over-order tradiuonal
textbooks)

We perfor med testing over returns provisions in a
number of locauons, including US Higher Educauon

Ve tested the calculation of the provisions, assessing
judgernents for reasonableness aganst historical
experience and the impact on returns of the ongoing
business transition from print to digital

We also performed detailled tesung of shipment and
rewerns provisioning This included checking cut-off at
year end and evaluating whether any changes in shipping
volumes around year end rightincrease the risk of
returns MNao misstatements were identfied

We evaluated changes in esumates to check they were
notindicators of managementbias Ve found the
esumates used by managementin the determination
of the returns provisions to appropriately reflect both
past experience and changes in the business
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Area of facus

How our audit addressed the avex of focus

Recoverability of pre-pubhication assets and inventories

Refer to notes 20 and 2| to the consoldated financial
statements The Group has £820m of pre-publicatton
assets and £224m of inventores at 31 December 2014
Pre-publication assets represent direct costs mcurred
in the development of education programmes and tithes
prior to their publicauon and inventones are unsold
stock. usually physical textbooks

Judgement s required 1o assess the recoverability of
these assets, this 1s further complicated by the transiton
to digital as the Group mvests in new, less proven, digital
content and platforms

We first selected a sample of costs deferred to the
balance sheet as pre-publication assets or inventories to
test thetr appropriateness and magnitude

We then assessed the amortisation profiles of pre-
publication assets aganst cash flows to test that the
existing amorusaton profiles remained appropriate In
hight of the transition towards digitat products

We challenged the cai rying value of certan pre-
publication assets and inventories where sales have been
lower than originally anticipated VWe assessed forecast
cash flows aganst histoncal experience and obtamed
supporting evidence formanagement’s explanatons

We found the Group's policies to be appropriate and
consistently applied While the carrying value of some
assets depends on management’s expectation of growth
infuture sales from them overall we considered the
carrying values of pre-publication assets and inventornes
tobe reasonable

Acquisitions and disposals

Refer to notes 30 and 31 to the consolidated financial
staternents In February 2014 the Group acquired
Grupe Multi for £437m, recogrising £240m of goodwill
and £254m of intangible assets This s a significant
transaction requiring judgement to identify and value
the intangible assets and assess their subsequent
recoverability

As part of the Penguin Random House transaction the
Group recorded an estmated £59m prowsionin 2013
for the cost of transferring the pension hiability guarantee
for Pengun employees to Bertelsmann Itwas concluded
during 2014 that Pearson would retan responsibility for
this pension llability The provision has been released
within discontinued operations in the current year

in February 2014 the Group sold Mergermarket for
£375m, resultng in a gan on disposal of £245m pre-tax
and judgemental dassification as discontinued
operations

The Group engagement team visited Braxl and met
with focal management of Grupo Multi to gain an
unde: standing of the bustness

We performed detarled testing over the acquisiion
accountung, ncluding far value adjustments such as
dentfication and valuatuon of intangible assets Post-
acquisiuon performance and forecasts were assessed
o identfy potential impairment triggers

We obtained the communication between Pearson

and Bertelsrmann confirming that Pearson will retain
responsibility for the pensien hability of the legacy
Penguin employees We tested the appropriate reversal
of the provision within discontinued operations

We tested the gain on disposal for Mergermarket by
agreeing the consideraton to sales documents and
cash recewved and agreed the net assets disposed to
underlying records We also evaluated its presentauon
in the Annual report

No matenal misstatements were idenufied by our
testing and we found that relevant disclosures were
mcluded i the Annual report




How we tailored our audit scope

We tallored our audit scope to ensure that we
performed enough work to be able to give an opimen on
the financial statements as a whole taking into account
the geographic structure of the Grong, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the
Group operates

The Group 1s orgamised into three reportable segments,
being North America, Core and Growth, plus the
investment in associate Penguin Random House

Each segment comprises a number of reporting units
The consohdated financial statements compnse these
reportng units plus the Group's centralised functions

In establishing the overall approach to the Group audit,
we determined the type of work that needed to be
performed at the reporung units by us, as the Group
engagement team, or component auditors within

PwC UK and from other PwC network firms operating
under our nstruction Where the work was performed
by component auditors, we determined the level of
tnvolvement we needed to have in the audit work at
those reporting units to be able to conclude whether
sufficient appropriate audit evidence had been obtained
as a basis for our opinion on the consolidated finanaial
statements as a whole

During the year the Group engagement team visited
each of the US, Brazian, Chunese and South African
component audit teams, held a planning meeting
attended by partners from the Group engagement team
and our UK and US component teams, and had regular
dialogue with component teams throughout the year

We identified two reporting umits in the US and UK that
required an audit of their complete financial inforrmation
due to size alone, plus a further I3 reportng units in the
LS, UK, Brazit, China and South Africa that required
erther an audit or speafied procedures on certan
transactions and balances We also obtamned an audit
opirion on the financial nformation of the associate
Penguin Random House The Group consolidauon,
financtat statement disclosures and corporate functions
were audited by the Group engagement team This
ncluded our work over derivauve financial instruments,
hedge accounting, goodwili and intangible assets
impairment reviews, lingation pensions and share-
based payments

Secuen 5 Hnanual statenents ne

The reporung units where we performed audit worle,
together with work performed at corporate functions,
shared service centres and consolidated Group level
accounted for approximately 74% of the Group's
statutory profit before tax and 65% of adjusted profit
before tax Thus provided the evidence we needed for
our opian on the consolhdated financial statements
taken as a whele

Materiahty The scope of our audit was influenced by our
apphcation of materility We set certain quanutative
thresholds for materiality These, together with
qualitative considerations, helpad us to deterrmine the
scope of our audit and the nature, tring and extent

of our audit procedures and 1o evaluate the effect of
misstatements, both indvidually and on the financial
statements as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined
materality for the financial statements as a whole
as follows

Overall group £26m (2013 £32m)

materiality
4% of adjusted profit before tax
of £658m

Rattonale for Note 8 explains that the Group’s

benchmark applied prmcipal measure of performance
s adjusted operating profit
(£722m), which excludes one-off
gains and losses and acquired
intangible asset amorusation,
n order to present results from
operaung actuvities on a consistent
basis Fromadjusted operaung
profit we deducted net finance
costs of £64m {see note B) because
these reflect recurring finance
charges To the resulting adjusted
profit before tax we then applied
4% (rather than the usual 5%) as
our materiality calculanon was
based on this adjusted measure

How we
determined 1t

We agreed with the audit committee that we would
report to them nusstaterments identfied during our audsit
above £2m {2013 £2m) as well as russtatements befow
that amount that, i our view, warranted reportng for
quahtatve reasons
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Pearson plc continued

Going concern Under the Lisung Rules we are required
to review the directors’ statement, set out on page 107,
in relation to going concern We have nothingto report
having performed our review

As noted in the directors’ statement, the directars have
concluded that it 1s appi opriate 1o prepare the financial
statements using the gong concern basis of accountng
The going concern basis presumes that the Group

and company have adequate resources to remain in

operaton, and that the directors mtend them to do
s0, for at least one year from the date the financial
statements were signed As part of aur audit we have
concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern
basis 1s appropriate

However because notall future events or condiuons can
be predicted these statements are not a guarantee as

to the Group’s and company's ability to continue as a
gOINg concern

Other required reporung

Consistency of other informauon

Companies Act 2006 opinion In aur opinion the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report
for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

{SAs (UK & Ireland) reporung

Under 1SAs (UK & Ireland) we are required to report 1o you if, In our opinion

) Informaton in the Annual reportis
— materially inconsistent with the information i the audited
financial staterments
— apparently matertally incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with,
our knowledge of the group and company acquired ir: the course of
performing our audit
—otherwise misleading

» The statement given by the directors on page 108, in accordance with
provision C | 1 of the UK Corporate Governance Code (the Code’), that
they consider the Annual report taken as a whole to be fair, batanced and
understandable and provides the mformatton nacessary for members to
assess the Group's and company’s performance, business model and strategy
1s matenally inconsistent with our knowledge of the Group and company
acquired in the course of performing our audit

» The secuon of the Annual report on pages 74 and 75, as required by provision

C 3 8 of the Code, describing the work of the audit committee does not
appropriately address matters communicated by us to the audit comrmittee

We have no exceptions to report
artsing from this responsibility

We have no exceptions to report
arsing from this responsibility

We have no exceptions 1o report
ansing from this responsibility

Adequacy of accountng records and wformation and
explanations recerved

Under the Comparues Act 2006 we are required to
reportto you if, in our opinion

» We have not received all the nformauon and
explanations we require for our audit

» Adequate accounung records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been recewved from branches not visited by us

» The company financial statements and the part of the
directors’ remuneration report to be audited are notin
agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have no exceptions to report arising from
thus responsibility




Directors’ remuneration

Drrector s’ remuneration report — Cormpames Act
2006 opimion tn our opinion, the part of the directors’
remuneration report to be audited has been properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006

Other Companies Act 2006 reporting Under the
Compantes Act 2006 we are required to report to
youif, in our opinion, cet tain disclosures of directors’
remuneration specified by law are not made We have
no exceptions to 1 epot t arising from this responsibilicy

Corporate gover nance statement

Under the Listing Rules we are required to review the
part of the corporate governance statement relaung 1o
the company's compliance with ten provisions of the
Code We have nothing to report having performed
our review

Responsibilittes for the financral statements and
the audit

Our responsibifines and those of the directors

As explamed more fully in the statement of directors’
responsibilites set out on page 109, the directors

are responsible for the preparauon of the financat
statements and for bemng sausfied that they pive a true
and far view

Our responsibility ts to audit and express an opnion on
the financial statements in accordance with applicable
faw and ISAs (UK & Ireland) Those standards require
us to comply with the Audiing Practices Board s Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report, including the optrions, has been prepared
for and only for the company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and forno other purpose We do not, 1 giving
these opiions, accept or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or to any other person to whom this
reportis shown or nto whose hands it may come save
where expressly agreed by our prtor consent in writing

Section 5 Financal -tatements 124

VWhat an audit of finanaial statements involves

An audit savolves obtaining evidence about the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements sufficent to
give reasonable assurance that the financial statements
are free from materal misstatement, whether caused
by fraud or error Thisincluges an assessment of

» Whether the accounung pohcies are appropriate to the
group’s and the company's circumstances and have been
consistently applied and adequately disclosed

» The reasonableness of significant accounting estmates
made by the directors

» The overall presentauion of the financial statements

We primarily focus ourwork in these areas by assessing
the directors’ judgements against available evidence,
forming our own judgements, and evaluating the
disclosures in the financial statements

We test and examine informaton, using sampling and
other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider
necessary, 10 provide a reasonabie basis for us to draw
conclusions We obtain audit evidence through tesung
the effectiveness of controls substantive procedures or
a combination of both

In additton, we read all the financial and non financial
informauon inthe Annual report to idenufy matertal

inconsistencies with the audited finanoal statements and

to identify any informaton that s apparently materafly
incerrect based on, or materally inconsistent with, the
knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing
the audit if we became aware of any apparent material
rsstatemnents or Inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Lyt Newomen

Stuart Newman (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors
Lendon, United Kingdom

2 March 2015

{1 The mamtenance and iptegnty of the Pearson ple webutens the
responsiblity of the directors theworlccarried out by the sudtors does
notmvelve considet ation of these matters and accordingly the audiory
acceptna responsibifily for any chinges that may have orwarred o the
fingnoal statements since they were intally presented on the website

{b) Legislanon 1 the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemumaven of inancial statements mar differ frem tegislauonin
other junsdictsens
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Consolidated income statement
Year ended 3|1 December 2004

Al figures in £ mifhans etes 2014 203
Sales 2 4,874 5.069
Cast of goods sold 4 {2,202) {2312)
Gross pt ofit 2672 2,757
Operating expenses 4 (2.325) (2.353)
Share of results of joint ventures and associates [} 51 54
Operating profit 2 398 458
Finance costs 6 (14%) (en
Frnance income 6 48 35
Profit before tax 305 g2
Income tax 7 (63) (87)
Profit for the year from conunuing operauons 242 295
Profit for the year from discontinued operations 3 228 244
Profit for the year 470 539
Axtributable to

Equity holders of the company 471 538
Non-controfling interest (n !
Earnings per share for profit from continuing and discontnued operations

attributable to equity holders of the company during the year

{expressed in pence per share)

—basic ] 58 ip 66 6p
—diluted 8 580p 66 5p
Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations artributable to

equity holders of the company during the year

(expressed in pence per share)

—basic 8 300p 364p
— diluted 8 299 363p




—_— ——————

Secuon 5 Fwanoal st ife nents £23

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 December 2014

Al figures i £ nuflions Hotes 2044 2013 g

Profit for the year 470 539 -
o

lters that may be reclassified to the income statement S

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign operauons — Group 150 (206} &

Net exchange differences on translation of foreign oper ations — associates 25 (n

Currency transtation adiusiment disposed — Group (2) (18)

Attributable tax 7 (6) &

Items that are not reclassified to the income statement

Remeasurement of reurement benefit obhgations — Group 15 23 79 e

Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations — associates (15} - ;

Attributable tax ? () (23) E

QOther comprehensive income/(expense) for the year 174 (173) §

Total comprehensive income for the year 644 366 E

Attributable to

Equity holders of the company €45 369

Non-controlling interest (H 3)
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Consolidated balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Afl figures.n £ miflions Motes 2014 2613
Assets
Nen-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1o 334 342
Intangible assets t 6310 5.801
Investments in joInt ventures and assocates i2 t,418 1092
Deferred income tax assets 13 295 250
Financial assets — dervative financial instruments 16 920 AR
Retirement benefit assets 25 190 B6
Other financiat assets 15 54 24
Trade and other recevables by 82 70
8,473 7,846
Current assets
Intangible assets — pre-publication p1 820 717
Inventories 2 224 224
Trade and other recewvables 2 1,310 1,173
Financal assets — dervauve financial instruments i 24 13
Financial assets — marketable securities 14 16 é
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 7 530 729
2924 2,862
Assets classified as held for sale E7] - 223
Total assets 11,397 10,93t
Labiliues .
MNon-current liabiliuies
Financial habiives — borrowings te (1,883) (1.693)
Financial habihtes — derivative financial instruments 1 {73) {48)
Deferred income tax labihities 13 (714) (612)
Reurement benefit obhigations 25 {f63) (142)
Provisions for other liabiliies and charges 23 (82) (77}
Other habiliues 24 (310 (257}

(3225  (2.829)

Current habihities

Trade and other liabilities 2 {1,601} (1.505)
Financal habilites ~ borrowings 18 {342) (533)
Finanaal habiites - denvative financal instruments 1 (1) -
Current income tax babilities {190} {led)
Prowisions for other liabihues and charges 23 (33) (112)

(2.187) {2314)
Liabilities diractly assoctated with assets classified as held for sale n - (82)
Total habilities (5.412) (5,225}

Net assets 5,985 5706




Sectuon 5 Financal statements

Consolidated balance sheet continued
As at 31 December 2014

{25

All fipures m £ mi¥ions Netes 2014 1043 g
Equicy o
Share capitat 2 205 205 £
Share premum 7 2.579 2,568 a
Treasury shares 2 {75} {98}
Translauon reserve 70 (103)
Retained earnings 3,200 3,128
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the company 5979 5700
Non-controfling interest, & 6 S—
Toral equity . 5985 5706 &
These financial statements have been approved for issue by the board of diregtors on 3 March 2015 and signed oniits o
behaif by §
L ‘2
Robin Freestone Chief financial officer z
n
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

Year ended 31 December 2014

Lquity astributible to equity holder s of the company

Share  Share  Treasury Traashanen  Rewaned mnu:':r'\: Total

Ailfigures in £ millions capul  premium shares  reserve  earmings Totel  ncerest equity
Ac | Janvary 2014 205 2568 (98) (103) 3,128 5700 6 5706

Profit for the year - - - - 471 471 {t) 470
| Other comprehensive income - - - t73 | 174 - 174
Total comprehensive iIncome - - - 173 472 645 () 644
Equity-setded transactions - - - - 32 32 - 32
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - 3) (3) - 3)
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes - I - - - I - ik
Purchase of treasury shares - - (9) - - {9 - )]
Release of tieasury shares - - 32 - (32) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - - - 2 2
Dividends - - - - (39N (397 {1y {398)
At 31 December 2014 205 2579 {75) 70 3200 5979 & 5985

Equay antrbutable to equity hoiders of the company Non
Shyre Suste  Treasury Translaton  Rerancd conu oing Torat

All Gigures In £ nuflions Gt prumum  shares  reserve  Larmings Total  serest  cquity
At | january 2013 204 2555  (103) 128 2902 5,686 24 5710

Profit for the year - - - - 538 538 | 539

Cther comprehensive expense - - - 231 62 (l69) @ (173)
Total comprehensive income - - - (231) 600 369 (3) 366
Equity-setded transactions - - - - 37 37 - 37
Tax on equity-settled transactions - - - - - - - -
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes | (3 - - - 14 - 14
Purchase of treasury shares - - 47) - - (47) - (47)
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) - - -
Changes in non-controlling interest - - - - 13 13 (I5) (2)
Dvidends - - - - (372} (372 - (373
At 31 December 2013 205 2568 (98) (103) 3.128 5700 6 5706

The translation reserve inctudes exchange differences arsing from the translation of the net investment i foreign

oper ations and of borrowings and other currency instruments destgnated as hedges of such nvestments Changes
in non-controling interest n 2014 refate to the disposal of a non-controfinginterestin a Chinese business (n 2013,
the group purchased non-controlling interests in the South African and Indian businesses
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Consolidated cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2014

Allfigures in £ mdtiars Noes 204 013 2
Cash flows fi om operating activities o
Net cash generated from operavons 34 704 €84 “ZS
Interest pvd (86) (B2) a
Tax pad _(183) (246)

Net cash generated from operating activities ) B 455 356 -

Cash flows fi om investing actvities

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash acquired 30 {448) (48)
Acquisitton of joint ventures and associates (12) (o 5
Purchase of investments 3} (64) ’E
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (75) (118) %
Purchase of mtangible assets (107) (64) g
Dusposal of subsidiartes, net of cash disposed 3 327 {132) E
Proceeds from sale of associates 39 2

Proceeds from sale of mvestments 9 2

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 34 9 28

Proceeds from sale of ntangible assets 2 2 o
Proceeds from sale of liquid resources i2 i3 E
Loans to related parues (10) (44) 8
Loans advanced {(2) (5) ;
tnvestment in hquid resources (22) (14) g
Interest recewved i3 9 B
Pvidends received from joint ventures and associates (20 64

Net cash used in investing activities (148) (379)

Cash flows from financing actvities =
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 7 H 14 §
Purchase of treasury shares pl it {47 g
Proceeds from borrowings 404 319 E
Repayment of borrowings {538) (225)

Finance lease principal payments ) (8)
Dvidends paid to company's shareholders ‘ 9 (397) (372)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (1) -

Purchase of non-~controfling interest 3 - MU
Met cash used in financing acuvities o {534 (395) g
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivatents 2 21 ;
MNet decrease i cash and cash equivalents (229) (3-‘;5 %'
Cash and cash equivalenis at begmning of year L 740 137 §
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year i 511 746 %

The consolidated cash flow statementincludes discontinued operations (see note 3)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

General informaton

Pearson plc {the company), its subsidiaries and
assoaates (together the Group) are internauonal
bustnesses covering education, business information
and consumer publishing

The company 1s a public limited company incorporated
and domiciied n England The address of its registered
office 1s 80 Strand, London WC2R ORL

The company has tts primary hsung on the London
Stock Exchange and 1s also listed on the New Yori
Stock Exchange

These consalidated financial statements were approved
for issue by the board of directors on @ March 2015

| Accounting policies

The principal accounting policies apphed in the
preparation of these consolidated financ:al statements
are set out below

a. Basis of preparaton

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the going concern basis and in accordance
with internanonal Financral Reporung Standards (IFRS)
and IFRS Interpretations Committee interpretatons as
adopted by the European Union (EU) and with those

parts of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to compantes

reporung under {FRS in respect of the accounung
standards applicable to the Group there 15 no difference
between EU-adopted and IASB-adopted IFRS

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost conventton as
modified by the revaluauon of financal assets and
lrabihties (induding dervatve financial instruments)
to fair value through profitor loss

| Interpretations and amendments to pubhshed
standards eflective 2014 The following amendments
and interpretations were adopted in 2014

s Amendments to 1FRS 10, {FRS 12 and IAS 27,
‘Investment Entines, effective for annual reporung
periods beginning on or after { January 2014 These
amendments provide an exemption from consolidation
of subsidiartes for entines which meet the definwon of
an mvestment entrty.

» Amendments to [AS 39, ‘Novauon of Denvatives and
Continuaton of Hedge Accounung’, effective for annual
reporung penods begianing on or after | fanuary 2014
The amendments mean there would be no need to
discontinue hedge accounung if a hedge denvative was
novated and certain crnteria met

» Amendments to |AS 32, ‘Financal Instruments
Presemauon eflective for annual reporung perods
beginning on ar after 1 January 2014 The amendments
clarify some of the requirements for offsetting financral
assets and financial habiities on the balance sheet

yIFRIC 21 ‘Levies , effective for annual reporung periods
beginning on or after | January 2014 This details the
accounuing for an obligation to pay alevy thatis not
ncome tax

The adoption of these new pronouncements from
{ January 2014, does not have a material impact on the
consolidated finanaal statements

2 Standards, interpretations and amendments

to published standards that are not yet effecuve The
Group has not early adopted the following new
pronouncements that are not yet effective

3 IFRS 9 *Financiat Instruments’, effective for annual
reportng periods beginning on or after | january 2018
The new standard details the requirements for the
classefication, measurement and recognition of financial
assets and hiabiliuies The Group s yet to assess the full
impact of IFRS 9

» IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’,
effecuve for annual reporting periods begining on
or after | January 2017 The new standard speafies
how and when an entity will recognise revenue, and
requires more detailed disclosure Adoption of the
new standard s licely to have an impact on the Group
and management s currently assessing the impact

3 Cnitical accounting assumptions and judgements The
preparation of financial staterments in conformity with
[FRS requires the use of certain crtical accounting
assumptions it also requires management Lo exerase
its judgement In the process of applying the Group's
accountng policies The areas requiring a higher degree
of judgement or complesaty, or areas where assumpticns
and estimates are significant to the conschdated financial
statements, are discussed in the refevant accounting
policies under the following headmgs and in the notes

to the accounts whet e appropriate




| Accountng policies contmued

a Basis of preparation continued

Consolidation Business combinations — determinauon
of fair values

Consolidavon Bustness combinations —classification
of investrments

Intangible assets Goodwll

Intangible assets Pre-publication assets

Taxation

Employee benefits Pensions

Revenue recognition

b Consohdation
{ Business combinations The acquisition rmethod of
accounuing 1s used to account for business combmatons

The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary 1s the fair value of the assets transferred, the
liabhues incurred and the equity interest ssued by the
Group The censideraton transferred includes the fair
value of any asset or habiity resulung from a contingent
considerauon arrangement Acquisiuon related costs
are expensed as incurred i the operaung expenses line
of the mcome statement

Idenufiable assets and contingent assets acqumred and
identifiable habilities and contingent habihties assumed m
a business combinavon are measured mnally at thewr fair
values at the acquisttion date The determinauon of faw
values often requires significant judgements and the use
of estimates, and for material acquisitions, the fair value
ofthe acquired intangible assets 1s determined by an
independent valuer The excess of the considerauon
transferred, the amount of any non-contralling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded
as goodwill

See note le(l} for the accounting policy on goadwill
If this 15 less than the fair value of the net assets of
the subsidiary acquired. in the case of abargan
purchase, the difference Is recognised directly in
the income statement

Section § Nnanual stetements 129

Qn an acquisition-by-acguistuon basis, the Group
recognises any non-controlling nterest i the acquiree
either at far value or at the non controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets

Management exercises judgement in determining the
classification of its investments in its businesses, in line
with the following

2 Subsidianes Subsidiaries are entities over whuch the
Group has controt The Group controls an entity when
the Group s exposed to, or has nghts to, variable
returns from its invalvement with the entity and has the
abiliy to affect those returns through its power over the
enuty Subsidiaries are fully consolhdated from the date
onwhich control is transferred to the Group They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases

3 Transactions with non-controlling nterests
Transactions with non-controlling interests that do

not resultin loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, that is as transactions with the ownersin
therr capacity as owners Any surplus or defiat arising
from disposals te a non-controlling interest is recorded
i equity For purchases from anon-conurolling interest,
the difference between consideration pard and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of the
subsidiary 1s recorded in equity

4 ot ventures and associates Joint ventures are
entives n which the Group holds an interest on a long-
term basis and has rights to the net assets through
contractually agreed sharing of control Associates are
entuties over which the Group has significant nfluence
but not the power to control the financiat and operatng
policies, generally accompanying a shareholding of
batween 20% and 50% of the voung rights Investments
In [oint ventures and associates are accounted for by
the equity method and are irutially recogrused at the faw
value of consideration transferred

The Group's share of its joint ventures’ and associates’
post-acquistuion profits or losses 1s recogrised i the
income statement and its share of post-acquisition
movements In reserves 1s recognised in reserves
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

l. Accounung policies continued

b Consolidation conunued

The Group's share of 1ts joint ventures’ and associates’
results 1s recogmsed as a component of operatng profit
as these operanons form part of the core publishing
business of the Group and are an integral partof
existing wholly-owned businesses The cumulative post-
acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying
amount of the Investment When the Group's share of
losses in a joint venture or associate equals or exceeds
Its interest in the joint venture or associate, the Group
does not recognise further losses unless the Group has
ncurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
jomnt venture or assocrate

5 Contribution of a subsidiary to an associate or joint
venture The gam or loss resulung from the contribution
or sale of a subsichary to an associate or a joint venture
1s recognised in full Where such transactions do not
involve cash consideration, significant judgements and
estimates are used n determining the fair values of the
consideration recerved

¢ Foreign currency translation

| Funcuonal and presentation currency items included
in the financial statements of each of the Group’s enuties
are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(the 'functional currency’y The consolidated financial
statements are presented in sterling, wiich s the
company's funcuonat and presentation currency

2 Transacuons and balances Foreign currency
transactians are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevaihing at the dates of the
transaciions Foreign exchange gains and fosses resulung
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabihties denomynated in foreign currencies
are recognised in the income statement, except when
deferred in equity as qualifying net mvestment hedges

3 Group companies The results and financal positon
of all Group compantes that have a functional currency
different from the presentation currency are transiated
into the presentauon currency as follows

1) Assets and habilities are translated at the closing rate at
the date of the balance sheet

1) Income and expenses are transtated at average
exchange rates

) All resutuing exchange differences are recognsed as
a separate component of equity

On consohdaton exchange differences anising from
the translanon of the net investrment in foreign entities,
and of borrowings and other currency mstruments
designated as hedges of such investments, are taken
to shareholders' equity The Group treats specific
inter-company loan balances, which are notintended
to be repatd in the foreseeable future, as part of its net
investment When a foreign operation is sold, such
exchange differences are recognised in the ncome
statement as part of the gan or loss on sale ,

The principal overseas currency for the Group 1s the
US dollar The average rate for the year against steriing
was $1 65 (2013 $1 57) and the year end rate was

$1 56 (2013 §l 66)

d Property, plant and equipment

Property. plant and equipment are stated at historical
costless depreciation Cost includes the original
purchase price of the asset and the costs atinibutable to
bringing the asset to its working condition for intended
use Land s not depreciated Depreciation on other
assets is calculated using the straght-line method to
allocate thewr cost less their residual values over thew
estimated usefu! ives as follows

20-50 years
over the period of the lease

Buildings {freehold )
Buildings (leasehold)

Plantand equipment 310 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date

The carrying value of an asset s written down to its
recoverable amount if the carrying value of the asset
s greater than its esumated recoverable amount

e Intangible assets

| Gooduwill For the acquisition of subsidiaries made on
or after | January 2010, goodwill represents the excess
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition
date fawr value of any previaus equity intei est in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acqured Forthe acquisiion of subsidianes made from
the date of transition to FRS to 3| December 2009
goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the
net identfiable assets acquired Goodwill on acquistuons
of subsidiaries 1s included in intangible assets Goodwill
on acquisitton of associates and jont ventures represents
the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the far
value of the Group's share of the netidentfiabla assets




I Accouneing policies continued

e Intangible assets continued

acquired Goodwill on acquisiions of associates and
jomnt ventures s mcluded in investments i associates
and joint ventures

Gooadwill 1s tested annually for impairment and carried at
cost less accumulated imparment losses An impairment
loss 1s recognised to the extent that the carrying value

of goodwill exceeds the recoverable amount The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
to sell and value in use These calculations require the
use of estimates and significant management judgement
A description of the key assurmpuions and sensitivities ts
included Innote 11 Goodwillis allocated to aggregated
cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment
testing The allocation s made to those aggregated cash-
generaung units that are expected to benefit from the
business combinanion i which the goodwili arose

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold

IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations’ has not been apphed
retrospectvely to business combinations before the
date of transition to {FRS

2 Acquired software Software separately acquired for
internal use 1s capitalised at cost Software acquired Iin
material business combinations is capitalised at s far
value as determmed by an independent valuer Acquired
software is amaortsed on a straight-lne basis over 1ts
esumated useful ife of between three and eight years

3 Internally developed software internal and external
costs incurred during the preliminary stage of developing
computer software for internal use are expensed
asincurred Internal and external costs incurred to
develop computer software for internal use during
the applicaton development stage are capitahsed

if the Group expects economic benefits from the
development Capitalisauon in the application
development stage begins once the Group can rehiably
measure the expenditure attnbutable to the software
development and has demonstrated its intention to
complete and use the software Internally developed
software 1s amortised on a straight-line basis overits
esumated useful lfe of berween three and eight years

Sectian 5 Dinancal statecnents 131

4 Acquired intangble assets Acquired intangible assets
include customer lists, contracts and relationships,
trademarls and brands, publishing rights, content.
technology and sofoware rights These assets are
cepitahsed onacquistaon at costand mcluded
mtangible assets Intangible assets acquiied in material
business combinations are capitalised at thew fair value
as determined by an independent valuer Intangible
assets are amortised over their estimated useful hves
of between two and 20 yegars, using an amorusaton
method that reflects the pattern of their consumption

5 Pre-publication assers Pre-publication assets
represent direct costs incurred in the development

of educational programmes and titles prtor to thewr
publicauon These costs are recognised as current
mtangbie assets where the title wilt generate probable
future economic benefits and costs can be measured
rehably Pre-publication assets are amortised upon
publicauon of the utle over estmated economic ives
of five years or less, being an estmate of the expected
operaung life cycle of the ttle, with a tugher proportion
of the amorusation taken i the earlier years

The investment in pre-publication assets has been
disclosed as part of cash gener ated from operations in
the cash flow statement (see note 34)

The assessment of the recoverability of pre-publicatton
assets and the determinaton of the amortisation profile
involve a significant degree of judgement based on
historical trends and management estimation of future
potental sales An incorrect amortsation profile could
result in excess amounts being carried forward as
intangible assets that would otherwise have been
wiitten off to the income statement in an earlier peried

Reviews are performed regularly to estimate
recoverabihty of pre-publication assets The carrying
amount of pre-publication assets is set out in note 20

f Other financial assets

Other financial assets, designated as avalable for sale
nvestments, are non-dervative financial assets
measured at esumated faw value Changes inthe far
value are recorded m equity in the farr value reserve
On the subsequent disposal of the asset, the net fair
value gains or losses are taken to the Income statement

I
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{. Accountng policies continued

g Inventories

Inventones are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value Cost s determined using the firstin
first out {FIFO) method The cost of firished goods and
work in progress comprises raw materials, directlabour,
other direct costs and relzted producton overheads
Net realisable value ts the estimated selting price in

the ordinary course of business less estimated costs
necessary to make the sale Provisions are made for
slow moving and obsolete stock

h Royalty advances

Advances of royalties to authors are ncluded within
trade and other recetvables when the advance 1s paid
fess any provision required to adjust the advance to

its net realisable value The realisable value of royatty
advances relies on a degree of management judgement
in deterrmining the profitability of individual author
contracts If the esumated realisable value of author
contracts 1s overstated this will have an adverse effect
on operating profits as these excess amounts will be
wrttten off

The recoverability of royalty advances is based upon an
annual detafed management review of the age of the
advance, the future sales projections for new authors
and prior sales histary of repeat authors.

The royalty advance s expensed at the contracted or
effective royalty rate as the related revenues are earned
Royalty advances which will be consumed within one
year are held wn current assets Royalty advances

which will be consumed after ane year are held in
non-currentassets.

1. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement
mnclude cash in hand, deposits held on call with banks,
other short-term highly hquid investments with original
maturittes of three months orless, and bank overdrafts
Bank overdrafts are included i borrowings in current
kabilities in the batance sheet

Short-term deposits and marketable securities with
maturines of greater than three months do not qualify as
e¢ash and cash equivalents Movements on these {inancial
nstruments are classified as cash flows from financing
actvities in the cash flow statement where these
armounts are used to offset the borrowings of the Group
or as cash flows from investing actiaties where these
amounts are held to generate an investment return

1 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity

Incremental costs directly ateributable to the issue
of new shares or options are shown Inequity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds

Where any Group company purchases the company’s
equity share capital {treasury shares) the consideraton
pad, ncluding any directly attributable mcremental
costs net of ncome taxes, 1s deducted from equity
attnibutable to the company’s equity holders untl the
shares are cancelled, reissued or disposed of Where
such shares are subsequently sold ar resssued, any
consideration recewved, net of any directly attnibutable
transaction costs and the related mcome tax effects,

is included n equity attributable to the company’s
equity holders

k Borrowtngs

Borrowings are recognised iniuially at fair value, which
i1s proceeds recerved net of transaction costs incurred
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost
with any difference between the proceeds (net of
transacuon costs) and the redemption value being
recogmised in the Income statement over the period
of the borrowngs using the effecuve interest method
Accrued nterest s included as part of borrowings
Where a debtinstrument s in a far value hedging
relationship, an adjustrnent s made to its carrying value
in the income statement to reflect the hedged risk
Interest on borrowings Is expensed in the mcome
statement as incurred

| Dervative financial instruments

Dervatives are recognised at fair value and remeasured
at each balance sheet date The fair value of dervatives
1s determined by using market data and the use of
established esumation techniques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation medels The Group
designates certain of the derivative instruments within
1ts portfolio 1o be hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{far value hedges) or hedges of net mvestments in
foreign operations {netinvestrment hedges)

Changes in the fair value of derivatives thatare
designated and quahbfy as far value hedges are recorded
in the ncome statement, together with any changes n
the fair value of the hedged asset or habidiy that are
attributable to the hedged risk




i Accounuing policies continued

I Dervauve financial instruments continued

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of
derivatives that are designated and qualsy as net
wwvestrent hedges are recogrised i other
comprehensive income Gans and losses accumulated
i equity are included in the income statement when
the corresponding foreign operatron 1s disposed of
Gans or losses relating to the ineffective poruon are
recognised immediately n finance income or finance
costs in the ncome statement

Certamn derwvatives do not qualify or are not designated
as hedging instruments  Such dervatives are classified
at fair value and any movement i thewr fair value 1s
recogmsed immediately in finance income or finance
€osts 1n the ncome statement

m Taxaticn

Current tax 1s recognised on the amounts expected to
be paid or recovered under the tax rates and laws that
have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date

Deferred income tax i1s provided, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and habilities and their carrying
amounts Deferred income tax is determined using tax
rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred tax asset s realised or
the deferred income tax habiity is settled

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
15 probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised

Deferred income tax ts provided inrespect of the
undistnbuted earmings of subsidiaries other than where
it s intended that those undistributed earmings will not
be remitted in the foreseeable future

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the income
statement, except when the tax relates to tems charged
or credited directly to equity or other comprehensive
nceme, 10 which case the tax s also recogrised m equity
or other comprehensive mcome

The Group s subject to Income taxes in nUMerous
jurisdictions Sigmificant judgement 1s required in
determuning the estimates in relation to the worldwide
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provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
15 uncertain during the ordinary course of business

The Group recognises labilities for anticipated tax
auditissues based on estimates of whether addmional
taxes will be due Where the final tax outcome of these
matters s different from the amounts that were mitally
recorded, such differences will smpact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the perrod n which such
determinauon s made

Deferred tax assets and liabilities require management
judgement in determining the amounts to be recognised
in parucutar, sigreficant judgement is used when assessing
the extent 1o which deferred tax assets should be
recognised with consideration given to the timmg and
level of future taxable income together with any future
tax planning strategies

n Employee benefits

| Pensions The retirement benefit asset and obligation
recognised in the balance sheet represents the net of
the present value of the defined benefit obligauon and
the fair value of plan assets at the balance sheet date
The defined benefic obligation s calculared annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit
methed The present value of the defined benefit
obligation 15 determined by discounting estmated future
cash flows using yelds on hugh quahty corporate bonds
which have terms to maturnty approximating the terms
of the related habiity

When the calculanion results in a potential asset, the
recognuon of that asset s mited ta the asset celling —
that s the present value of any ecanomic benefits
avatlable in the form of refunds from the plan or a
reduction in future contributtons Management use
judgement to determine the level of refunds available
from the plan n recogrising an asset

The determination of the pension cost and defined
benefit obligation of the Group's defined benefit
pension schemes depends on the selection of certan
assumpuons, which incude the discount rate, inflauon
rate, salary growth and fongewvity

Actuaral gans and losses arising from expenence
adjustments and changes 1 actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
tncome in the period inwhich they arise
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

1 Accounting policies continued

n Employee benefits continued

The ser vice cost, representing benefits accruing over
the year, 1s included in the income statement as an
operating cost. Net interest s calculated by applying
the discount rate to the net defined benefit obligation
and is presented as finance costs or finance mcome

Obiligations for contribuuons to defined cantnbution
penston plans are recognised as an operating expense
in the income statement as (incurred

2 Other post-retirement obligations The expected
costs of post-retirement medical and Ife assurance
benefits are accrued aver the period of employment,
using a similar accounting methadology as for defined
benefit pension obhgations The hzbihues and costs
relating to significant other post-retirement cbhigations
are assessed annually by ndependent quablfied actuanes

3 Share-based payments The farr value of options or
shares granted under the Group s share and option plans
ts recognised as an employee expense after taking into
account the Group’s best estmate of the number of
awards expected to vest Fair value (s measured at the
date of grant and 15 spread over the vesting penod

of the opuon or share The farvalue of the opuions
granted 1s measured using an option model that 1s
most appropriate to the award The fair value of shares
awarded 1s measured using the share price at the date
of grant unless another method is more appropriate
Any proceeds recewed are credited to share capstal
and share premwm when the options are exercsed

o Provistons

Provistons are recogrused if the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a resulit of past events,
1t1s more likely than not that an outflow of resources
wilt be required to settle the obhgation and the amount
can be relably estmated Prowvisions are discounted to
p1 esent value where the effectis matenal

The Group recogrises a provision far deferred
consideration at fan value Where this 1s conungent
on future performance or a future event, judgement
1s exercised in establishing the faw value

The Group recognises a provision for onerous lease
contracts when the expected benefits to be derwved
from a contract are less than the unavaidable costs of
meeting the obligauons under the contracet

The provision s based on the present value of future
payments for surplus leased properties under non-
cancellable operatng leases, net of estimated sub-
leasing income

p Revenue recogniuon

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or recevable for the sale of gocds and services
net of sales taxes, rebates and discounts, and after
eliminating safes within the Group

Revenue from the sale of books is recogrised when title
passes A provision for anticipated returns s made based
primarily on tistorical return rates If these estimates

do nat reflect actual returns in future penods then
revenues could be understated or overstated for a
parucular pencd

Cireulation and advertising revenue is recognised
when the newspaper or other publication is published
Subscripuon revenue 1s recognised an a straight-line
basis over the life of the subscription

Where a contractual arrangement consists of two or
more separate elements that can be provided to
customers erther on a stand-atone basis or as an
optional extra, such as the provision of supplementary
materals or online access with textbooks and multiple
deliverables within testing or service contracts, revenue
s recognised for each elerment as if it were an indradual
contractual arrangement

Revenue from multi-year contractual arrangements,
such as contracts to process qualifying tests for indvidual
professions and government departments, 1s recognised
as performance occurs The assumptions, risks, and
uncertainties inherent in long-term contract accounung
can affect the amounts and uming of revenue and related
expenses reported Certain of these arrangements,
either as a result of a single service spanning more than
ane reporung pertod or where the contractrequires
the proviston of a number of services that together
constitute a single project, are treated as long-term
contracts with revenue recognised on a percentage of
completion basis Percentage of completion s calculated
on a cost basis using the proportion of the total
esumated costs incurred to date Losses on contracts
are recognised in the pertod in which the loss first
becomes foreseeable Caontract fosses are determined
to be the armount by which esumated total costs of the
contract exceed the estimated total revenues that wll
be generated by the contract




i Accounung policies continued

p Revenue recognition contmnued

On certam contracts, where the Group acts as agent,
only commussions and fees receivable for services
rendered are recogmsed as revenue Any third-party
costsincurred on behalf of the principal that are
rechargeable under the contractual arrangement are
not included in revenue

tncome from recharges of freight and other activities
whrch are incidental to the normal revenue generating
actvities 1s inciuded 1n other ncome

g Leases

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the
Group has substanually all the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases Finance leases
are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at
the lower of the fair value of the [eased property and
the present value of the mimmum lease payments

Each lease payment s allocated between the hability
and finance charges to achueve a constant rate on the
finance halance outstanding The corresponding rental
obhigations, net of finance charges, areincluded in
financial habifiues — borrowings The interest elerment of
the finance cost1s charged to the Income statement over
the lease period to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
penod The property, plant and equipment acquired
under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter
of the useful life of the asset or the lease term

teases where a significant poruon of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases by the lessee Payments
made under operating leases (net of any incenuves
received from the lessor)} are charged to the ncome
statement on a straight-line basis aver the pernod of
the lease

r Dividends

Dividends are recoi ded in the Group's financial
statements i the period in which they zre approved
by the company's shareholders
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s Assets and liabilities held for sale

Assers and labihiues are classified as held for sale and
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell f itis highly probable that the carrying
amount will be recovered principally through a sale
transaction rather than through contnuing use No
deprecratton is charged in respect of non-current assets
classified as held for sale Amounts refating to non-
current assets and habiliues held for sale are classified
as disconunued operations in the ncome statement
where appropriate

t Trade receivables

Trade recevables are stated at far value after provision
for bad and doubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns (see also note Ip)

2 Segment information

From | january 2014 the Group has reorgamised and 1s
reporting new segmental analyses to reflect the new
structure and operaung model The primary segments
for management and reporting are geographies as
outined below ln addiuon, the group separately
discloses the results from the Penguin Random House
{PRH) associate

Continuing operations

North America School, Higher Education and
Professional businesses in US and Canada

Growth School, Higher Education and Professional
businesses in emerging markets which are investment
proriges, ncluding Brazil, China, India and South Afrnca

Core School, Higher Educauion and Professional
businesses in more mature markets including UK,
Australia and italy

in addiwon the Group separately discloses the results
of the Penguin Random House (PRH) assocrate

The results of the Mergermarket business to 4 February
2014 are shown as disconunued in the relevant years
The results of the Pengumn busimess to 30 June 2013 are
also shown as disconunued in 2013

Figures for 2013 have been restated to reflect the
new segments
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information contmued

For more detail on the services and products included in each business segment refer to the strategic report

2014
North Ducontmued
All figures i £ mullions Netes  Amenca Coie  Growh PRH Cerporate  cperanions Group
Conunuing operauons
Sales 2974 1,154 746 - - - 4874
Adjusted operattng profit 464 152 35 69 - - 720
Intangible charges (110) {22) (132) {54) - - (318}
Acquisition costs (2) {n 3 - - - {6)
Other net gains and losses 2 - - - - - 2
Operaung pi ofit/(loss) 354 129 {10C0) I5 - - 398
Finance costs 6 (141}
Finance mcome 6 48
Profit before tax 305
Income tax 7 (63)
Profit for the year from
conuNUINg operatons 242
Segment assets 6,646 1.566 1,407 - 660 - 10,279
Joint ventures 2 I 9 3 - - - i3
Associates 2 f 9 - 1,095 - - 1,105
Total assets 6,648 1,584 1,410 1,095 660 - 11,397
Other segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 2 - 19 (3 35 - - 51
Capital expenditure 1011 97 48 49 - - - 194
Pre-publicatron investment 20 209 77 72 - - - 358
Depreciauon t0 11 17 16 - - - 74
Amortisation 11 20 309 12 {21 - - - 542
i - — 77 - - - 77

Impairment
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2 Segment information continued &
o - 2013 -
Morth D seon nued E
Alfigures £ i hons Motes  Amenca Core  Growth PRH  Comorate  Operiong Group =
Conunuing operations g
Sales 3,073 {258 738 - - - 5069
Adjusted operaung profit 474 120 38 50 - - 682
intangible charges {106) (27} (33) (30) - - (196)
Acquisiion costs {2) &) (N - - - (12)
Other net gains and losses - (16) - - - - {(16) o
Qperaung profit/{loss) 366 74 2 20 - - 458 ;;
Finance costs 6 'an! 3
Finance income 5 35 g
Profit before tax 382 5
Income tax 7 (87}
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 295
Segment assets 6326 1450 98l - B9 23 9839 ¢
Joint ventures 12 | - 2 - - - 3 §
Associates 12 ! 18 t 070 - - 1,089 ks
Total assets 6328 1468 983 1070 859 223 1093t 3
[n}
-
Cther segment items
Share of results of joint ventures
and associates 12 ' 26 {4) 30 - - 54
Capital expenditure 10 41 25 46 33 - - | 175 8_
Pre-publication investment 20 202 90 72 - - - 364 5
Depreciation 10 46 19 I6 - - ! 82 g
Amorusation H 20 287 43 103 - - 2 535 X

fmpairment - -

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note 8

Included in other net gans and losses 1n conunuing operauons in 2014 are gains on the sale of joint venture interests
in Safart Boolks Onhine and CourseSmart (£40m} and a {oss on disposal of an mvestment in Nook Media (£38m)
included in other net gams and losses in 2013 1s aJoss on the disposal of the Japanese school and local publishing assets

Both operating profit and adjusted aperating profitn 2014 are stated after the following restructuring charges North
America £37m, with estimated in year benefits of £2Im Core £22m, with estmated in year benefits of £10m, Growth
£6m, with estimated in year benefits of £2m, Penguin Random House £19m, with esumated i year benefits of £/m

Both operating profit and adjusted operatng profitin 2013 are stated after the following reseructuring charges North
America £77m, with esumated in year benefits of £24m, Core £63m, with esurnated in year benefits of £13m, Growth
£36m, wath esumated in year benefits of £4m
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

2 Segment information continued

In 2014, sales from the provision of goods were £2,7t1m {203 £2,867m) and sales from the prowvision of services
were £2,163m (2013 £2,202m) Sales from the Group's educational publishing. consumer publistung and newspaper
business are dlassified as being from the provision of goods and sales ff om its assessment and testing and other service
businesses are classified as bemg from the provision of services There were no matertal inter-segment sales

Corporate costs are allocated to business segments mcluding discontinued operations on an appropriate basis
depending on the nature of the cost, therefore the segment resultis equal to the Group operating profit Segment
assets consist of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, Inventories, recewvables, deferred rtaxation and other
financial assets and exclude cash and cash equivalents and dervative assets Corporate assets comprise cash and cash
equivalents, marketable securiues and derivauve financial nstruments Capital expenditure comprises addivons to
property, plant and equipment and software (see notes [0 and 11}

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets acquired through business combinaton were £263m (2013
£202m) (see note 30) In 2013, capital expenditure, depreciation and amorusation included amounts relating to
disconunued operations

The Group operates in the following main geographic areas

Siles #on current assets
All figures in £ millons 2014 2013 2014 2013
Contnuing operations
UK 610 649 1,056 i.068
Other European countries 347 366 180 200
us 2826 2,213 5,243 5,026
Canada 10 {78 288 304
Asia Pacfic 598 624 416 495
Other countries 383 389 661 215
Total continuing 4874 5,069 7844 7305
Discontinued opetations
UK 4 97 - -
Other European countries - 49 - -
us 4 369 - -
Canada - 24 - -
Asia Pacific I 74 - -
Other countries - 8 - -
Total discontinued G 621 - -
Toral 4883 5,690 7,844 7.305

Sales are allocated based on the country i which the customer is located This does not differ materially from the
location where the order 1s received The geographical split of non-current assets Is based on the subsidiary’s country
ofdomucite This s not materially different to the location of the assets Non-currentassets comprise property, plant
and equipment, intangible assets, investments in joint ventures and associates and trade and other recewables
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3 Discontinued operations 5
Bisconunued operations relate to Pengun and Mergermarket é
An anafysis of the results and cash flows of discanuinued operatons is as follows :zm“ﬂ
2014 T 0 é
Al figures i £ mulions Pengun  Merger marker Tortal renpun  DMerger marker Total
Sales - 9 9 513 108 621
Operating profit - 2 2 28 24 52
Finance income - - - I - { o
Profit before tax - 2 2 29 24 53 %
Income tax - (H (" {9 % (18 =
Profic after tax - [ | 20 (5 35 %
Profit on disposal of Pengum 29 - 29 202 - 202 z
Attributable tax benefit - - - 15 - I5 m
Profit on disposal of Mergermarket - 244 244 - - -
Aatributable tax expense - (46) {46) - - -
Mergermarket transaction costs - - - - {8) ®
Profitfor the year from discontinued o N e
Operations 29 199 228 237 7 244 =
Operating cash flows ~ 2 2 36 22 58 8
Investng cash flows - - - (&) @) ) ;
Financing cash flows - - - (8) (29) 37 %
Totaf cash flows ~ 2 2 22 2] 13 -
included within the cost of disposal of Penguin in 2013 are amounts in respect of the settlement of lugation related to
the agency arrangement for eBooks Also included i cost of disposal for Penguin for 2013 was a prowision for amounts
payable to Bertelsmann upon settlement of the transfer of Penguin's UK past service pension habiliues 1o the new PRH
venture Durtng 2014, nwas deaded that this transfer would not go ahead as planned and the costs have been credited 5
bacin the £29m gain reported aganst the disposal in 2014 ﬁ
4 Operatng expenses g
Allfigures n £ mihons 2014 w0 m
By function
Cost of goods sold 2,202 2312
Operating expenses
Distobution costs 87 90
Selling, markeung and product development costs 963 1027
Admunistrative and other expenses 1,315 1162 %
Restructuring costs B4 176 g
Other net gains and losses (2) 16 =
Otherincome (122} (118} 5
Toral net operating expenses 2,325 2,353 § .
Total ~ 4527 4665 [

Included in other income is service fee Income from Penguin Random House of £41m (2013 £28m) Included in
admuustrative and other expenses are research and efficacy costs of £22m (2013 £5m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

4 Operating expenses continued

Adlfigures in £ millons Notes 014 203
By nature
Royalties expensed 242 256
Other product costs 686 735
Employee benefit expense 5 1978 2,100
Contract tabour t85 194
Employee related expense 146 177
Promouonal costs 169 167
Deprecauon of property, plant and equipment 10 74 8l
Amorussation of intangible assets — pre-publication 20 292 308
Amortisation of mtangible assets - software n 63 59
Amortisation of intangible assets — other I 187 166
impairment of ntangible assets i 77 -
Property and facilities 218 229
Technology and communications 139 104
Professtonal and cutsourced services 264 259
Other general and admtnistrative costs 128 119
Capitalised costs {203) {199)
Acquisition costs 6 12
Other net gains and losses (2) 16
Other income (123 (118}
Total 4,537 4,665
During the year the Group obtamned the foflowing services from the Groups auditors
All figures m £ mithons 2014 2013
The audit of parent company and consolidated financal statements 5 4
The audit of the company's subsidiaries 2 2
Total audit fees 7 6
Other assurance services ] i
Total other assurance services I i
Tax compliance services ! 2
Tax advisory services 2
'};tal tax services o ! 4
5

Total non-audit services

Total 9
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4 Operating expenses continued

Reconciliauon between audit and non-audit service fees rs shown below

Al figures £ mitions 2014 2013

Group audit fees mciuding fees for attestation under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act 7 6

Non-audit fees 2 5
- 9 n

Total

Fees for attestauon under section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act are allocated between fees payable for the audus
of consolidated and subsidiary accounts Non-audit fees for 2013 includes £3m for assurance and tax services related

to the Penguin Random House tr ansaction

S Employee mformation

Alffrgures n £ milirons HMotes 2014 2013
Employee benefit expense
Wages and salaries (including terminauion benefits and restructuring costs) 1.728 £.836
Social secunity costs 134 136
Share-based payment costs 26 32 35
Retrement benefits — defined contribution plans b 69 66
Reurement benefits - defined benefit plans 5 26 27
Other post-retrement benefits 73 {(rn -
1,978 2,100

Total

The detatls of the emaluments of the directors of Pearson plc are shown in the report on directors’ remuneration

Average number employed 2004 2063
Empioyee numbers

North America 21,204 22,146
Core 7887 8.807
Growth 11,603 10,975
Other 182 187

Cantinuing operations 40876 4215

The employee benefit expense relating to discontinued operations was £5m (2013 £168m) and the average number
employed was 73 (2013 3,592)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

6 Netfinance costs

All Ggures n € mullons Nates 2014 2013
Imtet est payable (82) {82}
Net finance costs in respect of retrement benefits 25 - {3)
Finance cost of put options, deferred consideration assocrated with acquisiions

and other interest charges related to transactions - 9
Net foreign exchange losses (53) -
Other losses on financial instruments not m 2 hedging relauonship

—~dervatves (6) (7}
Finance costs {141) (L)
Interest recevable i8 i0
Net finance income n respect of reurement benefits 25 i -
Net foreign exchange gains 7 20
Other gains on financial instruments 1n a hedging relationship

— fair value hedges - {
Other gains on financal nstruments not 1n a hedging relauonship

- dervatives 2 4
Finance ncome 48 35
Net finance costs (93} {76)
Analysed as

Net interest payable reflected in adjusted earmings (64) {72)
Other net finance costs {2%) 4
Total net finance costs {93) {76}

included in interest recervable 1s £1m (2013 £ nil) of nterest recetvable from related parues The net movement
of £ntt on far value hedges n 2014 (2013 net gan of £im) compnises aloss of £27m (2013 gain of £95m) an the
underlying bonds, offset by a gain of £27m (2013 loss of £94m) on the refated dervauve financial instruments

For further information on adjusted measures above, see note B
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7 Income tax &
Al fgures on € miions Maes 2014 2013 =
Current tax §
Charge in respect of current year {103) {129) :i:
Adjustmients in respect of prior years - 3 @)
Total current tax chai ge o T - (:73) {136)
Deferred tax
Inrespect of temporary differences 8 14
Other adjustments in respect of prior years 2 35 =
Total deferred tax credit B 10 49 =
Total tax chai ge (63) 87) %
0
The adiustments in respect of prior years in both 2014 and 2013 marnly relate to changes in esumates arsing from g
uncertain tax positons following settfements with tax authonues in the year E
The tax on the Group's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using the UK tax rate
as follows
Allfigures sn £ milbons 2014 2013
Profitbefore tax 305 382 2
Tax calculated at UK rate (2014 21 5%, 2013 23 25%) (66) {89) Z
Effect of overseas tax rates (12) (13} g
Joint venture and assocrate income reported net of tax il i3 z
Net expense not subject to tax (9) {14 g
Loss on safe of businesses not subject to tax - (6}
Uthsauon of previously unrecognised tax losses and credies - i
Unuthsed tax losses (19) {7
Adjustments in respect of prior years 32 28 g
Total tax charge (63) 87 5
UK (6) (13) g
Qverseas (57) (74) -
Total tax charge (63) (87
Ta 07%  28%

Tax rate reflected in earnings
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Notes to the consolidated financiat statements continued

7 Income tax conunued

The tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings s calculated as follows

Al figures m £ miions 201 2012
Profit before tax 305 382
Adjustments
Other net gains and losses ) 16
Acquisition costs 6 2
Amortisation of acquired intangibles 318 196
Other net finance costs 29 4
Adjusted profit before tax — continuing operations 656 610
Adjusted profit before tax — discontinued operations 2 54
Total adjusted profit before tax 658 664
Total tax charge (63) {87)
Adjustments
Tax charge on other net gains and losses ! 32
Tax benefit on acquisinon costs (hH (2)
Tax benefit on intangible charges (73) (51
Tax benefit on other pet finance costs %) {H
Tax amorusaton benefit on goodwall and intangibles 24 30
Adjusted income tax charge — contunuing operations (117) (79)
Adjusted income tax charge — discontinued operations (1) (18}
Total adjusted income tax charge (118) (97)
Tax rate reflected in adjusted earnings 179% 146%
For further nformauon on adjusted measures above, see note 8
The tax (charge)/benefit recognised in other comprehensive mcome s as follows
All figures m £ mibans 2014 2013
Remeasurement of retirement benefit ebligations () 23)
iNet exchange differences on translation of foreign operauocns {6) 6
) (17)

Atax charge of £3m (2013 tax charge £nil) relaung to share-based payments has been recognised directly in equity
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8 Earmings per share Tc):—
Basic =
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attnbutable to equity shareholders of the company by the &
weighted average number of ordinary shares i issue durtng the year, excluding ordinary shares purchased by the E
company and held as treasury shares v
Diluted
Diuted earnings per share 1s calculated by adjusung the wesghted average number of ordinary shares to take account
of alt dilutive potenual ordinary shares and adjusung the profit attributable, if applicable, to account for any tax
consequences that might anse from conversion of those shares
Ali figures n € muillons Notes 2014 2013 g
Profit for the year from conunuing operattons 242 295 ;
Non-controlling interest | {i) g
Earmings from continuing operations 243 294 g
Profit for the year from disconunued operations 3 228 244 ﬁ
Earnings 474 538
Weighted average number of shares (mullions) 8109 8078
Effect of dilutive share options (millions) {0 i o
Weighted average number of shares (mulhions) for diluted earnings 8l 9 808 9 %
8
Earrungs per share from conunumg and discentinued operations E-
K9
Basic 58 Ip 66 6p E
Diluted 580p 66 5p =
Earnings per share from continuing operations
Basic 300p 364p
Diluted 299p 363p S—
Earnings per share from disconunued operations g
Basic 28Ip 302 Z
>
Diluted 28 Ip 302p Z
Adjusted

In order to show results from eperaung actvities on a consistent basis, an adjusted earnings per share 1s presented
The company’s definition of adjusted earnings per share may not be comparable to other similarly tiled measures
reported by other companies

Adjusted earnings includes the results from contnuing and disconunued operations The following iterns are excluded
from adpusted eamings

Orher net gains and losses represent profits and losses on the acquisition and disposal of subsidiartes, joint ventures,
assoaates and other financral assets that are included within continuing or disconunued operations but which distort
the performance of the Group

Amorusaton of acquired intangibles, acquisiion costs and movements in contingent acquisition consideration are
also excluded from adjusted earnings as these rtems are not cansidered to be fully reflective of the underlying
performance of the Group
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

8 Earnings per share continued

Other net finance income/costs include finance costs m respect of retrement benefits, finance costs of put aptions
and deferred consideration and foreign exchange and other gains and fosses Finance costs relating Lo retirement
benefits are excluded as the consohdated iIncome statement presentauon under IAS 19 (revised) does not reflect the
economuc substance of the underlying assets and liabihties Finance costs of put apuons and deferred consideration
are excluded as they relate to future earn outs and simmlar payments on acquistuons and do notreflect cash expended
Foreign exchange and other gains and losses are excluded as they represent short-term fluctuations in market value
and are subject to significant volatility Other gains and losses may not be realised in due course as itis normally the
intention to hold the related mstruments to maturity Other net finance costs of Group companies are included in
finance costs or finance income as appropriate Other net finance costs of joint ventures and assoctates are included
within the share of results of joint ventures and associates within operating profit

Tax on the above items is excluded from adjusted earnings Where relevant the Group also excludes the benefit from
recognising previously unrecognised pre-acqursition and capital losses The Group indudes the benefit of tax
amorusation of goodwill and intangibles as this benefit more accurately aligns the adjusted tax charge with the
expected rate of cash tax payments

Non-controlling interest for the above items 1s excluded from adjusted earnings The following tables reconcile
statutory earnings to adjusted earmngs

2014
Stawtory Orther pet Other net Tax Adusted
meame  Discontinued gansand  Acguisidon Intanpible finante  amorosaton income
All Bizures in £ midlons statement operatons Sosses costy charges  income/costs benefic statement
Operaung profit 398 2 (2) é 3i8 - - 722
Net finance costs (93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 305 2 3] 6 318 29 - 658
income tax (63) (N ! (n (73) {5 24 (118)
Profit for the year from
ConunuIng operatons 242 | ¢ 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 228 N (227) - - - - -
Profit for the year 470 - {228) 5 245 24 24 540
Non-controlling nterest i - - - - - - |
Earnings 471 - (228) 5 245 24 24 541
Weighted average number
of shares (millions) 8l10% 8109
Weighted average number
of shares (mithons) for
diluted earrings 8it e 819
Earnings per share (basic) 58 Ip 66 7p
Earnings per share (diluted) 58 Op 66 6p
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8 Earnings per share continued o
2013 5
w
Statutory Other et Other net Tax Adjusted <
mweme  Disconted gans and ACqESIDON ntang b'e fnonee  moritaton AL z
Ailfiguresin £ rhons STATEEAY aperanons lesses costs ChArges  INcoTe/Costs benefit TEMEnt m
Operating profit 458 54 16 12 196 - - 736
Net finance costs (76) - - - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 16 12 (96 4 - 664
Income tax (87} (18) 32 (%) 5H ) 30 (97}
Profit for the year from -
CONtINUING OPErations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567 2
-l
Profit for the year from o
discontinued operations 244 (36) (209) - 2 H - - g
Profit for the year 539 - (t6l) i0 147 2 30 567 —3
Non-controlling interest (1 - - - - - - O
Earnings 538 - (161) 10 147 2 30 566
Weighted average number
of shares (milhions) 807 8 807 8
Weighted average number o
of shares {millions) for <
diluted earnings 808 ¢ 808 9 )
n
Earnuings per share {basic) 66 6p 70 1p z
Eariungs per shat e {diheted) 66 5p 700p z
>
2]
9 Dividends B
Adl figures in Emilkans 2004 2044
Final paid in respect of prior year 32 Op (2013 30 0p) 259 242
Interm paid in respect of current year 170p (2013 16 Op) 138 130 -
397 372 2
The directors are proposing a final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2014 of 34 Op per g
share which will absorb an estimated £276m of shareholders’ funds {t will be paid on | May 2015 o shareholders o

who are on the register of members on 7 Apnil 2015 These financal statements do not reflect this dvidend
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

tQ Property, plant and equipment

Assetsin
Land and Ptant and course of

AllBgures n £ mihions bufdngs  squpment  constricuan Toral
Cost
At { January 2013 352 597 I8 967
Exchange differences {5) (14 - {9
Additions 33 58 22 113
Disposals (13) (78} - ohH
Acquisition through business combination - 3 - 3
Disposal through business disposal 'ty (2} - 3
Reclassificatons 9 (1) (8) -
Transfer from software - 3 - 3
Transfer from assets held for sale - 9 - 9
Transfer to assets held for sale - )] - 4]
At 31 December 2013 375 568 32 975
Exchange differences It 7 - 28
Additions 10 58 19 87
Disposals (9) (46} {2 {57)
Acquisiton through business combination - 2 - 2
Disposal through business disposal - (n - ()
Recfassifications ! 3 4 -
Transfer to software - - (16) (16}
At 31 December 2014 388 601 29 1018
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|0 Property, plant and equipment continued

Assotyin
Land and Fanm and course of

All figures.in £ millons bufdngs  eGLpMORl  CORSELCLON Toral
Depreciation
At [ fanuary 2013 (195) {445} - (640)
Exchange differences 3 13 - 6
Charge for the year (25) {57) - (82)
Disposals 7 64 - 71
Acqursruon through busmess combinanon - {2) - @
Transfer from assets held for sale - () - H
Transfer to assers held for sale - 5 - 5
At 31 December 2013 — @10) (423 - (633
Exchange differences N (15 - (22)
Charge for the year (23) {51) - {74)
Disposals 9 36 - 45
At 31 December 2014 (231 (453) - (684)
Carrying amourits
At | january 2013 157 152 i8 327
At 3| December 2013 165 {45 32 342
At 3| December 2014 157 148 29 334

Depreciation expense of £16m (2013 £24m) has been included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and
£58m (2013 £57m) in operating expenses In 2014 £mi (2013 £1m) relates to discontinued operations

The Group leases certan equipment under a number of finance lease agreements The net carrying amount of leased
plant and equipment included within property, plant and equipment was £13m {2013 £11m)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

11 Intangible assets

Acqured

e cnteas  poibung g
Al figures i £ modiians Gootwil  Software relarouships  and brands ngme  atqured Total
Cost
At § January 2013 5,077 466 729 258 207 394 7,131
Exchange differences (i22) (6) {25) (8) (12) (1) (184)
Addons —internal development - 38 - - - - 38
Additions — purchased - 24 - - - - 24
Disposals - (50) - - - - (50)
Acquisiion through business combination (133) - i90 - 3 7 67
Disposal through business disposal (6) - - - - (1} (7
Reclassificauons - - (1) () - Hl -
Transfer to PPE - (3) - - - - (3)
Transfer to assets held for sale {150 - (29} (12) - (2) (193)
At 3| December 2013 4,666 469 855 237 198 398 6.823
Exchange differences 198 i7 34 5 - 14 268
Imparment {67 - - - - - (67)
Additions — mternal development - 54 - - - - 54
Additions — purchased - 53 - - - ~- 53
Disposals - ¥ - - - - {7
Acquisition through business combmaton 238 - 5 69 - t8e 498
Disposal through business disposal (5) {5) - 3) (N - (14
Transfer from PPE - i6 - - - - 16
At 31 December 2014 5,030 597 894 308 197 598 7.624
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il Intangible assets continued

Acqured

customerhsn  Acqred  Acqured Other

contractsand  tradem ks pubshing  mtang bles
Al figures i £ rwhons Guodwdt  Software relaonshigr  andbrands ngms  icqured Tatat
Amorusation
At fanuary 2013 - (312) {204) (86) (139) {172) {913)
Exchange differences - 6 10 4 6 7 33
Charge for the year - {5%) (78) {2n (15) (54) (227)
Disposals - 419 - - - - 49
Dnsposal through business disposal - - - - - i i
Transfer to assets held for sale - - 23 ] - 2 35
At 31 December 2013 - (316) {249) (93) (148) (216) (1,022)
Exchange differences - {13} {h {3) - (12) (39)
impairment - - (6) {2) - {2) (10}
Charge for the year - (63) 83) {25) (12) (67) (250)
Disposals - 5 - - - - 5
Disposal through business disposal - I - ! - - 2
At 3| December 2014 - (386) {349) {122) {160) (297) (1.314)
Ea“r:;;mg amounts
At | January 2043 5077 154 525 172 68 222 6,218
At 31 December 2013 4,666 153 606 (44 50 182 5,80!
At 31 December 2014 5,030 211 545 186 37 301 6.310
Goodwil!

The goodwill carrying value af £5,030m relates to acquisttions completed after | January 1998 Prior to | January 1998
all goodwill was written off to reserves on the date of acquisiuen For acquisitions completed between 1 fanuary 1998
and 3| December 2002 no value was ascribed to intangibles other than goodwill and the goodwill on each acquistuon
was amortsed over a period of up to 20 years On adoption of IFRS on | january 2003, the Group chose not to restate
the goodwill balance and at that date the balance was frozen {1 e amorusation ceased) If goodwill had been restated
then a significant value would have been ascribed to other intangible assets, which would be subject to amorusation,
and the carrying value of goodwill would be sigrificantly lower For acquisitons completed after | January 2003 value
has been ascribed to other intangible assets which are amorused

Orther intangible assets
Other intangibles acquired include content, technology and software rights

[ntangible assets are valued separately for each acquisition and the primary methad of valuaton used is the discounted
cash flow method The majonty of acqui ed intangibles are amortsed using an amortsation profile based on the
projected cashflows underlymng the acquisiuon date valuation of the intangible asset which generally results in alarger
proporton of amortisation being recogused in the early year s of the assets' ife The Group keeps the expected
pattern of consumption under review

Amaorusation of £12m (2013 £15m) s included in the income statement in cost of goods sold and £238m (2013
£2i0m) in operating expenses In 2014 £rul (2013 £2m) of amortisanon refates to discontinued operations
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Notes to the cansolidated financial staternents continued

Il Intangible assets conunued

The range of useful economic lives for each major dass of intangble asset {excluding goodwill and software)

ts shown below

2014
Class of mtangible asset Usetul econarmic kfe
Acquired customer hists, contracts and relationships 3-20 years
Acquired trademarks and brands 2-20 years
Acquired publishing rights 5-20years
Other intangibles acquired 2-20 years
The expected amorusation profile of acquired intangible assets is shown below

2014

One to Six te Meore than

All figures in € mufhons five years ten yoars cen years Toral
Class of intangible asset
Acquired customer hists, contracts and relationships 340 148 57 545
Acquired rrademarks and brands 97 54 35 186
Acquired publishing nghts 34 3 - 37
Other intangibles acquired 219 72 10 301

Imparment tests for cash-generaung units (CGUs) containing goodwill
impairment tests have been carmed out where appropriate as described below

Following a reorganisation of the business effective | january 2014 goodwill was allocated to CGUs or aggregation
of CGUs where goodwill could not be reasonably allocated to individual business units Impairment reviews were

conducted on these CGUs summarised below

All figures in £ miltions 2014 2013
North America 3,422 3,239
Core 618 624
Growth (includes China, Brazil, india and South Africa) 612 447
Pearson VUE 327 306
Financial Times Group 51 50
Toral 5.030 4,666

The recoverable amount of each CGU 15 based on value in use calculations Goodwillis tested for impairment annually
Other than goodwill there are no ntangible assets with indefinite ves The goodwill s generally denominated in
the currency of the relevant cash flows and therefore the impairment review 1s not matenally senstve to exchange

rate fluctuations
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!l Intangible assets conunued

imparment tests for cash-generating units containing goodwill conuinued

Following deterioration in the market condwons for the Group’s omine tutoring business based in India, 1t was
determined In the course of the impatrment review that the value in use of the India CGU no longer supported the
carrying value of the goodwill in that CGU A impan ment of £67mwas booked thereby bringing the carrying value
of goodwill in the India CGU down to £ml Animpairment of £10m was also booked i respect of other acquired
intangibles in that CGL, bringing their carrying value to £ril The India CGU incorpor ates all the Group's trading
operationsin India A pre-tax discount rate of 13 6% was used to determine the value in use of the india CGU

No previous assessment had been made of the value in use of that CGU as the Group s India operations, prior to
the | january 2014 recrganisavon, were previously part of a larger Emerging Markets aggregated CGU

Key assumpuons
The value in use calculations use cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by management covering

a five-year period The key assumptions used by managementin the value in use caiculations were

Discount rates The discount rate is based on the risk-free rate for government bonds, adjusted for a risk premium
to reflect the increased risk in investing in equities The risk premium adjusument is assessed for each specific CGU
The average pre-tax discount rates range from 9 0% to 16 4% Discount rates are lower for those businesses
which operate in more mature markets with low inflation and higher for those operating in emerging markets

with higher inflauon

Perpetuity growth rates A perpetuity growth rate of 2 0% (2013 2 0%) was used for cash flows subsequent to the
approved budget pertod for CGUs operating in mature markets This perpetuity growth rate s a conservative rate
and 1s considered to be lower than the long-term historic growth rates of the underlying territories in which the CGU
operates and the long-term growth rate prospects of the sectors in which the CGU operates CGU growth rates
between 5 0% and 5 B% were used for cash flows subsequent to the approved budget perod for CGUs operatung

in emerging markets with high inflation These growth rates are also below the long-term histonic growth rates in

these markets

The key assumptions used by management in setting the financial budgets for the wmnal five-year perod were
as follows

Forecast sales growth rates Forecast sales growth rates are based on past expertence adjusted for the strategic
direction and near-term investment prionties within each CGU Key factors include the proporuon of revenue
expected to arise in emerging markets, the praportion of revenue expected to come from digital and services
businesses refative to traditional print-based businesses and the changing product mix as a result of product
investment The five year sales forecasts use average nominal growth rates between | 1% and 3 3% for mature
markets and between 8 3% and |5 7% for emerging markets with high inflation

Operaung profits Operaung profits are forecast based on historic expernience of operatung margins. adjusted for
the impact of changes to product costs and cost saving mitiatives, including the impact of the global restructuring
programme undertalen in 2013 and 2014

Cash conversion Cash conversion is the ratio of operaung cashflow to operaung profit Management forecast cash
conversion rates based on historic experience, adjusted for the impact of product investment priorities and the shift

to digital and service based business

Sensiavities

The Group's impairment review Is sensitive to a change in assumptions used, most notably the discount rates and the
perpetuity growth rates Based on the Group's sensinvity analysis, a reasonably possible increase of Q 8% ptsin the
discount rate or a decrease of | 0% ptn the perpetuity growth rate could cause animparmentin respect of Brazil
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Notes to the conschdated financial statements continued

12 [nvestments in joint ventures and associates

The amounts recogrised in the balance sheet are as follows

All figures m £ millons it pis k]
Assocrates £,105 1,089
jont ventures I3 3
Total 1,148 1,092
The amounts recognised in the income statement are as follows
All figures n £ milhons 2014 2013
Associates 54 56
Joint ventures (3) 2)
Total 5! 54
Investment in associates
The Group has the following material associates

Principal place Ownership Nawreof  Measuremant

of business interest relauonship method

Penguin Random House Ltd UK/Global 47% Note | Equity*
Pengum Random House LLC us 47% Note | Equity”
The Economist Newspaper Ltd UK 50% Note 2 Equiy®

*None of the associates has a quoted market price

Note | — On | july 2013 Penguin Random House was formed, upon the completon of an agreement between
Pearson and Bertelsmann to merge their respective trade publishing companies, Penguin and Random House, with
the parent companies owning 47% and 53% of the combined business respectively The sharehalder agreement
includes protection rights for Pearson as the minerity shareholder including rights to dwidends Management considers
ownership percentage, board composition and the addinonal protective nghts. and exerases judgement to determine
that Pearson has significant mfluence over Penguin Random House and Bertelsmann has the power to direct the
relevant activities and therefore control

Note 2 — The Group has a 50% interest in The Econormust Newspaper Ltd, publisher of one of the world’s leading
weekly bustness and current affairs magazines The Economist has a umique structure of “A", “B" and Trustee shares,
which was established to ensure its independence from proprietonal control Pearson, as holder of the “B" shares,
has never controlled the Economist by virtue of its shareholding or influence, and management assesses that it has

sigruficant nfluence over the company
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(2 {nvestments i joint ventures and associates continued o
&
Investment in associates contmued =
The summarised financial informauon of the material assocates 15 detatfed below &
=
a4 - 03 rerared &
Penguin Pengum
All figures in £ mithons Random House Economise  Randor 1House Econoimist
Assets
Current assets 1,355 Ho {210 {03
Non-currrent assets 1429 |66 1,382 163
Liabilities g
=
Current habilities {1,113) (190 (05} (190) m
Non-current habiities {(424) {86) (455) (60) §
- - z
Net assets 1,247 - 1232 t6 £
[a}
m
Sales 2416 320 1315 340
Profit from continuing operations 74 42 66 52 o
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (t) (20 34) 9 o
——— =
Tatal comprehensive income 63 22 32 61 &
N
z
Dwvidends receved from associate 95 21 43 21 z
>
'a]
The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial statements of the assoaates, adjusted for far -
value and similar adjustments The tax on Penguin Random House LLC 1s settled by the partners For the purposes
of clear and consistent presentation, the tax has been shown in the associate Iine items in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated balance sheet, recording the Group's share of profit after tax consistently for the Penguin
Random House associates a
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

12 lnvestments in joint ventures and assoctates conttnued

Investment in associates continued
A reconcihation of the summansed financial information to the carrying value of the material associates

15 shown below

- 2014 2013 restated
Penguin Pengun
All figurus i £ mifhens Random House fconomist  Random House Ecanonust
Opening net assets 1,232 16 - -
Exchange differences 52 - (68) -
Profit for the period 74 42 66 52
Other comprehensive (expense)/income (it} 20) (34) 2
Drvidends, net of tax pard (100) (42) @ {40
Addmions - - 1,359 -
Distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - 4 - -
Reversal of distribution from associate in excess of carrying value - - - {4)
Closing net assets 1,247 - 1232 6
Share of net assets 586 - 579 8
Goodwill 509 - 491 -
1,095 - 1,070 8

Carrymg value of associate

in 2013 the Group determined the fair value of the Penguin Random House venture for the purposes of accounting

for the transaction A valuation of the Penguin Random House ventures was determined during the negotiation of

the transaction between Bertlesmann and Pearson This valuation of the business was calculated using the ncome
approach, discounting future cash flows to the present value Cash flow projections were prepared for both businesses
by country taking into account the front and backlist trends and extrapolated using fong term growth rate assumptions
The cash flows were discounted using discount rates with risk prermiums specific to each geographic region A discount
to the Group's share of the total value to reflect the Group’s non-controlling minority ownership was apphed

The Group finalised its acquisiion accountng for Penguin Random House in 2014 and an adjustment to the opening
position with respect to deferred tax and goodwill was made The overalf carrying value of the associate in 2013
was unchanged however the addiuons and goodwill balances in the table above have been restated to reflect the

final accounting

information on other individually immatenal associates 1s detailed below

All figures i £ radkons 2004 2013

Loss from contnuing operations (2) H

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive expense (2} )]
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12 lavestments m joint ventures and associates continued ’

Transacuons with material associates
The Group has loans 1o Pengum Random House which are unsecured and interest s calculated based on market rates

The amount outstanding at 3| December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) The loans are provided under a working
capitat fachty and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 3t December 2014 was 1epud inits entirety in

January 2015
The Group also has a current asset receivable of £41m (2013 £27m) from Penguin Random House arising from the
provision of services Included in other income (note 4)1s £41m (2013 £28m) of service fees

Investment in joint ventures
Informaucn on joint ventures, ait of which are indsvidually immateral, ts detaded below

Allfigun es m € milhions 2014 2013
Loss from continuing operations (3) (2)
Other comprehensive income - -
Totat comprehensive expense (3 (2
I3 Deferred income tax

All figures n £ m lons 2004 2013
Deferred income tax assets 295 250
Deferred income tax habiives ) (714) (612}
Net deferred ncome tax - 19) (362)

Substanually al! of the deferred income tax assets are expected to be recovered after more than one year

Deferred income tax assets and lrabilittes may be offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to offset current
IRCoMme tax assets against current income tax frabrliues and when the deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal
authority At3| December 2014 the Group has unrecognised deferred income tax assets of £4m (2013 £4m) in
respect of Ul losses, £14m (2013 £1im) n respect of US losses and approximately £44m (2013 £36m} in respect of
losses in other territones None of the unrecognised UK lasses have expiry dates associated with them The US losses
relate to state taxes and therefore have expiry periods of between five and 20 years

The recogniuon of the deferred income tax assets is supported by management's forecasts of the future profitability
of the relevant business un:ts

The movement on the net deferred income tax account 15 as follows

Ab figures i € millions Mortes 2014 2013
At beginning of year (362) (372}
Exchange differences (22) 9
fncome statement benefit 7 o 47
Acquisition through business combination 30 - (37)
Disposal through business disposal H () -
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity {18) {35)
Transfer to/from current tax (26) 25
Transfer to assets held for sale - I
At end of year (419) (362)

Included m the incame statement above for 2014 1s a £nif charge (2013 £2m charge) relating to discontinued
operauons
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Notes to the consohdated financial statements contnued

13 Deferred income tax continued

The movementin deferred income tax assets and habiities during the year 15 as follows

Redroment
Tradng Returas bencfit
Al figurcs n € m lipns josses provisions obltations Other Taryd
Deferred \ncome tax assets
At i January 2013 i8 45 47 {19 229
Exchange differences - 4} i %) {6)
Acquisinon through business combtnatton 24 - - - 21
Income statement (charge)/benefit (24) (5 25 22 18
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - - (36) - (36)
Transfer to current tax - - - 25 25
Transfer from assets held for sale - -~ 7 {7 —-
Transfer to assets held for sale - - - " {(H
At 31 December 2013 15 39 42 154 250
Exchange differences 1 2 4 5 I2
Acquistuon through business combination 2 - - - 2
Income statement benefit 10 3 7 35 55
Tax benefit/(charge) 1o other comprehensive incormne
or equity - - 10 )] 3
Transfer to current tax - - - (26) (26}
Disposal through business disposal - - t)] - {n
At 3| December 2014 28 44 62 161 295
Other deferred income tax assets include temporary differences on share-based payments, inventory and other
provisions
Goodwiltad
All figuras in £ rullions intangtbles Orner Toral
Deferred income tax habdities
Ar 1 January 2013 (475) (126) (601)
Exchange differences i3 2 I5
Acquisiion through business combination (&) 3 (58)
Income statement (charge)/benefit 61 S0 29
Tax benefit to other comprehensive iIncome or equity - | }
Transfer to assets held for sale - 2 2
Ag 31 December 2013 (584) @3 {612)
Exchange differences (30) (%) (34)
Acguisimon through business combinauon 4] - (2)
Income statement benefit/{charge) 18 (63} (45)
Tax charge to other comprehensive income or equity - (26) (21
At 31 December 2014 {598) (116} (714}

Other deferred income tax liabiiues include temporary differences in respect of deprecation and royafty advances
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%

14 Classification of financiafl instruments

o}
c
The accounung classification of each dlass of the Group's financial assets and financial iabilities, together with ther -
carrying values and market values, 1s as follows g
1014 g
fan value Anerused tost
Dervauves Dervatves Toxal Touwl
Avalable  deemedheld inhedung Other Loans and Other carrying marker
Altfigures in £ milions Notes lorsale  fortradng refatonships habilitiet  recewvables  habifuies value value
Investments in listed securities s 9 - - - - - g g
Investments n unlisted securiies 15 45 - - - - - 45 45 P
Cash and cash equivalents 7 - - - - 530 - 530 530 S
Marketable securives {6 ~ ~ - - - 16 l& %‘
Dervative financial instruments 3 - 6 108 ~- - - 114 14 %
Trade recevables 2 - - - - 989 -~ 989 989 z
Total financial assets 70 6 108 - 1519 - 1,703 1,703 ”
Denvatve finangal instruments T - (33) (41} — - - (74) (74}
Trade payables p1] - - - - - (329 (3290 (329
Bank loans and overdrafts 8 - - - - - (42) (42) (42) =
Borrowings due within one year ia - - - - - (305 (305 (319 <
Borrowings due after more than a
one year 18 - - - - - (1.878) (1.878) (i.888) x
Total financial habilices - (33) (41} - — (2.554) (2628} (2,652) =
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I4 Classificacton of financial instruments continued

2013
Fat value Amortised cost
Deorwanves  Dernviuves Totaf Toral

Avaib'e  deemed held wnhedpng Cther Leansaind Qrther carrying market
Al figuresn Lmdions Motes for cale forwrading  refationstips pabhues  recevables  Mablimes value value
nvestments in unlisted securtes
— continuing operatons 15 94 - - - - - 94 94
Cash and cash equivalents —
conunuINg operations 17 - - - - 729 - 729 729
Cash and cash equivalents
classified within assets held
{for sale E?; - - - - 36 - 36 36
Marketable secunites 6 - - - - - 6 6
Derwatve financial instruments 1% - 4 120 - - - 124 124
Trade recervables — continuing
operauons 22 - - - - 882 - 882 882
Trade receivables classified
within assets held for sale - - - - 25 - 25 25
Total financial assets 00 4 120 -~ 1,672 - 1,8% 1896
Derivatve financeal instruments 16 - (16} (32) - - - {48) (48)
Trade payables -- continuing
operations 24 - - - - - (316} (316) (31§)
Trade payables dassified withun
liabilties held for sale - - - - - H (1) )
Bank loans and overdrafts —
conunuing operations 18 - - - - - 4N (47) (47)
Borrowings due within one year 8 - - - - - (508) (508) (514)
Borrowings due after more than
one year 18 - - - - — (1671) (1.671) (1.683)
Total financial habilities - (16) (32) - ~ (2543) (2.591) (2,609)

Certain of the Group's dervanive financial mstruments are classified as held for trading either as they do not meet the
hedge accounung criteria specified m 1AS 39 ‘Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement’ oras the Group
has chosen not to seek hedge accounting for these mstruments None of these derivatives are held for speculative
wrading purposes Transactions in dertvative financial instruments are onfy undertaken to manage risks arsing from
underlying business actvity, in accordance with the Group's treasury policy as described in note 19

The Group designates certain quahfying derwvative financial instruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds
{far value hedges) Changes in the fair vafue of these denvative financial instruments are recorded in the ncome
statement, together with any change n the fair vatue of the hedged hability attributable to the hedged risk

The Group also designates certan of its borrowings and denvative financial instruments as hedges of its mvestments
in fareign operations {net nvestment hedges) Movements 1n the fair vatue of these financial mstruments (to the extent
they are effecuve) are recognised i other comprehensive income

None of the Group’s financial assets or habilities are designated at fair value through the income statement upon

initral recogmition

More detaill on the Group's accountng for financial instruments 1s included in the Group's accounting policies
The Group's approach to managing risks i relation to financial instruments is described innote 9
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I5 Other financial assets "ém

Al figures m £ mill ons 2014 2013 =

At beginning of year 94 34 :C:

Exchange differences 6 - VE

Acquisiuon of investments 12 63

Disposal of nvestments (58) -

At end of year 54 94

Other financial assets comprise listed secunties of £9m (2013 £nd) and unlisted securtuies of £45m (2013 £94m)

|16 Derrvauve financial instruments g

The Group's approach to the management of financial nsks s set out i note 19 The Group's outstanding dervative B

financial instruments are as follows §

2014 2063 r%

Gross notonal Gross natonal m

Al figures w € enillians amounts Assers Liabilicies ameunts Assets Lrbi nes

interest rate derwatives —

in a fair value hedge relauonship 1.607 84 (5) [.439 Bi {32)

Interest rate derwatives — not in —_

a hedge relauonship 673 - %) 634 4 {te) 2

Cross-currency rate derivatives — *2

in a hedge refaucnship 889 24 (36) 220 39 - <

Cross-currency rate derivatives - %

notin a hedge relationship 4514 6 (26) - - - 2

Total 3,620 {14 74y 2293 124 48

Analysed as expiring

Inless than one year 200 24 (n 312 13 - -

Later than one year and not later g

than five years 1,386 &7 (8) [.377 il - E-

Later than five years 2.034 23 (65) 604 - @8  z

Total 3.620 l14 (74) 2,293 124 8 7
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

16 Dernwvative financial iInstruments continued

The carrying value of the above derivative financal insuruments equals their far value Fair values are determined
by using market data and the use of established estimauocn techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuaton modeis

At the end of 2014, the currency split of the mark-to-market values of rate derivauves, including the exchange of
principal on cross-currency rate dervatives, was US dollar £{607)m, sterling £214m, euro £430m, Brazihan real £4m
and South African rand £nd {2013 US doltar £(15H)m, sterling £243m, euro £nd, Brazilian real £ntl and South African
rand £(16)m)

The fixed interest 1 ates on outstanding rate dervative contracts at the end of 2014 range from 1 10% to {4 48%
(2013 | (0% to 9 28%) and the floating rates are based on LIBOR in US dollar, euro and sterting

The Group's portfolio of rate denivatives is diversified by maturity, counterparty and type Natural offsets between
transactions within the portfolio and the designation of certan derivauves as hedges significantly reduce the risk

of income statement volatlity The sensttivity of the portfolio to changes in market rates is set outin note {9
Derivative financial assets and habilities subject to offsetong arrangements are as foliows

2014 2013

Gross Gross  Ner derivauve Gross Gross  Netdenvitive

detvative derwvative acsers/ derivative derivative assets/

Adl figures in £ mallions assers Habitities habidries assets Habilwes ibllines
Counterparties in an asset position 94 (28) 66 122 (12) 110 ‘
Counterparties In a iability positon 20 (46) (26) 2 {(36) (34 |
Total as presented in the balance sheet 114 74 40 124 {48) 76 |

Alf of the Group's derivauve financial instruments are subject to enforceable netting arrangements with individual
counterparues, allowing net setement in the event of default of erther party Offset arrangements in respect of cash
balances are shown innote {7

Counterparty exposure from afl dervatves 1s managed, together with that from deposits and bank account balances.
within credit limits that reflect pubhished credit ratings and by reference to other market measures (e g market prices
for credit defauit swaps) to ensure that there 1s no significant risk to any one counterparty No single dervauve
transaction had a market value (positive or negative) at the balance sheet date that exceeded 3% ofthe Group’s
consolidated total equity

In accordance with IAS 39 ‘Finanaiat Instruments Recognition and Measurement” the Group has reviewed all of its
material contracts for embedded dervatves that are required to be separately accounted for if they do not meet
certain requirements, and has concluded that there are no material embedded dervatives
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I7 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) "o
c
Allfigures i £ millians 2014 2013 =
Cash at bank and i hand 483 521 &
Shor t-term bank deposits 47 208 §
Ec;t'tmumg aperagons ) 530 729
Cash at bank and i hand dlassified withim assets held for sale - 36
530 765
Short-term bank depostts are invested with banks and earn interest at the prevaling short-term deposit rates
At the end of 2014 the currency sphit of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 18% (2013 28%), sterling 13% 2
(2013 18%), euro 3% (2043 5%), renmnbi 28% (2013 27%) and other 38% (2013 22%) ;
Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate to their carrying value due to their short-term nature 5
Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement §
All figures in £ rihons 2014 2013 5
Cash and cash equivalents ~ continuing operations 530 729
Cashat bank and in hand classified withun assets held for sale - 36
Banlk overdrafts ~ continuing operations {I9) (25)
511 740 Q
%
The Group has the following cash pooling arrangements in US dollars, sterling and euro, where both the company E
and the bank have a legal right of offset z
2014 2013 §
Offyn Ofiver Nex offset ilfset Ciffset Netoffet A
All figures in £ milhons aszet babliy  asset/habiiity et habity  asset/Labi ty
US doflars 267 (266) i 298 (299) (1)
Sterling 430 {427) 3 1,018 (1.027) 9)
Euro 2 (8) i 6 {5) H ?
Total for continuing operations as &
presented in the balance sheet 5 (%) Z
- z
a

Atthe end of 2013 the Group had offset US doltar, sterling and euro asset balances of £lm £16m and £nid respectively
in respect of disconunued operauons

Offset arrangements in respect of derivatives are shown In note |6
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

{8 Financial hablities — borrowings

The Group's current and non-current borrowings are as follows

Al figures i £ mons 014 043
Non-current
& 0% Sterhing bonds 2015 (nominal amount £300m)] - 299
4 0% US dolar notas 2016 (nominal amount $350m) 23| 221
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 (norminal amount $550m) 390 375
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 210 202
| 875% Euro notes 2021 (normunal amount €500m) 408 -
3 75% US dollar notes 2022 (nomunal amount $500my) 3i9 283
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 (nominal amount $500m) 315 286
Bank loans and overdrafts 3 22
Finance lease habilites 5 5
1,883 1,693
Current
Due within one year or on-demand
5 7% US dollar bonds 2014 (nominat amount $400m) - 248
7 0% Sterling bonds 20(4 (nominal amount £250m) - 254
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 (nominal amount £300m) 300 -
Bank loans and overdrafts 37 25
Finance lease habiiues 5 6
- 342 533
Total borrowings 2,225 2,226
included n the non-current borrowings above 1s £13m of accrued interest (2013 £9m) Included in the current
borrowings above is £im of accrued interest (2013 £4m)
The maturity of the Group's non-current borrowing is as follows
All figures m £ nmuliiens 2014 2013
Between one and two years 239 303
Between two and five years 602 82t
Qver five years 1,042 569
(883 1,693
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18 Financial laabilities - boi rowings contnued

{63

The carrymg amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows

20M 2013

- Enective Curynp Maker C-:;rym;; PMart t:-
Allfigures n £ mvlions mterest rarc value rae value value
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 42 42 47 47
579 US dollar bonds 2014 5 88% - - 248 246
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 7 20% - - 254 262
6 0% Sterling bonds 2015 627% 300 314 299 325
4 0% US doflar notes 2016 426% 23t 233 221 223
6 25% Global dollar bonds 2018 6 46% 390 397 375 376
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 469% 210 205 202 195
I 875% Euro notes 2021 204% 408 407 - -
3 75% US doilar notes 2022 394% 319 327 283 286
3 25% US dollar notes 2023 336% 315 314 286 273
Finance lease hablities n/a 0 i0 il i
2,225 2,249 2,226 2,244

The market values stated above are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available,
on the quoted market pnces of comparable debt issued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate

to the underlymng debt mstruments

The carrying amounts of the Group's borrowings are denonunated in the following currencies

All figures 1n £ milhans 2004 w010
US dollar 1,491 1,645
Sterling 303 559
Euro 408 -
Other 23 22

T W05 222
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Notes to the consohidated financial statements continued

I8 Financial habiliues — borrowings continued

The Group has the following undrawn capacity on its comimitied borrowing facikues as at 31 December

Al figures i £ outhons

Floatng rate
- expiring within one year

~ expiring beyond one year

044 2013
1,122 1,057
P122 1.057

In addition to the above facilities, there are a number of short-term facdives that are utlised in the normal course

of business

All of the Group's borrowings are unsecured In respect of finance lease obligations, the rights to the leased asset

revert to the lessor in the event of default

The maturity of the Group's finance lease obligations is as follows

Adl figures n £ millions

Finance lease habihpes — minimum lease payments
Not later than one year

{_ater than one year and not later than two years
Later than two years and not later than three years
Later than three years and not later than four years
Later than four years and not later than five years
Later than five years

Future finance charges on finance leases

Present value of finance lease habilities

The present value of finance lease hiabiliues 1s as foliows

All flgures In £ milllons

Not later than one year
Later than one year and not tater than five years

Later than five years

2014 2013
6
4
! |
| -
10 ti
2044 2013
5 &

5 5 ’
10 il

The carrying amounts of the Group's lease obligations approximate their fair value
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19 Einancial nsk management

The Group's approach to the management of financal risks together with sensitvity analyses of its financal
instruments i1s setout below

Treasu y policy
The Group holds financiah nstrumenits for two principal purposes to finance s operations and to manage the nterest

rate and currency risks ansing from its operauons and its sources of finance The Group finances its operations by a
mixture of cash flows from operations, short-term borrowings from banks and commercial paper markets, and
fonger-term loans from banks and capital markets The Group borrows principally n US dollars, euros and sterhng,

at both floating and fixed rates of interest, using derivative finanaial instruments {'dervatives’), where appropriate,

to generate the desired currency profile and interest rate basis The derivauves used for this purpose are princpally
rate swaps, rate caps and collars, currency rate swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts The main risks arising
from the Group's financial instruments are interest rate risk, iquidity and refinancing nisk, counterparty rnisk and foreign
currency risk These rislks are managed by the chief financial officer under policies approved by the board, which are
summarised in this Note All the treasury policies rematned unchanged throughout the year, except for revisions to

the Group’s bank counterparty risk kmits and a clanfication of the Group's intention ta maintain its credit ratings as

outhned below

The audit commuttee recerves regular reports on the Group’s treasury actvities, policies and procedures
The treasury department is not a profit centre and 115 activities are subject to regular intermal audit

Liquidity and refinancing risk management
The Group's objective Is to secure conunuity of funding at a reasanable cost To do this 1t seeks to arrange committed

funding for a variety of maturiues from a diversity of sources The Group's policy obrective 1s to mantain the weighted
average maturity of its core gross borrowings (treating short-term advances as having the final matunity of the faciities
avallable 1o refinance them) to be between three and ten years Atthe end of 2014 the average maturity of gross
borrowings was 4 7 years {2013 4 2 years) of which bonds represented 97% (2013 97%) of these borrowings

The Group beleves that ready access to different funding markets also helps to reduce its iquidity risk, and that
published credit raungs and published financial policies improve such access The long-term ratings are Baal from
Moody's and BBB+ from Standard & Poor s, and the short-term ratings are P2 and A2 respecuvely Al of the Group's
credit raungs remamned unchanged during the year, although in fanuary 2014, Moody's changed the outlook on therr
shortterm and long-term raungs from 'Stable’ to ‘Negative’ The Group's paficy 15 to strive to maintain a rating of
Baal/BBB+ over the long term The Group also uses a range of rauos to monitor and manage its finances internally
These include interest cover, net debt to eperaung profit and cash flow to debt measures The Group also mamtains
undrawn commutted borrowing factlities At the end of 2014 the commutted faciliies amounted to $1.750m (£1,122m)
and therr weighted average maturity was 4 6 years

lnterest rate risk management
The Group's exposure to mnterest rate fluctuauons on its borrowings 1s managed by borrowing on a fixed rate basis

and by entering into rate swaps, rate caps and forward rate agreements The Group also aims to avoid undue
exposure to a sngle nterest rate setung Reflecung this objective, the Group has predominantly swapped its fixed rate
bond 1ssues to fioating rate at their launch This creates a group of dertvatives, under which the Group is a recetver of
fixed rates and a payer of floaung rates

The Group's policy objective has conttnued to be to set a target proporuon of s forecast borrowings {taken at the
year end, with cash netted agamnst floatmg rate debt and before certain adjustments for [AS 39) to be hedged (1 e fixed
or capped at the year end) over the next four years, subject to a maximum of 65% and a rmummurn that starts at 40%
and falls by 10% at each year end At the end of 2044 the fixed to floanng hedging rato, on the above basis, was
approximately 38% 62% Steps wili be taken in early 2015 to bring the Group baclk into compliance with this policy
objecuve A simultaneous 1% change on | January 2045 in the Group’s varable mterest rates in US dollar and sterling,
taking into account forecast seasonal debr, would have an £11m effect on profit before tax

l
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19. financial risk management continued

Interest rate risk management continued

The policy described above creates a further group of derivauves under which the Group is a payer of fixed rates
and a recewver of floating rates The Group s accounting objectve in relation to its use of nterestrate derivatives 1S

to minimise the impact on the income statement of changes i the mark-to-market value of its derivative portfoho

as awhole ltuses duraton calcufations to estmate the senstuvity of the dervatives to movements in market rates
The Group also identifies which derivauves are eligible for fair value hedge accounung (which reduces the income
statement impact of changes in the market value of a derwative) The Group then balances the total portfolio
between hedge-accounted and poaled segments, so that the expected movement on the pooled segment 1s mirimal

Financial counterparty riske management

Counterparty credit iruts, which take published eredit rating and other factors nto account, are set to cover the
Group's total aggregate exposure to a single financial institution The limits applicable to published credit ratings bands
are approved by the chieffinancial officer within gurdelines approved by the board Exposures and hrnits applicable to
each financial insutution are reviewed on a regular basts

Foreign currency risk management

Although the Group 1s based in the UK it has its most significant mvestment n overseas operations The most
sigrificant currency for the Group 1s the US dolfar The Group's policy on routne transactional conversions beiween
currencies {for example, the collection of recevables, and the setttement of payables or interest) remains that these
should be transacted at the relevant spot exchange rate The majority of the Group's operauons are domestic within
thewr country of operation No unremitted profits are hedged with foreign exchange contracts, as the company Judges
it thappropriate to hedge non cash flow translauonal exposure with cash flow instruments However, the Group does
seek to create a natural hedge of this exposure through its policy of aigning approximately the currency composition
of its core net borrowings (after the impact of cross-currency rate denvatives) with its forecast operatng profit
before depreciation and amorusatton This policy aims to soften the impact of changes in foreign exchange rates on
consolidated interest cover and earnings The policy above apphes only to currencies that account for more than {5%
of Group operating profit before deprecation and amorusation, which currently 15 only the US dellar The Group still
borrows small ameunts in other currencies, typically for seasonal working capital needs The Group policy does not
require exisung currency debt to be terminated to match dechines n that currency’s share of Group operatng profit
before depreciation and amorusation In addition, currencies that account for less than 15% of Group operating
profit before deprecation and amorusauon can be included in the above hedging process at the request of the

chief financial officer

included within year end net debt, the net borrowings/(cash) in the hedging currencies above {taking 1nto account
the effect of cross-currency swaps) were US dollar £2,005m and sterfing £36m

Use of currency debt and currency derwatives
The Group uses both currency denominated debt and denvauve instruments to implement the above policy

Its intention s that gains/losses on the derivatives and debt offset the losses/gains on the foreign currency assets
and income Each guarter the value of hedging instruments 1s monitored agamst the assets n the refevant currency
and, where pracuocal, a decision 1s made whether to treat the debt or derivative as a net investment hedge
(permitung foreign exchange movements on it to be taken to reserves) for the purposes of 1AS 39
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19 Financial nisk management continued

{69

Analysis of Group debt, including the impace of dervatives
The following tables analyse the Group's sources of funding and the impact of derwatives on the Group’s

debtinstruments

The Group’s net debt pasition is set out below

All figures in £ muhions 1014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 530 729

Marketable securtties 6 6

Derwauve financial instruments 40 76

Bank loans, overdrafts and loan notes (42) (47)
Bonds {2,173) (2.168)
Finance lease habilines (10) (1)
Continuing operations o - (1,639} (1.415)
Cash and cash equivalents classified within assets held for sale - 36

Net debt {1,639) (! 379
The split of net debt between fixed and floatng rate, stated after the impact of rate derwatives, 1s as follows

Al figures i £ mdhons o 2014 2043

Fixed rate 597 612

Floatng rate 1,042 767

Total 1,639 1379

Gross borrowings, after the mmpact of cross-currency rate dervatves, analysed by currency are as foflows

Allfigures m £ muflions 2014 2013
US dollar 2,099 1,849

Sterling 104 339
Other 22 38

Total T 2205 222

As at 31 December 2014 the exposure of the borrowings of the Group to interest rate changes when the borrowings

re-price 15 as follows

Less than Oncto  More than
Al figures in £ nullions one year five years five years Tazal
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 342 842 1.041 21225
Effect of rate derwatives 1254 (225) (1,.029) -
Total | 596 617 12 2235
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19 Financial sk management cantnued

The maturity of contracted cash flows associated with the Group's financial habiliues are as follows

20t4
Al figures in £ mifians usD GRP Other Tont
Notlater than one year 398 160 99 657
Later than one year and not later than five years 877 - - 877
Later than five years 126 - - {1,126
Total 2,401 160 99 2,660
Analysed as
Bonds 1,711 3i8 439 2,468
Rate derwvatives — inflows (379) {656) (537) (1.572)
Rate derivatives — outflows 833 444 98 1,435
Trade payables 176 54 99 329
Toral 2401 160 99 2,660

2013
Allfigures n £ milhons usD Gep Other Tonal
Not later than one year 434 316 113 863
Later than one year and not later than five years £,000 106 - i.106
Later than five years 648 - - 648
Total 2,082 422 13 267
Analysed as
Bonds 1918 604 - 2,522
Rate dervatives — inflows (350) (248) - (598)
Rate dervatives — outflows 35% ! 6 376
Trade payables 155 65 97 317
Total 2.082 422 13 2,617

All cash flow projections shown above are on an undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floaung rate are
caleulated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset Where thus s not possible, floating rates are based
on interest rates prevailing at 31 December in the relevant year All denvative amounts are shown gross altthough the

Group net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credt facilities and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturwy date
of the relevant facility, with inter est calculated as payable n each calendar year up to and including the date of maturity

of the facllity
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19 Financial nisk management continued o
C
Financial instruments ~ far value measui ement =
o
The following table provides an analysis of those financial mstruments that are measured subsequently to inual ]
4
recogmition at fair value, grouped into levels | to 3, based on the degree to which the fair value 1s observable m
vy
Level | fair value measurements are those derved from unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets
or habilities
Level 2 fair value measurements are those derwved from inputs, other than quated prices included within levef 1,
that are observable for the asset or hability erther directly (as prices) or indirectly (derved from prices), and
Level 2 far value measurements are those dertved from valuation techmiques thatinclude inputs for the asset or hability ——
0
that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs) =
— - e =
2084 2013 e
=
All figuresin £ millions Level ) Level 2 Level 3 Tatal Level i Levit2 Level3 Toral g
3
Financial assets at far value z
n
Derwvative financial assets - 114 - 114 - 124 - 124 m
Marketable securities - 16 - 6 - 6 - 6
Avaitable for sale financial assets
investments in histed securwes - 9 - 9 - - - - _
o
Investments in unlisted securies - - 45 45 - - 24 94 =
Financial habiliwes at fasr value )
[}
Derwvative financial llabiliues - 74) - 74) - (48) - (48) =
Total - 65 45 1o - 82 94 176 §
9
The following table analyses the movements in level 3 farr value measurements
2014 2013
Ivestrents Other Investments Other
an unlisted financnl inunhsied financral I
Al figures In € millions seCUnT es liabtities securies labilitias [}
o
At beginming of year 94 - 3t (68) =
=
Exchange differences - - 9 g
z
Additons 3 - 63 - a
Fairvalue movements - - - (8)
Disposals (58) - - 67
At end of year 45 - 94 -

The fair value of the mvestments in unhsted securities is deter mined by reference to the financal performance of the
underlying asset and amounts realised on the sale of sumilar assets
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19 Financial risk management continued

Financial instruments — senstuvity analysis
As at 3t Decerber 2014 the sensitvity of the carrying value of the Group's financial instruments to fluctuations
in 1nterest rates and exchange rares s as follows

Impactof 1% Impactof 1% Impactof F0%  Impaceof 10%

AR figures n £ mifons CoE et e g eertog
Investments in listed securities 9 - - (H |
Investments i unlisted securities 45 - - )] 5
Cash and cash equivalents 530 - - (67) 82
Marlketable secunues f6 - - - -
Derwvative finanaial instruments 40 {66) 85 6 (19
Bonds (2,173) 71 (84) (170) 208
Orther borrowings (52) - - & @
Other net financial assets 660 - - (53) 64
Total financizl mstruments (925) 5 | (273} 334

The table shows the sensitvities of the fair values of each class of financial instruments to an isclated change in
either mterest rates or foreign exchange rates The class ‘Other net financial assets’ comprises trade assets less
trade habiliues

The sensitivities of derivattve instruments are calculated using established esumation techruiques such as discounted
cash flow and option valuation models Where modeling an interest rate decrease of (% led ta negative interest rates,
these points on the yteld curve were adjusted to 0% A large proporuon of the movements shown above would impact
equity rather than the Income statement, due to the locaton and functional currency of the entities inwhich they arise
and the availability of net investment hedge treatment The changes in valuauons are estmates of the mpact of changes
m market vartables and are not a prediction of future events or anticipated gains or losses
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20 Intangible assets — Pre-publication

Alffigures i £l ons 014 1013
Cost
At beginning of year 1,933 1.876
Exchange diffet ences 8O (46)
Additions 58 364
Disposal through business disposal ~ (29)
Disposals (234) (234)
Acquisiton through business combination I 2
At end of year 2,138 1,933
Amortisation
At beginning of year (i.216) (1.210)
Exchange differences {60) 46
Charge for the year (292) (308)
Disposal through busmess disposal - 23
Disposals 234 234
Acquisition through business combination - (1)
Transfer to recevables I6 -
At end of year (1.318) W(I-E i_a
Carrying amounts

820 717

At end of year

Included in the above are pre-publication assets amounting to £546m {2013 £4B0m) which will be realised in more
than one year

Amaorusation is included in the income staternent in cost of goods sold The was no amortisation within discontinued
operations In either year

2| lnventories

All figures in £ nhicas 2014 2013
Raw matenals 3 15
Work in progress 10 I3
Frushed goods 205 196

224 224

The cost of inventortes relating to conunuing operauons recognised as an expense and included in the Income
statement in cost of goods sold amounted to £387m (2013 £472m) In 2014 £38m (2013- £53m) of inventory
provisions was charged i the iIncome statement None of the inventory is pledged as security
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Notes to the consoldated financal statements continued

22. Trade and other recervables

AN figun es n £ llions 2014 7013
Current
Trade recetvables 963 B63
Royalty advances I8 23
Prepayments and accrued ncome 107 10t
COrtherrecevables 222 186
1310 1,173
Non-current T
Trade recewvables 26 19
Royalty advances 8 8
Prepayments and acarued ncome 30 3
Other recervables 18 ]
82 70

Trade receivables are stated at fair value, net of provisions for bad and doubtful debts and anucipated future sales
returns The movements on the provision for bad and doubtful debts are as follows

Al figures w £ mudlions 2014 201
At beginning of year (58) (55)
Exchange differences - 5
Income statement movements 2n 27y
Uulised I7 18
Acquisiton through bustness combination (i -
Transfer to assets dassified as held for sale - !
At end of year _, {73) (58)

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to trade receivables are limited due 1o the Group s large number of customers,
who are internavonally dispersed
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22 Trade and other 1 ecawvables contunued o
The ageing of the Group’s trade recervables 1s as follows S
Afi tiguresn £ rulions T 2014 202 ;
Within due date 869 783 a
Up 1o three months past due date 203 194
Three to six months past due date 40 36
Six to ine months past due date i5 22
Nine to {2 months past due date i5 9
More than [2 months past due date il | e
Total trade receivables 1,153 £.045 %
Less prowision for sales returns (le4) (163) 2
Net trade receivables 989 882 ;3";:
The Group reviews its bad debt provision at Jeast twice a year following a detailed review of receivable balances and E
historic payment profiles Management believe all the remaining recervable balances are fully recoverable
23 Prowistons for ather liabihities and charges
Deferred D sposais Legal
Adt figures in £ nuliions consideranon Property  andclosires and other Toat —
At [ January 2014 58 il 67 53 {89 g
Exchange differences 4 - - I 5 §
Charged to Income statement - 1 - o 1 =
Released to income statement - 't {43 {(4) (48) =
Acquisition through business combination - - - 4 14 5
Utihsed L (5} {4) “) (23) (36)
At 3f December 2014 57 7 20 51 {35
Analysis of provisions —
2014 §
Deferred D sposals Legal §
Al figures o £ millions consideration Property and clotures and other Toral ;
Current 7 4 20 22 53 -
Non-current 50 3 - 29 82
57 7 20 51 135
2013
Current 5 0 67 30 12
Non-current 53 | -~ 23 77
58 t 67 53 189

Deferred consideration primanly relates to the formation of a ventut e in a North Amenca business n 2011

Disposals and dosures include habihites related to the disposal of Penguin in 2013 a provision veas established for
amounts payable to Bertelsmann upcn setdement of the transfer of Pengum’s UK past service penston habilities to the
new Penguin Random House venture During 2014 1t was decided that thus transfer woudd not go ahead as planned and

therefore the provision has been released
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Legal and other mcludes lega! claims, contract disputes and potential contract losses
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

24 Tradeand other habiues

Altfigures m £ milions 204 2013
Trade payables 329 3i6
Social security and other taxes 21 23
Accruals 501 478
Deferred income g0t 698
Interest payable 28 22
Other habilines 231 225
1911 1,762

Less non-current portion
Accruals 22 25
Deferred income 201 155
interest payable 19 29
Other habilities 68 56
3i0 257
1,601 1,505

Current peruon

The carrying value of the Group's trade and other liabiliues approximates its far value

The deferred income balance comprises principally multi-year obhgations to deliver workbooks to adoption
customers in schoo! busmesses, advance payments in assessment, testing and raining businesses, subscripuon
tncome in school, college and newspaper businesses, and obligations to deliver digital content in future years

25 Reurement benefit and other post-retirement obligations

Background
The Group operates a number of defined benefit and defined contribution retirement plans throughout the world

The largest ptan 1s the Pearson Group Pension Plan (UK Group plan} n the UK, which 15 sectionalised to provide both
defined benefit and defined contribution penston benefits The defined benefit section was closed to new members
from | November 2006 The defined contribution section, opened in 2003, 1s open to new and existing employees
Finally, there is a separate section within the UK Group plan set up for auto-enrolment The defined benefit section of
the UK Group plan is a final salary pension plan which provides benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed level
of pension payable for ife The level of benefits depends on the length of service and final pensionable pay The UK
Group plan 1s funded with benefit payments from trustee administered funds The UK Group planis administered

in accordance with the Trust Deed and Rules in the interests of its beneficiaries by Pearson Group Pension

Trustee Limited

At 3| December 2014 the UK Group plan has approximately 26,500 members, analysed in the following table

%X Active Dreferred Pensloners Tarat
Defined benefit 2 25 32 59
Defined contribution '8 23 - 41

Total 20 48 32 a0
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1

25 Rewurement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued o
o

Background continued -

The other major defined benefit plans are based in the US These are also final salary pension pfans which provide S

benefits to members in the form of a guaranteed pension payable for bfe, with the level of benefits dependent on E

length of ser vice und final pansionable pay The major ity of the US pians are funded “

The Group also has several post-reurement medical benefit plans (PRMBs), principally in the US PRMBs are unfunded

but are accounted for and valued similarly to defined benefit pension plans

The defined benefit schemes expose the Group to actuanal risks, such as bfe expectancy. inflation rnisks, and

investment risk including asset volatdity and changes in bond yields The Group is not exposed to any unusual,

entity specific or plan speafic risks 0

Assumpuons ;‘

The principal assumptions used for the UK Group plan and the US PRMB are shown below Weighted average §

assumpuons have been shown for the other plans, which primanily relate to US pension plans z
>

2014 2012 r%
UK Group Other UK Group Orther

% plan plans PRMB phn plans PRIMB

Inffavion 30 25 25 34 25 25

Rate used to discount plan habihties 36 37 37 44 44 44

Expected rate of increase in salaries 35 39 40 39 39 44 e
E-l

Expected rate of increase for penstonsin 8

payment and deferred pensions | 910505 - - 23to5| - - 2

Initial rate of ncrease in healthcare rate - - 70 - - 75 ;
z

Ultimate rate of increase i healthcare rate - - 50 - - 50 ﬁ

The UK discount rate 1s based on corporate bond yields adjusted to reflect the duranon of habiites The US discount

rate is set by reference to a US bond portfolio matching model

The inflation rate for the UK Group plan of 3 0% reflects the RPI rate 1nline with changes to legistavon in 2010, certain

benefits have been calculated with reference to CPl as the inflationary measure and in these instances a rate of 2 0% 2

has been used =

The expected rate of merease in salarmes has been set at 3 5% for 2014 with a short-term assumption of 2 0% Jzz'
2

for three years

For the UK plan, the mortality base table assumptions have been derived from the SAPS ‘all pensioners” tables for
males and the SAPS ‘normal health pensioners’ tables for females, adjusted to reflect the observed expenience of the
plan, with CMI model improvement factors A 1 5% long-term rate mprovemert on the CM| model is applied for
males, and | 25% for females

For the US plans, the mortality table (RP - 2014) and 2014 Improvement scale (MP - 2014) with no adjustments have
been adopted for 2014, reflecting the mortahty assumption most prevalent in the LIS [n 2013 the RP2000 table
projected to 2020 was used
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

25 Retwement benefit and other post-retirement obhigations continued

Assumpuions continued
Using the above tables, the remamning average hfe expectancy in years of a penstoner reuring atage 65 on the batance
sheet date for the UK Group plan and US plans is as follows

UK Us

2014 2013 014 2013

Male 244 243 216 192
Female 245 24 4 238 241

The remaining average life expectancy in years of a pensioner reuring at age 65, 15 years after the balance sheet date,
for the UK and US Group pians s as follows

UK us

2014 2013 2014 2013

Male 266 259 233 192
Female 264 259 255 PAN

Although the Group anticipates that plan surpluses will be utilised during the life of the plan to address member
benefits. the Group recognises 1ts pension surplus in futl in respect of the UK Group plan an the basis that it1s
management's judgement that there are no substantive restrictions on the return of restdual plan assets in the
event of a winding up of the plan after all member obligations have been met

Financial statement information
The amouris recogrised in the income statement are as follows

2014
Defined
UK Group benefit Drefined

All figures in £ multions plan other Subsotal  contributn PRMB Toual
Current service cost 20 2 22 69 2 93
Curtalments (3) - (5} - (t3) (18)
Administration expenses 4 - 4 - ~ 4
Total operating expense 19 2 21 69 (1) 72
intereston plan assets (103) {7 (110 - - (f10}
Interest on plan habiliues 98 8 106 - 3 109
MNet finance (income)/expense (5) l 4 - 3 {n

Net income statement charge/(income) 4 3 17 69 8 78
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25 Retrement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Financial statement information conunued

1013
- Defined
1K Group beaef 1 Defined

Al figures w1 £m thang plan other Sub ot qomtribution PRME Tosd
Curt ent service cost 22 3 25 72 4 10l
Curtatlments - - - - 4) 4)
Admunistrauon expenses ) 4 -4 - DA
Toral operating expen_s-e" R 7 3 29 72 - 101
interest on plan assets {35) () {(1on - - (iol}
Interest on plan habiliues 94 7 {01 - 3 04
Net finance (income)/expense H | - - 3 3
Net income statement charge 25 4 29 72 3 104
Included within the 2014 results are discontinued operations consisting of a £5m credit (2013 £2m charge) relating
to defined benefit schemes and a £nil m charge (2013 £6m charge) relaung to defined contribution schemes
The amounts recogrused in the balance sheet are as follows

2014 2013

Other Other T Criher  Other
UKGroup  funded  unfunded UKGioup  funded  unfurded

Alifigures in £ miflions glan plans plans Total plan plans plans Total
Far value of plan assets 2,714 164 - 2878 2353 156 - 2509
Present value of defined benefitabligavon  (2,524)  (196) (23 (2743) (2267 (171) {20) (2.458)
Net penston asset/{liabiliry) t90 (32) (23} 135 86 {15) (20) 54
Other post-retrement medical benefit
obhgation 84 (77)
Orther pension accruals (27) (30)
MNet retirement benefit asset/(obligation) 27 (56)
Analysed as
Retirement benefit assets 190 86
Retirement benefit obligations {163} (142)
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continued

25 Retwrement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Financial statement mformation continued
The following guns/(losses) have been recognised in other comprehensive ncome

Al figures m £ millons 2044 2013
Amounts recognised for defined benefit plans 36 70
Amounts recogmsed for post-reti ement medical benefit plans {13) 9
Total recogmsed in year 23 79
The fair vaiue of plan assets comprises the following

014 2013

Crher Cither

UK Group funded UK Group funded
% plan plans Toul plan plans Total
Equities 26 2 28 28 P 30
Bonds 42 3 . 45 40 3 43
Property 9 - 9 9 - 9
Other i7 ] {8 17 I {8

The plan assets do not include any of the Group's own financial instruments, or any property occupled by the Group

The table below further disaggregates the UK Group pian assets into additional categories and those assets which have

a quoted market price in an active market and those that do not.

2014 2013
Quoted Mo quated Quoied No quated
% market prce markes price marketprice  growkes price
UK equines 5 | & |
Non-UK equities 20 2 20 3
Fixed-interest securities 19 - 19 -
Index-finked securities 26 - 24 -
Property - 9 - 9
Other - 18 - 18
Total 70 30 69 3i
The hquidity profile of the UK Group plan assets 1s as follows
% 2014 2013
Liguid — call <1 month 72 72
Less hgud ~ call 1-3 months 2 2
26

Liquid — call > 3 months 26
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Financial statement informatton continued

Changes n the values of plan assets and liabdiues of the revrement benefit plans are as follows

2014 2013
UK Group Qsher T UkGm Ot

Allfigures in £ rdlions plan plans Toual plan planz Toral
Fair value of plan assets
Openmg fair value of plan assats 2353 {56 2,509 2162 165 2327
Exchange differences - 4 4 - {2} (2)
Interest on plan assets 103 7 Ho 95 6 104
Return on plans assets excluding interest 286 9 295 103 6 tQ9
Contributions by employer 62 4 66 77 5 82
Contribuuons by employee 2 - 2 2 - 2
Benefits paid {52 (16) (108) (86) (24) (110)
Closing fair value of plan assets 2714 iod 2,878 2353 156 2,509
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening defined benefit obligation (2,267) (ren {2.458) (2.18h {(220) (2.401)
Exchange differences -~ (5) (5) - 4 4
Current service Cost (209 (2) (22) (22) 3 {25)
Adrimstration expenses (%) - 4) G)] - 1)
Curtalments 5 - 5 - - -
Interest cost (98) (8) (106) (94) N (ton
Actuanal gains/(losses) — expertence I n H 5 { 6
Actuaral gains/(losses) — demographic - ® (8) - | t
Actuanal gains/(lasses) - financial (241) {20) (261) (55) 9 (46)
Contrnbutions by employee (2) - (2) (2) - (2)
Benefits paid 92 4 108 86 24 110
Closing defined benefit obhgauon (2.524) 219) (2.743) (2,267) {19h) (2458)

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation is [6 5 years for the UK and 47 years for the US
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Notes to the consohdated financal statements continued

25 Retrement benefit and other post-retrement obligations continued

Fimanctal statement information continued
Changes in the value of the LS PRMB are as follows

Alt figures in £ millions 2014 2043
Opening defined benefit obligatton (77) 89)
Exchange differences ) f
Current service cost (2) (4}
Curtailments 13 4
Interest cost Q) 3
Actuarial gains/(losses) — demographic 7} -
Actuaral gans/(losses) - financal (6)

Benefits paid 5 5
Closing defined benefit obligation (8i) 7N
Funding

The UK Group plan is self-admiristered with the plan s assets being held independently of the Group m trust The
trustee of the plan is required to actin the best interest of the plan’s beneficanies Assets of the plan are divided into
two elements matching assets, which are assets that produce cash flows that can be expected to match the cash flows
for a proportion of the membership, and include UK and overseas bonds, inflavon linked property and infrastructure,
return seeking assets, which are assets invested with a longer-term horizen to generate the returns needed to provide
the remaining expected cash flows for the beneficiaries, and include equities, property and alternauve asset classes
The benchmark atlocation is 60% matching and 40% return seeking assets

The most recent tnennal actuanal valuation for funding purposes was completed as at | January 2042 and this
valuation revealed a funding shortfall The Group has agreed that the funding shortfall will be eliminated by june 2017

In 2014 the Group conurbuted £43m (2013 £56m) towards the funding shortfall Following the completion of the
triennial funding valuation the Group has agreed to contribute £41m per annum unul 2¢17 in excess of regular
contributions In addition, a mecharism has been agreed for the Group to make supplementary payments up to a
maximum of £15m per annum if certain condiions are met If such payments are made they are expected to accelerate
the end date for extinguishing the defiat Regular contributions to the plan in respect of the defined benefit sections

are esumated to be £17mfor 2015

The Group expects to contribute $10m in 2015 and $Hm in 2016 to its US defined benefit pension plans




Secuon 5 U 1nancal satements 183

25 Retrement benefit and other post-reurement obligations continued

Sensiovities
The effect of a one percentage point increase and decrease in the discount rate on the defined benefit obhigation and

the total penston expense 1s as follows

2014
All figures in L millions 1% snerease I% decrease
Effect
{Decrease)/increase n defined benefit obligation - UK Group plan (371) 467
{Decrease)/increase n defined benefit obhgauon —US plan (19 22
The effect of members living one year more or one year less on the defined benefit obligation s as follows
2014
| year i year
All figures In £ millions ncrease decrense
Effect.
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation — UK Group plan 88 (85)
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation ~US plan 7 (6)
The effect of a half percentage poinit mcrease and decrease in the inflation rate s as follows
- 20i4

Al figures n £ midlions. 0 5% merease O 5% decrease

Effect
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligauon - UK Group plan i (104)
Increase/{decrease) in defined benefit obligation — US plan - -

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding alf other assumpuions constant,
although in practice this is unlikely to occur and changes in some assumpuions may be correlated VWhen caleulating
these sensiuvities the same method has been apphied to calculate the defined benefit obhgaton as has been applied
when calculating the llability recognised in the balance sheet This methodology 1s the same as prior penods
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Share-based payments

The Group recognised the following charges m the income statement in respect of its equity-settied share-based
payment plans

2014 2013

32 35

Allfiguresin £ mlions

Pearson plans

Share-based payment charges included in discontinued operations amounted to £nil (2013 £2m) The Group operates
the foliowing equity-settled employee opuion and share plans

Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Since 1994, the Group has operated a Save-As-You-Earn plan for UK employees

In 1998, the Group introduced a Worldwide Save for Shares Plan Under these plans, employees can save a portion
of their monthly salary over periods of three or five years At the end of this period, the employee has the option to
purchase ordinary shares with the accumulated funds at a purchase price equal to 80% of the market price prevailing
at the ume of the commencement of the employee’s participation in the plan Opuions that are not exercised within
six menths of the end of the savings period lapse unconditionally

Employee Stock Purchase Plan In 2000, the Group established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan which allows all
employees in the US to save a portion of their monthly salary over six-month periods At the end of the pertod, the
emplayee has the option to purchase ADRs with their accumulated funds ata purchase price equal to 85% of the
lower of the market price prevailing at the beginning or end of the penod

LLong-Term Incentive Plan This plan was first introduced in 2001, renewed in 2006 and aganin 211 The plan consists
of restricted shares The vestng of restricted shares 1s normally dependent on continuing service overathree to five-
year period, and in the case of sentor management upon the satisfaction of corporate performance targets over a
three-year period These targets may be based on market and/or non-market performance criteria Restricted shares
awarded to senior management in May 2014 and May 2013, vest dependent on relatve total shareholder return, return
on nvested capital and earnings per share growth Restricted shares awarded to senior management in Navember
2014 vest dependent on earnings per share growth Other restncted shares awarded in 2014 and 2013 vest depending
on continuing service over a three-year period

Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan This plan permuts executive directors and senicr executives around the Group

to invest up to 50% of any after tax annual bonus in Pearson shares If these shares are held and the Group meets an
earnings per share growth target, the company will match them on a gross basis of up to one matching share for every
invested share, (e the maximum number of matching shares 1s equal to the number of shares that could have been
acquired with the amount of the pre-tax annual bonus taken n invested shares Awards under this plan ceased n 2013

The number and weighted average exercise prices of share options granted under the Group's plans are as follows

2014 2012

Waighted We ghted

MNumber of average Number of Teerige

shareoptions  exercisc piice shareoptions  exercise price

000s £ 000s £

Qutstanding at beginmng of year 2,732 873 3373 824
Granted during the year 1,985 8il 763 914
Exercsed during the year {727) 824 (820) 712
Forfeited during the year {538) 876 (516) 875
Expired during the year &) 743 (8) 575
Qutstanding at end of year 3507 848 2792 873

Opuons exercisable ac end of year 43 824 35 695
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26 Share-based payments continued

Opuons were exerased regulatly throughout the year The weighted average share price duning the year was £11 41
(2013 £1242) Early exercises arising from redundancy, retirement or death are treated as an accelerauon of vesting
and the Group therefore recognises in the income statement the amount that otherwise would have been recognised
for services received over the remamder of the onginal vesting period

The options outstanding at the end of the year have weighted average remaining contractual hves and exercise prices
as follows

2094 2013

Weighted Weighted

Number of average Mumber of Weraze

Range of exercise preces share oprions  contraceual hfe shara opsions  contrartual kfe
L 000s Years 000s Years
0-5 - - - -
5-10 3,507 268 2,792 234

>10 - - - -
3.507 268 2,792 231

In 2014 and 2013 options were granted under the Worldwide Save for Shares Plan The weighted average estimated
fair value for the options granted was calculated using 2 Black-Scholes opuon pricing model

The weighted average estimated fair values and the inputs into the Black-Scholes model are as follows

2014 2013

Weigheed Weighted

aver ize werage

Far value £2 41 £2727
Weighted average share price £1109 £1171
Weighted average exercise price 81l £9 14
Expected volatiity 21 27% 2205%
Expected Iife 39years 38years
Risk free rate | 3% 053%
Expected dividend yield 433% 384%
Forferture rate L 34% 33%

The expected volatility 1s based on the histonc volaulity of the company's share price over the previous three to seven
years depending on the vesting term of the options

The following shares were granted under restricted share arrangements

204 2013

Weglted Waphted

MNumber of average far MNumberaf werage {2

shares value shares valve

0001 4 000s C

Long-Term Incenuve Plan 5.875 i144 3.482 1152
Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan - - 99 1206

The far value of shares granted under the Long-Term Incentive Plan that vest unconditionally 1s determined using the
share price at the date of grant The number of shares expected to vest s adjusted, based on historical expenence,

1o account for porenual forfestures Restricted shares granted under the Annual Bonus Share Matching Plan are valued
ustng the share price atthe date of grant Parucipants under both plans are enutled to dividends during the vesung
period and therefore the share price s not discounted

I
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

26 Share-based payments continued

Restricted shares with a market performance condition were valued by an independent actuary using aMonte Carlo
modet Restricted shares with a non-market performance conditton were fair valued based on the share price at the
date of grant Non-market performance conditions are taken into considerauon by adjusting the number of shares
expected to vest based on the most lilkely outcame of the refevant performance criteria

27 Share capital and share premium

Numberof Ordinry Share

shares shires prermum

000s fm m

At l January 2013 817,043 204 2555
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1,537 i i3
At 31 December 2013 818,580 205 2,568
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes 1,303 - i
At 31 December 2014 819.883 205 2,579

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share) All issued shares are fully pard All shares
have the same nights

The Group manages 1ts capital to ensure that entizes in the Group wilt be able to conunue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance

The capital structure of the Group conststs of debt (see note 18), cash and cash equivalents (see note 17} and equity
attnbutable to equity holders of the parent, comprising 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings

The Gioup reviews its capital structure on a regular basis and will balance its overall capital structur e through
payments of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt or the redempuion of exssting debtin iine
with the financial risk policies outlined in note 19

28 Treasury shares

Pearson plc
et

000s £m

At | January 2013 £0,102 103
Purchase of treasury shares 4,111 47
Release of treasury shares (4,931) {52)
At 31 December 2013 9,282 98
Purchase of treasury shares 907 2
Release of treasury shares (2.997) (32)
At 31 December 20t4 7.192 75

The Group halds Pearson plc shares m trust to sausfy is obligatons under its restricted share plans (see note 26)
These shares, representing 0 9% (2013 1 1%) of called-up share caprtal, are treated as treasury shares for accounting

purposes and have a par value of 25p per share
The nomenal value of Pearson pic treasury shares amounts to £1 8m (2013 £2 3m}

At 31 December 2014 the market value of Pearson plc treasury shares was £85 6m (2013 £124 4m)
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M4
Artribucable to equity holders of the company
- Neon
Translation Rotained cantrolling

Al figures in £ miirons reserve earnings Tota! neCresy Foal
Items that may be reclassified to the income statement
Net exchange differences on translauon of foreign
operations — Group i50 - 150 - 150
Net exchange differences on translation of foresgn
operattons — associate 25 - 25 — 25
Currency transiatron adjustment disposed — subsidiaries (2) - 7] - (2)
Attributable tax - (6) (6) — (€}
ltems that are not reclassified to the income statement
Remeasurement of retirement benefit obligations — Group - 23 23 - 23
Remeasurement of rebrement benefit obligations — associate - (15} {15) - {15)
Artrbutable tax - Q) ) - Q)
Other comprehensive expense for the year t73 f 74 - 174

o o 2013

Attnbutble to equity holders af the company
Nan
T-anstatlon Ret uned caontroling

Al figures i £ miflions. reterve v nngs Total nrerest Total
ftems that may be reclassified to the ncome statement
Net exchange differences on translation of foreign
operatons — Group (202) - (202) (4 (206)
Net exchange differences on transtauon of foreign
operatons - associate (n - (1) - ()
Currency translation adjustment disposed —subsidiaries (18) - (18) - (1B)
Attributable tax - [ ) — 3
ltems that are not reclassified to the ncome statement
Remeasurement of retrement benefit obligations — Group - 79 79 - 79
Remeasurement of reurement benefit obhgations - associate - - - - -
Artnbutable tax - (23) (23) - (23)
Other comprehensive expense for the year (231) 62 {169) 4 (173)
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Notes to the consolidated financial staterments continued

30 Business combinations

On 1| February 2014, the Group acquired 100% of Grupo Muty, the leading adult English language training company
in Brazil Fairvalues for the assets and habilities arising from the Grupo Mulu acquisiuon and other smalfer acquisitions
completed in the year are set out below There were no matenal adjustments to prior year acquistions There were
no significant acquisitions i 2013 Adjustments were made in respect of prior year acquisiuons in 2013 and included
the recognition of mtangibles of £185m on the EmbanetCompass acquisiton

Fair values for the assets and liabiittes arsing from acquisittons completed in the year are as follows

2014 013

Grupo Mutu Owher  Toaifar  Totalfur
Al figures in £ millions Motes  falrvalue  farvalun value value
Property, plant and equipment i ! ! 2 {
Intangtble assets I 254 6 260 200
Intangible assets — pre-publication i 10 l - } |
inventories 4 - 4 1
Trade and other receivables 35 I 36 9
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 3 - 3 2
Financiaf llabilives — borrowings 49 - (49) -
Net deferred income tax assets/(liabiliies) tE P FA] - (37)
Provisions for other habilities and charges bx {13) {H (i4) -
Trade and other habiiuies 1) 3) (24) {Nn
Currentincome tax liabiliues (20) - (20) -
Net assets acquired at farr value 197 2 199 170
Goodwill " 240 (2) 238 (133)
Fair vaiue of previously held interest ansing on stepped acquisiaon - - - 4]
Total 437 - 437 30
Sausfied by
Cash {(437) - {437) 3N
Deferred consideration - - - ()
Net prior year adjustments - - - 3
Total consideration 437) - (437) (30

The goodwill arising on these acquisiuons results from cost and revenue synergies and from assets and benefits that

cannot be separately recognised

Goodwill of £240m arising on 2014 acquisitions s expected to be deducuble for tax purposes (2013 £6m)

Intangible assets acquired i 2014 have the folfowing useful economc bives customerlists, contracts and relauonshups
four years, trademarks and brands 20 years, and other acquired intangibles 12 years Intangible assets recognised
in 2013 have the following useful economic lives customer lists, contracts and relationstups 3-17 years, and trademarks

and brands two years
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30 Business combinations conunued

[8%

Allfigurcs in £ mll ons 2014 1643
Cash flow on acquisitions

Cash — current year acquisitions 437) (25)
Deferred payments for prior year acquisiions and other items () (6)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired 3 2

Acquisition costs and other acquisition liabilities paid . (%) (19
I\—Iet cash outilgw (448} (48)

In total, acquistions completed in the year contributed an additional £70m of sales and £29m of adjusted operaung
profit If the acquisitions had completed on | january 2014 then the Group esumates that sales for the year would have

been £4,880m and total adjusted operaung profit would have been £725m

31 Duisposals including business closures

2014 2013
Allfigures 1n £ mitizans Mergermaiket  Penguin Other Tatat Penguin Other Total
Disposal of subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment (2) - &) (3) (39 (3) (42)
Intangible assets (12) - - (12) (43) - 43)
Investments injoint ventures and associates - - -~ - (22} - (22)
Otherfinancial assets - - - - (H - )
intangble assets - pre-publication - - - - (20) (6) (26)
Inventories - - - - e {3) %4
Trade and other receivables (23) - (2) (25) 447) (6) (453}
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding
overdrafis) (19) - {tn (30) 34 (3) (37)
Net deferred income tax habtlities/(assets) | - - ! (22) - (22)
Reurement benefit obligations - - - - - 4 4
Provisions for other habiliies and charges 4 - - 4 7 ~ 7
Trade and other habilives 69 - 2 8i 224 0 234
Currentincome tax habiliues ] - - 6 - - -
Non-controlling interest - - {2) 2) 3 - 3
Attributable goodwill (156) - )y {57 {370) ©y {378
Cumulative translation adjustment 2 - 2 8 ~ 8
MNet assets disposed (130 - 5)  {135) {837) (13)  (850)
Cash receved 375 - ~ 375 - 3 3
Deferred proceeds - - 6 6 - - -
Fair value of associate acquired - - - - 1160 - {160
Costs {n 29 (2) 26 {i21) (14 (135)
Gainf(loss) on disposal 3 244 29 () 72 202 (24) 178

The gan on disposal of Pengumn in 2013 anses from the measyrement at fair value of the assocate investment acquired

it Penguin Random House Determinaton of far value 1s described in note (2

no

FINYHWYOIHId ¥NO I SSANISNE o

LI¥dME Vi 0s ¥ne l

FJONVYNYIAOCD [

il
A
>l
z
0
>
z
W
3
3 .
m .
= .
m
z
DY
oo,




190 Pearson plc Ar nusl repert and accounts 2314

Notes to the consolidated financial statements continued

3t Dusposals including business closures continued

All Gigures in € millans 2014 KE
Cash flow from disposals
Cash — current year disposals 375 3
Cash and cash equivalents disposed (30 (37}
Costs and other disposal iabihties paid {18) (98)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 327 (132)
32 Held for sale
Assets classified as held for sale in 2013 relate to Mergermarket.
Al figures in £ milhons Notes 2014 203
Property, plant and equipment o - 2
Intangible assets I - 158
Deferred income tax assets 13 - !
Trade and other recevables - 26
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) 7 36
Assets classified as held for sale - 223
Deferred mcome tax habibiies i3 - (2}
Prowisions for other abitues and charges - 4)
Trade and other labilities - 70y
Currentincome tax habilities - (5)
Liabihuies directly associated with assets classified as held for sale - (82)
- HH

Met assets classified as held for sale

33 Purchase of non-controling mterest

There were no purchases of non-controlting mterests in 2014 In 2013 the Group purchased non-controlimg nterests
in the South African business far £65m, and in the Indian business for £11m




Secuon 5 Financal statarrents

34 Cash generated from operations

131

All 5gures n £ milions Neses 2014 013
Profit 470 539
Adjustments for

Income tax 1o 20
Depreciation W 74 82
Amortisation and impatrment of acqua ed intangibles and goodwill il 264 i68
Amorusation of software i 63 59
MNet finance costs 93 75
Share of results of joint ventures and associates 12 s 59
Profit on disposals 272) (187)
Acquisition costs 6 12
Net foreign exchange adjustrment from transactions 27 (40}
Share-based payment costs % 32 37
Pre-publication {52) (77)
Inventories 6 8
Trade and other recevables (69) {50)
Trade and other liabilities 72 72
Retrement benefit obligauons {58) (57)
Provisions for other habilises and charges (11} (3)
Net cash generated from operations 704 684
Dividends from jont ventures and associates 120 64
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {75) (118)
Purchase of intangible assets (167) {64)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 9 28
Proceeds from sale of intangible assets 2 2
Finance lease principal payments ] (8)
Operatng cash flow 649 588
Operating tax paid (163} (191)
MNet aperating finance costs paid (73} (73)
Operating free cash flow 413 324
Non eperatng tax paid - {55)
Free cash flow 413 269
Dividends pad {including to non-controlling nterests) (398) (372)
Net movement of funds from aperations I5 (103)
Acquisitions and disposais {net of tax} (137) (326)
toans advanced (including to related parties) {12) {49)
Purchase of treasur y shares | 9 47)
New equity [ 14
Other movements on financial nstruments 15 &)
iNet movement of funds (117) (520)
Exchange movements on net debt (143) 59
Total movement in net debt (260) {464)
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Notes 1o the cansolidated financial statements continued

34 Cash generated from operations continued

Net cash generated from operations is translated at an exchange rate approximaung to the rate at the date of cash
flow The difference between this rate and the average rate used to translate profit gives rise to a currency adjustment
in the reconciliation between net profit and net cash generated from operavons This adjustment reflects the uming
difference between recognition of profit and the related cash receipts or payments

Operatng cash flow, operating free cash flow and total free cash flow are non-GAAP measures and have been
disclosed as they are part of Pearson’s corporate and operating measures

in the cash flow statement, proceeds fr om sale of property, plant and equipment comprise

All figures in £ millions 044 2013
Netbook amount 12 19
{Loss)/profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (3) 9

9 28

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

35 Contingencies

There are contingent Group rabilities that arise in the normal course of business in respect of indemnities, warranties
and guarantees m relation to former subsidiaries and in respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates In addition there are contingent habilivies of the Group in respect of legal claims, contract disputes,
royalties, copyright fees, permissions and other rights None of these claims are expected to result m a material gan

orloss to the Group

36 Commmments

At the balance sheet date there were no commitments for capital expenditure contracted for but notyet incurred

The Group leases various offices and warehouses under non-cancellable operating lease agreements The leases
have varying terms and renewal rights The Group also feases vartous plantand equipmenit under operating lease
agreements, also with varymng terms Lease expenditure charged to the income statement was £157m (2013 £183m)

The future aggregate minimum lease payments in respect of operaung leases are as foliows

Al figures In £ rodlions 2044 2013
Not later than one year 161 161
Later than one year and not later than twe years 156 149
Later than two years and not later than three years 126 133
Later than three years and notlater than four years 122 Fi8
Later than four years and not later than five years ) 105

701 737

{_ater than five years

375 (403
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37 Related party transactions

Jont ventures and associates
Armounts advanced to joint ventures and associates during the year and at the balance sheet date are set outinnote 12
Apartfrom transacuons with the Group's joint ventur es and assocrates, there were no other material related party

transaciions '

Key management personnel
From | january 2014 the key management personnel are deemmed to be the member s of the Pearson Executrve

{see page 9} ltis this committee which had responsibility for planning, directing and controliing the activies ofthe
Group in 2014 Key management personnel compensation is disclosed below

Adtfigures o £rvihons 014
Short-term employee benefits {0
Retirement benefits |
Share-based payment costs

13

Total

There were no other material related party transactions No guarantees have been provided to related parties

38 Events after the balance sheet date

There were no matenal events after the balance sheet date
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Notes to the consohdated financial staterments continued

39. Accounts and audit exernptions

The Pearson plc subsidiary compantes histed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006
relating ta the audit of mdividual accounts by virtue of section 479A

Company tumber

Company number

Aldwych Finance Limited
ASET Limited

ASET Group Lirmited

ASET Management Limited
ASET Solutions Linited

Blue Wharf Limited

Burmedia Investments Limited
Edexcel Limited

Educaton Development Internatonal plc
Embankment Finance Limited
eNVQ Limited

EQL Assessment Limited
Financial Times (ASC) Limited
Financial Times Group Limited
Fronter UK Limited

FT Business Information Limited
FT Labs Limited

FT Perscnal Finance Limited
Goal Limited

Green Whar f Limited
icodeon Limited

Joint Examinung Board Lirmited

Longman Group (Overseas Holdings)
Linited

Midlands Educational Technology Limited
Pearson Affordable Learming Fund Limited
Pearson Amsterdam Finance Limited
Pearson Australia Finance Unlimited
Pearson Books Limited

Pearson Brazi Frinance Ltd

Pearson Canada Finance Unlivted
Pearson Dollar Finance plc

Pearson Dollar Finance Two plc

Pearson Educaton Holdings Limited
Pearson Educanion Investments Linuted

04720439
04231636
03964551

03139404
03849880
04344573
03060487
04496750
03914767
04460625
03985948
05224778
00519261

00879531

05737591

00758738
04701650
03855520
03566588
07009228
05068195
03278422

00690236
01448842
08038068
03041245
05578463
02512075
08848874
05578491
05411013
06507766
00210859
08444933

Pearson Educauen Limited

Pearson Funding Four plc

Pearson Funding One plc

Pearson Funding Two plc

Pearson Heinemann Limied
Pearson in Pracuce ATA Limuted
Pearson in Practice Holdings Limited

Pearson in Pracuce Skills Based
Learning Limited

Pearson in Practice Technology Limited
Pearson Internauonal Fimance Lirmted
Pearson Loan Finance No 2 Unhimited
Pearson Loan Finance No 3 Limited
Pearson Loan Finance No 4 Limited
Pearson Loan Finance Unlimited
Pearson Management Services Limited
Pearson Overseas Holdings Limited
Pearson PRH Holdmngs Lirmited
Pearson Professtonal Holdings Limited
Pearson Services Limited

Pearson Shated Services Limited

Peter Honey Publications Lirmted
Sector Tramng Limited

St Clernents Press {1988) Limited
Testchange Limited

The Coaching Space Linuted

The Financial Times (Benetus)) Limited
The Financial Times (France) Limited
The Financial Times {Japan) Limited
The Financial Times {(M-M UK} Limited
The Financial Times (Spam) Limited
TQ Catahs Limited

TQ Clapham Limited

TQ Global Limited

00872828
07970304
02911143
07210654
03099304
07679091
06337129

03755464
03786989
02496206
05632021
05052661
02635107
05144467
00096263
00145205
08561316
Q0449375
01341060
04623186
03754757
05342448
02174119
02496240
05333023
01613899
00867316
Q1613900
01398449
01214411
07307943
07307925
07802458
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The Pearson plc subsidiary companies histed below are exempt from the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

to prepare ndnvadual accounts by virtue of secuon 394A

Company ruber

Cempanywrher

Exec-Appomntments Limited 04010964 Medley Global Adwisors Lirmited 00931507
FD intelhgence Limited NI040129 The Financial News Limited 00607228
Financial Times Business Limited 00202281 The Pinancial Times (Switzerland) Limited 0161390}
Finanaal Times Electromic Publishing Limited 02749250 The Financial Times (Zhongwen) Limited 01900030
Finanaial Times Investor Limuted 04005565 Throgmorion Publications Limited 00905696
Mandatewire Limited 03855296
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Company balance sheet
As at 31 December 2014

Al figuresin € mifions Motes 2014 2013

Assets

Non-current assets

nvestmentsn substdrartes 2 8,740 B.537

Amounts due from subsrdiaries 27 2,009

Financial assets — dervative financial nstruments 3 84 [
8,851 10,657

Current assets

Amounts due from subsidiartes 5220 380

Amounts due fromrefated partes 54 44

Current income tax assets 28 24

Financial assets — dervative financial instruments 3 24 13

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) a I3 394

Other assets 2 -
5341 as5

Total assets {4,192 1,512

Liabilities

Non-current liabilives

Amounts due to subsidiaries (2.346) (3.553)

Financial hablines — borrowings 5 (210} (202)

Financial habiliies — derivaove financial instruments 6 73 {(48)

(2629  (3.803)

Current liabthtes

Amounts due to subsidiaries (4,414) (1,256}
Financial habiliwes — borrowings 5 (629) (766)
Financial habihues — derivative financial instruments 6 (h -
Other habilines (2) -
Provisions for other habiliues and charges 7 - (42)

(5.046) (2.064)
Total habilities {7.675) (5.867)
Net assets 6517 5.645
Equrty
Share capital 8 205 205
Share premium 8 2,579 2568
Treasury shares 9 I (22)
Specia reserve 447 447
Retained earnings 3,285 2 447
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the co;pany 6517 5.645
These financial starements have been approved for 1ssug by the board pftirectors on 9 March 2015 and signed on its
behalf by
Robin Freestone Chref financial officer ? }/é’(\b

\
— ﬁ
S e—
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Company statement of changes in equity
Year ended 31 December 2014

Equity 1ctmbutable 1o equity lalder s of the company g
Share Share Treasw y Specal Rerained - =
All figuresin £ 0v'llons caputal premiem shares [oserve CATRNLS Total E
At | January 2014 205 2,568 {22) 447 2,447 5,645 z
Profit for the year - - - - I 267 1,267 v
Issue of ordinary shares under
share option schemes* - 1 - - - i
Purchase of treasury shares - - {9) - - &)
Release of treasury shares - - 32 - (32) -
Dividends - - - - (397) (397} e
At 3| December 2014 205 2,579 I 447 3,285 6517 -
- =
o
z
Equiry attributabie to equily holdurs of the company )z’
Share Sharc Treasury Soecal Retained o
Al figuresin £ milligns capiml pramum shares raserve earnings Toul
At | January 2013 204 2.555 27) 447 2,069 5,248
Profit for the year - -~ - - 802 802
Issue of ordinary shares under o
share option schemes® i 13 - - - 4 =
Purchase of treasury shares - - (47 - - (47} §
Release of treasury shares - - 52 - (52) - 3
Dwidends - - - - (372) (372) 5
At 3t December 2013 205 2,568 (22} 447 2,447 5645 q
The specal reserve represents the cumulauve effect of cancelfation of the company's share premium account
included within retaned earnings is an amount of £131m (2013 £131m) relaung to profit onintra-Group disposals that
i not distributable o
*Full details of che share based payment plans as e discloscd innore 26 1o the consohidated financial staiements g
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Company cash flow statement
Year ended 31 December 2014

At figures in £ mithons Motes 2014 2013

Cash flows from operaung acuvites
Net profit 1267 802

Adjustments for

Income tax (9 S
Net finance costs 24 167
Amounts due to subsidiaries (1.058) {1.053)
Net cash generated/(used in) from operations 224 (135;
fnterest pard {73) (82)
Tax received 6 14
Net cash generatedf{used ) from aperating activities 157 (203)
Cash flows from investing activities

Dhisposat of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed - 482
Loans to related parues (10) 44)
Interest received IS 0
Net cash receved from investing activities 5 448
Cash flows from finanoing acuvities

Proceeds from 1ssue of ordinary shares 8 bl 14
Net purchase of treasury shares % (48)
Repayment of borrowings (250) -
Dwvidends paid to company's shareholders (397) (372)
Net cash used in financing activities (645} (406)
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents {15) 18
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {498) (143)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginmung of year {118} 25

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 1 (616) (118)
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Notes to the company financial statements

| Accounting pohcies

The financial statements on pages {96 to 204 compnise the separate financial statements of Pearson plc

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, only the consohdated income statement and statement
of comprehensive ncome have been presented

The comipany has no employees

The accountng policies applied in the preparation of these company financial statements are the same as those set
outin note | to the consolidated financial statements with the additon of the fallowing

Investments
Investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for impairment with the exception of certain hedged

investments that are held in a foreign currency and revalued at each balance sheet date.

2 Investments in subsidiaries

All figures in £ millions 2014 2013
At beginmng of year 8,537 9,108
Subscripuon for share capital in subsidiaries t38 424
Disposals/hiquidations - (985)
Currency revaluations 65 (1)
B ' 8740 8537

At end of year

3 Financial risk management

The company’s financial mstruments comprise amounts due to/from subsidiary undertakings, cash and cash
eqguivalents, dermvative financal instruments and current and non-current borrowings Dernvatve financal instruments
are held at fair value, with all other financial instruments heid at amorused cost. The company's approach to the
management of financial risks 1s conststent with the Group's treasury policy, as discussed in note {9 to the consolidated
financral statements The company beheves the value of its financial assets to be fully recoverable

The company designates cet tan qualifying derrvative financial mstruments as hedges of the fair value of its bonds (far
value hedges) Changes in the fair value of these dervative financial instruments are recorded in the income statement,
together with any change m the fair value of the hedged liability attributable to the hedged risk

The carrying value of the company's financal instruments s exposed to mavements n interest rates and foreign
currency exchange rates (primarily US dollars) The company esumates thata |% increase ininterest rates would
result in a £66m decrease in the carrying value of its financial mstruments, with a 1% decrease in interest rates resulting
m a £85m increase in their carrying value The company also estimates thata 0% strengthening in sterling would
decrease the carrying value of its financial instruments by £169m, while a 10% weakening in the value of sterling would
ncrease the carrying value by £89m These increases and decreases in carrying value would be recorded through the
income statement Sensitivities are calculated using estimation techniques such as discounted cash flow and option
valuation medels Where modelling an interest rate decrease of 1% led to negative interest rates, these pomts on the

vield curve were adjusted to 0%

I
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

3 Financial risk management contunued

The matunity of contracted cash flows on the company’s borrowings and all of its denvauve financial nstruments

are as fallows

2014
Afl figures in £ milens usD GBP Other Toral
Not later than one year 172 (2t2) (16) (56}
Later than one year and not later than five years 224 -~ (97) 127
Later than five years 48 - {403) 15
Total 814 {212) (516) 86
Analysed as
Bonds 224 - - 224
Rate derivatives — inflows (303) (656) (537) (1,496}
Rate denvatives— outflows 893 444 21 1,358
Total 814 {212) (516) 86
2013
Al figures i £ mi hons usp GBP Other Total
Not later than one year 20 233 i6 223
Later than one year and not later than five years 287 (213 - 75
L.ater than five years (39) - - (39
Total 28 21 16 265
Analysed as
Bonds 219 268 - 487
Rate derivatives — inflows (350} (248) - (598)
Rate denvatives — outflows 359 { te 376
228 21 16 265

Total

All cash flow projections shown above are onan undiscounted basis Any cash flows based on a floating rate are
calcutated using interest rates as set at the date of the last rate reset VWhere this 1s not possible, floaung rates are based
on interest rates prevailing at 31 December i the relevant year All dertvative amounts are shown gross, although the

company net settles these amounts wherever possible

Any amounts drawn under revolving credit facilities and commercial paper are assumed to mature at the maturity date
of the relevant facility, with interest calculated as payable n each calendar year up to and including the date of maturtty

af the faclity
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4 Cash and cash equivalents (excluding overdrafts) o
All figures in £ il ous 2014 913 5
Cash at bank and i hand 2 269 E
Short-term bank deposits n {25 g
o o E 394

Short-term bank deposits are mvested with banks and earn interest at the prevailing short-term deposit rates
At the end of 2014 the currency sphit of cash and cash equivalents was US dollar 33% (2013 76%), sterling 54% (2013
24%) and other 3% (2013 mf)
Cash and cash equivalents have fair values that approximate 1o thewr carrying amounts due to therr short-term nature 2
Cash and cash equivalents indude the following for the purpose of the cash flow statement g
All figures in £ mllions 2014 2013 g
Cash and cash equivalents 13 394 %
Bank overdrafts {629) (512) "

(616) {118)
5 Financial iizbihities — borrowings
Allfigures in £ milions 2014 203 o
Non-current E
4 625% US dollar notes 2018 (nominal amount $300m) 210 202 §

210 202 %
Current 2
Due within one year or on-demand )
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 {nominal amount £250m) -~ 254
Bank loans and overdrafts 629 512
629 766 o

Total borrowings 839 968 %
Included in non-current borrowings above 15 £nil of acerued nterest (2013 £nil) Included i current borrowings above g

15 £nil of accrued mterest {2013 £3my)
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

5 Financial liabilioies - borrowings continued

The mawrity of the company's non-current borrowings is as follows

All figures m £ eniflons 1014 2013
Between one and two years - -
Between two and five years 210 202
Over five years - -
210 202
As at 3! December 2014 the exposure to interest rate changes of the borrowings and amounts due to subsidiaries
when the borrowings re-price s as follows
Less chan One to More than
All figures n £ nullions one year five years five years Toral
Re-pricing profile of borrowings 629 210 - 839
Amounts due to subsidiaries 4414 960 1,386 6,760
Effect of rate derivatives 1,254 (225) (1.029) -
6,297 945 357 7,599
The carrymg amounts and market values of borrowings are as follows
2014 2013
Effective Carrying " tarker. Carrying Marxet
Al figures m £ mifions mterest rate amount valve amount valve
Bank loans and overdrafts n/a 629 629 512 512
7 0% Sterling bonds 2014 7 20% - - 254 262
4 625% US doflar notes 20(8 4 69% 210 205 202 195
839 B34 968 969

The market values are based on clean market prices at the year end or, where these are not available, on the quoted

market prices of comparable debt issued by other companies The effective interest rates above relate to the

underlying debt instruments

The carrying amounts of the company's borrowings are denominated in the following currencies

Al figures w £ mIbons 2014 13
US doflar 477 202
Steriing 354 762
Euro 8 4

839 968
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6 Derwvauve financial instruments o
c
The company’s outstanding dervative financial nstruments are as follows i
c
2014 2013 Z
Grazs notional Grensaouenal @
Altfiguresin £ milhons amounts Assors Linbilities amen nes Assels Liabilltey
Interest rate dervatives —
in a far value hedge relationshep i92 18 - 23| 2 -
Interest rate derivatives — notin a
hedge relationship 2,404 67 (31 1842 63 (48)
Cross-currency derivatives 952 23 (43) 220 39 - e
Total 3,548 108 74) 2,293 124 48) =
3
Analysed as expiring g
In less than one year 200 24 (N 312 i3 - z
Later than one year and not later than
five years b314 &l 8 1,377 RE! -
Later than five years 2,034 23 (65) 604 - (48)
Total 3,548 108 {74} 2.293 124 (48) P
=
The carrying value of the above derivative financial instruments equals thesr fair value Fair values are determined g
by using mariket data and the use of established esumaton techniques such as discounted cash flow and option O
valuation models %
=
7 Provisions for other liabilities and charges i
a
Provistons in the prior year were comprised of habilities assumed on the closure of the business of a Group subsidiary
As anticipated, the provisions were utiised during the year
8 Share capital and share premium
MNumberof Ord nary Share -
shires shares premlum 8
0005 fm . =
At | January 2013 817.403 204 2.555 z
Issue of ordinary shares - share option schemes £.537 ! (3 E
At 3] December 2013 818,580 205 2568
Issue of ordinary shares — share option schemes £.303 - H
At 3] December 2014 819,883 205 2,579

The ordinary shares have a par value of 25p per share (2013 25p per share) All issued shares are fully paid Al shares
have the same nghts
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Notes to the company financial statements continued

9. Treasury shares

Mymberof
shares
Co0s im
At ! january 2013 10,102 27
Purchase of wreasury shai es 4,11 47
Release of treasury shares h (4.930) (52)
Ac 31 December 2013 9.282 22
Purchase of treasury shares 907 9
Release of treasury shares (2,997 (32)
At 31 December 2014 7.192 {l)

The company holds its own shares in trust to sausfy 1ts obligauons under its restricted share plans These shares are
treated as treasury shares for accounting purposes and have a par value of 25p per share The nominal value of the
company’s treasury shares amounts to £1 8m (2013 £2 3m} At 3t December 2014 the market value of the company’s
treasury shares was £85 6m (2013 £124 4m) The gross book value of the shares at 3 December 2014 amounts to
£75m This value has been netted off with contributions received from operating companies of £76m, resulting in a
net credit value of £1m

10 Conungencies

There are contingent habiities that anse in the normal course of business in respect of ndemnities, warranties and
guarantees in relation to former subsidianies and i respect of guarantees in relation to subsidiaries In addition there
are contingent liabiliies In respect of legal claims. None of these claims are expected to resultina materal gain or

loss to the company

Il Audit fees

Statutory audit fees relating to the company were £35,000 (2013 £35,000)

12 Related party transactions

Subsidiaries
The company transacts and has outstanding balances with 1ts subsidiaries Amounts due from subsidiartes and

amounts due to subsidiartes are disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet

These loans are generally unsecured and interest s calculated based on market rates The company has interest
payable to subsidiaries for the year of £143m (2013 £144m) and interest receivable from substdiaries for the year
of £73m (2013 £59m) Management fees payable to subsidiaries in respect of centrally provided services amounted
to £19m (2013 £55m) Dwidends received from subsidiaries were £1,300m (2013 £1,363m)

Associates

Amounts due from related parues, disclosed on the face of the company balance sheet, relate to loans to Penguin
Random House, an associate of the Group These loans are unsecured and interestis calculated based on

market rates The amount outstanding at 31 December 2014 was £54m (2013 £44m) The loans are provided under
aworking capital facility and fluctuate during the year The loan outstanding at 31 December 2044 was repard in s

entirety in january 2015

Key management personnel
From [ January 2014, key management personnel are deemed to be the members of the Pearson Executive

[t s this commuttee which had responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activites of the company in 2014
Key management personnei compensation is disclosed i note 37 to the consolidated financal statements

There were no other material related party transactions No guarantees have been prowided to related partees
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Principal subsidiaries

The principal operaung subsidiares at 31 December 2014 are fisted below They operate mainly in the countries
of incorporation of registiation The iInvestments are in equity share capital and they are afl 100% owned

Coustry of Incerporann or regsiranen

Pearson Education Inc us
Pearson Educaton Ltd England
NCS Pear son inc s
The Financal Trmes Ltd England

The company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Comparies Act 2006 by providing
information only in relation to subsidiary undertakings whose results or finanaial positton, 1n the opinion of the
directors principally affected the financial statements A complete list of subsidiary and assoctated undertakings
will be included in the next Pearson ple annual return filed with the Registrar of Comparies
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Five-year summary

2013

Al fgures in £ milhons 010 0t 2002 restated 1014
Sales By geography*

North America 3073 2,974
Core 1,258 154
Growth 738 746
Continuing 4532 4,728 4,559 5,069 4874
Discontinued 1,427 1,134 i.153 621 9
Total sales 5959 5862 6,112 5,690 4,883
Sales. By line of business™

School 2,303 2,027
Higher Education |.664 1,695
Professional 1,102 1,152
Continuing 4,532 4728 4,959 5,069 4,874
Discontinued 1427 1,134 }.153 621 9
Total sales 5,959 5,862 6,112 5.690 4,883
Adjusted operaung profic By geography”

North America 474 464
Core i20 152
Growth 38 35
Penguin Random House - - - 50 69
Continuing 732 806 809 682 720
Discontinued 206 132 123 54 2
Total adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722
Adjusted operating profit By line of business*

School 268 236
Higher Education 295 309
Professional 69 106
Penguin Random House - - - 50 69
Continumng 732 806 809 682 720
Disconunued 206 132 123 54 2
Total adjusted operaung profit 938 938 932 736 722

tPerads priorto 2013 have not been restited to reflect the new organisavon structire as there ls noapp) opriate basis for restatement of those pertods
2011 onwards reflect the adopuoen of JAS 19 revised and bave been restated as appropriate  Prior periods have not been restated
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201
Alffigures in € milions 2010 201t 202 restated 2014
Qperating margim — continutng 162% i70% 163% 135% (4 8%
Adjusted earnings
Total adjusted operaung profit 938 938 932 736 722
Net finance costs {85) {55} (65) (72) {64)
Income tax (215} {196) (200) (97} (118}
Non-controlling interest (17) } 3} H 1
Adjusted earnings 621 688 664 566 541
Weighted average number of shares (millions) 8012 8002 BO43 8078 8lo9
Adjusted earnmings per share 77 5p 86 Op 82 ép 70 ip 66 7p
All figures In £ millians 1010 2011 2082 2013 2014
Cash flow
Operating cash flow 1,057 983 788 588 649
Operating cash conversion 1i3% 105% 85% 80% 0%
Operaung fi ee cash flow 904 772 657 324 413
Operating free cash flow per share 112 8p 96 5p 8l 7p 10 Ip 509
Total free cash flow 904 772 657 269 413
Total free cash flow per share 1128p %6 5p 8t 7p 333p 50%
Net assets 5,605 5962 5710 5708 5985
Net debt 430 499 gi8 1,379 1,639
Return on invested capital (gross basis)
Total adjusted operating profit 938 938 932 736 722
Cash tax pard (85) (t50) (65) (19n {163)
Return 853 787 B67 545 559
Average invested capital 8315 8,731 $.578 10,130 9,900
Return on invested capital 103% 30% 91% 54% 56%
Dividend per share 387 42 0p 450p © 4 Op 510p
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Corporate and operating measures

Pearson’s corporate and operaung measures mclude the results of Mergermarket throughout 2013 as the business
was wholly-owned during that period

Sales — underlying and constant exchange rate movement

Sales movements exclude Penguin the impact of acquisitions disposals and movements in exchange rates

All figures w £ mdbons 2014
Underlying decrease 2)
Portfoho changes 79
Exchange differences (272}
Total sales decrease {195)
Underlying decrease 0%
Constant exchange rate increase 2%
Adjusted income statement
Reconcilaton of the consohidated income statement to the adjusted numbers presented as non-GAAP measures
in the financial statements
2014
Stacutary Orther net Other ner Tax  Adjusted
ncome Discontinued gansand  Acquisiuon  Incangible finange amornsation ncome
All figures wn £ mitons Ssatemen:  cperanions losses costs charges Incomelegsts bevefit  statement
Operatng profit 398 2 {2) 6 318 - - 722
Net finance costs {93) - - - - 29 - (64)
Profit before tax 305 2 {2) 6 318 29 - 658
ncome tax {63) hH f ] (73) (5) 24 (118)
Profit for the year from
continuing aperations 242 | (N 5 245 24 24 540
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 228 (n (227) - - - - -
Profit for the year 470 - (228) 5 245 24 24 540

Non-controling interest | - - -
Earnings 471 - {228) 5 145 24 24 541




Adjusted income statement continued
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Starutory Qthernot Other net Tax Adpusted
ncome Discont nued pwand  Aequston Int ingivle frunce I mortsaten neome
Altfigures i £ miuans slatement  operatoas fosses costs charges INCOMEALATT benefit  statemcng
Operaung profit 458 54 16 12 196 - - 736
Net finance costs {76) - - - - 4 - (72)
Profit before tax 382 54 6 i2 [96 4 - 664
Income tax {87) (18) 32 (2) (54 ) 30 (97)
Profit for the year from
continuing operations 295 36 48 10 145 3 30 567
Profit for the year from
discontinued operations 244 (36) (209) ~ 2 (" - -
Profit for the year 539 - {161} 0 147 2 30 567
Non-controlling tnterest (1) - - - - - - (1)
Earnings 538 - (161) 10 147 2 30 566
Adjusted operating profit — underlying and constant exchange rate movement
Cperatng profit movement excluding the impact of acquisiions, disposals and movements in exchange rates
Al figures in £ mllions 2014
Underlying increase 35
Portfolo changes -
Exchange differences (49)
Total adjusted operating profit decrease (14)
Underltyingincrease 5%
5%

Constant exchange rate increase
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Corporate and operating measures continued

Free cash flow per share

Operaung cash flow for contnuing and discontinued operations before tax and finance charges dmvided by the

weighted average number of shares in issue

Al figures m £ millons 2014 2003
Adjusted operating profit 22 736
Cash conversion 90% B80%
Operaung cash flow 649 588
Qperaung tax paid (163) (191}
Net eperatng finance costs patd (73) (73)
Total operating free cash flow o 413 324
Non operaung tax patd - (55)
Total free cash flow 413 269
Wejghted average number of shares in issue {miflions) 8I10% 8078
Operating free cash flow per share 509p 40 1p
Total free cash flow per share 509 333p

Return on invested capital

invested capual

Al figures in £ nvllons 2014 2013
Total adjusted operaung profit 722 736
Operating tax paid (163) {191)
Return 559 545
Average goodwill and other intangibles 8,557 8 905—
Awverage net operaung assets 1,343 1,227
Average invested capital 2.900 10,130
56% 54%

Return on invested capital

Return on nvested capital is calculated as total adjusted operating profit less operating cash tax paid expressed as
a percentage of average invested capnal Invested capital includes the original unamortsed goodwill and intangibles




Shareholder information

Pearson ordinary shares ar e fisted on the London Stock
Exchange and on the New Yot k Stock Exchange in the
form of Amenican Depositary Recetpis

Corporate website

The mvestors’ section of our corporate website

www pearson com/investors provides a wealth of
wformanon for shareholders Itis also possible to sign
up to receive emai alerts for reports and press releases
relating 1o Pearson at www pearson com/news/
newsletter-subscribe htmi

Shareholder infermauon online

Shareholder informaton can be found on cur websie
www pearson com/investors/shareholder-informatan

Our registrar, Equinitr also provides a range of shareholder
infermation online You can check your holding and find
practical help on transferning shares or updating your
details at www shareview co uk For more information,
please contact our registrar, Equiriti, Aspect House,
Spencer Road, Lancing, West Sussex BN99 6DA
Telephone 0871 384 2233* or, for those shareholders
with hearing difficulues, textphone number

0871 384 2255

Informatson about the Pearson share price

The company’s share price can be found on our website
at www pearson com [t also appears in the financial
columns of the national press

2014 diwidends

Payment date Amaunt per <hal ¢
Interrm 12 September 2014 17 pence
Final i May 2015 34 pence

Payment of dividends to mandated accounts

Should you elect to have your dividends pard through
BACS, this can be done directly into a bank or building
society account, with the tax voucher sent to the
shareholder’s registered address Equiniu canbe
contacted for information on 0871 384 2043*

Dwidend remnvestment plan (DRIP)

The DRIP gives shar eholders the right to buy the

company s shares on the London stock market with thew

cash dividend For further information, please contact
Equinizon 0871 384 2268+

Secuon 5 Ninancal statements 2H

Individual Savings Accounts ([SAs)

Equimu offers ISAs in Pearson shares Formore
mformation, please go to www shareview co uk/dealing
or call customer services on 0845 300 0430~

Share deafing facilities

Equiniu offers telephone and mternet services for
dealing in Pearson shares Forfurthernformation,
please contact thewr telephone deahng helplne on
08456 037 037* (weekdays only} or, for onfine dealing,
log on to www shareview co uk/dealing You will need
your shareholder reference number as shown on your
share certficate

A postal dealing service 1s also avallable through Equirit
Please telephone 0871 384 2248 for detads or fog on to
www shareview co uk to download aform

ShareGift

Shareholders with smalt holdings of shares, whose
value makes them uneconoemic to self, may wish

to donate them to ShareGift, the share donauon
chanity (registered chanty number 1052686)

Further information about ShareGift and the charites

it has supported may be obtamned from their website,
www ShareGift org or by contacting them at ShareGift,
PO Box 72253. London, SWIPSLQ

American Depositary Receipts (ADRs)

Pearsons ADRs are listed on the New York Stock
Exchange and traded under the symbol PSO Each ADR
represents one ordinary share For enquiries regarding
registered ADR holder accounts and dvidends, please
contact Bank of New York Mellon, Shareholder
Correspondence {ADR), PO Box 30170, College
Stauon, TX 77842-3170, telephone t (866) 259 2289
(toll free within the US) or 001 201 680 6825

{outside the US) Alternatively you may email
shrrelations@cpushareownerservices com Voting
rights for registered ADR holders can be exercised
through Bank of New York Mellon, and for beneficial
ADR holders (and/or nominee accounts) through your
LS broker age instituton Pearson will file wath the
Securities and Exchange Commussion a Form 20-F

*Calls to these numbers a1 e charged au Bp per minute plus network extras
Lines open 8 302m 1o 5 30pm Monday wo Friday
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Shareholder information continued

Share register fraud protecting your investment

Pearson does not contact its shareholders directly

to provide recommendation advice and neither does

1 appomt third parues to do so As required by law,

our sharehotder regster is avatable for public inspection
but we cannat control the use of iformavon obtained
by persons mspecting the register Please treat any
approaches putporting to originate f om Pearson

with caution

For more information, please log onto our
website at www pearson com/investors/
shareholder-informauon htmil

Tips on protecting your shares

» Keep any documentation that contains your
shareholder reference number in a safe place and
shred any unwanted documentauon

» Inform our registrar, Equiniu, promptly when you
change address

» Be aware of dividend payment dates and contact the
registrar if you do not recewve your dividend cheque or
better sull, make arrangements to have the dividend
paid directly into your bank account

» Consider holding your shares electroncally na CREST
account via a nominee

2015 financial calendar

Ex-dividend date 2 Apnl
Record date 7 Apnl
Last date for dividend remvestment election {0 Apnl
Payment date for dividend and share

purchase date for dvidend reinvestment | May
Annual General Meeting 24 Apnt
Interim results 24 July

Payment date for interim dwidend t | September




Rehance on this document

Our strategic report an pages 2 to 56 has been
prepared in accordance with section 414 ("Duty to
prepare a strategic report’) of the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directot s’ Report) Regulations
2013 lralso incorporates much of the guidance set outin
the Accounting Standards Board's Repor ung Statement
on the Operating and Financial Review

The intenuon of this document s to provide information
to shareholders and s not designed to be relied upon by
any other party orfor any other purpose

Forward-looking statements

Except for the historical informanion contamed herein,
the matters discussed in this document include forward-
looking statements In particular, all statements that
express forecasts, expectations and projecuons with
respect to future matters, including trends in results
of operations, margins, growth rates, overall market
wrends, the impact of interest or exchange rates, the
availability of financing, anucipated costs savings and
synergies and the execution of Pearson’s strategy. are
forward-loolang statements By their nature, forward-
looking statemenis involve risks and uncertaintes

IMAGE REMOVED
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Prinz. Pureprint Group

Pearson has supported the planung of 167 square metres of new native
woaodland with the Woodland Trust helping to remove 6 7 tonnes of
carbon dioxide emissions genes ated by the production of this eepart
and associated documents

because they relate to events and depend on
arcumstances that will occur i future They are based
on numerous assumpuons 1egarding Pearson’s present
and future business strategies and the environment
mwhich it will operatein the future There are 2
number of factors which could cause actual results and
developments to differ materally from those expressed
or imphed by these forward-ooking statements,
including a number of factors outside Pearson's
control These include internatonal, nagional and local
condinons, as well as competiuon They also include
other risks detailed from time 1o tme in Pearson’s
publicly-filed documents and you are adwised to read,
n partcular, the risk factors set out in this document,
or otherwise In Pearson's latest annual report

and accounts, which can be found on its website
{(www pearson com/investors) Any forward-loolang
statements speak only as of the date they are made,
and Pearson gives no undertaking to update forward-
looking statements to reflect any changes in its
expectations with regard thereto or any changes to
events condiuons or circumstances on which any such
statementis based No rehance should be placed on
forward-iooking statements
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